
 

 

 

 

 
Lone Tree City Council Agenda 
Tuesday, January 7, 2014 
 

Meeting Location: City Council Meeting Room, Lone Tree Civic Center, 8527 Lone Tree Parkway. 
Meeting Procedure: The Lone Tree Council and staff will meet in a public Study Session at 4:30 p.m.  At 6:00 
p.m. and following the meeting, if necessary, the Council Meeting will adjourn and convene Council in Executive 
Session.  If an Executive Session is not necessary Council will recess for dinner. The Regular Meeting will be 
convened at 7:00 p.m.  Study Sessions and Regular Meetings are open to the public, Executive Sessions are not.  
Comments from the public are welcome at these occasions:  1) Public Comment (brief comments on items not 
scheduled for a public hearing), 2) Public Hearings. Please contact the City Clerk if special arrangements are needed.   

4:30pm Study Session Agenda 
1. Risk Management Update 
2. FAI for 1/21: Approval of 2014 DC Youth Initiative IGA 

 
  

6:00pm Executive Session Agenda 
1. Roll Call 
2. Executive Session  

7:00pm Regular Meeting Agenda 
3. Opening of Regular Meeting/Pledge of Allegiance  
4. Amendments to the Agenda and Adoption of the Agenda  
5. Conflict of Interest Inquiry  
6. Public Comment  
7. Announcements  
8. Presentations  
9. Consent Agenda 

a. Minutes of the December 17, 2013 Regular Meeting 
b. Claims for the period of December 9-30, 2013  

10. Community Development 
a. Public Hearing: Ordinance 13-12, AMENDING THE SUBDIVISION CODE (Second 

Reading) File #MI13-42 
11. Police Department  
12. Public Works 
13. Administrative Matters  

a. Public Hearing: H&R Liquor License for J&L Concepts, LLC dba Cranelli’s (10047 Park 
Meadows Dr., Unit F)  

14. Council Comments  
15. Adjournment 

 
 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 1 of 241



 

City Council Minutes Page 1 of 4 December 17, 2013 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF LONE TREE 
HELD 

December 17, 2013 
 

A regular meeting of the Council of the City of Lone Tree was held on Tuesday, 
December 17, 2013, at 7:00 p.m., at the Lone Tree City Council Chambers 
located at 8527 Lone Tree Parkway, Lone Tree, Colorado 80124. 
  

 
Attendance  
  In attendance were: 
 

James D. Gunning, Mayor 
Jacqueline Millet, Mayor Pro Tem 
Harold Anderson, Council Member 
Kim Monson, Council Member  
Susan Squyer, Council Member 
 
Also in attendance were: 

 
Seth Hoffman, City Manager 
Robert Johnson, Internal Services Director 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk 
Chief Jeffery Streeter, Lone Tree Police Department 
Steve Hebert, Community Development Director 
Neil Rutledge, Assistant City Attorney, White, Bear and Ankele, P.C. 
John Cotten, Public Works Director, TST, Inc. 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director  
Jack W.L. Hidahl, City Manager Emeritus 
   

 
Call to Order 
  Mayor Gunning called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., and observed that a  
  quorum was present. 

  
 
Executive Session 

There was no executive session. 
   

 
Pledge of Allegiance  
  Mayor Gunning led those assembled in reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 
    
 
Amendments to the Agenda 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 2 of 241



 

City Council Minutes Page 2 of 4 December 17, 2013 

Council Member Squyer moved, and Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to remove 
the claims from the consent agenda and add it to the agenda. The motion passed 
unanimously.  
______ 

 
Conflict of Interest 

There was no conflict of interest. 
______ 

 
Public Comment 

Bill Robertson, 9278 E. Aspen Hill Circle, said he thought that the city is in a rut 
because each year gets better than the next. He also wished everyone a Merry 
Christmas. 
 
Fred Hammer, President of the Enclave HOA, encouraged Council to partner with 
Park Meadows Metro District on the pedestrian bridge across Lincoln and to keep 
the project on the front burner. He also explained the landscaping concerns he has 
with the brick wall and vertical terracing along Yosemite in the Enclave HOA. He 
requested Council allow Public Works staff to review and give the Enclave HOA 
possible solutions to correcting problem.  
______  
  

Announcements 
Mayor Gunning announced upcoming events. 
 
Sophia Kenny, Youth Commissioner, gave Council an update on the Youth 
Commission. 
______ 
  

Presentations 
Introduction of Holiday Card Selection Winner 
Mayor Gunning introduced Sydni Studesville from Lone Tree Elementary whose 
artwork has been chosen for the 2013 City of Lone Tree Holiday Card. 
______  
 

Consent Agenda 
Mayor Gunning noted the following items on the Consent Agenda, which 
consisted of: 

 
§ Minutes of the December 3, 2013 Regular Meeting 
§ Treasurer’s Report October, 2013 
§ Approval of Letter of Engagement for White, Bear, Ankele PC 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to approve 
the Consent Agenda with the Claims removed.  The motion passed unanimously. 
   
 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 3 of 241



 

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 4 December 17, 2013 

Community Development 
ORDINANCE 13-12, AMENDING THE SUBDIVISION CODE (First 
Reading) File #SP13-41  
 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Squyer seconded, to approve 
Ordinance 13-12, AMENDING THE SUBDIVISION CODE on first reading.  
The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Approval of Park Meadows Town Center 1-A, 3rd Amdt, Lot 17 (Seasons 52) SIP, 
File #SP13-41 
 
Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner, introduced the item and Jim Powell of Darden 
Restaurants. Mr. Powell spoke about the project. 
 
Council Member Monson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
Park Meadows Town Center 1-A, 3rd Amdt, Lot 17 (Seasons 52) SIP with the 
three conditions as noted in the staff memo. The motion passed unanimously. 
  
 

Police Department 
Approval of IGA with Douglas County for Animal Control 
 
Chief Jeff Streeter introduced the item.  
 
Council Member Anderson moved, Mayor Pro Tem Millet seconded, to approve 
the IGA with Douglas County for Animal Control.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
  
 

Administrative Matters 
Public Hearing: Resolution 13-24, ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION FOR FY2013 DUE TO UNANTICIPATED 
REVENUES OR REVENUES NOT ASSURED AT THE TIME OF 
ADOPTION OF THE BUDGET 

   
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing at 7:52 p.m.  
 
Kristin Baumgartner, Finance Director, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Gunning opened the public hearing for comment at 7:54 p.m.  
 
There was no public comment.   
 
The public hearing was closed at 7:54 p.m. 
 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 4 of 241



 

City Council Minutes Page 4 of 4 December 17, 2013 

Council Member Squyer moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to 
approve Resolution 13-24, ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET AND 
APPROPRIATION FOR FY2013 DUE TO UNANTICIPATED REVENUES OR 
REVENUES NOT ASSURED AT THE TIME OF ADOPTION OF THE 
BUDGET. 
  
RESOLUTION 13-25, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE ARTS 
COMMISSION  
 
Jennifer Pettinger, City Clerk, introduced the item.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to approve 
Resolution 13-25, APPOINTING A MEMBER TO THE ARTS COMMISSION 
(Janice Hubbell). The motion passed unanimously. 
  
Claims for the period of November 25 – December 9, 2013 
 
Kristin Baumgartner presented the item. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Millet moved, Council Member Anderson seconded, to approve 
the amended claims for the period of November 25 – December 9, 2013. The 
motion passed unanimously. 
 

Adjournment  
There being no further business, Mayor Gunning adjourned the meeting at  
8:18 p.m. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
       
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 5 of 241



 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 

Project Summary 
 

 
Date:   January 7, 2014, City Council Public Hearing 
 
 
Project Name: Lone Tree Subdivision Code Amendments 
 
 
Project Type / #: Ordinance No. 13-12, Subdivision Code Amendments, Project #MI 

13-42 
 
 
Staff Contacts: Steve Hebert, Community Development Director 
 Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
  
 
Meeting Type: Public Hearing (Second Reading). 
 
 
Summary of Request:  
 
 City Council consideration and approval on Second Reading of 

proposed amendments to the Lone Tree Subdivision Code.   
 
 

Planning Commission Recommendation: 
  
 Unanimous recommendation for approval. 
 
 
Suggested Action:  
 

Staff recommends the City Council approve on Second Reading 
Ordinance No. 13-12 concerning amendments to the Lone Tree 
Subdivision Code.   

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 6 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

 
STAFF REPORT 

 
TO:  Mayor Gunning and City Council 
 
FROM: Steve Hebert, Community Development Director 
  Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner 
 
DATE: January 1, 2014 
 
FOR:  January 7, 2014, City Council Public Hearing (Second Reading)   
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 13-12, City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update,  

File #MI 13-42 
  
 
 
Planning Commission Hearing Date:    November 26, 2013 
City Council Study Session Date:    December 3, 2013 
City Council Meeting (First Reading) Date:     December 17, 2013 
City Council Public Hearing (Second Reading) Date: January 7, 2014 
   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

A. REQUEST: 
 

Consideration and approval on Second Reading of proposed amendments 
to the Subdivision Code.   
 

 
B. BACKGROUND: 
 

Subdivision is the process of dividing, or in some case combining, parcels 
of land into legal lots, tracts and rights-of-way that can be bought, sold or 
otherwise conveyed.  The most common product of the subdivision 
process is a subdivision plat.  The plat shows how a given piece of land is 
divided into lots and blocks, how streets are laid out to provide access, 
and where various easements are provided for public utilities.  The 
Subdivision Code establishes the process for creating and amending such 
plats, as well as other actions including the dedication of land to public 
entities and the vacation of right-of-way. 

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 7 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

Subdivision regulations are required by state statute and Colorado 
municipalities are authorized to adopt such regulations in C.R.S. 31-23-21 
through 31-23-227. 
 
The purpose of Lone Tree’s Subdivision Code is to set forth the process 
and standards of subdividing land and to ensure the general health, safety 
and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of the City; to guide 
future growth and development that provides adequate and efficient 
infrastructure and services;  to provide for the  preservation and 
conservation of significant natural resources, scenic views, and historically 
and archeologically important areas; to ensure proper lot size and 
configuration; a diversity of housing; adequate connections; and proper 
record keeping.   
 
The Code was originally adapted from the Douglas County Subdivision 
Code upon the City’s incorporation in 1995 and has undergone only minor 
changes since then. The changes proposed at this time reflect the more 
urban, master-planned characteristics of the City and provide for a more 
efficient review process while maintaining opportunity for public review 
and input.  Other communities, like the Town of Castle Rock, have made 
similar changes to provide greater clarity and streamlining of the review 
process.   

 
From time to time the City performs an evaluation of the Subdivision 
regulations to ensure they: 
 

· Are in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan 
· Are clear and consistent 
· Are in line with current policies and procedures 
· Eliminate redundant, outdated or unnecessary regulations 
· Address existing problems or concerns 
· Keep current with changing circumstances or technology, and 
· Meet the needs of the City. 

 
Staff has undertaken a comprehensive review of the Subdivision Code in 
keeping with the above intent and in concert with Public Works.   

 
C. SUMMARY: 

 
The following is a summary of the key changes proposed: 
 

· Subdivision process for single-family detached homes (currently 
Sketch, Preliminary and Final Plat process): 

o Change from a three-step process to a two-step process, by 
eliminating the Sketch Plan step, to improve efficiency and 
reduce redundant and costly submittal requirements. 

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 8 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

o It is recommended that the Preliminary Plat step no longer 
requires noticing of the proposed subdivision in the  
newspaper or by posting a sign on the property, which is 
generally time-consuming, costly and ineffective. Rather, 
public notice would continue to be through written notice to 
all adjoining property owners and mineral rights owners; 
referral to applicable agencies and HOA’s; posting of the 
project on the City’s web site; and public meetings before the 
Planning Commission and City Council.  

o The second step (final plat) could be approved by the City 
Manager without further notice or review by the Planning 
Commission or City Council, provided it was consistent with 
the Preliminary Plan. 
 

· Subdivision process for single-family attached, multi-family and 
nonresidential development (currently Minor Development 
process): 

o Rename the process to more accurately describe 
applicability, as opposed to characterization of “Minor 
Development”. 

o It is recommended that public noticing through newspaper 
and sign posting no longer be required. Rather, public notice 
would continue to be through written notice to all adjoining 
property owners and mineral rights owners; referral to 
applicable agencies and HOA’s; posting of the project on the 
City’s web site; and public meetings before the Planning 
Commission and City Council.  
 

· Replat of existing subdivisions or vacations: 
o Proposed amendments will provide greater clarity about the 

various types of replat applications, as well as more 
guidance and predictability about the type of review and 
approval process that should be followed.  

o Replats of existing single-family detached subdivisions 
where three or fewer lots are created may be approved by 
the City Manager. Replats where more than three single-
family detached lots are created would be approved by the 
City Council.   Replats where additional lots are created for 
single-family attached, multi-family and nonresidential 
development would also be acted on only by the City 
Council. 

o Street vacations are proposed to be heard by the City 
Council only, and not the Planning Commission, consistent 
with other plat amendment procedures.  

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 9 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

o Vacation of a public way (such as rights-of-way, lanes, 
access easements, etc.) would be heard before the City 
Council only, instead of hearings before both the Planning 
Commission and City Council.  In this case, written and 
posted notice would be required, along with referrals, to 
ensure that the public at large is aware of these requests 
and would have an opportunity to comment.  

o There are several other changes proposed to the 
Subdivision Code that are less substantive, but that will 
provide greater clarity, take into account current practice, 
and provide a higher measure of consistency, while ensuring 
the health, safety and welfare of Lone Tree residents and 
businesses.  A more detailed description follows. 

 
 
D. DESCRIPTION: 

 
The following is a more detailed list of the proposed amendments (you 
may want to refer to the track changes” version of the document if you are 
interested to see how the change was made in context).  Where the 
amendments are minor or self explanatory, an explanation is not included 
in this listing. 
 
Article I – Administrative Provisions 

· Sec. 17-1-20.  This section is reorganized, while keeping most of 
the key concepts.  Deleted from this section is reference to 
“minimizing conflicts between the land uses and structures” and 
“buffering” between adjacent land uses, and the “minimization of 
grading” –holdovers from Douglas County that have a focus on 
development in rural areas and were intended to minimize conflict 
between urban and rural uses.  Lone Tree is more urban, and 
seeks to develop in a more compact, mixed-use manner in 
accordance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

·  “Minor development” definition is deleted as this process is 
proposed to be renamed “Final Plat for Single-family Attached, 
Multi-family and Non residential.”  This “Minor Development” 
process was also a holdover from the Douglas County Subdivision 
process.   

· “Sketch Plan” definition is deleted as this process is proposed to be 
deleted as explained later in this report. 

· Sec. 17-1-140 (old b).  Proposes to delete the criteria for refunding 
fees, and leaves it up to the Council’s discretion, as there are 
numerous situations under which fees could or should be refunded. 

· Sec. 17-1-160 (d).  Waiver requests are already heard by the 
Planning Commission when the application is before them, as set 
forth in Sec. 17-1-170 (2). 

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 10 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

· Sec. 17-1-185.  Proposes to grant the City Manager the power to 
act on some subdivision processes. 

· Sec. 17-1-190.  Proposes to delete “Standards of approval” as 
these are incorporated into the Preliminary Plan and Final Plat 
processes.  Reference to compliance with all applicable State 
Statutes is not carried forward as Lone Tree is a Statutory City and 
sets its own standards (provision is a holdover from Douglas 
County). 

 
Article II – General Standards, Procedures and Requirements 

· Sec. 17-2-20.  Describes the proposed streamlined review process, 
allowing Final Plats for single-family detached development to be 
approved by the City Manager.  Also deletes reference to the 
Sketch Plan, as this process is recommended to be eliminated.   

· Sec. 17-2-50 (old) “Site Characteristics”.  Eliminates this section as 
these are included in the purpose of the regulations, Sec. 17-1-20, 
and the approval standards of the Preliminary and Final Plat 
processes. 

· Sec. 17-2-70.  Deletes the requirement to send a referral to the 
Urban Drainage and Flood Control District, as this is done on an 
as-needed basis.   

· Sec. 17-2-90(d).  This aligns the process with the current practice 
(the City Manager currently signs Subdivision Improvement 
Agreements, not the City Council).   

· Sec. 17-2-90(f).  In the past, the City has waived financial security 
requirements for public improvements when they are the 
responsibility of other local governments, e.g. South Suburban Park 
and Recreation District.  This gives the City Manager the specific 
authority to do that. 

 
Article III – Preliminary Plan 

· The subdivision process for single-family detached development 
currently requires a Sketch Plan, Preliminary Plan, and Final Plat 
process.  This requires the applicant to prepare three plans and in 
some cases to pay three review fees (including Planning and 
Engineering fees).  In practice, however, the Preliminary Plan and 
Sketch Plan require much of the same information.  Staff proposes 
to combine the information from the Sketch Plan and Preliminary 
Plan stage and call it a “Preliminary Plan.” This Preliminary Plan 
would be heard by the Planning Commission and City Council (as it 
is today). This will save the applicant time and money, while still 
providing a thorough review process for land subdivision. 

· Sec. 17-3-30.  Approval standards are included and are broader in 
scope than what is currently provided.    

· Sec. 17-3-40(b).  Shortens the initial staff review time from 15 to 10 
business days, which is well within Community Development’s 
capability and practice. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 11 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

· Sec. 17-3-40(c).  Requires the applicant to submit an electronic file 
of the Preliminary Plan and supplemental information so that it may 
be emailed out to referral agencies, saving staff time, paper and 
postage.  This is how referrals are generally sent currently. 

· Sec. 17-3-40(old g) and (old j).  Deletes the requirement for posting 
a notice on the property and publishing a notice in the newspaper 
(as required previously for Sketch Plans), but retains notification to  
adjoining property owners and mineral rights owners and referrals 
to homeowners associations in the area. This provides adequate 
notice to affected parties, while saving the applicant time and 
money. 

· Sec. 17-3-50 (6).  Proposes to require a short narrative to 
accompany the Preliminary Plan. 

· Sec. 17-3-60 (j).  Deletes requirement for “aquifer recharge areas” 
to be depicted; there are no such recharge areas in Lone Tree. 

· Sec. 17-3-60(q).  Requires areas of 15%-20% slopes to be 
depicted in conformance with the County Comprehensive Plan. 

· Sec. 17-3-70 (4) and (5).  Has been revised to delete the 
requirement for a “commitment” to be received from the provider for 
water and sewer service.  At present, staff sends referrals to 
Southgate Water and Sanitation Districts and we generally receive 
a letter from the District that the property is within their boundaries 
and is serviceable by the District.   

 
Article IV – Final Plat for Single-family Detached Development 

· Sec. 17-4-30.  The approval standards, as proposed, are more 
encompassing. 

· Sec. 17-4-40(e) and (f).  The Final Plat is proposed to be acted on 
by the City Manager (instead of City Council) as previously 
explained, if it is in conformance with the approved Preliminary 
Plan.  This will save the City Council and applicant time.  The City 
Manager’s decision may be appealed to City Council.   

· Sec. 17-4-60(15).  Sets the responsibility for “No Parking/Fire Lane” 
signs with the developer, a responsibility that is not clear at this 
point. 

· Sec. 17-4-60(16). Provision on improvements and security is 
deleted as it is required in Sec. 17-2-40 

 
Minor Development (previously Article VI). 

· The Minor Development Article is deleted for single-family detached 
development.  This was a holdover from Douglas County, where 
there are instances of subdivisions consisting of four or fewer 
residential lots, largely in rural areas.  The Minor Development 
Process for single-family attached, multi-family and non residential 
development is found in the new Article V.   

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 12 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

Article V – Final Plat for Single-family Attached, Multi-family and Non 
Residential Development 

· The title of this Article is revised for clarity.  These Plats for single-
family attached, multi-family and nonresidential development are 
generally processed concurrently with a Site Improvement Plan, 
and are still heard by the Planning Commission and City Council.   

· Many of the submittal requirements have been revised to be 
consistent with what is proposed for single-family detached 
development. 

· Sec. 17-5-40(g).  The public notice regarding publication and sign 
posting are no longer required, however, adjoining property and 
mineral rights owners are still noticed via mail and referrals are still 
sent to HOAs and other agencies.   

· Sec. 17-5-50 (5).  A new short narrative is proposed to accompany 
the Final Plat.   

· Sec. 17-5-60.  The Plat exhibit is now consistent with what is 
required for single-family detached development.   
 

Article VI – Condominium Plat 
· This Article has been reorganized to be consistent with other 

Articles.    
 

Article VII – Plat Amendments and Vacations 
· Sec 17-7-70.  Sets forth the parameters within which replats are 

acted upon by the City Manager or City Council.  The current 
language is confusing (requires the same process for “substantial” 
and “insubstantial” amendment applications).  The proposed 
revision requires City Manager approval when three or fewer lots 
are created and City Council approval when four or more lots are 
created.  City Council action would also be required with the replat 
of any single-family attached, multi-family, or nonresidential 
development. 

· Sec. 17-7-100. Rights-of-way vacations proposed to be heard by 
City Council only (not Planning Commission) to streamline the 
review process.  Deletes published notice, but retains public notice 
to adjoining property owners, sign posting, and referrals to HOAs.    

 
Article VIII – Certifications 

· Sec. 17-8-47.  Adds a note at the request of the Public Works 
Department to ensure drainage systems are in keeping with City 
standards and are adequately maintained by the property owner. 

 
Article IX – Exemptions 

· Some minor modifications consistent with the rest of the Code. 
  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 13 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

Article X – Dedication Standards 
· Sec. 17-10-20 (b).  Moved this section on open space from the 

“selection” criteria of the code (in its entirety) to the “General 
requirements” section as it is not “selection criteria.” 

· Sec 17-10-30.  Deletes the requirement that “encourages” 
nonresidential development to develop parks, trails and open 
spaces.  Nonresidential development can still propose such 
amenities, as in the case of Charles Schwab, but are not 
encouraged to do so.  The focus on such dedication has historically 
been for residential projects, where there is a demand for such 
amenities. 

· Sec. 17-10-90 (1)(a).  Deletes the requirement that facilities must 
be open to the general public for them to be credited towards the 
park dedication requirement.  Park improvements that are in 
common areas such as private pools and plazas managed by 
HOAs or other entities for the benefit of their residents, provide 
needed recreation amenities and reduce the demand on public 
amenities, and therefore should be credited toward the park 
dedication requirement.   

· School dedication section left unchanged except for formatting.   
 

Appendix 17A and 17B 
· Only minor changes.   

 
 
E. PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW: 

 
The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the Planning 
Commission hearing held on December 3, 2013.  
 
Ms. Drybread presented the proposed amendments to the City’s 
Subdivision Code including the purpose of the code and the origin of the 
existing language, being from the County’s subdivision regulations.  She 
indicated the intent is to provide clarity and consistency and streamline the 
process where appropriate. 
 
Ms. Drybread described the current process for a single-family detached 
subdivision plat and the proposed process, which is to eliminate the 
sketch plan process, have the preliminary plan go to the Planning 
Commission and City Council and the Final plat to be approved by the City 
Manager.  She then showed an example of a sketch plan, a preliminary 
plan and a final plat, showing there is not much difference among the 
various steps. 

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 14 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

Ms. Drybread also noted the recommendation to rename the process by 
which land for all other uses besides single-family detached is subdivided 
– from Minor Development plat to Final Plat. She indicated the process of 
Planning Commission review and City Council approval would be the 
same.   She also discussed staff’s recommendations for replats that might 
include plat corrections, and for such things as combining two lots into 
one.  She noted the recommendation is for street vacations to only go the  

 
City Council, but not the Planning Commission.  She then described the 
recommended changes to public notice requirements.  Ms. Drybread also 
introduce a few additional minor amendments not included in the Planning 
Commission’s packet that would require additional submittal information 
related to contour lines and conceptual locations of water, sanitary sewer 
and storm sewer lines. 

 
Ms. Drybread concluded by describing the referral process and input from 
the Public Works Department. She stated the staff finding that the 
recommended changes are consistent with the City Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Commissioner Steele asked for a clarification regarding dedication 
standards relative to what constitutes “private” improvements. Staff noted 
that it is intended to mean improvements that are of benefit to the 
neighborhood, such as community pools or common recreation areas and 
that the report would be changed to clarify that intent. 
 
Commissioner Kirchner said he felt the changes may be giving too much 
power to the City Manager (as only the City manager is proposed to 
review final plats for single-family detached development) and that there 
should be more oversight on issues such as determining whether the final 
plat is consistent with the preliminary plan. Commissioner Sippel said she 
too was concerned having just the City Manager approve the final plat.  
Mr. Steve Hebert noted that the final plat is typically a perfunctory step 
dealing with final survey and engineering work. Chairman Sauder recalled 
the several plats that have come in front of the city have not have been 
changed from the sketch, to the preliminary and final plat. He suggested 
that the new procedure could be put into place and re-visited over time to 
see if it is working. Other Commissioners had no concern with City 
Manager authority over final plats. The conclusion of the Commission was 
to indicate to the Council there was some concern about the final plat 
procedure. 
 
Commissioner Sippel moved to recommend to the City Council approval 
of the proposed subdivision amendments.  Commissioner Kirchner 
seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 15 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

F. REFERRALS:    
 
Referrals were sent out to service providers such as South Metro Fire 
Rescue Authority, Southgate Water and Sanitation Districts, Coventry 
Development Corporation, the Public Works Department, City Attorney’s 
office, and all HOAs in the City.   
 
Substantive comments were received from Public Works and Coventry.  
Public Works’ recommendations were incorporated into the proposed 
update.  Coventry’s comments are summarized below.   

 
Coventry comments: 
 
Article I, Section 17-3-70 (believed to have incorrect section 
reference and should be 17-3-30, Approval Standards).  Concern for 
using the words “conservation or preservation” and how the City defines 
“unique or distinctive” lands.   
 
Staff comment: 
 
Staff has revised the approval standards for Preliminary Plans and Final 
Plats and now refers to the purpose of the Code only (Sec 17-1-20).  It is 
in this section where reference is made to “preservation or conservation” 
of important areas, such as “unique or distinctive natural areas, 
topographic features and landmarks, etc.”  Preservation or conservation 
can take many forms, including dedication of important lands in tracts or 
easements, conservation easements, and other means.  The provision 
provides examples of such important areas, intentionally without defining 
them or referring to a map of such areas.  One important aspect of the 
subdivision process is to identify such areas in the course of the review. 
 
Article I, Section 17-3-70 (again, has moved to Sec. 17-1-20).  
Recommends that connections should be made between neighborhoods 
“when possible.”   
 
Staff comment: 
 
Staff agrees and has made the change.   
 
Article IV, Section 17-4-30 (again, has moved to Sec. 17-1-20).  
Concern that the provision does not explain what is meant by “adequate” 
water supply and sanitary sewer service.   

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 16 of 241



City of Lone Tree Subdivision Code Update 
Project File #MI13-42 

 

Staff comment: 
 
Staff sends a referral out to Southgate Water and Sanitation District, the 
utility providers for central water and sewer service in the City west of I-25.  
Southgate responds with a letter stating that the property is in the district 
and that the district has the capacity to provide service.  This has been 
satisfactory proof in the past, without the necessity for a “will serve” letter 
or a statement demonstrating that the applicant has provided evidence 
that provision is made for a water supply that is sufficient in terms of 
“quantity, quality, and dependability.”  This last provision is a holdover 
from Douglas County where many properties rely on well and septic 
systems (as opposed to service from a utility).  It would be difficult for the 
applicant to provide proof of a district’s quantity, quality and dependability  
of service.  Sec. 17-1-20 as proposed states that the “…the necessary 
services and facilities are available and have sufficient capacity to serve 
the proposed subdivision.”  A finding is then made with each approval that 
the purpose of the regulations (including this provision) has been 
achieved.   
 
Article VI, Section 17-5-100.  Concern that 60 days time period from the 
time of Final Plat approval to submit required information is too short.  
Would prefer to see a 6-month time period. 
 
Staff comment: 
 
Staff agrees and has made the change in both Final Plat Articles.   

 
 
G. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION: 

 
Staff recommends the City Council approve on Second Reading, 
Ordinance No. 13-12 concerning amendments to the Lone Tree 
Subdivision Code. 

 
 
 
 
 
END 
 
 
 
 
 
 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 17 of 241



 

 

ORDINANCE OF THE  
CITY OF LONE TREE 

 
 
Series of 2013                      Ordinance No. 13-12 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CITY OF LONE TREE  
SUBDIVISION CODE. 

 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LONE TREE, 
COLORADO: 
 
ARTICLE 1 – AUTHORITY 

  
The City of Lone Tree (the "City") is a home rule municipality operating under 

the Lone Tree Home Rule Charter (the “Charter”) adopted on May 5, 1998 and a 
Municipal Code (the “Code”), codified and adopted on December 7, 2004.  Pursuant to 
the Charter, the Municipal Code and the authority given home rule cities, the City may 
adopt and amend Ordinances.  
 
 
ARTICLE 2 – DECLARATIONS OF POLICY 
 

A. The City adopted subdivision regulations in 1997 that were initially modeled 
after Douglas County’s subdivision regulations. These regulations were 
updated in 2008 as the City’s Subdivision Code.  

 
B. The City Council wishes to streamline and ensure the continued efficient 

processing of project applications while encouraging quality development 
and accurate record-keeping. 

 
C. A public hearing before the Planning Commission was held on November 

26, 2013, for which public notice was duly given in compliance with 
Section 17-1-120 of the Municipal Code.  At the hearing, the Planning 
Commission reviewed staff reports and evaluated the proposed 
amendments. No public comment was offered at the hearing. 

 
D. The Planning Commission prepared a final report containing a 

recommendation to the City Council for approval of the proposed 
amendments to the Subdivision Code. 

 
E. A public hearing before the City Council was scheduled and held on 

January 7, 2014, to hear public testimony and consider the proposed 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 18 of 241



 

 

amendments for which public notice  was duly given in compliance with 
Section 17-1-120 of the Municipal Code. 

 
F. The City Council has determined that the proposed amendments to the 

Subdivision Code are in the best interests of the health, safety and welfare 
of the public and the residents of the City. 

 
 
ARTICLE 3 – SAFETY CLAUSE 
  
 The City Council hereby finds, determines, and declares that this Ordinance is 
promulgated under the general police power of the City, that it is promulgated for the 
health, safety, and welfare of the public, and that this Ordinance is necessary for the 
preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience and 
welfare. 
 
 
ARTICLE 4 – REPEAL AND ADOPTION 
 

Chapter 17 of the Municipal Code, Subdivisions, is hereby repealed in its entirety 
and re-adopted as attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit A. 
 
 
ARTICLE 5 – CAUSES OF ACTION RETAINED 
 
 Nothing in this Ordinance or in the Subdivision Code hereby adopted shall be 
construed to affect any suit or proceeding impending in any court, or any rights acquired, 
or liability incurred, or any cause or causes of action acquired or existing, under any act 
or ordinance hereby repealed; nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character 
be lost, impaired or affected by this Ordinance. 
 
 
ARTICLE 6 – SEVERABILITY 
 
 If any part or provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person or 
circumstance, is adjudged to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or 
unenforceability of such part, provision, or application shall not affect any of the 
remaining parts, provisions or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect 
without the invalid provision, part or application, and to this end the provisions and parts 
of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

 

 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 19 of 241



 

 

ARTICLE 7 - EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following publication after the 
first reading if no changes are made on second reading, or twenty (20) days after 
publication following second reading if changes are made upon second reading. 

 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED THIS 17TH DAY 

OF DECEMBER, 2013. 
 
PUBLISHED IN THE DOUGLAS COUNTY NEWS PRESS ON JANUARY 

2, 2013, LEGAL NOTICE NO. 924670. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED WITH NO CHANGES ON SECOND 

READING THIS 7TH DAY OF JANUARY, 2014 TO BECOME EFFECTIVE ON 
FEBRUARY 1, 2014. 

 
 
 

  
      CITY OF LONE TREE: 
 
 
 
             
      James D. Gunning, Mayor 
  
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
       
 
      
       (S E A L) 
 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 20 of 241



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 21 of 241



CHAPTER 17 

Subdivisions 

Article I Administrative Provisions 
Sec. 17-1-10 Title  
Sec. 17-1-20 Purpose 
Sec. 17-1-30 Authority 
Sec. 17-1-40 Jurisdiction 
Sec. 17-1-50 Interpretation 
Sec. 17-1-60 Effective date 
Sec. 17-1-70 Repeals 
Sec, 17-1-80 Rules of construction 
Sec. 17-1-90 Definitions 
Sec. 17-1-100 Severability 
Sec. 17-1-110 Enforcement 
Sec. 17-1-120 Amendments 
Sec. 17-1-130 Control over platting 
Sec. 17-1-140 Review fees 
Sec. 17-1-150 Impact fees 
Sec. 17-1-160 Waivers 
Sec. 17-1-170 Powers of Planning Commission 
Sec. 17-1-180 Powers of City Council 

 Sec. 17-1-185     Powers of the City Manager 
 Sec. 17-1-190 Major activity notice 

Article II General Standards, Procedures and Requirements 
Sec. 17-2-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-2-20 Description of subdivision process 
Sec. 17-2-30 Applicant’s responsibilities 
Sec. 17-2-40 Subdivision improvements 
Sec. 17-2-50 Streets 
Sec. 17-2-60 Erosion and sediment control plan 
Sec. 17-2-70 Drainage study 
Sec. 17-2-80 Other public improvements 
Sec. 17-2-90 Guarantee of public improvements 
Sec. 17-2-100 Release of security 
Sec. 17-2-110 Additional review fees 
Sec. 17-2-120 Withdrawal of application 
Sec. 17-2-130 Inactive applications 

Article III Preliminary Plan 
Sec. 17-3-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-3-20 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-3-30 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-3-40 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-3-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-3-50 Preliminary Plan exhibit 
Sec. 17-3-60 Development reports 
Sec. 17-3-80 Expiration of approval 

Article IV Final Plat for Single-family Detached Development 
Sec. 17-4-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-4-20 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-4-30 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-4-40 Submittal process 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 22 of 241



Sec. 17-4-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-4-60 Final Plat exhibit 
Sec. 17-4-70 Final development reports 
Sec. 17-4-80 Vested property rights 
Sec. 17-4-90 Post-approval procedure 
Sec. 17-4-100 Expiration of approval 

Article V Final Plat for Single-family Attached, Multi-family, and Non Residential Development 
Sec. 17-5-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-5-20 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-5-30 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-5-40 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-5-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-5-60 Final Plat exhibit 
Sec. 17-5-70 Final development reports and plans 
Sec. 17-5-80 Vested property rights 
Sec. 17-5-90 Post-approval procedure 
Sec. 17-5-100 Expiration of approval 

Article VI Condominium Plat 
Sec. 17-6-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-6-20 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-6-30 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-6-40 Submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-6-50 Post-approval procedure 
Sec. 17-6-60 Expiration of approval 

Article VII Replat and Vacations 
Sec. 17-7-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-7-20 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-7-30 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-7-40 Plat correction  
Sec. 17-7-50 Lot line and/or utility easement vacation  
Sec. 17-7-60 Lot line/building envelope adjustment 
Sec. 17-7-70 Replat of subdivision where additional lots are created 
Sec. 17-7-80 Vacation of plat without platted dedication and/or constructed public 

infrastructure 
Sec. 17-7-90 Vacation of plat with public infrastructure/dedication 
Sec. 17-7-100 Vacation of public ways  
Sec. 17-7-110 Public notice 
Sec. 17-7-120 Application resubmittal 
Sec. 17-7-130 Lot numbering 

Article VIII Certifications 
Sec. 17-8-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-8-20 Signatures 
Sec. 17-8-30 Title verification 
Sec. 17-8-40 Dedication statement 
Sec. 17-8-45 Storm drainage facilities statement 
Sec. 17-8-47 General overlot drainage note 
Sec. 17-8-50 Surveyor certificate 
Sec. 17-8-60 Planning Commission signature as applicable for Final Plats 
Sec. 17-8-65 Community Development Director or City Manager signature 
Sec. 17-8-70 Council approval 
Sec. 17-8-80 County Clerk and Recorder 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 23 of 241



Article IX Exemptions 
Sec. 17-9-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-9-20 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-9-30 Criteria 
Sec. 17-9-40 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-9-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-9-60 Plan exhibit 
Sec. 17-9-70 Post-approval actions 

Article X Dedication Standards 
Division 1 General Provisions 
Sec. 17-10-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-10-20 General requirements 
Division 2 Parks 
Sec. 17-10-30 General requirements 
Sec. 17-10-40 Conveyance of land 
Sec. 17-11-50 Cash-in-lieu of land dedication 
Sec. 17-10-60 Disposition at public meeting 
Sec. 17-10-70 Development and maintenance of parks, trails and open space 
Sec. 17-10-80 Cash-in-lieu of land held by City 
Sec. 17-10-90 Credit toward dedication requirements 
Sec. 17-10-100 Selection criteria 
Division 3 Schools 
Sec. 17-10-110 General requirements 
Sec. 17-10-120 Cash-in-lieu of property dedication 

Article XI Vested Property Rights 
Sec. 17-11-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-11-20 Procedure 
Sec. 17-11-30 Amendments to Final Plats 
Sec. 17-11-40 Vacations of Final Plats 

Appendix 
Appendix 17-A Plat Correction Certificate 
Appendix 17-B Vacation Approval Certificate 
Appendix 17-C Lot Line Adjustment Certificate 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 24 of 241



ARTICLE I 

Administrative Provisions 

Sec. 17-1-10.   Title. 

For the purpose of brevity, this Chapter shall also be referred to as the Subdivision Code, the 
Subdivision Chapter or this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-20.   Purpose. 

This Chapter is intended to achieve the following purposes: 

 (1)  To promote the general health, safety and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of 
the City.  Land proposed for subdivision shall be such that it can be used safely for the intended 
purpose without danger to health or peril from fire, flood, geologic hazards or other natural 
hazards. 

(2) To ensure that the necessary services and facilities are available and have sufficient 
capacity to serve the proposed subdivision.  Land proposed for subdivision shall not be approved 
until the necessary provisions have been made for: road improvements, access, and traffic 
controls; water supply and wastewater disposal; police and fire protection; parks, trails and 
recreation; drainage and water quality; and other reasonably necessary improvements and services.  
The cost and installation of such improvements, which primarily benefit the land being 
subdivided, shall be borne by the owners/developers of such land. 

(3) To provide for the preservation and conservation of unique or distinctive natural areas, 
topographic features and landmarks; significant stands of vegetation; critical wildlife habitats, 
including breeding grounds, nesting areas, migration routes and wintering areas; drainage, riparian 
and wetland areas; scenic views; historic features and archaeologically sensitive sites as 
determined by the City, recognizing the irreplaceable character of such resources and their 
importance to the quality of life in Lone Tree.   

(4) To design subdivision with lots that are of an appropriate size and configuration for the 
site characteristics and intended uses; with adequate connections between neighborhoods, services, 
shopping and recreational areas when possible; a road system designed to preserve the integrity 
and function of the roadway network and minimization of road cut and fills; the conservation of 
water, land and energy resources; and to encourage a diversity of housing types and densities in 
order to assure adequate housing for all persons.  

 (5 To provide for an adequate and accurate system to record land subdivisions, ensuring 
proper legal descriptions and survey monumentation, in order to inform the public and especially 
future residents of the facts about the subdivision, thereby safeguarding the interests of the public, 
the homeowner, the subdivider and the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 25 of 241



Sec. 17-1-30.   Authority. 

This Chapter governing the subdivision of property is adopted pursuant to Part 2, Article 23 of 
Title 31, C.R.S. (the "Act").  In the event of a conflict between this Chapter and the Act, the Chapter 
shall control.  All subdivision approvals shall be in conformance with the City's Comprehensive Plan 
(hereafter "Comprehensive Plan"), Chapter 16 of this Code, approved and recorded Development 
Guides and Plans, where property is zoned Planned Development (PD) and any other applicable 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-40.   Jurisdiction. 

This Chapter shall apply to the subdivision of land in the incorporated area of the City and as 
provided in Section 31-23-212, C.R.S., unless the latter is superseded by any provision in the Charter.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-50.   Interpretation. 

The following standards shall be used to interpret this Chapter: 

(1) The regulations contained herein shall be regarded as minimum requirements. 

(2) Whenever a provision of this Chapter or any provision in any applicable law, ordinance, 
resolution, rule or regulation contains restrictions covering the same subject matter, that which is 
most restrictive or imposes higher standards, except as may be otherwise provided in an approved 
development guide and plan, shall govern. 

(3) This Chapter is not intended to abrogate any easement or any other private agreement or 
restriction; provided, however, that where the provisions of this Chapter are more restrictive or 
impose higher standards or requirements than such easement, covenant or other private agreement 
or restriction, the provisions of this Chapter shall govern.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-60.   Effective date. 

The ordinance codified herein shall take effect on_______________.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-70.   Repeals. 

Any subsequent repeal of this Chapter shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of 
any person for the violation of any resolution or ordinance repealed hereby for any offense committed 
prior to the repeal.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-80.   Rules of construction. 

(a) The particular controls the general. 

(b) In case of any difference of meaning or implication between the text of this Chapter and the 
captions for each Section, the text shall control. 

(c) The word shall is always mandatory, and the word may is permissive. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 26 of 241



(d) Words used in the present tense include the future, unless the context clearly indicates the 
contrary. 

(e) Words used in the singular include the plural, and words used in the plural include the 
singular, unless the context clearly indicates the contrary.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-90.    Definitions. 

As used in this Chapter, the following words shall be interpreted and defined in accordance with 
the provisions set forth herein: 

Adjacent means separated from the lot or parcel by one (1) of the following:  lot line, street, 
alley or easement. 

Applicant means the landowner or authorized representative who formally requests action on a 
land use proposal submitted in accordance with this Chapter. 

Business day means Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday unless one (1) of those 
days is a national holiday. 

City means the City of Lone Tree, Colorado. 

City Attorney means the City's general counsel or attorney as authorized by resolution, contract 
or other Council action, who performs the legal functions as set forth in this Chapter. 

City Engineer means the City's designated engineer as authorized by resolution, contract or 
other Council action, who performs the engineering functions as set forth in this Chapter. 

Common open space means a parcel of land, an area of water or a combination of land and 
water within the site designated for a Planned Development designed and intended primarily for 
the use of residents, occupants and owners of the Planned Development. 

Community Development Department means the staff of the City’s Community Development 
Department. 

Comprehensive Plan means the City's duly adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

Condominium means an individual air space unit, together with the interest in the common 
elements appurtenant to such unit. 

Council means the City Council. 

County means Douglas County, Colorado. 

Dedicated land means land transferred to the City by platting, title, deed or other legal method 
approved by the City Attorney.  This land shall be used for public purposes, such as school sites, 
fire stations, parks, open space or such other uses or facilities as approved by the Council or 
indicated within approved development guides or plans. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 27 of 241



Development means the construction on land of improvements for residential, institutional, 
commercial, industrial, transportation, public flood control and recreational and similar uses, in 
contrast to use of the land for growing crops, grazing of farm animals and other agricultural 
pursuits.  The term also applies to vacant land which has been or is being prepared for 
development by steps such as installation of water and sewer lines, construction of access streets 
and construction of light rail tracks. 

Director means the City's Director of the Community Development Department or designee 
who is responsible for the administration of this Chapter. 

Disposition means a contract of sale resulting in the transfer of equitable title to an interest in 
subdivided land; an option to purchase an interest in subdivided land; a lease or an assignment of 
an interest in subdivided land; or any other conveyance of an interest in subdivided land. 

Engineer means a professional engineer, currently registered by the State of Colorado. 

Evidence means any map, table, chart, contract or any other document or testimony prepared or 
certified by a qualified person to attest to a specific claim or condition.  Evidence shall be relevant 
and competent and shall support the position maintained by the claimer. 

Exemption means exclusion from the subdivision process by action taken by the Council who, 
in making the exemption, decide that the purpose of the subdivision process will not be met if the 
subdivision process is required. 

Final Plat means a map and supporting materials of certain described land prepared in 
accordance with this Chapter as an instrument for recording of real estate interests with the County 
Clerk and Recorder. 

Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control manual, means the City’s duly adopted Grading, 
Erosion and Sediment Control manual, or other duly adopted standards as approved by the City. 

Landowner means all persons having legal title to or sufficient proprietary interest in the land 
sought to be subdivided. 

Legal description means a written metes-and-bounds description of the boundary of a parcel of 
real property by a professional licensed surveyor, for the purpose of perpetuating location and title.  
The description must recite all ties and monuments, recorded or physical, which will determine the 
correct position of the boundary, all references to adjoining lands by name and record and a full 
dimensional recital of the boundary courses in succession which shall be mathematically correct.  
The description must be accompanied by an exhibit or map showing all pertinent information as 
described in the narrative. 

Lot means the unit into which land is divided on a subdivision plat or deed with the intention of 
separate ownership or use.  Lot shall include parcel, plot, site or any similar term. 

Official publication means the newspaper identified by the City for the publication of public 
notices as required in this Chapter. 

Open space means an unoccupied, unobstructed space open to the sky except for trees, 
shrubbery, vegetation or improvements relating to recreation exclusive of buildings or structures. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 28 of 241



Park means an area set aside excluding residential or commercial development and intended 
for use as open areas, fields, play fields, trails, national areas, historic areas, wildlife areas or other 
areas. 

Plan means the maps for development which include, but is not limited to, lots, blocks, 
easements, rights-of-way, pedestrian ways, park and school sites, open space areas and 
conservation areas, in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter. 

Planned Development means an area of land, controlled by one (1) or more landowners, to be 
developed under unified control or unified plan of development for a number of dwelling units, 
commercial, educational, recreational or industrial uses or any combination of the foregoing. 

Planned development plan means the provisions for development of a Planned Development, 
which may include, and need not be limited to, easements, covenants and restrictions relating to 
use; location and bulk of buildings and other structures; intensity of use or density of 
development; utilities, private and public streets, ways, roads, pedestrian areas and parking 
facilities; common open space and other public facilities.  Guide means the written and graphic 
materials referred to in this definition. 

Planning Commission means the City Planning Commission. 

Plat means the final maps and supporting materials of a proposed subdivision, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of this Chapter and utilized as an instrument for recording real 
estate interests with the County Clerk and Recorder. 

Preliminary Plan means the map of a proposed subdivision and specified supporting materials, 
drawn and submitted in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter, to permit the evaluation 
of the proposal prior to final engineering and design. 

Public way means any rights-of-way, public street, alley, lane, parkway, avenue, road, trail or 
other public way designated or dedicated on a plat, conveyed by deed or recorded access easement 
(whether or not it has ever been used as such), or acquired by prescriptive use.   

Public Works means the City’s Public Works Department.   

Replat means any change in a recorded plat; an amended plat. 

Right-of-way means a strip of land occupied or intended to be occupied by a street, crosswalk, 
railroad, road, electric transmission line, oil or gas pipeline, water main, sanitary or storm sewer 
main or for another special use.  The usage of the term right-of-way for land platting purposes 
shall mean that every right-of-way established and shown on a Final Plat is to be separate and 
distinct from the lots or parcels adjoining such right-of-way and not included within the 
dimensions of such lots or parcels.  Rights-of-way intended for streets, crosswalks, water mains, 
sanitary sewers, storm drains or any other use involving maintenance by a public agency shall be 
dedicated to public use on the plat on which such right-of-way is established. 

Roadway Design and Construction Standards means the City's duly adopted Roadway Design 
and Construction Standards, or other duly adopted standards as approved by the City. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 29 of 241



Site Specific Development Plan means the Final Plat which, when designated by the Council 
pursuant to Article XI of this Chapter, establishes a vested property right. 

Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual means the City's duly adopted Storm 
Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, or other duly adopted standards as approved by 
the City. 

Street means a way for vehicular traffic, including but not limited to streets, highways, 
thoroughfares, parkways, roads, avenues, boulevards and lanes designed and planned in 
accordance with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

Subdivider (or developer) means any person, firm, partnership, joint venture, association or 
corporation participating as owner, promoter, developer or sales agent in the planning, platting, 
development, promotion, sale or lease of a subdivision. 

Subdivision (or subdivided land) means any parcel of land which is to be used for single-family 
dwellings, condominiums, apartments or any other multifamily dwelling units or other land uses, 
unless such land when previously subdivided was accompanied by a filing which complied with 
the provisions of this definition with substantially the same density, or which is divided into two 
(2) or more parcels, separate interests or interests in common, unless exempted under Paragraphs 
a., b. or c. of this definition.  Interests include any and all interests in the surface of land, but 
excludes any and all subsurface interests. 

a. The terms subdivision and subdivided land shall not apply to any division of land which 
creates parcels of land each of which comprises thirty-five (35) or more acres of land and none 
of which is intended for use by multiple owners. 

b. Unless the method of disposition is adopted for the purpose of evading, the terms 
subdivision and subdivided land, as defined, shall not apply to any division of land which: 

1. Creates parcels of land such that the land area of each of the parcels, when divided by 
the number of interests in any such parcel, results in thirty-five (35) or more acres per 
interest; 

2. Could be created by any court in this State pursuant to the law of eminent domain, by 
operation of law or by order of any court in this State if the Council is given timely notice 
of any such pending action by the court and given opportunity to join as a party in interest 
in such proceeding for the purpose of raising the issue of evasion of this definition prior to 
entry of the court order and, if the Council does not file an appropriate pleading within 
twenty (20) days after receipt of such notice by the court, then such action may proceed 
before the court; 

3. Is created by a lien, mortgage, deed of trust or any other security instrument; 

4. Is created by a security or unit of interest in any investment trust regulated under the 
state law or any other interest in an investment entity; 

5. Creates cemetery lots; 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 30 of 241



6. Creates an interest in oil, gas, minerals or water which is severed from the surface 
ownership of real property; 

7. Is created by the acquisition of an interest in land in the name of a husband and wife 
or other persons in joint tenancy or as tenants in common, and any such interest shall be 
deemed for the purpose of this definition as only one (1) interest; 

8. Is created by the combination of contiguous parcels of land into one (1) larger parcel.  
If the resulting parcel is less than thirty-five (35) acres in land area, only one (1) interest in 
said land shall be allowed.  If the resulting parcel is greater than thirty-five (35) acres in 
land area, such land area divided by the number of interests in the resulting parcel must 
result in thirty-five (35) or more acres per interest.  Easements and rights-of-way shall not 
be considered interests for purposes of this Subparagraph; or 

9. Is created by a contract concerning the sale of land which is contingent upon the 
purchaser's obtaining approval to subdivide, pursuant to this Chapter and any applicable 
regulations, the land which is to be acquired pursuant to the contract. 

c. The Council may, by resolution, exempt from the definition of the terms subdivision and 
subdivided land any division of land, if the Council determines that such division is not within 
the purposes of this definition. 

Subdivision Improvements Agreement (or subdivision agreement) means one (1) or more 
security arrangements which the City shall accept to secure the actual cost of construction of such 
public improvements as are required by this Chapter or other applicable regulations within the 
subdivision. The Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) may include any one (1) or a 
combination of the types of security or collateral listed in this Subsection, and the subdivider may 
substitute security in order to release portions of the subdivision for sale. 

Surveyor means a professional land surveyor currently registered by the State. 

Vested property right means the right to undertake and complete the development and use of 
property under the terms and conditions of a site-specific development plan, as authorized under 
Part 1, Article 68 of Title 24, C.R.S. 

Zoning Code means the City's duly adopted zoning code, codified as Chapter 16 of this Code.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-100.   Severability. 

The provisions of this Chapter shall be severable in accordance with the following provisions: 

(1) If any provision of this Chapter is declared to be invalid by a decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the effect of such decision shall be limited to that specific provision held to 
be invalid as expressly stated in such judgment.  Such decision shall not affect, impair or nullify 
this Chapter as a whole or any other part thereof, but the rest of this Chapter shall continue in full 
force and effect. 

(2) If the application of any provision of this Chapter to any tract of land is declared to be 
invalid by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby declared to be the 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 31 of 241



legislative intent that the effect of such decision shall be limited to that specific tract of land 
immediately involved in the controversy, action or proceeding in which judgment or decree of 
invalidity was rendered.  Such decision shall not affect, impair or nullify this Chapter as a whole, 
or the application of any provision thereof, to any other tract of land.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-110.   Enforcement. 

This Chapter shall be enforced by the Director or another representative designated by the Director 
or Council. 

(1) For the purposes of enforcing this Chapter, the Director is authorized to enter and inspect 
any property under development in the incorporated areas of the City. 

(2) When the Director has knowledge of any violation of this Chapter on a particular property, 
the Director shall issue a written notice requiring the correction of such violation within thirty (30) 
days, or such shorter or greater period of time as shall be permitted by the Director. 

(3) If the alleged violation has not been corrected within thirty (30) days or the applicable 
time period specified in the notice, a copy of the file shall be forwarded to the City Attorney for 
further legal action.  The Director shall be advised of any actions taken. 

(4) The Director may enforce this Chapter by withholding the issuance of building permits. 

(5) Any owner or agent of the owner of any land located within a subdivision, who transfers 
or sells, agrees to sell or negotiates to sell any land by reference to, exhibition of or use of a plat of 
a subdivision before such plat has been approved by the Council and recorded or filed in the 
County Clerk and Recorder's office shall pay a penalty of five hundred dollars ($500.00) to the 
City for each lot or parcel so transferred or sold.  

a. The description of such lot or parcel by metes and bounds in the transfer document used 
in the sale or transfer shall not exempt the transactions from such penalties or from the 
remedies provided in this Chapter. 

b. The City may enjoin such transfer or sale or agreement by action for injunction brought 
in any court of competent jurisdiction and may recover the penalty by civil action in any court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

(6) Any official or employee, charged with the enforcement of this Chapter, acting in good 
faith and without malice on behalf of the City in the discharge of this person's official duties, shall 
not thereby be rendered personally liable for any damages which may accrue to persons or 
property resulting from any such act or omission committed in the discharge of such duties. 

(7) This Chapter shall not be construed to hold the City in any manner responsible for any 
injury to persons or property resulting from any inspection as herein authorized or resulting from 
any failure to so inspect, or resulting from the issuance or denial of a building permit as herein 
provided, or resulting from the institution of court action as herein set forth or the forbearance by 
the City to proceed.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 32 of 241



Sec. 17-1-120.   Amendments. 

These regulations may be amended in the following manner: 

(1) Amendment proposals may be initiated by the Council, the Planning Commission or the 
Director.  Any resident or property owner may submit a written request to the City Council to 
amend this Chapter. 

(2) The Community Development Department shall review all amendment proposals, make 
recommendations and schedule public hearings before the Planning Commission and Council.  
Public notice is required as follows:  At least fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing before 
the Planning Commission and fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing before the Council, a 
notice shall be published in the official publication.  The notice shall read as follows: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

A public hearing will be held before the Planning Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time), and before the 
Council on (day of week), (date), at (time

(3) At a public hearing, the Planning Commission shall consider the proposed amendment and 
make a recommendation to the Council. 

) in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone 
Tree, CO 80124, for a proposed amendment to the City's Subdivision code.  For more information contact the 
Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(4) Upon consideration of all written and oral testimony, the Council may revise or alter the 
proposal before adopting any amendment to this Chapter.  Amendments shall be approved by 
ordinance and shall take effect on the date as provided therein.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-130.   Control over platting. 

(a) No Preliminary Plan, Final Plat, Condominium Plat, or plat amendments shall be 
recommended for approval by the Planning Commission or approved by the Council, City Manager, 
or Director as applicable, unless it conforms to the provisions of this Chapter. 

(b) The Public Works Director shall withhold all public street improvements and public 
maintenance from all rights-of-way which have not been accepted for maintenance purposes by the 
Council. 

(c) Prior to the issuance of a building permit or construction of any building or structure within a 
subdivision, the plat thereof shall be approved by the Council and recorded with the County Clerk and 
Recorder, and access shall be provided in accordance with the Subdivision Improvements Agreement 
and the Fire Code adopted by the City. 

(d) The Council may suspend or withdraw any approval of a plan or plat or may require certain 
corrective measures be taken following a determination that the information provided by the 
subdivider upon which such approval was based is substantially false or inaccurate or that new 
significant information has been brought to its attention.  Suspension of approval may occur at any 
stage in the platting process and shall be implemented by resolution of the Council adopted at a public 
meeting. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 33 of 241



(1) A written notice from the Director shall be served upon the subdivider, setting out a clear 
and concise statement of alleged facts and directing the subdivider to appear before the Council 
not less than ten (10) days or more than thirty (30) days after the date of notification. 

(2) The Council shall determine at the public meeting the nature and extent of alleged false or 
inaccurate information, shall consider any new significant information that has been brought to its 
attention and shall have the power, upon good cause being shown, to suspend or withdraw any 
approval of the plat.  If the plat was previously recorded, due notice that the plat has been 
withdrawn and the plat voided shall be recorded in the County Clerk and Recorder's office. 

(e) No changes, erasures, modifications or revisions shall be made on the Final Plat after the 
approval by the Council, except as required by the approval of the Council.  The Director may 
approve the correction of minor or typographical errors. 

(f) No plat for subdivided land shall be approved by the Council unless all ad valorem taxes 
applicable to such subdivided land, for years prior to that year in which approval is granted, have 
been paid. 

(g) It is unlawful to file for recording any such plan or plat as identified above in any public 
office unless it has been reviewed by the Planning Commission as applicable and bears, by 
endorsement or otherwise, the approval of the Council or City Manager.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-140.   Review fees. 

(a) The Council shall establish and adopt by resolution a schedule of fees, to be paid by all 
applicants (with the exception of City departments) to cover anticipated expenses incurred by the City 
in the review and hearing of the proposed application or request for approval of a subdivision, 
amendment, replat, exemption or other process provided for herein. 

 (b) The Council may consider a waiver of the fees on a case-by-case basis, upon written request 
of the applicant, submitted to  the Community Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-150.   Impact fees. 

The Council may adopt impact fees as authorized by law.  An applicant for a building permit for 
the construction of any residential unit or nonresidential building within an area subject to impact fees 
shall pay the applicable impact fee to the City prior to the issuance of a building permit for said 
residential unit or nonresidential building.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-160.   Waivers. 

(a) Waivers from the requirements of this Chapter may be approved, provided that the Council 
finds that the waiver does not have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of this Chapter. 

(b) Such waiver shall be approved only with findings, based upon the evidence presented in each 
specific case, that: 

(1) The granting of the waiver will not be detrimental to the public safety, health or welfare or 
injurious to other property; 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 34 of 241



(2) The conditions upon which the request for a waiver is based are unique to the property for 
which the waiver is sought and are not applicable to other property; 

(3) A particular non-economic hardship to the owner would result from a strict application of 
this Chapter; 

(4) The waiver will not in any manner vary the provisions of Chapter 16 of this Code or the 
Building Code; 

(5) The proposed development will be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 

(6) The provisions of this Chapter will be served. 

(c) The Council may impose conditions of approval that in its judgment substantially secure the 
objectives of this Chapter.  The conditions shall be stated in the Council minutes with the justification 
set forth. 

(d) A written waiver request shall be submitted no later than at the time of the Preliminary Plan 
application or Final Plat if single-family attached, multi-family or nonresidential development.   

(e) The written request for a waiver shall state in detail the extent of the waiver, the grounds for 
the requested waiver and all of the facts relied upon by the applicant. 

(f) The Planning Commission, as part of the hearing on a specific application before them, will 
hear the request for a waiver from the standards and make recommendations to the Council. 

(g) The Council, as part of the meeting on a specific application, will hear the request for a 
waiver from the standards and decide to accept or reject the request, or make modifications in the 
request.  Approval may be granted only if the Council finds that the request is in conformance with 
Subsection (b) above.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-170.   Powers of Planning Commission. 

The Planning Commission shall have the powers specifically granted in this Chapter, including 
but not limited to the following: 

(1) Review applications and proposals for compliance with this Chapter, Chapter 16 and the 
Comprehensive Plan, and make recommendations to the Council. 

(2) Review requests for waivers from this Chapter when part of an application before them. 

(3) Initiate, review or recommend amendments to this Chapter to the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-180.   Powers of City Council. 

The Council shall have the powers provided in this Chapter and any other specific or implied 
powers granted by state law or other applicable law, including but not limited to the following: 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 35 of 241



(1) Review applications and proposals for compliance with this Chapter and conformance 
with the Comprehensive Plan, and approve, conditionally approve or deny them. 

(2) Rescind, nullify or terminate, as applicable, plats, subdivision agreements or other official 
documents or agreements if it is found that there has been a misrepresentation of fact which 
impacts the design or legal or physical status of the subdivision. 

(3) Grant requests for waivers from this Chapter. 

(4) Modify and amend this Chapter in accordance with Section 17-1-120 of this Article.  (Ord. 
08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-185.   Powers of the City Manager 

     The City Manager shall have the powers provided in this Chapter, including but not limited to the 
following: 

(1) Review and act on Final Plat applications for single-family detached development and 
Replats where three (3) or fewer lots are created. 

Sec. 17-1-190.   Major activity notice. 

When a subdivision or commercial or industrial activity is proposed that is adjacent to a county 
boundary, the City shall send a referral notice of the proposal to the county prior to approval of any 
subdivision application.  The City shall not be required to provide any additional major activity notice 
pursuant to Title 31, Article 23, Part 2, C.R.S., other than that provided for in this Section.  (Ord. 08-
07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE II 

General Standards, Procedures and Requirements 

Sec. 17-2-10.    Intent. 

The following provisions apply to all subdivisions of land in the City, to assure the creation of lots 
which can be developed in conformance with this Chapter, Chapter 16, the Building Code, Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards, Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, Design 
Guidelines and other applicable City regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-20.    Description of the subdivision process. 

  (a) Single-family detached development.  The steps required to obtain approval of a subdivision 
for single-family detached development include Preliminary Plan and Final Plat. Each is a distinct 
process involving the submittal of an application, an application fee, required plans and reports, 
and referrals of the proposal to other agencies and entities.  At each step of the process, the level 
of design and engineering increases in order to relieve the applicant from major and potentially 
unnecessary expenses in situations that may require a redesign and, therefore, a revision of 
expensive engineering or planning reports.  Approval of the Preliminary Plan does not ensure 
approval of the Final Plat.  The processes include: 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 36 of 241



 (1) Preliminary Plan:  the review of the feasibility of the project, including technical 
engineering, preliminary design and relationship to surrounding land uses; location and mitigation 
of geologic and other natural hazards; identification of visual and environmentally sensitive areas 
and critical wildlife habitat areas; identification of historic and archeologically sensitive sites; 
ability to obtain water and sanitation and other required services; adequacy of vehicular and 
pedestrian circulation; and conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and 
applicable Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. The Preliminary Plan shall be reviewed by the 
Planning Commission and reviewed and approved by the Council at a public meeting prior to 
submittal of the Final Plat for single-family detached development.     

(2) Final Plat: the review of all final engineering plans, subdivision improvement agreements 
and other legal requirements with final approval by the City Manager. 

   (b)  Single-family attached, multi-family.  The steps required to obtain approval of a subdivision for 
single-family attached, multi-family development includes Final Plat. In this case the Final Plat shall 
be reviewed by the Planning Commission and reviewed and approved by the City Council.  It is an 
abbreviated process as it does not require Preliminary Plan review and approval.  However, more 
information on the project is generally forthcoming, as these applications often accompany the Site 
Improvement Plan for the site. 

   (c) Nonresidential.  The steps required to obtain approval of a subdivision for nonresidential 
development includes Final Plat. In this case the Final Plat shall be reviewed by the Planning 
Commission and reviewed and approved by the City Council.  It is an abbreviated process as it does 
not require Preliminary Plan review and approval. However, more information on the project is 
generally forthcoming, as these applications often accompany the Site Improvement Plan for the site. 

Review Process Preliminary Plan Final Plat 

Single-family Detached 
Development 

Reviewed by Planning 
Commission and approved by 
City Council 

Approved by City Manager 

Single-family Attached and 
Multi-family Development 

 
N/A 

Reviewed by Planning 
Commission and approved by 
City Council 

Nonresidential Development N/A Reviewed by Planning 
Commission and approved by 
City Council 

 

(d) If any proposed plan or plat is denied by the Council or City Manager, a new subdivision 
application for the same or substantially the same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be 
accepted within one (1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of the Director, in 
writing, to the Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-30.   Applicant's responsibility. 

The applicant or representative shall be responsible for understanding the requirements and 
procedures contained in this Chapter and all applicable regulations and shall be responsible for 
attending all Planning Commission and Council meetings at which the application is considered.  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 37 of 241



Failure to attend the meetings may result in the request being tabled and a new meeting date 
scheduled.  The applicant is responsible for submitting the information requested by  the Community 
Development Department for the review of the proposal. (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-40.    Subdivision improvements. 

In each subdivision, the City shall determine the type, location and extent of necessary public 
improvements, depending upon the characteristics of the proposed development and its relationship to 
surrounding areas.  The developer shall provide for the construction, at no cost to the City, all utilities 
and other public infrastructure, as required by the City and provide the necessary security needed to 
ensure such improvements are made as determined by the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) Improvements 
shall be made according to plans and specifications prepared by a qualified professional engineer in 
accordance with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and 
Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control manual, the Building Code 
and other applicable regulations. Underground placement of utility lines shall be required in all 
subdivisions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-50.   Streets. 

All streets and road rights-of-way shall be constructed in conformance with the roadway standards 
specified in the Roadway Design and Construction Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and 
Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control manual and other applicable 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-60.   Erosion and sediment control plan. 

An erosion and sediment control plan shall be submitted which addresses the existing and 
potential erosion and sediment problems created by the proposed development.  Conservation 
measures used to mitigate these concerns shall be in accordance with Chapter 16 of this Code, the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria 
manual and the Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control manual.  If applicable, the Soil Conservation 
District shall be consulted regarding erosion and sediment control.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-70.   Drainage study. 

Drainage studies shall be submitted as part of the subdivision submittal requirements in 
conformance with the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-80.   Other public improvements. 

Other reasonable improvements, not specifically mentioned herein and found appropriate and 
necessary by the City, shall be constructed at the applicant's expense within such time and in 
conformance with such specifications as deemed necessary and appropriate.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-90.   Guarantee of public improvements. 

(a) No Final Plat shall be recorded until the applicant has submitted, and the Public Works 
Department has reviewed and accepted, one (1) or a combination of the following: 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 38 of 241



(1) A Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) to construct any required public 
improvements shown in the Final Plat documents.   

(2) Other agreements or contracts setting forth the plan, method and parties responsible for the 
construction of any required public improvements shown in the Final Plat documents 
which, in the judgment of the Public Works Department, will make reasonable provision 
for completion of said improvements in accordance with design and time specifications. 

(3) Documentation that there are no required public improvements associated with the Final 
Plat. 

(b) When required, the applicant shall provide security, in a form acceptable to the City, for the 
public improvements as follows: 

      (1) The applicant shall provide the City with an itemized estimate of the cost of required 
improvements on a standardized form available from the Public Works Department in accordance 
with the requirements of the Roadway Design and Construction Standards and the Storm Drainage 
Design and Technical Criteria Standards.  Upon review, the Public Works shall require one of the 
following: 

 a.  Security of one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the total cost of the required public 
improvements shall be paid by the applicant if any lots or parcels of the subdivision are to be sold or 
transferred, or issuance of building permits, prior to completion and probationary acceptance of all 
required public improvements.   

 b.  Security of fifteen percent (15%) of the total cost of required public improvements shall be 
paid by the applicant prior to the sale or transfer of lots, or issuance of building permits, when the 
required public improvements have been completed and been granted probationary acceptance by 
Public Works.   

        c.  No security (0%) is required toward the total cost of required public improvements that 
have been completed and have been granted final acceptance by Public Works (at the end of the two 
(2) year probationary acceptance period). 

(c) The City Engineer shall review the SIA and the cost estimates and recommend changes as 
necessary to complete the required improvements. 

(d) The City Attorney shall review any modifications made by the applicant to the SIA and notify 
the applicant of any deficiencies or required changes.  The SIA shall be in the form provided by the 
City Attorney and approved by  the City Manager. 

 (e) The City Engineer shall monitor the SIA and any performance agreements.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 
3)  

(f) At the discretion of the City Manager, the City may waive the requirement for security by 
federal, state or local governments, including metropolitan districts, special districts and the like.   

Sec. 17-2-100.   Release of security. 

As improvements are completed, the subdivider may apply to the Public Works Department for a 
release of part or all of the security.  Upon inspection by the City Engineer, and upon their approval, 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 39 of 241



the City shall release the security or portion thereof.  If the City determines that any improvements 
are not constructed in substantial compliance with the specifications, it shall furnish the applicant a 
list of specific deficiencies and shall retain security sufficient to ensure such compliance.  If the City 
determines that the applicant has not constructed any or all of the improvements in accordance with 
all of the specifications, the City may withdraw and employ from the deposit of security such funds as 
may be necessary to construct the improvement in accordance with the specifications. If the submitted 
security is not sufficient to cover the improvements, the applicant is responsible for the additional 
costs.  Security to cover the cost of repair of such improvements is required during the warranty 
period in accordance with the requirements of the Subdivision Improvements Agreement.  (Ord. 08-
07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-110.   Additional review fees. 

The applicant shall be responsible for payment of reasonable review fees established by a referral 
agency (i.e., the U.S. Geological Survey) or other consultants.  When an outside consultant is needed, 
or in order to expedite the process, the City shall notify the applicant.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-120.   Withdrawal of application. 

The applicant may withdraw an application at any stage of the process upon submittal of a 
notarized, written request to the Director.   

Sec. 17-2-130.   Inactive applications. 

An application shall be deemed withdrawn and terminated if the applicant fails to submit 
requested information or to request a public meeting or hearing date, as applicable, for a period of 
more than six (6) months, and the resubmittal of a new application and fees shall be required to 
pursue the subdivision application.  The Director may grant not more than two (2) extensions of time 
to complete needed actions, of not more than one hundred eighty (180) days each, upon a written 
request by the applicant.  After one hundred fifty (150) days, the Director may notify the applicant in 
writing that the application will be deemed withdrawn and terminated within thirty (30) days.  After 
thirty (30) days, provided that the applicant has not submitted the required additional information or 
requested a hearing date, the Director shall notify the applicant in writing that the application has 
been terminated.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE III 

Preliminary Plan for Single-Family Detached Development 

Sec. 17-3-10.    Intent. 

The purpose of a Preliminary Plan is to examine the feasibility of a single-family detached project, 
in keeping with the Preliminary Plan Approval Standards in Sec. 17-3-20.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-20.   Approval standards. 

A Preliminary Plan may be approved upon the finding by Council that: 

(1) The application is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and where 
applicable, Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 40 of 241



 (2)  The application is in compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Code and achieves its 
purpose as set forth in Sec. 17-1-20. 

 (3)  The application is in conformance with the City’s Roadway Design and Construction Standards, 
the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion and Sediment 
Control manual, and other applicable regulations as determined by the City.   

Sec. 17-3-30.    Prerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of the Preliminary Plan application, the applicant shall meet with City staff to 
discuss the procedures and submittal requirements, and is encouraged to meet with other referral 
agencies and homeowners' associations to identify potential issues and ways to address these issues.  
The presubmittal conference may be waived by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

Sec. 17-3-40.    Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) copy of the complete submittal to the Community 
Development Department. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within ten (10) business days. The 
applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal will not be processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Community Development Department will 
notify the applicant of the number of copies of the Preliminary Plan required for distribution to 
referral agencies. All submittal information shall be properly folded and compiled.  The applicant 
shall also submit an electronic file of the Preliminary Plan and supplemental materials as required for 
distributing the application electronically.  The Community Development Department shall distribute 
the referral packets.  The applicant shall distribute any revised plans, as required by the Community 
Development Department. 

(d) The applicant shall provide a vicinity map of the property and a list of the adjacent property 
owners and a list of mineral rights owners and other landowners as required by Community 
Development, and provide unsealed, stamped envelopes addressed to such parties.   The applicant 
shall include copies of the Preliminary Plan and narrative in the envelopes.  The Community 
Development Department shall include a copy of the application, notification of the anticipated 
meeting dates, and mail the envelopes. 

 (e)  The referral period shall be twenty-one (21) to thirty-five (35) days, as determined by the 
Community Development Department, based upon conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and 
Zoning Code, the size and magnitude of the project or other concerns.  The applicant is encouraged to 
meet with the Community Development Department, referral agencies and other interested parties to 
address the referral concerns, prior to the end of the referral period.  The applicant is required to pay 
those fees assessed by referral agencies.  

(f) The Community Development Department will review the referral comments, discuss the 
concerns with the applicant, prepare a staff report for the Planning Commission and notify the 
applicant of the meeting date and time. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 41 of 241



 (g) The Planning Commission shall evaluate the application, referral comments, staff report and 
public testimony, and make a recommendation to the Council to approve, approve with conditions, 
table for further study or deny the Preliminary Plan.  The Planning Commission's decision shall be 
based on the evidence presented and compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, policies and 
other guidelines. 

(h) Following the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the Community Development 
Department will schedule the Preliminary Plan for a public meeting with the Council and notify the 
applicant of the meeting date and time. 

 (i) The Council shall evaluate the Preliminary Plan, referral agency comments, staff report, the 
Planning Commission recommendation and public testimony, and shall approve, conditionally 
approve, table for further study, remand to the Planning Commission or deny the Preliminary Plan.  
The Council's decision shall be based on the evidence presented and a finding of compliance or non-
compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, policies and other guidelines. 

(j) If denied by the Council, the submittal of a new application and processing fee shall be 
required in order to pursue the proposed subdivision.  A resubmittal of the Preliminary Plan for the 
same or substantially same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be accepted within one 
(1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision by the Director, in writing, to the 
Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-50.   General submittal requirements. 

General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) Completed development application (form available from the Community Development 
Department); 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of application; 

(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 
process the application, when applicable (form available from the Community Development 
Department); 

(5) One (1) paper copy of the Preliminary Plan (per Section 17-3-60);  

(6)   A narrative describing the subdivision proposal including: 

   a.  The number of lots proposed, development type, and development timing. 

   b.   A description of site features and visually important areas on or adjacent to the site that 
may affect the evaluation of the proposed development. 

   c.  A description on the effect of the proposal on significant cultural, archaeological and 
historical resources and plans for protection of such resources.  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 42 of 241



   d.   A description of the impact on important wildlife habitat areas, including breeding 
grounds, nesting areas, crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc.  

(7) Development reports (per Section 17-3-70). 

Sec. 17-3-60.    Preliminary Plan exhibit. 

(a) The plan exhibit shall be prepared on 24" x 36" paper at a scale of 1” = 50’, 1" = 100', 1" = 
200' or another scale approved by the Community Development Department.  If a proposal requires 
multiple sheets to show all of the lots or the information that follows, a composite, on 24" x 36" 
paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  The scale 
may be different on the individual sheets as approved by the Community Development Department. 

(b) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision and filing number (if applicable).  If part of a 
Planned Development, the planning area shall be included under the title.  A general legal description 
stating the aliquot portion of the section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., the “City of Lone Tree, 
County of Douglas, State of Colorado” shall be included under the name and planning area.  On the 
title sheet (Sheet #1), under the general legal description, the total acreage and the total number of lots 
shall be included, and below that the Department project number.  The name of the builder, product 
line or marketing name may only be used as a descriptor along the bottom or right side of the sheet.  
Subdivision names may not duplicate existing subdivision or Planned Development names. 

Example: 
RIDGEGATE  SECTION 15, FILING 10  

A portion of Planning Area H of the RidgeGate Planned Development 
A part of the W/2 of Section 15, Township 6 South, 

Range 67 West, 6th P.M.,  City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of Colorado 
78.06 Acres, 235 Residential Lots 

SB __-__ 

(c) A block in the lower right-hand corner of all sheets shall include the following: the 
preparation date and the dates of all revisions; a north arrow designating true north; a written and 
graphic scale; the number of the sheet and the total number of sheets.  The names and addresses of the 
applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit shall be included on the first 
sheet. 

 (d) The boundary of the proposed subdivision shall be depicted in a heavy solid line.  Note those 
areas not included in the subdivision as "Not included in this plat." 

(e) The plan shall include a vicinity map that depicts the area to be subdivided and the area 
which surrounds the proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current street 
map.  

 (f) The plan shall depict all lots, tracts and, when appropriate, building envelopes.  Lots shall be 
numbered consecutively; tracts shall be lettered alphabetically in consecutive order.  On residential 
subdivisions, tracts shall be used exclusively for nonresidential uses, such as areas to be dedicated to 
the City for park or school sites. 

(g) A separate land summary chart on the cover sheet of the Preliminary Plan shall be provided 
that includes the total land area to be subdivided; purpose, ownership, and maintenance 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 43 of 241



responsibilities for all tracts; land area of roads (acres and percentage of total land); the total number 
of lots (acres and percentage of total land); density; and the minimum, average and maximum lot size. 

(h) The plan shall depict all easements, including existing and proposed, public or private, on and 
adjacent to the proposed subdivision.  For each, specify their use, principal dimensions and the owner 
or right holder of the easement; the recorded book and page number(s) and the name(s) of any entity 
responsible for construction or maintenance. 

(i) The plan shall include existing contours in dashed lines and proposed contours in solid lines 
depicted at one or two-foot intervals except where topographic slopes would create contour lines too 
close for clear presentation, in which case five-foot or ten-foot contours may be used.  Clearly label 
the contour values.  The contours shall extend to a minimum of fifty-feet beyond the property lines, or 
such other greater amount as necessary to show how topography and drainage on the proposed site 
interacts and blends with adjacent parcels.   

(j) The plan shall show the conceptual location of storm sewer, water service and sanitary sewer 
service.   

(k) The plan shall delineate all one-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed 
watercourses, retention and detention areas, wetlands, streams and lakes on the affected property and 
within one hundred (100) feet of such property. 

(l) The plan shall depict all lands to be dedicated or reserved in deeds for the use of landowners, 
residents or the general public. 

(m) The plan shall note the land use, zoning and ownership of the adjacent land. 

(n) The plan shall note existing structures on the site, their uses and whether they are to remain 
on the site. 

(o) The plan shall identify any cultural, historical or archaeological sites. 

(p) The plan shall note significant natural or man-made features within and adjacent to the 
proposed subdivision. 

(q) The plan shall depict all potential hazard areas, including:  geologic hazard areas and 
expansive soils (A-6 and A-7-6 soils as defined in the AASHTO Classification Group Index 
referenced in the Roadway Design and Construction Standards). 

(r) The plan shall identify areas of fifteen-to-twenty percent slope in one (1) shading pattern and 
areas of greater than twenty percent slope in another shading pattern. 

(s) The plan shall note important short- and long-range views to or from the site, including 
scenic mountain views, bluffs, rock outcroppings, drainages, etc. 

(t) The plan shall depict any significant existing stands of vegetation, including but not limited to 
large stands of scrub oak, and shall identify the type of vegetation. 

(u) The plan shall identify significant wildlife habitat areas, including breeding grounds, nesting 
areas, crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 44 of 241



(v) The plan shall depict local, collector and arterial streets, including principal dimensions.  
Roads shall be identified by the classification system defined by the Roadway Design and 
Construction Standards.  The maintenance responsibility, road percent grades, centerline radii and 
other pertinent roadway information, such as distance between intersections, shall be indicated. 

(w)   The plan shall identify the legal and physical public access to the proposed subdivision, even 
if not part of the subdivision. Legal and physical access shall be provided to all parcels by public 
right-of-way or recorded easement, acceptable to the City Engineer in compliance with the Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards. 

(x)   The plan shall depict pedestrian and open space systems, including connections to adjacent 
development and open space areas. 

(y) The plan shall identify focal points, community facilities and other special features. 

     (z)   The plan shall note the method for minimizing potential conflicts between land uses.  (Ord. 
08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-70.    Development reports.   

The applicant shall submit a report with supporting materials and address the items listed below as 
a minimum.  The degree of detail for analysis of some of the following factors will depend upon the 
impact of the particular item on the surrounding area and the subject property. 

 (1) Evidence establishing soil suitability in the form of a report based on information from the 
Soil Conservation Service of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) or another 
form acceptable to staff.  The report shall minimally include:  a description of site soil types, 
locations and characteristics with supporting soil maps, soil logs and other information needed to 
determine soil suitability for proposed development; constraints on development based on the 
findings; and analysis and evaluation of such information with recommendations regarding 
structural constraints, erosion control and a determination of the adequacy of the structural 
characteristics of the soil as they relate to the proposed uses and development. 

(2) A report on the geologic characteristics of the site, including any potential natural or man-
made hazards which may have a significant influence on the proposed uses of the land, a 
determination of what effect such factors would have and proposed corrective or protective 
measures.   

(3) A Phase II drainage analysis and plan, or an approved Comprehensive Plan of Drainage, 
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Storm Drainage and Design and Technical 
Criteria manual, including estimates of quantitative flows and rough plans for facilities to prevent 
stormwaters in excess of historic runoff caused by the proposed subdivision from being discharged 
from the site and/or from the stormwater management facilities for the site.  Phase III drainage 
plans and Civil construction plans may be submitted at the applicant’s risk prior to Preliminary 
Plan approval.  The plans shall be submitted to the Community Development Department, who 
will forward the plans to the City Engineer (plan revisions shall be submitted directly to the City 
Engineer).  

(4) Evidence that adequate water supply is available.  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 45 of 241



(5) Evidence that adequate sanitary sewer service is available.  

(6) A traffic impact analysis performed by a traffic engineer discussing the impact of the 
proposed development on the local and regional traffic and other concerns, as requested by the 
City, prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards.   

 Sec. 17-3-80.    Expiration of approval. 

(a) The Preliminary Plan shall be effective for a period of one (1) year from the date of approval, 
unless stated otherwise in such approval.  The Director may grant a one-year extension of time upon a 
written request by the applicant.  The Director may grant additional one-year extensions upon a 
finding that the plan is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code and this 
Chapter. 

(b) When a portion of the Preliminary Plan is Final Platted, approval of the remaining area of the 
Preliminary Plan shall be effective for an additional one-year period or as otherwise extended by the 
Director or the Council. 

(c) An extension request shall include a narrative stating the reasons for the applicant's inability 
to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of the neighborhood, any 
changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 or this Chapter that have occurred since approval of 
the plan as these changes affect the plan, and the anticipated time schedule for completing the platting 
process.  Additional review of the plan may be required, resulting in additional conditions as 
applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE IV 

Final Plat for Single-Family Detached Development 

Sec. 17-4-10.   Intent. 

The purpose of these regulations is to provide for the review of the final engineering plans, the 
subdivision improvement agreement, public dedication and other legal agreements.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 
3)   

Sec. 17-4-30.    Approval standards.  

A Final Plat may be approved upon the finding by the City Manager that it is consistent with the 
approved Preliminary Plan and meets the following standards: 

(1) The application is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and where 
applicable, Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. 

(2)  The application is in compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Code and achieves 
its purpose as set forth in Sec. 17-1-20. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 46 of 241



(3) The application is in conformance with the City’s Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion 
and Sediment Control manual, and other applicable regulations as determined by the City.   

Sec. 17-4-20.   Prerequisite. 

(a)  The Final Plat shall be in substantial compliance with the Council-approved Preliminary 
Plan, as determined by the Community Development Department.  If it is not, the applicant shall 
submit an amended Preliminary Plan for review and approval by the Planning Commission and the 
Council. 

    (b)  The Final Plat shall be submitted within one (1) year of approval of the Preliminary Plan, or 
as extended by the Director or Council. (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-40.   Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) paper copy of the Final Plat and all supporting information 
to  the Community Development Department. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within ten (10) business days.  The 
applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal or Final Plat that is 
inconsistent with the approved Preliminary Plan shall not be processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete  the Community Development Department will 
notify the applicant of the number of copies of the Final Plat required for distribution to referral 
agencies. All submittal information shall be properly folded and compiled.  The applicant shall also 
submit an electronic file of the Final Plat and supplemental materials as required for distributing the 
application electronically.  The Community Development Department shall distribute the referral 
packets.  The applicant shall distribute any revised plans, as required by the Community Development 
Department. 

(d) The referral period shall be twenty-one (21) days, unless additional time is requested by 
referral agencies and approved by the Community Development Department. The applicant is 
encouraged to meet with the Community Development Department, referral agencies, and other 
interested parties to address the referral concerns prior to the end of the referral period.  

(e) When the Community Development Department has determined the Final Plat is ready for 
action, the Community Development Department will schedule it for consideration by the City 
Manager if considered consistent with the approved Preliminary Plan; otherwise the application shall 
be scheduled for consideration by the City Council.   

 (f) The City Manager (or Council as appropriate), in consultation with the Community 
Development Department and Public Works Department, shall evaluate the Final Plat, staff report, 
referral agency comments and public comments and shall either approve, approve with conditions, 
table for further study, or deny the Final Plat.  Their action shall be based on the evidence presented 
and compliance or non-compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, policies and other 
guidelines.  A decision for denial by the City Manager may be appealed by the applicant to the City 
Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision. 

 (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 47 of 241



Sec. 17-4-50.    General submittal requirements. 

(a) General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) A completed development application (form available from  the Community Development 
Department). 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department). 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of application. 

(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 
process the application, when applicable (form available from the Community Development 
Department). 

(5) One (1) paper copy of the Final Plat exhibit (per Section 17-4-60 below). 

(6) Development reports as required by the City (per Section 17-4-70). 

(b) Final drainage plans and roadway design and construction plans, including detailed site 
grading, topographic  and storm drainage system plans, shall be initially submitted to the Community 
Development Department.  The Community Development Department will forward the plans to the 
City Engineer.  (Plan revisions shall be submitted directly to the City Engineer.)  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-60.    Final Plat exhibit. 

The Final Plat shall substantially conform to the approved Preliminary Plan and the Council's 
conditions of approval. 

(1) The Final Plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of a registered professional 
land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the office of the County Clerk and 
Recorder's office.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible document.  
Inaccurate, incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

 (2) The Final Plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the detailed survey, engineering 
and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less than one percent (1%).  
Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and for subdivisions exceeding one hundred (100) 
acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the Community 
Development Department.  When a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite, on 24" x 36" 
paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  The 
scale may be different on the individual sheets as approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

(3) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision and filing number (when applicable).  If part of 
a Planned Development, the planning area shall be included under the title.  A general legal 
description stating the aliquot portion of the section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., and "City 
of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of Colorado," shall be included under the name and 
planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), under the general legal description, the total acreage 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 48 of 241



and the total number of lots shall be included, and below that the Department project file number.  
The name of the builder, product line or marketing name may only be used as a descriptor along 
the bottom or right side of the sheet.  Subdivision names may not duplicate existing subdivision or 
Planned Development names. 

Example: 

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 10  
A portion of Planning Area H of the RidgeGate Planned Development 

A part of the W/2 of Section 15, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M., City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of Colorado 

78.06 Acres   235 Residential lots 
SB ___-___ 

(4) A block in the lower right-hand corner of all sheets shall include the following:  the 
preparation date and the dates of all revisions; a north arrow designating true north; a written and 
graphic scale; the number of the sheet and the total number of sheets. The names and addresses of 
the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit shall be included on the 
first sheet.   

(5) A vicinity map shall depict the area to be subdivided and the area which surrounds the 
proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current street map.  

 (6) A written metes and bounds legal description of the subdivision boundary with a map 
showing all information as required in the state statutes shall be clearly and prominently indicated 
on the Final Plat. The names and locations of all abutting subdivisions, the locations of all abutting 
unplatted parcels and public lands shall be depicted.  All lines, names and descriptions on the 
Final Plat which do not constitute a part of the subdivision shall be depicted in dashed or screened 
lines.  Any area enclosed by the subdivision, but not a part thereof, shall be labeled, "Not a Part of 
This Subdivision." 

(7) When requested by the Community Development Department, deleted lot lines, 
easements or rights-of-way shall be shown on the plat in dashed lines, or screened, with a note and 
arrow pointing to the item to be vacated, stating that the lot line, easement or right-of-way is 
hereby vacated.  (Dashed lines shall be graphically different for existing vs. proposed vs. deleted.) 

(8) The map shall display ties to aliquot section corners and to the state grid, if available, 
which shows dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points with complete monument 
and location descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, bearings and curve 
data, including chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true meridian and 
similar data.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be used unless 
approved by the City Engineer.  All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-hundredth 
(0.01) foot or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 (second 
order) minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  All 
internal lots, tracts or parcels shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(9) All lots, tracts and, when requested by the Community Development Department, 
appropriate building envelopes shall be located, identified and labeled with the appropriate 
dimension with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  No ditto marks shall be used for 
dimensions.  All lots and, whenever practical, blocks shall be shown in their entirety on one (1) 
sheet.  Lots shall be consecutively numbered; tracts shall be lettered alphabetically and in 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 49 of 241



consecutive order.  The acreage within each lot or tract shall include square feet and be included to 
the nearest one-hundredth (0.01) of an acre.  On residential subdivisions, tracts shall be used 
exclusively for nonresidential property, such as areas to be dedicated for park and school sites.  All 
parcels or areas of land inadvertently created and not identified shall be presumed to be outlots and 
shall not be considered to be building lots. 

(10) All road names, right-of-way widths at each leg of an intersection, at point of curve and 
point of tangent, at dead ends and at angle points, and right-of-way lines with accurate bearings 
and dimensions, including chord lengths and bearings, central angles and radii of all curves, shall 
be indicated.  If any road in the subdivision is a continuation or approximately a continuation of an 
existing public road, the conformity or the amount of conformity of the new road to the existing 
road shall be accurately shown. Whenever the centerline of a road has been established or 
recorded, the date shall be shown on the Final Plat.  Legal and physical access shall be provided to 
all parcels by public right-of-way or recorded easement, acceptable to the City Engineer in 
compliance with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(11) The purpose, widths and location (with fine dashed lines) of all easements and all 
abutting easements shall be shown.  If any easement already of record cannot be definitely located, 
a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and its recorded reference must appear on the title 
sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of lots which are cut by an easement must be 
shown with an arrow or so shown that the plat will indicate clearly the actual length of the lot 
lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to definitely locate the same with respect to 
the subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  
If an easement shown on the plat is already of record, its recorded reference must be given.  If an 
easement is being dedicated by the plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  
A plat note may be necessary to provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(12) One-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, retention and 
detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets shall be accurately 
located on the affected property. 

 (13) The following certifications on a single sheet shall be provided in accordance with 
Article IX of this Chapter:  Surveyor, Dedication Statement, Storm Drainage Facilities Statement, 
General Overlot Drainage Note, City Manager, County Clerk and Recorder's office, and Title 
Verification. 

(14) Plat notes shall adequately explain information pertinent to the execution and 
maintenance of the subdivision, including the ownership of tracts, reference to the Subdivision 
Improvements Agreement, conservation easements, maintenance responsibility for private roads 
and easements and tracts.   

(15)  Plat notes specific to signage shall be included on the Final Plat: 
 

a. For Public Streets:  “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 
signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public 
Works Department and Fire District.” 

 
b. For Private Streets: “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 

signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 50 of 241



Works Department and Fire District. The Owner/HOA shall maintain said 
signage.” 

 
Sec. 17-4-70.   Final development reports and plans. 

The applicant shall submit the supporting materials necessary for the review of the Final Plat 
which address the following items: 

(1) A Phase III drainage report and drainage construction drawings prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual. 

(2) Final road construction plans prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(3)  Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans and Report prepared in accordance with 
the Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control manual. 

(4) A printed copy of the closure calculations on the boundary lines of the Final Plat.  Any 
mathematical closure errors in excess of 1:50,000 (second order) must be corrected by the 
applicant's surveyor prior to plat approval by the City Manager. 

(5) A signed warranty deed must be provided, if such has been required, conveying certain 
tracts, or the development rights to such tracts, to the appropriate entity for public use. 

(6) Warranty deeds to the City shall be provided for rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the 
subdivision reflecting widths as designated by the City Transportation Plan, if any, the Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards and the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria 
manual.  The Final Plat shall not be recorded until all warranty deeds are executed and accepted by 
the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-80.   Vested property rights. 

The Final Plat is designated as the site-specific development plan for the purpose of vesting 
property rights for single-family detached residential land.  A landowner seeking vested property 
rights for single-family detached residential land must obtain approval of a site-specific development 
plan pursuant to the provisions of Article XI of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-90.   Post-approval procedure. 

(a) Prior to the recordation of the Final Plat in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder, the 
following requirements shall be completed: 

(1) The applicant shall amend the Final Plat document in accordance with the conditions of 
the City Manager approval, as necessary. 

(2) Within one hundred and eighty (180) days of approval of the Final Plat, unless stated 
otherwise in such approval, the applicant shall submit to the Community Development 
Department:  two (2) fix-line photographic or computer-generated mylar reproductions (emulsion 
up) of the approved Final Plat, prepared on 24” x 36” flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets 
of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of not less than three thousandths (.003) of 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 51 of 241



an inch, with notarized signatures by the owners on both sets.  A margin line shall be drawn 
completely around each sheet, leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  
No ballpoint, transfer type or sticky backs are permitted.  The Final Plat shall include all required 
signatures (except for the signature of the Mayor or City Manager, Director and other City 
Departments). 

(3)  The submission of any required documentation, and all recordation fees to the Community 
Development Department.    

      (4)  The applicant shall provide a current title insurance policy or commitment, dated not more 
than two (2) weeks from City Manager approval.  If there is a difference in ownership between this 
title policy or commitment and the policy or commitment submitted with the Final Plat 
application, recordation shall not be allowed until a determination can be made that the newly 
identified owners have had an opportunity to comment.  Objection by these newly identified 
owners may result in the City Manager reconsidering the Final Plat. 

(5) The applicant shall provide a warranty deed or cash-in-lieu for City land dedication for 
parks or schools as identified on the plat and rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the subdivision. 

(6) The applicant shall provide a valid certificate of taxes paid from the Douglas County 
Treasurer’s Office for the land area of the Final Plat that shows that there are no taxes  in arrears. 

(7) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the Final Plat in AutoCAD format or as 
otherwise specified by Public Works for use in updating the City's GIS system, either on CD or by 
e-mail to the City Public Works Department. 

(8)   When required, the Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) shall be approved by the 
City Manager prior to recordation of the Final Plat, and the applicant shall provide proof that 
adequate security has been provided to cover the subdivision improvement costs in accordance 
with the requirements of the Subdivision Improvements Agreement. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Final Plat and all required documentation as set forth 
in this Section, the Community Development Department shall obtain the signatures of the City 
Manager, Director and other City Departments, as required, and Public Works shall record the Final 
Plat.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-100.   Expiration of approval. 

 (a) Failure by the applicant to submit all required documentation within one hundred eight (180) 
days of City Manager approval, shall render approval of the Final Plat null and void and result in the 
necessity of the resubmittal of a Preliminary Plan, if the Preliminary Plan has expired, and Final Plat, 
along with all required fees and documentation. 

(b) The Director may grant extensions up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the applicant 
or staff demonstrating good cause.  Further extensions may be granted by the Council at a public 
meeting, upon a written request by the applicant or staff. 

(c) An extension request shall include the applicable fee and a narrative stating the reasons for 
the applicant's inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of 
the neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code or this Chapter 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 52 of 241



that have occurred since approval of the plat as these changes affect the plat, and the anticipated time 
schedule for completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the Community 
Development Department.  Additional review of the plat may occur, resulting in additional conditions 
as applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

ARTICLE V 

Final Plat for Single-family Attached, Multi-family, and Nonresidential Development  
 

Sec. 17-5-10.   Intent. 

The intent of these regulations is to provide a review process for single-family attached, multi-
family and nonresidential subdivisions that are typically also processed with a Site Improvement 
Plan, in keeping with the approval standards of Sec. 17-5-20. (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-5-20.   Approval standards. 

A Final Plat may be approved upon the finding by the Council that: 

(1) The application is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and where 
applicable, Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. 

(2) The application is in compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Code and achieves 
its purpose as set forth in Sec. 17-1-20. 

(3) The application is in conformance with the City’s Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion 
and Sediment Control manual, and other applicable regulations as determined by the City.  

 Sec. 17-5-30.   Prerequisite. 

(a) Prior to submittal of a Final Plat application for single-family attached, multi-family or 
nonresidential development, the applicant shall meet with staff to discuss the procedure and submittal 
requirements.    A Final Plat shall not be permitted if the subdivision creates a nonconforming parcel, 
or, in the case of an existing nonconforming lot or parcel, shall not increase the nonconformity. 

(b) In addition to the development application, the applicant may be required to submit a Site 
Improvement Plan (SIP) in accordance with Chapter 16, Article XXI of this Code, based on design; 
size; impact to public facilities, services, roads and overall impacts, as determined by the Community 
Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 Sec. 17-5-40.   Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) paper copy of the Final Plat and all supporting information  
to the Community Development Department. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 53 of 241



(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within ten (10) business days.  The 
applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal will not be processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Community Development Department will 
notify the applicant of the number of copies of the Final Plat required for distribution to referral 
agencies.  All submittal information shall be properly folded and compiled.  The applicant shall also 
submit an electronic file of the Final Plat and supplemental materials as required for distributing the 
application electronically.  The Community Development Department shall distribute the referral 
packets.  The applicant shall distribute any revised plans, as required by the Community Development 
Department.   

(d) The applicant shall provide a vicinity map of the property and a list of the adjacent property 
owners and a list of mineral rights owners and other landowners as required by the Community 
Development Department, and provide unsealed, stamped envelopes addressed to such parties.  The 
applicant shall include copies of the Final Plat and narrative in the envelopes.  The Community 
Development Department shall include a copy of the application, notification of the anticipated 
meeting dates, and mail the envelopes.   

(e) The referral period shall be twenty-one (21) to thirty-five (35) days as determined by the 
Community Development Department, based upon conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and 
Zoning Code, the size and magnitude of the project or other concerns.  The applicant is encouraged to 
meet with the Community Development Department, referral agencies, and other interested parties to 
address the referral concerns  prior to the end of the referral period. 

(f) Following the referral period and upon resolution of referral agency comments, staff will 
schedule the Final Plat for a public meeting by the Planning Commission.  The staff planner will 
notify the applicant of the meeting date and time. 

 (g) The Community Development Department will review the referral comments and prepare a 
staff report for the Planning Commission members.  The Planning Commission shall evaluate the 
application, staff report, referral comments and public testimony and make a recommendation to the 
Council to approve, approve with conditions, table for further study or deny the Final Plat.  The 
Planning Commission's decision shall be based on the evidence presented and a finding of 
compliance or non-compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, policies and other guidelines. 

(h) Following the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the Community Development 
Department will schedule the Final Plat with the Council and notify the applicant of the meeting date 
and time.   

(i) The Council shall evaluate the Final Plat, staff report, referral agency comments, Planning 
Commission recommendations and public testimony and shall either approve, approve with 
conditions or deny the Final Plat.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a 
finding of compliance or non-compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, policies and other 
guidelines.  The grounds of disapproval of any plat shall be stated upon the records of the Council.   

(j) If denied by the Council, the submittal of a new application and processing fee shall be 
required in order to pursue the proposed subdivision.  A resubmittal of the Final Plat for the same or 
substantially same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be accepted within one (1) year of 
such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of the Director, in writing, to the Council within 
ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 54 of 241



Sec. 17-5-50.   General submittal requirements. 

General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) A completed development application (form available from the Community Development 
Department). 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department). 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the application. 

(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 
process the application, when applicable (form available from the Community Development 
Department). 

(5) A narrative describing the subdivision proposal including: 

 a. The number of lots proposed, development type and development timing. 

 b. A description of site features and visually important areas on or adjacent to the site 
that may affect the evaluation of the proposed development. 

 c. A description on the effect of the proposal on significant cultural, archaeological and 
historical resources and plans for protection of such resources. 

 d. A description of the impact on important wildlife habitat areas, including breeding 
grounds, nesting areas, crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc.   

(6) One (1) paper copy of the Final Plat exhibit (per Section 17-5-60). 

(7) Development reports as required by the City (per Section 17-5-70).   

(8)  Final drainage plans and roadway design and construction plans, including detailed site 
grading and topographic plans, shall be initially submitted to the Community Development 
Department.  The Community Development Department will forward the plans to the City 
Engineer.  (Plan revisions shall be submitted directly to the City Engineer.) 

(9) A Site Improvement Plan in accordance with Chapter 16, Article XXI of this Code, as 
required by the Community Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-5-60.   Final Plat exhibit. 

The Final Plat exhibit shall be submitted according to the following: 

(1) The Final Plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of a registered professional 
land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the office of the County Clerk and 
Recorder's office.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible document.  
Inaccurate, incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 55 of 241



 (2) The Final Plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the detailed survey, engineering 
and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less than one percent (1%).  
Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and for subdivisions exceeding one hundred (100) 
acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the Community 
Development Department.  When a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite, on 24" x 36" 
paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  The 
scale may be different on the individual sheets as approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

(3) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision and filing number (when applicable)..  If part 
of a Planned Development, the planning area shall be included under the title.  A general legal 
description stating the aliquot portion of the section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., and "City 
of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of Colorado," shall be included under the name and 
planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), under the general legal description, the total acreage 
and the total number of lots shall be included, and below that the Department project number.  The 
name of the builder, product line or marketing name may only be used as a descriptor along the 
bottom or right side of the sheet.  Subdivision names may not duplicate existing subdivision or 
Planned Development names. 

Example: 

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 10  
A portion of Planning Area H of the RidgeGate Planned Development 

A part of the W/2 of Section 15, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M., City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of Colorado 

30.00 Acres 4 lots 
SB ___-___ 

(4) A block in the lower right-hand corner of all sheets shall include the following:  the 
preparation date and the dates of all revisions; a north arrow designating true north; a written and 
graphic scale; the number of the sheet and the total number of sheets. The names and addresses of 
the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit shall be included on the 
first sheet. 

(5) A vicinity map shall depict the area to be subdivided and the area which surrounds the 
proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current street map.  

 (6) A written metes and bounds legal description of the subdivision boundary with a map 
showing all information as required in the state statutes shall be clearly and prominently indicated 
on the Final Plat.  The names and locations of all abutting subdivisions, the locations of all 
abutting unplatted parcels and public lands shall be depicted.  All lines, names and descriptions on 
the Final Plat which do not constitute a part of the subdivision shall be depicted in dashed or 
screened lines.  Any area enclosed by the subdivision, but not a part thereof, shall be labeled, "Not 
a Part of This Subdivision." 

(7) When requested by the Community Development Department, deleted lot lines, 
easements or rights-of-way shall be shown on the plat in dashed lines, or screened, with a note and 
arrow pointing to the item to be vacated, stating that the lot line, easement or right-of-way is 
hereby vacated.  (Dashed lines shall be graphically different for existing vs. proposed vs. deleted.) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 56 of 241



(8) The map shall display ties to aliquot section corners and to the state grid, if available, 
which shows dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points with complete monument 
and location descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, bearings and curve 
data, including chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true meridian and 
similar data.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be used unless 
approved by the City Engineer.  All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-hundredth 
(0.01) foot or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 (second 
order) minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  All 
internal lots, tracts or parcels shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(9) All lots, tracts and, when requested by the Community Development Department, 
appropriate building envelopes shall be located, identified and labeled with the appropriate 
dimension with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  No ditto marks shall be used for 
dimensions.  All lots and, whenever practical, blocks shall be shown in their entirety on one (1) 
sheet.  Lots shall be consecutively numbered; tracts shall be lettered alphabetically and in 
consecutive order.  The acreage within each lot or tract shall include square feet and be included to 
the nearest one-hundredth (0.01) of an acre.  On residential subdivisions, tracts shall be used 
exclusively for nonresidential property, such as areas to be dedicated for park and school sites.  All 
parcels or areas of land inadvertently created and not identified shall be presumed to be outlots and 
shall not be considered to be building lots. 

(10) All road names, right-of-way widths at each leg of an intersection, at point of curve and 
point of tangent, at dead ends and at angle points, and right-of-way lines with accurate bearings 
and dimensions, including chord lengths and bearings, central angles and radii of all curves, shall 
be indicated.  If any road in the subdivision is a continuation or approximately a continuation of an 
existing public road, the conformity or the amount of conformity of the new road to the existing 
road shall be accurately shown. Whenever the centerline of a road has been established or 
recorded, the date shall be shown on the Final Plat.  Legal and physical access shall be provided to 
all parcels by public right-of-way or recorded easement, acceptable to the City Engineer in 
compliance with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(11) The purpose, widths and location (with fine dashed lines) of all easements and all 
abutting easements shall be shown.  If any easement already of record cannot be definitely located, 
a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and its recorded reference must appear on the title 
sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of lots which are cut by an easement must be 
shown with an arrow or so shown that the plat will indicate clearly the actual length of the lot 
lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to definitely locate the same with respect to 
the subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  
If an easement shown on the plat is already of record, its recorded reference must be given.  If an 
easement is being dedicated by the plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  
A plat note may be necessary to provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(12) One-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, retention and 
detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets shall be accurately 
located on the affected property. 

(13) The following certifications on a single sheet shall be provided in accordance with 
Article IX of this Chapter:  Surveyor, Dedication Statement, Storm Drainage Facilities Statement, 
General Overlot Drainage Note, City Manager, County Clerk and Recorder's office, and Title 
Verification. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 57 of 241



(14) Plat notes shall adequately explain information pertinent to the execution and 
maintenance of the subdivision, including the ownership of tracts, reference to the Subdivision 
Improvements Agreement, conservation easements, maintenance responsibility for private roads 
and easements and tracts.  The developer shall provide for the construction, at no cost to the City,  
all utilities and other public infrastructure, as required by the Council, and provide security needed 
to ensure such improvements, as required by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

(15) Plat notes specific to signage shall be included on the Final Plat: 

      a.   For Public Streets:  “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 
signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public Works 
Department and Fire District.” 

       b.  For Private Streets:  “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 
signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public Works 
Department and Fire District.  The Owner/HOA shall maintain said signage.” 

Sec. 17-5-70.   Final development reports and plans. 

The applicant shall submit the supporting materials necessary for the review of the Final Plat 
which address the following items: 

(1) A Phase III drainage report and drainage construction drawings prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual.  If 
development plans are not sufficiently determined, a Phase II drainage report and drainage 
construction drawings can be submitted at this stage of the review process, with Phase III reports 
submitted prior to approval of the site construction plans or approval of the building permit.  

(2) Final road construction plans prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(3)  Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans and Report prepared in accordance with 
the Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control manual (this may be deferred to the Site 
Improvement Plan submittal as determined by the Director and City Engineer.   

(4) A printed copy of the closure calculations on the boundary lines of the Final Plat.  Any 
mathematical closure errors in excess of 1:50,000 (second order) must be corrected by the 
applicant's surveyor prior to plat approval by City Council. 

(5) A signed warranty deed must be provided, if such has been required, conveying certain 
tracts, or the development rights to such tracts, to the appropriate entity for public use. 

(6) Warranty deeds to the City shall be provided for rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the 
subdivision reflecting widths as designated by the City Transportation Plan, if any, the Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards and the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria 
manual.  The Final Plat shall not be recorded until all warranty deeds are executed and accepted by 
the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

(7) Evidence that adequate water supply is available. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 58 of 241



(8) Evidence that adequate sanitary sewer service is available. 

(9) The following shall be provided on a separate 24" x 36" sheet(s) of paper, drawn at the 
same scale of the Final Plat exhibit, or another paper size or scale approved by staff: 

a. Accurately locate one-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, 
retention and detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets on the 
affected property. 

b. Depict all potential hazard areas, including geologic hazard areas and expansive soils 
(A-6 and A-7-6 soils as defined in the AASHTO Classification Group Index referenced in the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards). 

c. Identify areas of fifteen-to-twenty-percent slope in one (1) shading pattern and areas of 
greater than a twenty-percent slope in another shading pattern, including a narrative that 
describes the mitigation methods used to address existing slope conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

d.  Show existing contours in dashed lines and proposed contours in solid lines depicted at 
two-foot intervals, except where topographic slopes would create contour lines too close for 
clear presentation, in which case five-foot or ten-foot contours may be used.  Clearly label the 
contour values.  The contours shall extend to a minimum of fifty-feet beyond the property 
lines, or such other greater amount as necessary to show how topography and drainage on the 
proposed site interacts and blends with adjacent parcels. 

e. Show the conceptual location of storm sewer, water service, and sanitary sewer service. 

f.  Label the land use, zoning and ownership of the adjacent land. 

g. Note existing structures on the site, their uses and whether they are to remain on the site. 

h. Identify any cultural, historical or archaeological sites. 

i. Note significant natural or man-made features within and adjacent to the proposed 
subdivision. 

j.  Note important short-and long-range views to or from the site, including scenic 
mountain views, bluffs, rock outcroppings, drainages, etc. 

k. Depict any significant existing stands of vegetation, including but not limited to large 
stands of scrub oak, and shall identify the type of vegetation. 

l. Identify significant wildlife habitat areas, including breeding grounds, nesting areas, 
crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc. 

    m.  Depict the legal and physical public access to the proposed subdivision, even if not part 
of the subdivision. 

n. Depict the pedestrian and open space systems, including connections to adjacent 
development and open space areas. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 59 of 241



o.  Label focal points, community facilities and other special features. 

 p.   Note the treatment of potentially conflicting land uses.   

(10) A traffic impact analysis performed by a traffic engineer discussing the impact of the 
proposed development on the immediate and regional traffic and other concerns, as requested by 
the City, prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards.  (May be deferred to Site Improvement Plan submittal as determined by Director and 
City Engineer.) 

(11)  Evidence establishing soil suitability in the form of a report based on information from 
the Soil Conservation Service of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) or another 
form acceptable to staff.  The report shall minimally include:  a description of site soil types, 
locations and characteristics with supporting soil maps, soil logs and other information needed to 
determine soil suitability for proposed development; constraints on development based on the 
findings; and analysis and evaluation of such information with recommendations regarding 
structural constraints, erosion control and a determination of the adequacy of the structural 
characteristics of the soil as they relate to the proposed uses and development. 

(12) A report on the geologic characteristics of the site, including any potential natural or man-
made hazards which would have a significant influence on the proposed uses of the land, a 
determination of what effect such factors would have and proposed corrective or protective 
measures.   

 Sec. 17-5-80.   Vested property rights. 

The Site Improvement Plan is designated as the site-specific development plan for the purpose of 
vesting property rights for single-family attached, multifamily and nonresidential development.  A 
landowner seeking vested property rights must obtain approval of a site-specific development plan 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 16, Article XXXIV of this Code.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-5-90.   Post-approval procedure. 

(a) Prior to the recordation of the Final Plat in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder, the 
following requirements shall be completed: 

(1) Within one hundred and eighty (180) days of approval by City Council, the applicant shall 
amend the Final Plat document in accordance with the conditions of the Council approval, as 
necessary, and submit to the Community Development Department two check sets, (24” x 36” 
paper copies of the approved Final Plat) for review by the Community Development and Public 
Works Departments prior to submission of the mylars.   

(2)   Within sixty (60) days of approval of the check sets by the Community Development and 
Public Works Departments, the applicant shall submit to the Community Development 
Department:  two (2) fix-line photographic or computer-generated mylar reproductions (emulsion 
up) of the approved Final Plat, prepared on 24” x 36” flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets 
of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of not less than three thousandths (.003) of 
an inch, with notarized signatures by the owners on both sets.  A margin line shall be drawn 
completely around each sheet, leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 60 of 241



No ballpoint, transfer type or sticky backs are permitted.  The Final Plat shall include all required 
signatures (except for the signature of the Mayor, Director and other City Departments). 

(3)  The submission of any required documentation, and all recordation fees to the Community 
Development Department.    

(4) The applicant shall provide a current title insurance policy or commitment, dated not more 
than two (2) weeks from Council approval.  If there is a difference in ownership between this title 
policy or commitment and the policy or commitment submitted with the Final Plat application, 
recordation shall not be allowed until a determination can be made that the newly identified 
owners have had an opportunity to comment.  Objection by these newly identified owners may 
result in the Council reconsidering the Final Plat. 

(5) The applicant shall provide a warranty deed or cash-in-lieu for City land dedication for 
parks or schools as identified on the plat and rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the subdivision. 

(6) The applicant shall provide a valid certificate of taxes paid from the Douglas County 
Treasurer’s Office for the land area of the Final Plat that shows that there are no taxes in arrears. 

(7) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the Final Plat in AutoCAD format or as 
otherwise specified by Public Works for use in updating the City's GIS system, either on CD or by 
e-mail to the City Public Works Department. 

(8)  When required, the Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) shall be approved by the 
City Manager prior to recordation of the Final Plat, and the applicant shall provide proof that 
adequate security has been provided to cover the subdivision improvement costs in accordance 
with the requirements of the Subdivision Improvements Agreement. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Final Plat mylars and all required documentation as 
set forth in this Section, the Community Development Department shall obtain the signatures of the 
Mayor, Director and other City Departments, as required, and the Public Works Department shall 
record the Final Plat.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-5-100.   Expiration of approval. 

 (a) Failure by the applicant to submit all required documentation within one hundred eighty 
(180) days of City Council approval, shall render approval of the Final Plat null and void and result in 
the necessity of the resubmittal of the Final Plat, along with all required fees and documentation. 

(b) The Director may grant extensions up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the applicant 
or staff demonstrating good cause.  Further extensions may be granted by the Council at a public 
meeting, upon a written request by the applicant or staff. 

(c) An extension request shall include the applicable fee and a narrative stating the reasons for 
the applicant's inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of 
the neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code or this Chapter 
that have occurred since approval of the plat as these changes affect the plat, and the anticipated time 
schedule for completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the Community 
Development Department.  Additional review of the plat may occur, resulting in additional conditions 
as applicable. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 61 of 241



(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.   

ARTICLE VI 

Condominium Plat 

Sec. 17-6-10.   Intent. 

It is the intent of this Section to provide a one-step review process for Condominium Plats.  When 
developing condominium units, where ownership of land is not being transferred, a Condominium 
Plat shall be submitted to the Community Development Department for review and approval prior to 
recordation in the County Clerk and Recorder's office.  A condominium is defined as an individual air 
space unit, together with the interest in the common elements appurtenant to such unit, unless such 
definition is inconsistent with Section 38-33-103(1), C.R.S., which shall control.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-20.   Approval standards. 

The Director may administratively approve the Condominium Plat upon the finding that: 

(1) The title is consistent with the title of the approved Final Plat or Site Improvement Plan. 

(2) The property line boundaries are consistent with the approved Final Plat or the certified 
boundary survey which identifies the parcel as shown on the Site Improvement Plan. 

(3) Access has been provided for subsequent phases.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-30.   Prerequisite. 

The Condominium Plat shall be consistent with the approved plat (legal lot of record) and Site 
Improvement Plan, if applicable.  The Condominium Plat process may be combined with the  Final 
Plat process for multifamily subdivisions, as approved by the Community Development Department.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-40.   Submittal Process.  

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) paper copy of the complete submittal to the 
Community Development Department. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within ten (10) business days.  The 
applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal will not be 
processed.   

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Community Development Department 
will notify the applicant of the number of copies of the Condominium Plat required for 
distribution to referral agencies.  All submittal information shall be properly folded and 
compiled.  The applicant shall also submit an electronic file of the Condominium Plat and 
supplemental materials as required for distributing the application electronically.  The 
Community Development Department shall distribute the referral packets.   

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 62 of 241



(d) The referral period shall be fourteen (14) days, unless additional time is requested by 
referral agencies and approved by the Community Development Department.   

(e) The Director shall review the application, evaluate referral comments, and approve, 
conditionally approve, or deny the Condominium Plat.  The denial of Condominium Plat 
by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within ten (10) days of the 
decision by the Director.  

Sec. 17-6-50.   Submittal requirements. 

(a) A completed development application (application form available from the Community 
Development Department). 

(b) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department). 

(c) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application, when applicable (form available from the 
Community Development Department). 

(d) A copy of the recorded Final Plat and Site Improvement Plan. 

(e) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of application. 

(f) Two (2) paper copies of the Condominium Plat exhibit prepared as follows: 

(1) The Condominium Plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of a registered 
professional land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the office of the County Clerk 
and Recorder.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible document.  Inaccurate, 
incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

  (2) The Condominium Plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the detailed survey, 
engineering and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less than one percent 
(1%).  Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and for subdivisions exceeding one hundred 
(100) acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the Community 
Development Department.  When a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite, on 24" x 36" 
paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  The 
scale may be different than the individual sheets as approved by the Community Development 
Department. 

(3) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed condominium(s) and specific building number, if 
applicable.  The subdivision and Planned Development name, lot, block and filing number shall be 
located under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion of the section, 
section, township, range, 6th P.M., and City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of Colorado, 
shall be included under the condominium name and subdivision information.  Under the general 
legal description, the total number of units shall be included.  Condominium names shall not 
duplicate an existing condominium name. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 63 of 241



(4) A block in the lower right-hand corner shall include the following:  the preparation date; a 
north arrow designating true north; a written and graphic scale; the names and addresses of the 
applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit; the number of the sheet; and 
the total number of sheets. 

(5) A vicinity map shall depict the area to be platted as a condominium and the area which 
surrounds the proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current street 
map. 

 (6) All lines, names and descriptions on the Condominium Plat which do not constitute a part 
of the subdivision shall be depicted in dashed or screened lines.  Any area enclosed by the 
subdivision, but not a part thereof, shall be labeled "Not a Part of This Subdivision." 

(7) When requested by the Community Development Department, deleted lot lines, 
easements or rights-of-way shall be shown on the plat in dashed lines, or screened, with a note and 
arrow pointing to the item to be vacated, stating that the lot line, easement or right-of-way is 
hereby vacated.  (Dashed lines shall be graphically different for existing vs. proposed vs. deleted.) 

(8) Display ties to aliquot section corners and to the state grid, if available, which shows 
dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points with complete monument and location 
descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, bearings and curve data, including 
chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true meridian and similar data shall be 
represented.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be used unless 
approved by the City Engineer. All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-hundredth 
(0.01) foot or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 (second 
order) minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  All 
internal units and elements shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(9) All plans, elevations, units and elements shall be located, identified and labeled with 
appropriate dimension with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  No ditto marks shall be used 
for dimensions. 

(10) The purpose, widths and location (with fine dashed lines) of all easements and all 
abutting easements and all general and limited common elements shall be shown.  If any easement 
already of record cannot be definitely located, a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and 
its recorded reference must appear on the title sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of 
lots which are cut by an easement must be shown with an arrow or so shown that the plat will 
indicate clearly the actual length of the lot lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to 
definitely locate the same with respect to the subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All 
easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  If an easement shown on the plat is already of 
record, its recorded reference number must be given.  If an easement is being dedicated by the 
plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  A plat note may be necessary to 
provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(11) The following certifications on a single sheet shall be provided in accordance with 
Article VIII of this Chapter:  Surveyor, County Clerk and Recorder's office, Title Verification and 
City Approval as follows: 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 64 of 241



This Condominium Plat is approved for filing in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder this _____ day of __________, 20___. 

By: (Community Development Director’s signature)

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
(Printed name of  Community Development Director) 

Sec. 17-6-60.   Post-approval procedure. 

Within sixty (60) days of approval of the Condominium Plat by the Director, unless stated 
otherwise in such approval, and prior to recordation of the Condominium Plat in the office of 
the County Clerk and Recorder, the following requirements shall be completed: 

(1) The applicant shall amend the Condominium Plat document in accordance with the 
Community Development Director approval, as necessary, and submit to the Community 
Development Department two (2) fixed-line photographic or computer-generated mylar 
reproductions (emulsion up) of the approved Condominium Plat, prepared on 24” x 36” 
flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform 
thickness of not less than three thousandths (.003) of an inch, with notarized signatures by 
the owners on both sets.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around each sheet, 
leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  No ballpoint, transfer 
type or sticky backs are permitted.  The Condominium Plat shall include all required 
signatures (except for the signature of the Director and other City Departments). 

(2) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the Condominium Plat in AutoCAD format, 
or as otherwise specified by Public Works, for use in updating the City's GIS system, 
either on CD or by e-mail to the City Public Works Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3). 

(3) The submission of any additional required documentation, and all recordation fees to the 
Community Development Department by the applicant.   

(4) The applicant shall provide a valid certificate of taxes paid from the Douglas County 
Treasurer’s Office for the area covered by the Condominium Plat that shows that there are 
no taxes in arrears. 

(5) Upon a determination that all above requirements are met, the Condominium Plat shall be 
recorded by the Public Works Department with the Clerk and Recorder’s Office.   

Sec. 17-6-70.   Expiration of approval. 

(a) Failure by the applicant to submit all required documentation within sixty (60) days of 
Director approval shall render approval of the Condominium Plat null and void and result in the 
necessity of the resubmittal of a Condominium Plat, if the Condominium Plat has expired, along with 
all required fees and documentation. 

(b) The Director may grant extensions up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the applicant 
or staff demonstrating good cause. Further extensions may be granted by the Council at a public 
meeting, upon a written request by the applicant or staff. 

(c) An extension request shall include a fee and a narrative stating the reasons for the applicant's 
inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of the 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 65 of 241



neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code or this Chapter that 
have occurred since approval of the plat as these changes affect the Condominium Plat, and the 
anticipated time schedule for completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the 
Community Development Department. Additional review of the Condominium Plat may occur, 
resulting in additional conditions as applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE VII 

Plat Amendments and Vacations 

Sec. 17-7-10.   Intent. 

(a)  The purpose of these regulations is to provide a review process for the following: 

(1) A plat correction. 

(2) A lot line and/or utility easement vacation. 

(3) A lot line/building envelope adjustment. 

(4)   A replat of subdivision where additional lots are created 

(5) A plat vacation without platted dedication and/or constructed public infrastructure. 

(6) A plat vacation without platted dedication and/or constructed public infrastructure. 

(7) A vacation of public ways. 

(b) The submittal process may vary according to the nature of the proposed amendment, based on 
but not limited to the following:  magnitude of change in design or size; impact to public facilities, 
services and roads; and overall impacts. The Director may modify the application procedures herein 
upon the determination that adequate public notice and input on the replat/vacation application can be 
attained through the modified process and that the modified process will not substantially impair the 
intent and purpose of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3)  

Sec. 17-7-20.   Approval standards. 

A plat amendment may be approved upon the finding that: 

(1) The plat amendment is in accordance with the adopted standards and criteria and the 
original conditions of approval as applicable.   

(2) New nonconforming lots are not created, and in the case of existing nonconforming lots, 
the nonconformity is not increased. 

(3) The replat/vacation or correction is consistent with the purpose of this Chapter. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 66 of 241



Sec. 17-7-30.   Prerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of a plat amendment  application, the applicant shall meet with the Community 
Development Department and Public Works Department to discuss the proposal, the procedures and 
submittal requirements and is encouraged to meet with other referral agencies to identify potential 
issues and ways to address these issues.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 67 of 241



SUMMARY OF PLAT AMENDMENT AND VACATION PROCESS 
 

Type of Amendment Section 
No. 

Process Referral Required Document, incl. 
but are not limited to: 

Plat correction 17-7-40 Director Approval Abutting landowners 
for road name changes, 

otherwise as 
determined by the 

Community 
Development Dept. 

• Plat Correction Certificate 
• Plat Correction Map if 

applicable 

Lot line vacation, e.g.,   
replat 2+ lots into 1 lot 
and/or utility easement 
vacation 

17-7-50 Director Approval Applicant provides 
letters from affected 

entities or parties 

• Vacation Map 
• Vacation Approval 

Certificate 
• Corrected deed with new 

legal description 

Lot line or building 
envelope adjustment 
(reconfiguration of lots or 
building envelopes, where 
no new lots are created) 

17-7-60 Director approval As determined by the 
Community 

Development Dept. 

• Lot Line Adjustment Map 
• Lot Line Adjustment 

Certificate 
• Corrected deed with new 

legal description 

Replat where additional lots 
are created 

17-7-70  <3 SF detached 
lots created – City 
Manager approval 

>3 SF detached 
lots created – City 
Council approval 
Any addl. lots 
created for SF 
attached, MF, or 
Nonresidential 
development – 
City Council 
approval 

  As determined by the 
Community 

Development Dept. 

• Final Plat, plus any 
additional submittal 
materials as required by 
the Director 

Plat vacation (without 
platted dedication and/or 
constructed  public 
infrastructure)  

17-7-80 Director approval As determined by the 
Community 

Development Dept. 

• Vacation Certificate 
• Vacation Map 

Plat Vacation (with platted 
dedication and/or 
constructed public 
infrastructure) 

17-7-90 City Council  Includes written notice 
to abutting landowners 

• Vacation Certificate 
• Vacation Map 

Vacation of public ways  17-7-100 City Council Posted notice  
and written notice to 

abutting landowners is 
required.    

• Vacation Ordinance/Map 
or  

• Amended Plat 

 
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

______________________________________________________________ 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 68 of 241



Sec. 17-7-40.   Plat correction. 

The following administrative process is established for changes to recorded plats that are due to 
errors or omissions; i.e., dimensions, road name changes, plat notes: 

(1) Submittal documents.  The applicant shall submit: 

a. A completed development application form (form available from the Community 
Development Department);  

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the 
date of application; 

d. A notarized letter or authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the 
Community Development Department);  

e. A written request detailing the specific correction, the plat to be corrected and its 
reception number.   

f. A Plat Correction Map if required by the Community Development Department. 

g.  A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area subject to the plat correction that shows 
that there are no taxes in arrears. 

(2) A Plat Correction Certificate shall be prepared by the Community Development 
Department that identifies the error or omission, the plat to be corrected, its reception number and 
the necessary corrective action.  (Refer to Appendix 17-A.) 

(3) The Plat Correction Certificate and/or map shall be signed by the Director if it is 
determined by the Director to meet the approval standards.   The approved certificate and/or map 
shall be recorded in the County Clerk and Recorder's office by  the Public Works Department. 

(4) When the request is for a road name change, the following shall apply: 

a. When addresses have been assigned, the applicant shall notify all abutting landowners of 
the proposed change by certified mail, return receipt requested, at least ten (10) days prior to 
consideration by the Director. The return receipts shall be submitted to the Community 
Development Department prior to the Director's decision. 

b. A road name shall not duplicate any existing road name in the City or County. 

(5) A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular business meeting, when a written 
request is submitted to the Community Development Department within thirty (30) days of denial 
by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 69 of 241



Sec. 17-7-50.   Lot line and/or utility easement vacation. 

The following administrative process is established for a lot line and/or utility easement vacation 
when there is no increase in the number of lots in the original plat; e.g., the combination of two (2) or 
more lots into one (1) lot. 

(1) Submittal documents.  The applicant shall submit: 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. Vacation Map:  a reproduction of the platted lots on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of paper, or 
another size approved by the Community Development Department, including the abutting 
streets.  The map shall indicate the lot lines vacated and the new lot number.  A vicinity map - 
a reduction of the filing showing the relationship of the lot to the filing - shall be included. 

f. Corrected deed with new legal description. 

g. A letter from each special district or entity that provides utility service to the lots, stating 
its recommendation(s) regarding the vacation. 

h. When a utility easement is vacated, a letter from any known beneficiary, stating the 
beneficiary's recommendation regarding the vacation and any existing facilities the beneficiary 
may have over or across the land. 

i.  A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area subject to the vacation that shows that 
there are no taxes in arrears. 

(2) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Community Development 
Department, who   shall review the information and prepare a vacation approval certificate for 
the Director's signature. 

b. The vacation certificate shall specify the plat affected, its reception number, the lot 
lines/easements vacated and reference to the Vacation Map and corrected deed, the 
recommendation of the special districts and easement holders, as applicable.  (Refer to 
Appendix 17-B.) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 70 of 241



c. The Director shall either approve or deny the request based on the submittal documents 
and approval standards. 

d. Within thirty (30) days of approval by the Director, the Public Works Department shall 
record the vacation approval certificate and Vacation Map in the County Clerk and Recorder's 
office and mail a copy of the recorded documents to the applicant. 

e. A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular City Council meeting, when a 
written request is submitted to the Community Development Department within thirty (30) 
days of denial by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-7-60.   Lot line/building envelope adjustment. 

The following administrative process is established for a realignment of a lot line or building 
envelope, in which the original subdivision is not substantially modified and additional lots are not 
created. 

(1) Submittal documents. 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. Lot line/building envelope adjustment map:  a certified boundary survey of the lots 
prepared by a professional land surveyor on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of paper, or another size 
approved by the Community Development Department, that shows the existing and proposed 
lot/easement, or building envelope configuration with distances and bearings.  A vicinity map 
(a reduction of the filing showing the relationship of the lots to the filing) shall be included. 

f. When an easement is realigned or vacated, a letter from any known beneficiary, stating 
the beneficiary's recommendation regarding the request and any existing facilities the 
beneficiary may have over or across the land. 

g. When reconfiguring a building envelope that decreases the setback from a lot line, the 
applicant shall notify abutting landowners affected by the request.  Such notification shall be 
either an explanation of the request sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, at least ten 
(10) days prior to the Director's consideration of such request, or a signed statement from the 
abutting landowners, stating that they were notified of the request to relocate the building 
envelope. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 71 of 241



h. A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the Final Plat that shows that there 
are no taxes in arrears. 

(2) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Community Development 
Department.  Staff shall refer a copy of the submittal to the appropriate agencies or parties. 

b. The Community Development Department shall review the information and prepare a 
lot line or building envelope adjustment certificate for the Director's signature. 

c. The lot line or building envelope adjustment certificate shall specify the affected plat, its 
reception number, the specific lots, easements or building envelope affected and reference the 
lot line/building envelope adjustment map and the recommendations of the special 
districts/easement holders, as applicable.  (Refer to Appendix 17-C.) 

d. The Director shall approve or deny the request based on the submittal documents, 
referral responses, and approval standards. 

e. When multiple owners are involved, the applicant shall provide deeds for the newly 
configured lots and the recordation fee to the Community Development Department, within 
thirty (30) days of approval by the Director.  The Director may grant an extension of time upon 
a written request from the applicant for good cause shown. 

f. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the deeds, Public Works Department shall record 
the Lot Line Adjustment Certificate, lot line adjustment map and deeds in the County Clerk 
and Recorder's office and provide a recorded copy to the applicant. 

g. A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular City Council meeting, when a 
written request is submitted to the Community Development Department within thirty (30) 
days of denial by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-7-70.   Replat of subdivision where additional lots are created. 

Replats of subdivided land, where additional lots are created requires the following review 
process:  

(1) When three or fewer lots are created for single-family detached land use, the Replat may 
be acted on by the City Manager, according to the submittal and review requirements of Article IV 
of this Chapter.   

(2) When more than three lots are created for single-family detached land use, the Replat shall 
be processed in accordance with the submittal and review requirements of Article IV of this 
Chapter, except that it shall be acted on only by the City Council.    

(3)  When any lots are created for single-family attached, multi-family, or nonresidential land 
use, the Replat shall be acted on only by the City Council, according to the submittal and review 
requirements of Article IV of this Chapter.   

  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 72 of 241



Sec. 17-7-80.   Vacation of plat without platted dedication and/or constructed public       
infrastructure.   

The following administrative process is established for the vacation of a subdivision plat without 
platted dedication or constructed public infrastructure: 

(1) Submittal documents.  The applicant shall submit: 

a. Completed development application (form available from Community Development); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from Community Development); 

c. Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. Vacation Map - a reproduction of the subdivision on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of paper or 
another size approved by the Community Development Department, including the abutting 
streets.  Indicate the lots/streets/easements vacated.  A vicinity map shall be included that 
depicts the area surrounding the subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a 
current street map; 

f. When an easement is vacated, a letter from any known beneficiary, stating the 
beneficiary's recommendation regarding the vacation and any existing facilities the beneficiary 
may have over or across the land. 

g. A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the Final Plat to be vacated that 
shows that there are no taxes in arrears. 

(2) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Community Development 
Department.  Staff shall refer a copy of the submittal to the appropriate entities. 

b. The Community Development Department shall review the application and referral 
comments and prepare a vacation approval certificate for the Director's signature.  (See 
Appendix 17-B.)  The vacation approval certificate shall specify the plat to be vacated, its 
reception number, the lot lines vacated and reference to the Vacation Map and the 
recommendations of the special districts and easement holders, as applicable. 

c. The Director shall either approve or deny the request based on the submittal documents, 
referral comments, and approval standards. 

d. Within thirty (30) days of approval by the Director, the Public Works Department shall 
record the vacation approval certificate and Vacation Map in the County Clerk and Recorder's 
office. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 73 of 241



e. A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular City Council meeting, when a 
written request is submitted to the Community Development Department within thirty (30) 
days of denial by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-7-90.   Vacation of plat with platted dedication and/or constructed public infrastructure. 

The following process is established for the vacation of a subdivision plat with public 
infrastructure or dedication. 

(1) Submittal documents. 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the Final Plat to be vacated that 
shows that there are no taxes in arrears. 

f. Vacation Map - a reproduction of the subdivision on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of paper or 
another size approved by the Community Development Department, including the abutting 
streets.  Indicate the lots/streets/easements to be vacated.  A vicinity map shall be included that 
depicts the area surrounding the subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a 
current street map. 

g. Letters from the following stating their recommendation regarding the vacation and any 
existing facilities they have over or across the land: 

1. City Public Works and/or all special districts providing maintenance of infrastructure 
within the right-of-way; 

2. All landowners abutting or using an access proposed for vacation; and 

3. All known easement beneficiaries. 

h. Stamped envelopes addressed to the abutting landowners for notification of the vacation 
application.  A map identifying the platted area to be vacated and its relationship to the 
abutting landowners shall be included. 

(2) Process. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 74 of 241



a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Community Development 
Department.  Once the submittal is determined complete, the Community Development 
Department will mail referral packets to the appropriate agencies and letters to the abutting 
landowners. 

b. The referral period shall be twenty-one (21) days.  The Community Development 
Department shall review the referral comments and submittal information, prepare a staff 
report for the Council, and notify the applicant of the hearing date and time. 

c. The Community Development Department shall mail a notice by first-class mail to the 
last known address of each abutting landowner in the stamped envelopes provided by the 
applicant, at least twelve (12) days prior to the Council hearing.  The notice shall indicate the 
time and place of the Council hearing and that a resolution to vacate the plat will be presented 
at the hearing. 

d. The Council shall evaluate the vacation request, referral agency comments, staff report 
and public testimony and shall approve, conditionally approve, table for further study or deny 
the vacation request.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a 
finding of compliance with the Plat Amendment Approval Standards. 

e. The Community Development Department shall prepare a vacation resolution that 
specifies the plat vacated, its reception number, the lot lines vacated, reference to the Vacation 
Map and the recommendations of the special districts and easement holders, as applicable. 

f. Within thirty (30) days of approval by the Council, Public Works Department shall 
record the vacation resolution and Vacation Map in the County Clerk and Recorder's office.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-7-100.   Vacation of public ways.  

(a) The Council has authority to vacate public ways, including any rights-of-way, public street, 
alley, lane, parkway, avenue, road, trail or other public way designated or dedicated on a plat, 
conveyed by deed or recorded access easement (whether or not it has ever been used as such), or 
acquired by prescriptive use.   

(b) The following procedure is established for the vacation of public ways: 

(1) Approval standards. 

a. A platted or deeded roadway, or portion thereof, or unplatted or undefined roadways that 
have arisen by public usage shall not be vacated so as to leave any land adjoining said roadway 
without an established public road or private access easement connecting said land with 
another established public road. (Section 43-2-303(2)(a), C.R.S.) 

b. A vacation of a state highway must be approved by Colorado Department of 
Transportation. 

(2) Vesting of title.  Vesting of title upon vacation shall be in accordance with Section 43-2-
302, C.R.S. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 75 of 241



(3) Submittal documents. 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

c. Exhibit (one of the following): 

 1. Vacation Map for unplatted roads or easements (whose vacation does not affect 
platted lands or create a separate parcel) - a reproduction of the road or access easement on an 
8.5" x 11" sheet of paper or another size approved by the Community Development 
Department. Include a written legal description and a vicinity map - a reduction of the 
subdivision showing the location of the street in relation to the lots, or the area surrounding the 
street within a one-mile radius, superimposed on a current street map. 

2. A Plat Amendment on 24” x 36” sheet for the vacation of platted rights-of-way, access 
easements, or when a separate parcel is created.  Include a written legal description and a 
vicinity map - a reduction of the subdivision showing the location of the street in relation to the 
lots, or the area surrounding the street within a one-mile radius, superimposed on a current 
street map. 

d. Letters from the following, stating their recommendation regarding the vacation and any 
existing facility they have over or across the land: 

1. All special districts providing maintenance of infrastructure within the right-of-way; 
and 

2. All known easement beneficiaries and utilities in the right-of-way. 

e. Stamped (unsealed) envelopes addressed to abutting landowners and other landowners 
using the public way proposed for vacation, as specified by the Community Development 
Department, for notification of the vacation application.  The notice shall indicate the time and 
place of the Council hearing and shall indicate that an ordinance or plat amendment to vacate 
the road will be presented at the Council hearing.  A map shall be included identifying the area 
to be vacated and relationship to the abutting landowners. 

(4) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Community Development 
Department. Once the submittal is determined complete, the Community Development 
Department will mail referral packets to the appropriate agencies and letters to the abutting 
landowners. 

b. The referral period shall be twenty-one (21) days. The Community Development 
Department shall review the information and prepare a staff report for City Council and notify 
the applicant of the hearing date and time. 

c. The applicant shall be responsible for public notice, prior to the Council hearing, in 
compliance with the public notice requirements in Section 17-7-110. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 76 of 241



d. The Council shall evaluate the vacation request, referral agency comments, staff report, 
and public testimony and shall approve, conditionally approve, table for further study, or deny 
the vacation request.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a 
finding of compliance with applicable standards, regulations, policies and guidelines. 

e. In the case of unplatted road, access easement or public way acquired by prescriptive 
use, the Community Development Department shall prepare a Vacation Ordinance that 
specifies the legal description of the roadway or access easement to be vacated and that makes 
reference to the recommendation of the special districts and easement holders, as applicable. 

f. Upon approval by the Council, the Community Development Department shall, in 
consultation with the City Attorney, prepare, where applicable, any deeds required by the 
vacation.   

g.  The Public Works Department shall submit the Vacation Ordinance, Vacation Map and 
deeds, or the Plat Amendment, for recordation in the County Clerk and Recorder's office.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3).   

Sec. 17-7-110. Public notice. 

 (a) Posted notice. 

(1) At least twelve (12) days prior to the Council hearing, the applicant shall post a notice on 
the property under consideration. 

(2) The notice shall consist of at least one (1) sign at each end of the roadway to be vacated, 
visible to the public, placed on posts at least four (4) feet above ground level.  Additional signs 
may be required by the Community Development Department.  Each sign shall measure not less 
than three (3) feet by four (4) feet.  Letter size shall be a minimum of three (3) inches high.  Said 
notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL) 

This roadway shall be considered for vacation pursuant to the City Subdivision code on (day of week), (date), at 
(time

File name and number:  __________________ 

) in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124.  For more 
information contact the Community Development Department [303-708-1818]. 

a. Sign-posting affidavit.  An affidavit of sign posting shall be submitted for the file in the 
Community Development Department at least three (3) days prior to the hearings.  The signs 
shall be photographed by the applicant, and the photo shall be attached to the affidavit as 
follows: 

(attach photo here) 

I,      (applicant/representative)  , attest that the above sign was posted on (date), at (location) pursuant to the 
City Subdivision code. 

         (signature)             

File name and number:  _______________ 

 
(printed name of applicant/representative) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 77 of 241



Signed and sworn before me this date: ______ 

NOTARIZED BY:  _______________ 

b. The sign shall be removed by the applicant within two (2) weeks following the final 
decision by the Council. 

 (b) When calculating the required time period for posting a public hearing, the day of posting 
shall be counted in the total number of days required.  The day of the hearing shall not be counted 
toward the total number of days required for the notification period.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-7-120.   Application resubmittal. 

An application submitted pursuant to this Article shall not be resubmitted within one (1) year of 
the date of denial.  However, if the Director determines that the resubmitted application has been 
modified to correct the stated objections, then, at the Director's discretion, the resubmittal may be 
considered before one (1) year from the denial.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-7-130.   Lot numbering. 

When vacating or replatting lots/tracts, the following shall apply: 

(1) When vacating a common lot line between two (2) lots, the original lot number followed 
by the letter "A" shall be used.  For example, if vacating the common lot line between Lots 1 and 
2, the newly created lot shall be renumbered Lot 1A. 

(2) When replatting three (3) lots into two (2) lots, the original lot numbers followed by the 
letter "A" shall be used.  For example, if replatting Lots 3, 4 and 5 into two (2) lots, the new lots 
shall be numbered Lot 3A and Lot 4A. 

(3) When adjusting the common lot line between two (2) lots, the original lot numbers 
followed by the letter "A" shall be used.  For example, if realigning the common lot line between 
Lots 7 and 8, the new lots shall be numbered Lot 7A and Lot 8A. 

(4) When replatting an entire subdivision filing, the lots shall be numbered consecutively 
starting with the number 1.  Tracts shall be lettered alphabetically in consecutive order.  The 
acreage within each lot and tract shall be specified.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

ARTICLE VIII 

Certifications 

Sec. 17-8-10.   Intent. 

The Final Plat shall contain executed certificates, notices and statements in the following form.  
Such certificates, notices or statements may be modified by the City Attorney as required or with the 
permission of the City Attorney when warranted by special conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 78 of 241



Sec. 17-8-20.   Signatures. 

All signatures must be signed in indelible black ink only as approved by the County Clerk and 
Recorder.  No red ink and no ballpoints are permitted.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-8-30.   Title verification. 

Either one (1) of the following title verification statements is acceptable: 

I/we (name of title insurance co. or attorney)

[list any encumbrances] 

, do hereby certify that I/we have examined the title of all land platted 
hereon and that title to such land is in the dedicator(s) free and clear of all liens, taxes and encumbrances, except as 
follows: 

Company Name 

               (signature)                

OR 

         (date)      

Name of Attorney      ________(date)_ 
By: (notarized signature

Registration #_____ 

)  

OR 

    Name of Authorized Official   

I, ____________, an attorney at law, do hereby certify that I have examined Title Insurance Commitment No. 
__________, dated ___________, issued by (name of title company), and copies of the recorded instruments referenced 
in that commitment.  In my opinion title to the land platted herein is in the dedicator(s), subject to easements of record, 
taxes for the current year and 

[list any encumbrances] 

     (signature)              (date)     

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
   Attorney at Law   Registration # ______ 

Sec. 17-8-40.    Dedication statement. 

The dedication statement shall be as follows: 

The undersigned, being all the owners, mortgagees, beneficiaries of deeds of trust and holders of other interests in the 
land described herein, have laid out, subdivided and platted said lands into lots, tracts, blocks, rights-of-way and 
easements as shown hereon under the name and subdivision of ____________.  The utility easements shown hereon are 
hereby dedicated for public utilities and cable communication systems, and other easements are hereby dedicated for the 
purposes as shown hereon.  The entities responsible for providing the services for which the easements are established 
are hereby granted the perpetual right of ingress and egress from and to adjacent properties for installation, maintenance 
and replacement of utility lines and related facilities.  The (rights-of-way and tracts – indicate those that are applicable) 
shown hereon are dedicated and conveyed to the City of Lone Tree, CO, in fee simple absolute, with marketable title, 
for public uses and purposes.  The signature of any representative of any partnership or corporate entity indicates that all 
required partnership or corporate approvals have been obtained. 

(Signature of Owner/Mortgagee, etc.)    
By: _printed name_____________ 

Title: ___________________ 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 79 of 241



Attest: 

_______________________ 
       Secretary 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ day of __________, 20 __, by *  (Name, Title

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

). 

_______________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission expires:  ___________________ 

*Signatures of officers of partnership or corporate entities shall correctly indicate the name and type of entity, the name 
of the person signing and their title or authority for signing the dedication document. 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-8-45.   Storm drainage facilities statement. 

The storm drainage facilities statement shall be as follows: 

The City of Lone Tree requires that maintenance access be provided to all storm drainage facilities to assure continuous 
operational capability of the system.  The property Owner shall be responsible for the maintenance of all drainage 
facilities including inlets, pipes, culverts, channels, ditches, hydraulic structures and detention basins located on their 
land unless modified by the subdivider's agreement.  Should the Owner fail to adequately maintain said facilities, the 
City of Lone Tree shall have the right to enter said land for the purposes of operations and maintenance.  All such 
maintenance costs will be assessed to the property Owner. 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-8-47.   General overlot drainage note. 

    The general overlot drainage note shall be as follows: 

Lots and Tracts as platted herein may be required to convey surface drainage from other lots and 
tracts in this filing, in accordance with City of Lone Tree requirements and the approved drainage 
plan for this filing. No alterations to the grading of the lots and tracts may be made that would 
disrupt the approved drainage plan, without prior approval from the City of Lone Tree.  All natural 
and improved drainage ways or drainage systems in said lots and tracts shall be maintained by the 
lot or tract owner in accordance with City of Lone Tree criteria.  Should the owner fail to 
adequately maintain said facilities, the City of Lone Tree shall have the right to enter said land for 
the purposes of operations and maintenance of the drainage ways or drainage systems.  All such 
maintenance costs will be assessed to the property owner.   

Sec. 17-8-50.   Surveyor certificate. 

(a) The surveyor's certificate shall be as follows: 

I, (Surveyor's Name), a duly registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Colorado, do hereby certify that this 
plat truly and correctly represents the results of a survey made on (date of survey), by me or under my direct supervision 
and that all monuments exist as shown hereon; that mathematical closure errors are less than 1:50,000 (second order); 
and that said plat has been prepared in full compliance with all applicable laws of the State of Colorado dealing with 
monuments, subdivisions or surveying of land and all applicable provisions of the City Subdivision Regulations. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 80 of 241



I attest the above on this ___ day of _____, 20 ___. 

        (signature)       

Colorado Registered Professional Land Surveyor # ___ 

 
(Surveyor's Name printed) 

(b) The surveyor's seal shall appear with this certificate.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-8-60.   Planning Commission signature as applicable for Final Plats. 

The Planning Commission certification for Final Plats that have been through the Preliminary or 
Final Plat process, as applicable, shall be as follows: 

The Preliminary Plan (file number) for this Final Plat was reviewed by the Planning Commission. 

By: (signature)                       

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
(Printed name), Community Development Director,    

on behalf of the Planning Commission 

Sec. 17-8-65.   Community Development Director or City Manager signatures 

     Where the Community Development Director or City Manager are authorized to approve an 
application as provided in this Chapter, use the applicable Council signature block statement from 
Sec. 17-8-70 and substitute with their title and name. 
 
Sec. 17-8-70.   Council approval. 

The following signature blocks for the Council approval shall be used, as applicable: 

(1) All plats, except replats or vacations: 

This plat was approved for filing by the Council of the City of Lone Tree, CO, on the _____ day of 
______________, 20___, subject to any conditions specified hereon.  The dedications of (rights-of-way, tracts, 
easements – indicate those that are applicable

All expenses incurred with respect to improvements for all utility services, paving, grading, landscaping, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, road lighting, road signs, flood protection devices, drainage structures and all other 
improvements that may be required shall be the responsibility of the subdivider and not the City. 

) are accepted. 

This acceptance does not guarantee that the soil conditions, subsurface geology, groundwater conditions or 
flooding conditions of any lot shown hereon are such that a building permit will be issued. 

            (signature)             

(2) For vacations approved by City Council: 

 
(printed name of ), Mayor, City of Lone Tree 

This plat was approved for filing by the City Council of Lone Tree, CO, on the _____ day of _________, 20___, 
subject to any conditions specified hereon. 

The (rights-of-way, lots, tracts, parcels and easements - indicate those that are applicable) shown on the plat of 
(the original subdivision name), recorded in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder, Reception # ____________ 
are hereby vacated this _____ day of ______________, 20___. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 81 of 241



            (signature)             

(3) For replats approved by City Council: 

 
Printed name, Mayor, City of Lone Tree 

This plat was approved for filing by the City Council of Lone Tree, CO, on the _____ day of ___________, 
20___, subject to any conditions specified hereon.  The dedications of (rights-of-way, tracts, easements - 
indicate those that are applicable

Lot ___, Block _____, 

) are accepted. 

   (subdivision)   

All expenses incurred with respect to improvements for all utility services, paving, grading, landscaping, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, road lighting, road signs, flood protection devices, drainage structures, and all other 
improvements that may be required shall be the responsibility of the subdivider and not the City. 

, Filing #______ is amended by this plat subject to all covenants, 
conditions and restrictions recorded against and appurtenant to the original plat recorded in the Office of the 
Clerk and Recorder, Reception #___________. 

This acceptance does not guarantee that the soil conditions, subsurface geology, groundwater conditions or 
flooding conditions of any lot shown hereon are such that a building permit, well permit or sewage disposal 
permit can or will be issued. 

            (signature)             

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
Printed name, Mayor, City of Lone Tree 

Sec. 17-8-80.   County Clerk and Recorder. 

The County Clerk and Recorder certification shall be as follows: 

State of Colorado ) 
 )  ss. 
County of Douglas ) 

I hereby certify that this plat was filed in my office on this _____ day of ___________, 20___ A.D., at _____ a.m./p.m., 
and was recorded at Reception Number ____________. 

           (signature)       

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
Clerk and Recorder 

ARTICLE IX 

Exemptions 

Sec. 17-9-10.   Intent. 

The purpose of these regulations is to establish criteria and a review process to permit the Council 
to grant exemptions from the requirements of this Chapter that would otherwise apply to the property 
if the property were defined as a subdivision or subdivided land under this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 
3) 

Sec. 17-9-20.   Prerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of the exemption request, the applicant shall meet with the Community 
Development Department to determine whether the exemption request meets the exemption criteria 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 82 of 241



and to discuss the procedure and submittal requirements.  If the subject parcel is within a recorded 
subdivision, the plat shall be amended in accordance with Article VII of this Chapter.  If it is 
determined that the applicant is using the exemption process to circumvent the subdivision process, 
the applicant shall be required to comply with the Preliminary Plan and Final Plat process of this 
Chapter as applicable.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-9-30.   Criteria. 

An exemption proposal shall be consistent with the following criteria as applicable in order to 
receive an exemption from the definition of the term subdivision: 

(1) Any boundary line adjustments that does not create additional parcels (unplatted land 
only). 

(2) Exemptions that create additional parcels shall be permitted for parcels with more than one 
(1) principal residence, provided that all of the following criteria are met: 

a. Each residence was constructed in conformance with the applicable City regulations in 
effect at the time the residence was constructed; 

b. Each residence shall have a documented history of continuous use as a single-family 
dwelling; 

c. Legal and physical access shall be provided to all parcels by public right-of-way or 
recorded easement, acceptable to the City Engineer in compliance with the Roadway Design 
and Construction Standards. 

Note:  The following shall not be considered to be a principal residence:  structures previously 
considered uninhabitable or accessory to a principal residence.  

(3) Exemptions shall be considered for divisions of land that create parcels for public or quasi-
public use, such as community facilities where no dwelling units are allowed, including but not 
limited to a utility facility, park, open space, fire station, sheriff substation, library, metro district 
office and water/sewage facility. 

(4) Other divisions of land accomplished by deed recorded in the County Clerk and Recorder's 
office that the Council determines are not within the provisions of this Chapter.  If it is determined 
that the applicant is using the exemption process to circumvent the provisions of this Chapter, the 
applicant shall be required to comply with the applicable sections of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-9-40.   Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) copy of the complete exemption request to the Community 
Development Department. 

(b) Community Development Department shall review the submittal for completeness and notify 
the applicant of any deficiencies.  An incomplete submittal will not be processed. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 83 of 241



(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Community Development Department shall 
review the exemption request, review all documentation submitted and prepare a staff report for the 
Council. When all outstanding issues have been satisfactorily addressed, the Community 
Development Department will notify the applicant of the public meeting with the Council. 

(d) At a public meeting, the Council shall evaluate the exemption request, staff comments and 
public testimony and shall either approve, approve with conditions, table for further study or deny the 
request.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a finding of compliance 
with applicable standards, regulations, policies and guidelines. 

(e) If denied by the Council, the applicant may pursue subdivision in accordance with the 
appropriate process contained in this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-9-50.   General submittal requirements. 

General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) A completed development application (form available from the Community Development 
Department). 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department). 

(3) Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment no more than thirty (30) days old. 

(4) A copy of the original deed that created the parcel. 

(5) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application. 

(6) Evidence that legal and physical access, acceptable to the City Engineer in compliance 
with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards, shall be provided for all parcels by public 
right-of-way or recorded easement. 

(7)  A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the Exemption that shows that there are 
no taxes in arrears. 

(8) Any other data essential to the evaluation as reasonably may be required by the 
Community Development Department to enable an adequate review of the exemption.  (Ord. 08-
07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-9-60.   Plan exhibit. 

The applicant shall submit a graphic representation on 24” x 36” sheet, drawn at a scale of 1" = 50' 
or 1" = 100', or another scale approved by the Director, with a one-inch margin on all sides, which 
best conveys the conceptual aspects of the plan and shall include the following information: 

(1) A written legal description showing all boundary lines and dimensions of the land to be 
exempted. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 84 of 241



(2) The title, placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
including the name of the proposal; project file number; a general legal description stating the 
aliquot portion of the section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., "City of Lone Tree," total 
acreage and total number of lots. Example: 

WILSON'S EXEMPTION  
A part of the SW/4 NE/4 of Section 10,  

Township 6 South, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M.,  
Lone Tree, CO 

.5 Acres  2 Residential Lots 
File # _______ 

 
(3) A north arrow designated as true north; a written and graphic scale; the names and 

addresses of the owners; and date of preparation. 

(4) A vicinity map that depicts the area surrounding the proposed exemption within a one-
mile radius on a current street map. 

(5) Topography of the site at two-foot intervals, unless otherwise approved by the Community 
Development Department. 

(6) Ownership, zoning and use of all adjacent subdivided, unsubdivided and public lands. 

(7) Significant features, including but not limited to existing structures, utility lines, natural 
and artificial drainageways, ditches, lakes, vegetative groundcover, rock outcroppings, geologic 
features and hazards, dams, reservoirs, excavations, mines, fence lines, driveways, easements, well 
sites and water lines and waste lines. 

(8) Any other data reasonably essential to the exemption request may be requested by the 
Community Development Department to enable an adequate evaluation of the proposed 
exemption.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-9-70.   Post-approval actions. 

(a) After the Council has approved the exemption, the applicant shall prepare deeds that 
accurately describe the land approved by the exemption and all the necessary easements.  The deeds 
shall also include the following: 

(1) A statement on the deed, immediately following the legal description, that states:  "This 
deed is given to implement the approval of File #_____ on (date

(2) Two (2) fix-line photographic or computer-generated mylar reproductions (emulsion up) 
of the approved Exemption, prepared on 24” x 36” flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of 
double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of not less than three thousandths (.003). 

) by the City Council." 

(b) Maintenance agreements as may be deemed necessary by the Council for the proposed use of 
common facilities and continued maintenance of roads, driveways, water sources, waste disposal 
facilities and their associated easements shall be recorded with the deed referencing the project 
number and the date of approval. 

(c) Within sixty (60) days of approval of an exemption, unless stated otherwise in such approval, 
the applicant shall submit, ready for recordation, the deeds, plan exhibit, required easements or 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 85 of 241



maintenance agreements and a copy of the Council resolution to the Community Development 
Department. 

(d) Within thirty (30) days after submittal of the required documentation, the Public Works 
Department shall record such documents in the County Clerk and Recorder's office. 

(e) The Director may grant extensions of time up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the 
applicant.  A denial by the Director may be appealed, in writing, to the Council within ten (10) days 
from the date of the denial by the Director. 

(f) If the exemption request is denied by the Council, the applicant may proceed with the 
subdivision request in compliance with this Chapter.  An exemption request for the same or 
substantially the same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be accepted within one (1) 
year of such denial.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE X 

Dedication Standards 

Division 1 
General Provisions 

Sec. 17-10-10.   Intent. 

(a) The purpose of these regulations is to provide adequate sites to be dedicated for the public 
facilities generated by new residential development.  The intent is to require appropriate mitigation in 
reasonable proportion to the impacts being created by the new development.  Such sites may be 
dedicated to the City, applicable special district or homeowners' association for eventual construction 
and maintenance, as approved by the City. 

(b) Although encouraged, nonresidential development is not subject to public dedication 
requirements, unless otherwise provided for in Planned Development or Annexation Agreement 
obligations.  (c) For a Planned Development (PD), this Article shall apply only when the required 
land dedication has not been satisfied.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-10-20.   General requirements. 

(a) The developer shall provide for the construction, at no cost to the City, applicable special 
district or public, all roads adjacent to publicly dedicated sites, traffic signalization to serve the site, 
extension of all utilities to the site and other public infrastructure, as required by the Council.  A 
cashier's check, letter of credit or other security to guarantee construction of the improvements shall 
be provided by the developer at such time stated by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

(b) Open space.  Land within the proposed development may be required for open space 
purposes in addition to park land dedication requirements as determined by the City in consideration 
of factors including, but not limited to: 

(1)  Identification or separation of communities or subdivisions or provision of expansive 
visual relief from development. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 86 of 241



(2)  Provision of a buffer or transition between different land uses. 

(3)  Preservation or protection of: 

a. Scenic areas, including vistas along highway corridors; 

b. Fish and wildlife habitats; 

c. Prominent land forms and landmarks; 

d. Outdoor recreation areas; 

e. Cultural, historic and archaeological areas; 

f. Unique vegetative areas; 

g. Critical ecosystems; 

h. Floodplains and riparian areas; 

i. Surface water; or 

j. Watershed areas. 

(4)  Provision of City-wide or regional trails and linkages, public access to lakes, streams 
and other public lands, passive recreation opportunities or outdoor and nature study areas. 

(c) Property may not be considered for open space dedication acceptance if it is an exclusive 
utility or other easement, or a public street, right-of-way or pedestrian walkway required under other 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Division 2 
Parks 

Sec. 17-10-30.   General requirements. 

(a) Whenever land is proposed for residential use, the developer of the land shall provide land or 
cash-in-lieu of land for park demand generated by the proposed use.  Such dedication is intended to 
generally off-set the anticipated demands generated by residential development for such amenities.  In 
general, these lands shall be suitable for the development of active play areas, passive recreation 
areas, trails or, in some instances, to preserve unique land forms or natural areas.  Where no suitable 
land is available in a residential or nonresidential development, cash-in-lieu of land or of equivalent 
value in the donation of recreational facilities may be substituted at the City's discretion.  Additional 
dedication for open space may be required by the Council if deemed necessary to preserve or 
conserve natural areas of special significance.  (See Sec. 17-10-20 (b) of this Article). 

(b) Amount of park land dedication. 

(1) The following formula shall be used to calculate the minimum amount of land dedication 
required of residential developments by the City which is deemed necessary to provide adequate 
land for parks.  This formula is based on 15 acres/1,000 population (based on an occupancy factor 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 87 of 241



of 3.0 people per household).  For example, where three hundred (300) dwelling units are 
proposed (3 x 300 = 900 population), the following calculation is made: 

(15 acre/1,000 population) = .015 

.015 X 900 population = 13.5 acres 

(2) For the purposes of calculating the required dedication, existing dwelling units within a 
subdivision shall be excluded from the calculation of the park requirement if they have previously 
been included in the calculation of City park dedication or cash-in-lieu thereof through the 
subdivision process.  If the existing dwelling units have not previously been included in the 
calculation for park land dedication or cash-in-lieu of land, they will be included in the 
calculation. 

(3) Land proposed for park dedication shall be clearly identified on any submitted plat or site 
plan, including the number of acres for each site and the total acreage proposed for City park 
dedication within the project. 

(4) Land proposed for park dedication shall be located within the proposed new development 
or, if not feasible, may be located off-site within a service area not more than two (2) miles from 
the site, as agreed to by the applicant and the City. 

Sec. 17-10-40.   Conveyance of land. 

The conveyance of dedicated park land to the City shall be by warranty deed, and the title shall be 
free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, including real property taxes prorated to the time of 
conveyance.  The subdivider shall provide the City with a title insurance policy, insuring title in an 
amount equal to the market value of the property and in the City's name, and a certified survey at the 
time of conveyance.  Dedicated park land shall include the necessary water service to provide for 
irrigation and drinking water.  Parks and all dedicated open space shall be conveyed to the City prior 
to recordation of the first Final Plat for the subdivision, or as otherwise agreed upon or stipulated by 
zoning or annexation commitment.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-10-50.   Cash-in-lieu of land dedication. 

Cash-in-lieu of land dedication shall be permitted in cases in which the cash value of park land 
dedication is deemed, by the Council, to be more appropriate in satisfying the needs of the proposed 
development than land within or in the vicinity of the proposed development.  Such cases include, but 
are not limited to, those involving small developments below the minimum size requirement and 
developments that already have adjacent facilities that could be expanded to satisfy the need created 
by the proposed development.  In those land developments where proposed regional trails are located, 
no cash-in-lieu of land will be accepted unless there is an acceptable alternate route shown on the 
Comprehensive Plan or other public parks, trails or open space plan adopted by the City.  The 
minimum cash-in-lieu fee shall be five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). 

(1) The Community Development Department shall review all cash-in-lieu requests and make 
a recommendation to the Council. 

(2) The Council shall make a final determination of the method in which the dedication 
requirements shall be satisfied. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 88 of 241



(3) When cash-in-lieu of land dedication is required by the City Council, the following 
formula shall be used: 

[(A) X (B) = Cash-in-lieu amount required] 

Where: 

(A) = Total acreage for dedication 

(B) = Total $ value/acre as determined by market value or mitigation value as established by the Council based 
on the full market value of the acreage required for park land dedication, or as may otherwise be agreed to 
between the applicant and the City Council.  Value shall be based on anticipated market value after completion 
of platting and construction of public improvements as provided in Section 17-10-20 (a) of this Article. 

(4) When the combination of land and cash-in-lieu of land is requested by the Community 
Development Department, the following formula shall be used: 

(A) – (B) = (C) 

Where: 

(A) = Total park dedication in acres required 

(B) = Land acreage accepted by the City 

(C) = Total acreage for dedication as cash-in-lieu 

And: 

(C) X (D) = Amount Required for Cash-In-Lieu 

Where: 

(C) = Total acreage for dedication as cash-in-lieu 

(D) = $ Value per acre as determined by market value or mitigation value as established by the Council + 
Construction of public improvements as provided in Section 17-11-20 of this Article. 

(5) The cash-in-lieu fee shall be equivalent to the full market value of the acreage required for 
park land dedication, or as may otherwise be agreed to between the applicant and the City Council.  
Value shall be based on anticipated market value after completion of platting and construction of 
public improvements as provided in Section 17-10-20 (a) of this Article.  The applicant shall 
submit a proposal for the cash-in-lieu fee and supply the information necessary for the Council to 
evaluate the adequacy of the proposal.  This information shall be based upon a value established 
by or acceptable to the Council and may include consideration of at least one (1) appraisal of the 
property by a qualified appraiser. 

(6) The cash-in-lieu fee will be prorated on a per-unit basis at the time of Final Platting. 

(7) The cash-in-lieu fee shall, where feasible, be used to benefit the residents within a 
reasonable service area of the type of park for which the fees were collected.  If possible, the 
service area shall be within one (1) mile of the project site and shall be not more than two (2) 
miles from the project site unless otherwise agreed to by the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 89 of 241



Sec. 17-10-60.   Disposition at public meeting. 

Disposition of park lands obtained through the City dedication requirements shall be determined 
by the Council at a public meeting.  The sale of any such park property for private uses shall be in 
accord with any applicable State or Charter requirements.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-10-70.   Development and maintenance of parks, trails and open space. 

The City may assume or negotiate the responsibility of development and maintenance of all parks, 
trails and open space.  Title to land dedicated for parks may be held by the City, with long-term lease 
arrangements negotiated with a local government entity or homeowners' association.  The costs 
associated with development and maintenance of parks, trails and open space shall be the 
responsibility of the developer, a local government entity or a homeowners' association, except as 
provided in Section 17-10-20 (a) of this Article.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-10-80.   Cash-in-lieu of land held by the City. 

The City shall hold cash-in-lieu fees until such time as an eligible public park, trail or open space 
plan and development schedule, including costs for development and provision for ongoing 
maintenance, is established and distribution of funds is approved by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-10-90.   Credit toward dedication requirements. 

The applicant may receive credit toward park land dedication requirements by performing one or 
more of the following: 

(1) Providing swimming pools, noncommercial indoor recreation centers and other specialized 
recreational facilities, provided that: 

a. Such facilities will meet a demonstrated public need; 

b. Such facilities replace or supplement facilities that would generally be provided by the 
City or other public entity; and 

c. A cashier's check, letter of credit or other security, as requested by the Council, is 
provided to ensure completion of such facilities. 

(2) Dedicating or purchasing and subsequently dedicating off-site land (land not contiguous to 
the development), provided that such land: 

a. Will meet a demonstrated public need; and 

b. Meets the City's acceptance criteria for parks. 

(3) Providing private open space if such land is restricted to park, recreation or open space 
purposes by conservation easement or deed, and provided that such land: 

a. Will meet a demonstrated public need; and 

b. Meets the City's acceptance criteria for a park, recreation or open space. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 90 of 241



(4) Providing park and recreation facilities by developers, special districts and homeowner's 
associations.  A cashier's check, letter of credit or other security to ensure completion of such 
facilities may be required as requested by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-10-100.    Selection criteria. 

(a) Selection criteria for public parks: 

(1) The City may consider acceptance of property to meet park land dedication requirements, 
provided that: 

a. Property to be dedicated is accessible to residents living within a reasonable service area 
of the development (i.e., preferably within a one-half-mile radius and no more than a two-mile 
radius from the project site); 

b. Land to be dedicated contains sufficient flat surface to provide for development of active 
recreation areas as deemed necessary to meet the needs of the applicable service area; 

c. The property to be dedicated is not an exclusive utility or other easement, a public street, 
right-of-way or pedestrian walkway required under other regulations or does not contain 
topographical, hazardous or material obstructions that would preclude development as a local 
park; 

d. The property to be dedicated may be co-located with an elementary or middle school site 
or other public recreation facility in order to benefit from shared facilities, such as parking lots, 
access roads, play fields, etc., thereby reducing the overall acreage requirement by a factor 
equal to those shared facilities; and 

e. The property to be dedicated can support both active and/or passive recreational 
activities for City residents. 

(2) Trails.  No credit shall be given for trails toward the park land dedication requirements.  
Provision of trails is considered a normal element of an appropriately planned development. 

Division 3 
Schools 

Sec. 17-10-110.   General requirements. 

Property dedicated to the City must be suitable for development and the intended use to meet the 
need generated by the proposed development.  All of the dedicated school property must be suitable 
for construction of school facilities.  Dedicated sites shall be a single parcel and shall meet minimum 
size requirements sufficiently square or round to be usable for the intended use.  The dedicated school 
property shall be centrally located and within the service radius with public access to adjacent street 
frontage and free from hazards that would threaten the safety of those using the property. 

(1) The following formula shall be used to calculate the minimum amount of required school 
property dedication to meet the needs of the proposed subdivision: 

 

Facility  Acres Per Student 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 91 of 241



Elementary School (K-6) = 0.018 acre/student generated 

Middle School (7-8) = 0.030 acre/student generated 

Senior High School (9-12) = 0.030 acre/student generated 

 
(2) The following is the minimum acreage required per school, unless otherwise agreed to by 

the School District and the City: 

 

Elementary School = 12 acres 

Junior High School = 30 acres 

Senior High School = 60 acres 

Combined Secondary Campus (MS & HS) = 90 acres 

 
(3) Existing dwelling units shall be excluded from the calculation of the school property 

dedication requirement if they have previously been included in the calculation for school property 
dedication.  If the existing units have not previously been included in the calculation for school 
property dedication, they will be included in the calculation. 

(4) Dedicated school property shall be clearly identified on the submitted plat/plan by a legal 
description. The plat/plan shall also indicate the number of acres for each site and the total acreage 
proposed for school property dedication within the project.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-10-120.   Cash-in-lieu of property dedication. 

(a) Cash-in-lieu of property dedication shall be required when determined by the Council to be 
more appropriate in satisfying the needs of the proposed development and school district.  Such cases 
include, but are not limited to, small developments not able to meet the minimum property 
requirements and developments that are served by adjacent facilities that could be expanded to satisfy 
the need created by the proposed development. 

(1) The School District shall review the developer's request to dedicate property or pay cash-
in-lieu of property dedication and make a recommendation to the City. 

(2) The Council shall make the final determination of the method in which the dedication 
requirement shall be satisfied. 

(3) The cash-in-lieu fee shall be equivalent to the full market value of the acreage required for 
school property dedication.  Value shall be based on anticipated market value after completion of 
platting and improvements as provided in Section 17-10-20 (a) of this Article, or other amount as 
agreed to by the City.  The applicant shall submit a proposal for the cash-in-lieu fee and supply the 
information necessary for the Council to evaluate the adequacy of the proposal or accept an 
amount provided by the School District. 

(b) The applicant shall convey the dedication property or pay the in-lieu-of fees prior to the 
recordation of the first Final Plat for the subdivision, or as may otherwise be agreed to by Council.  
The conveyance of dedicated school property to the City shall be by warranty deed, and the title shall 
be free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, including real property taxes prorated to the time of 
conveyance.  The subdivider shall provide a title insurance policy in the City's name insuring the 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 92 of 241



property in the amount of the property's fair market value, and a certified survey at the time of 
conveyance. 

(c) The conveyance of property to satisfy the City's dedication requirement will be made to the 
service district, school district, homeowners' association or other entity when it can be demonstrated 
that the property will be developed or used within a reasonable time frame as determined by the City, 
including engineering, planning and design work.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE XI 

Vested Property Rights 

Sec. 17-11-10.   Intent. 

Property rights for single-family detached residential property may be vested through the approval 
of a Site Specific Development Plan.  The Final Plat shall be deemed the Site Specific Development 
Plan for the purpose of vesting property rights in single-family detached residential property.  (Ord. 
08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-11-20.   Procedure. 

(a) The landowner or authorized representative may apply for a determination that a Site Specific 
Development Plan entitles the owner or representative to vested property rights. 

(b) The application for vested property rights shall be made within sixty (60) days of Final Plat 
approval and prior to plat recordation. 

(c) The Council may vest property rights for single-family detached residential property in the 
same manner as set forth in Chapter 16, Article XXXIV of this Code.  However the Site Specific 
Development Plan shall be the Final Plat instead of the Site Improvement Plan. 

(d) Concurrent processing of the Final Plat and designation of the Site Specific Development 
Plan shall be permitted with the approval of the Community Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-11-30.   Amendments to Final Plats. 

Changes to Final Plats that have been determined to be Site Specific Development Plans shall not 
affect the terms and conditions of vesting if such changes are insubstantial pursuant to Paragraph 17-
8-70(1) of this Chapter.  Such changes shall not extend the vesting period unless expressly authorized 
by the Council.  Changes to Final Plats that have been determined to be Site Specific Development 
Plans shall terminate the terms and conditions of vesting if such changes are substantial changes 
pursuant to Sec. 17-7-70(2) (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-11-40.   Vacations of Final Plats. 

When any portion of a Final Plat that has been determined to be a Site Specific Development Plan 
is vacated, the terms and conditions of the vesting shall be automatically null and void and the vested 
rights forfeited.  Upon the vacation of a recorded plat, a new plat may be proposed for determination 
as a site-specific development plan.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 93 of 241



APPENDIX 17-A 

PLAT CORRECTION CERTIFICATE 

(Subdivision Name and Filing No.)  Reception No. _______ 

WHEREAS, (Describe the change; e.g., the street rights-of-way shown on Carriage Club, Filing 
No. 1 were dedicated to public use); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lone Tree desires to (Change the names of Oak Tree Court and Oneida 
Drive within Carriage Club, Filing No. 1). 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that: 

The following street names within Carriage Club Filing No. 1 shall be changed as follows: 

1. Oak Tree Court changed to Barkway Court. 

2. Oneida Drive changed to Longview Drive. 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________, 20___. 

CITY COUNCIL of the City of Lone Tree, CO 

By:__(Community Development Director’s signature)
(

           
Printed name), Community Development Department Director

                                                
  

           
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )  ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

I hereby certify that this certificate was filed in my office on this _____ day of _________, 20___ 
A.D., and was recorded at Reception Number ______________. 

By:  (Signature of County Clerk and Recorder)
        

   
(Printed name), Douglas County Clerk and Recorder

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 
) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 94 of 241



APPENDIX 17-B 

VACATION APPROVAL CERTIFICATE 

(Subdivision Name and Filing No.)  Reception No. _________ 

WHEREAS, (Describe the change; e.g., lots 1 and 2 were platted as separate lots as shown on 
Creekside, Filing No. 7); and 

WHEREAS, the lot owner desires to (vacate the common lot line between lots 1 and 2 and the 5' 
utility easement on either side of this common lot line thereby combining lots 1 and 2 and resulting in 
one lot renamed lot 1A, Creekside, Filing No. 7), as shown on the Vacation Map recorded herewith; 
and 

WHEREAS, the known beneficiaries of the utility easement were notified, and responded as 
follows: 

1. Xcel Energy – no objection; 

2. Southgate Water and Sanitation District  –  no objection 

3. Comcast – no objection; and 

WHEREAS, the Park Meadows Metropolitan District was notified and recommended approval of 
the lot line/easement vacation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that: 

(The common lot line between lots 1 and 2 along with the 5' utility easement on either side of this 
common lot line be vacated resulting in the creation of lot 1A, Creekside , Filing No. 7). 

This legal description is to be used for all conveyances/transfers of this property. 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________, 20___. 

City Council of the City of Lone Tree, CO 

By:__
(Printed name), Community Development Director  

(Community Development Director’s signature) 

    
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )  ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

I hereby certify that this certificate was filed in my office on this _____ day of _________, 20___ 
A.D., and was recorded at Reception Number ______________. 

By:  (Signature of County Clerk and Recorder)
       

  
(Printed name), Douglas County Clerk and Recorder 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 95 of 241



The undersigned, being all the owners of the land described herein, and the beneficiaries of any 
deeds of trust encumbering that land, hereby consent to this vacation. 

OWNER(S) 

_______________________ If Corp.: 

By: _______________________________ 

       (corp. name)        

 Title:  
ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of ____________________, 20___, by 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

       *(print name)     . 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public      

My commission expires: ___________________ 

*Signatures of officers signing for a corporation shall be acknowledged as follows: 

    (print name of officer)     as     (title of officer)     of   (name of corp.)  , a    (state)   

BENEFICIARY OF DEED OF TRUST: 

 corporation. 

                                                      By: ________________________ 
                                                    Title  

     (name)                                                 

____________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____________, 20___, by     (name of 
officer)  , as    (title of officer)  , of    (name of beneficiary)  , a    (state of organization)    ,    (type of 
entity)   

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

. 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public              

My commission expires: ___________________ 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 96 of 241



APPENDIX 17-C 

LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT CERTIFICATE 

(Subdivision Name and Filing No.)  Reception No. 

WHEREAS, (Describe the change; e.g., lots 10, 11 and 12 were platted as separate lots as shown 
on Hill Top, Filing No. 2); and 

WHEREAS, the lot owner(s) desires to (vacate the common lot line between lots 10 and 11, and 
between lots 11 and 12 and the 5' utility easement on either side of these lot lines and replat lots 10, 
11 and 12 and associated easements into 2 lots renamed lots 10A and 11A Hill Top, Filing No. 2), as 
shown on the Lot Line Adjustment Map recorded herewith; and 

WHEREAS, the known beneficiaries of the utility easement were notified and responded as 
follows: 

1. Xcel Energy – no objection; 

2. Southgate Water and Sanitation District – no objection; 

3. Comcast – no objection; and 

WHEREAS, the Park Meadows Metropolitan District was notified and recommended approval of 
the lot line/easement vacation and replat. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that: 

(The common lot line between lots 10 and 11, and lots 11 and 12 along with the 5' utility easement 
on either side of these lot lines be vacated and replatted resulting in the creation of Lots 10A and 11A 
Hill Top, Filing No. 2). 

This legal description is to be used for all conveyances/transfers of this property. 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________, 20___. 

CITY COUNCIL of the City of Lone Tree, CO 

By:__
(Printed name), Community Development Department Director  

(Community Development Department Director’s signature) 

  
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )  ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

I hereby certify that this certificate was filed in my office on this _____ day of _________, 20___ 
A.D., and was recorded at Reception Number ______________. 

By:  (Signature of County Clerk and Recorder)
       

   
(Printed name of County Clerk and Recorder) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 97 of 241



The undersigned, being all the owners of the land described herein, and the beneficiaries of any 
deeds of trust encumbering that land, hereby consent to this lot line adjustment. 

OWNER(S) 

_______________________ If Corp.: 

By: __________________________________ 
Title: ________________ 

       (corp. name)        

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of ____________________, 20___, by 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

       *(print name)     . 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public              

My commission expires: ___________________ 

*Signatures of officers signing for a corporation shall be acknowledged as follows: 

    (print name of officer)    as    (title of officer)    of    (name of corp.), a    (state)   

BENEFICIARY OF DEED OF TRUST: 

 corporation. 

By: ________________________________ 
Title: ________________ 

     (name)                                                   

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____________, 20___, by     (name of 
officer)  , as    (title of officer)  , of    (name of beneficiary)  , a    (state of organization)    ,    (type of 
entity)   

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

. 

__________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: ___________________ 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 98 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 99 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 100 of 241



CHAPTER 17 

Subdivisions 

Article I Administrative Provisions 
Sec. 17-1-10 Title and authority 
Sec. 17-1-20 Purpose 
Sec. 17-1-30 Authority 
Sec. 17-1-40 Jurisdiction 
Sec. 17-1-50 Interpretation 
Sec. 17-1-60 Effective date 
Sec. 17-1-70 Repeals 
Sec, 17-1-80 Rules of construction 
Sec. 17-1-90 Definitions 
Sec. 17-1-100 Severability 
Sec. 17-1-110 Enforcement 
Sec. 17-1-120 Amendments 
Sec. 17-1-130 Control over platting 
Sec. 17-1-140 Review fees 
Sec. 17-1-150 Impact fees 
Sec. 17-1-160 Waivers 
Sec. 17-1-170 Powers of Planning Commission 
Sec. 17-1-180 Powers of City Council 

 Sec. 17-1-185     Powers of the City Manager 
 Sec. 17-1-190 Standards for approval 
Sec. 17-1-200 Major activity notice 

Article II General Standards, Procedures and Requirements 
Sec. 17-2-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-2-20 Description of subdivision process 
Sec. 17-2-30 Applicant’s responsibilities 
Sec. 17-2-3040 Subdivision improvements 
Sec. 17-2-40 Site characteristics 
Sec. 17-2-5050 Streets 
Sec. 17-2-6060 Erosion and sediment control plan 
Sec. 17-2-7070 Drainage study 
Sec. 17-2-8080 Other public improvements 
Sec. 17-2-9090 Guarantee of public improvements 
Sec. 17-2-100100 Release of security 
Sec. 17-2-110 Applicant's responsibility 
Sec. 17-2-120110 Additional review fees 
Sec. 17-2-130120 Withdrawal of application 
Sec. 17-2-140130 Inactive applications 

Article III Sketch PlanPreliminary Plan 
Sec. 17-3-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-3-20 PrerequisiteSec. 17-3-20 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-3-230 Prerequisite 
 
Sec. 17-3-3040 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-3-4050 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-3-50 Sketch Preliminary plan Plan exhibit 
Sec. 17-3-60 Development reports 
Sec. 17-3-70 Public notice requirements 
Sec. 17-3-80 Expiration of approval 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 101 of 241



Article IV Preliminary Plan 
Sec. 17-4-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-4-20 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-4-30 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-4-40 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-4-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-4-60 Plan exhibit 
Sec. 17-4-70 Development reports 
Sec. 17-4-80 Expiration of approval 

Article IV Final PlatFinal Plat for Single-family Detached Development 
Sec. 17-54-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-4-20 Approval standards 
 
Sec. 17-54-2030 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-5-30 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-54-40 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-54-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-54-60 Final platFinal Plat exhibit 
Sec. 17-54-70 Final development reports 
Sec. 17-54-80 Vested property rights 
Sec. 17-54-90 Post-approval procedure 
Sec. 17-54-100 Expiration of approval 

Article VI Minor DevelopmentFinal Plat for Single-family Attached, Multi-family, and Non 
Residential Development 
Division 1 Single-Family Residential 
Sec. 17-6-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-6-20 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-6-30 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-6-40 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-6-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-6-60 Minor development final plat exhibit 
Sec. 17-6-70 Development reports 
Sec. 17-6-80 Public notice requirements 
Sec. 17-6-90 Vested property rights 
Sec. 17-6-100 Recordation procedure 
Sec. 17-6-110 Expiration of approval 
Division 2 Nonresidential and Multifamily 
Sec. 17-65-210 Intent 
Sec. 17-6-220 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-65-2320 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-5-30 Prerequisite 
 
Sec. 17-65-240 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-65-250 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-65-260 Minor development final platFinal Plat exhibit 
Sec. 17-65-270 Final dDevelopment reports and plans 
Sec. 17-65-280 Vested property rights 
Sec. 17-65-290 Recordation procedure 
Sec. 17-6-300 Post-recordation requirementapproval procedure 
Sec. 17-65-310100 Expiration of approval 

Article VII CondominiumsCondominium Plat 
Sec. 17-76-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-7-20 Prerequisite 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 102 of 241



Sec. 17-76-3020 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-6-30 Prerequisite 
 
Sec. 17-76-40 Submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-76-50 Recordation proceduresPost-approval procedure 
Sec. 17-76-60 Expiration of approval 

Article VIII Replat or and Vacations 
Sec. 17-87-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-8-20 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-87-3020 Approval standards 
Sec. 17-7-30 Prerequisite 
 
Sec. 17-87-40 Plat correction process and submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-87-50 Lot line and/or utility easement vacation with or without easements 
Sec. 17-87-60 Lot line/building envelope adjustment 
Sec. 17-87-70 Replat of subdivision or super block processwhere additional lots are 

created 
Sec. 17-87-80 Vacation of plat without public infrastructure/dedicationplatted dedication 

and/or constructed public infrastructure 
Sec. 17-87-90 Vacation of plat with public infrastructure/dedication 
Sec. 17-87-100 Roadway Vacation of public ways vacation – submittal documents and 

process 
Sec. 17-87-110 Public notice 
Sec. 17-87-120 Application resubmittal 
Sec. 17-87-130 Lot numbering 

Article VIIIIX Certifications 
Sec. 17-98-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-98-20 Signatures 
Sec. 17-98-30 Title verification 
Sec. 17-98-40 Dedication statement 
Sec. 17-98-45 Storm drainage facilities statement 
Sec. 17-8-47 General overlot drainage note 
Sec. 17-98-50 Surveyor certificate 
Sec. 17-98-60 Planning Commission signature as applicable for final platFinal Plats 
Sec. 17-98-65 Planning Commission signature for minor development platCommunity 

Development Director or City Manager signature 
Sec. 17-98-70 Council approval 
Sec. 17-98-80 County Clerk and Recorder 

Article IX Exemptions 
Sec. 17-109-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-109-20 Prerequisite 
Sec. 17-109-30 Criteria 
Sec. 17-109-40 Submittal process 
Sec. 17-109-50 General submittal requirements 
Sec. 17-109-60 Plan exhibit 
Sec. 17-109-70 Post-approval actions 

Article XI Dedication Standards 
Division 1 General Provisions 
Sec. 17-1110-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-1110-20 General requirements 
Division 2 Parks 
Sec. 17-1110-11030 General requirements 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 103 of 241



Sec. 17-1110-12040 Conveyance of land 
Sec. 17-11-13050 Cash- in- lieu of land dedication 
Sec. 17-1110-14060 Disposition at public meeting 
Sec. 17-1110-15070 Development and maintenance of parks, trails and open space 
Sec. 17-1110-16080 Cash- in- lieu of land held by City 
Sec. 17-1110-17090 Credit toward dedication requirements 
Sec. 17-1110-180100 Selection criteria 
Division 3 Schools 
Sec. 17-1110-210110 General requirements 
Sec. 17-1110-220120 Cash in lieuCash-in-lieu of property dedication 
Sec. 17-11-230 Conveyance of property or fees 

Article XII Vested Property Rights 
Sec. 17-1211-10 Intent 
Sec. 17-1211-20 Procedure 
Sec. 17-1211-30 Amendments to final platFinal Plats 
Sec. 17-1211-40 Vacations of final platFinal Plats 

Appendix 
Appendix 17-A Plat Correction CertificatePlat Correction Certificate 
Appendix 17-B Vacation Approval Certificate 
Appendix 17-C Lot Line Adjustment CertificateLot Line Adjustment Certificate 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 104 of 241



ARTICLE I 

Administrative Provisions 

Sec. 17-1-10.    Title and authority.. 

For the purpose of brevity, this Chapter shall also be referred to as the Subdivision Code, the 
Subdivision Chapter or this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-20.    Purpose. 

In order to achieve quality development, thisThis  Chapter is intended to achieve designed and 
enacted for the following purposes: 

 (1)  To promote the general health, safety and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of 
the City.  Land proposed for subdivision shall be such that it can be used safely for the intended 
purpose without danger to health or peril from fire, flood, geologic hazards or other natural 
hazards. 

(2) To ensure that the necessary services and facilities are available and have sufficient 
capacity to serve the proposed subdivision.  Land proposed for subdivision shall not be approved 
until the necessary provisions have been made for: road improvements, access, and traffic 
controls; water supply and wastewater disposal; police and fire protection; parks, trails and 
recreation; drainage and water quality; and other reasonably necessary improvements and services.  
The cost and installation of such improvements, which primarily benefit the land being 
subdivided, shall be borne by the owners/developers of such land. 

(3) To provide for the preservation and conservation of unique or distinctive natural areas, 
topographic features and landmarks; significant stands of vegetation; critical wildlife habitats, 
including breeding grounds, nesting areas, migration routes and wintering areas; drainage, riparian 
and wetland areas; scenic views; historic features and archaeologically sensitive sites as 
determined by the City, recognizing the irreplaceable character of such resources and their 
importance to the quality of life in Lone Tree.   

(4) To design subdivision with lots that are of an appropriate size and configuration for the 
site characteristics and intended uses; with adequate connections between neighborhoods, services, 
shopping and recreational areas when possible; a road system designed to preserve the integrity 
and function of the roadway network and minimization of road cut and fills; the conservation of 
water, land and energy resources; and to encourage a diversity of housing types and densities in 
order to assure adequate housing for all persons.  

 (5 To provide for an adequate and accurate system to record land subdivisions, ensuring 
proper legal descriptions and survey monumentation, in order to inform the public and especially 
future residents of the facts about the subdivision, thereby safeguarding the interests of the public, 
the homeowner, the subdivider and the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

(1) To promote the general health, safety and welfare of the present and future inhabitants of 
the City.  Land proposed for subdivision shall be such that it can be used safely for the intended 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 105 of 241



purpose without danger to health or peril from fire, flood, geologic hazards or other natural 
hazards. To ensure that the necessary services and facilities are available and have sufficient 
capacity to serve the proposed subdivision.  Land proposed for subdivision shall not be approved 
until the necessary provisions have been made for: road improvements, access and traffic controls; 
water supply and wastewater disposal; police and fire protection; parks, trails and recreation; 
drainage; and other reasonably necessary improvements and services.  The cost and installation of 
such improvements, which primarily benefit the land being subdivided, shall be borne by the 
owners/developers of such land. 

() To guide future growth and development within the City that provides adequate and 
efficient transportation, water, waste disposal, schools, fire and police protection, recreation and 
open space opportunities and other services and facilities; and to encourage a diversity of housing 
types and densities in order to assure adequate housing for all persons. 

() To provide for the preservation and conservation of unique or distinctive natural areas, 
natural landmarks, critical wildlife habitats, wetlands, historic features and archaeologically 
sensitive sites recognizing the irreplaceable character of such resources and their importance to the 
quality of life in the City.  Subdivisions shall provide for the preservation and conservation of 
significant stands of vegetation; unique or distinctive topographic features, including buttes and 
rock outcroppings; drainage, riparian and wetland areas; significant wildlife habitats, including 
breeding grounds, nesting areas, migration routes and wintering areas; scenic views; identified 
aquifer recharge areas; and important historical or archaeological sites. 

() To protect both urban and nonurban development by minimizing the conflicts between the 
land uses and structures.  Subdivisions shall be designed to provide for lots that are of an 
appropriate size and configuration for the site characteristics and intended uses; connections 
between neighborhoods, shopping and recreational areas that are safe and convenient; adequate 
buffering from the adverse impacts of adjoining uses through lot orientation, setbacks, landscaping 
or other appropriate methods; the conservation of water, land and energy resources; minimization 
of grading, road cuts and fills; and a road system designed to preserve the integrity and function of 
the arterial and local roadway network. 

() To ensure that the necessary services and facilities are available and have sufficient 
capacity to serve the proposed subdivision.  Land proposed for subdivision shall not be approved 
until the necessary provisions have been made for subdivision design, access, parks, trails, 
recreation and open spaces, schools, drainage, water, wastewater disposal, traffic controls, road 
improvements, police and fire protection or other reasonably necessary improvements and 
services.  The cost and installation of such improvements, which primarily benefit the land being 
subdivided, shall be borne by the owners/developers of such land. 

() To provide for an adequate and accurate system to record land subdivisions, ensuring 
proper legal descriptions and survey monumentation, in order to inform the public and especially 
future residents of the facts about the subdivision, thereby safeguarding the interests of the public, 
the homeowner, the subdivider and the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-30.    Authority. 

This Chapter governing the subdivision of property is adopted pursuant to Part 2, Article 23 of 
Title 31, C.R.S. (the "Act").  In the event of a conflict between this Chapter and the Act, the Chapter 
shall control.  All subdivision approvals shall be in conformance with the City's Comprehensive Plan 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 106 of 241



(hereafter "Comprehensive Plan"), Chapter 16 of this Code, approved and recorded Development 
Guides and Plans, where property is zoned Planned Development (PD) and any other applicable 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-40.    Jurisdiction. 

This Chapter shall apply to the subdivision of land in the incorporated area of the City and as 
provided in Section 31-23-212, C.R.S., unless the latter is superseded by any provision in the Charter.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-50.    Interpretation. 

The following standards shall be used to interpret this Chapter: 

(1) The regulations contained herein shall be regarded as minimum requirements. 

(2) Whenever a provision of this Chapter or any provision in any applicable law, ordinance, 
resolution, rule or regulation contains restrictions covering the same subject matter, that which is 
most restrictive or imposes higher standards, except as may be otherwise provided in an approved 
development guide and plan, shall govern. 

(3) This Chapter is not intended to abrogate any easement or any other private agreement or 
restriction; provided, however, that where the provisions of this Chapter are more restrictive or 
impose higher standards or requirements than such easement, covenant or other private agreement 
or restriction, the provisions of this Chapter shall govern.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-60.    Effective date. 

The ordinance codified herein shall take effect on _______________May 14, 2008.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-70.    Repeals. 

Any subsequent repeal of this Chapter shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of 
any person for the violation of any resolution or ordinance repealed hereby for any offense committed 
prior to the repeal.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-80.    Rules of construction. 

(a) The particular controls the general. 

(b) In case of any difference of meaning or implication between the text of this Chapter and the 
captions for each Section, the text shall control. 

(c) The word shall is always mandatory, and the word may is permissive. 

(d) Words used in the present tense include the future, unless the context clearly indicates the 
contrary. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 107 of 241



(e) Words used in the singular include the plural, and words used in the plural include the 
singular, unless the context clearly indicates the contrary.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-90.    Definitions. 

As used in this Chapter, the following words shall be interpreted and defined in accordance with 
the provisions set forth herein: 

Adjacent means separated from the lot or parcel by one (1) of the following:  lot line, street, 
alley or easement. 

Applicant means the landowner or auth-orized representative who formally requests action on a 
land use proposal submitted in accordance with this Chapter. 

Business day means Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday or Friday unless one (1) of those 
days is a national holiday. 

City means the City of Lone Tree, Colorado. 

City Attorney means the City's general counsel or attorney as authorized by resolution, contract 
or other Council action, who performs the legal functions as set forth in this Chapter. 

City Engineer means the City's designated engineer as authorized by resolution, contract or 
other Council action, who performs the engineering functions as set forth in this Chapter. 

Common open space means a parcel of land, an area of water or a combination of land and 
water within the site designated for a Planned Development designed and intended primarily for 
the use of residents, occupants and owners of the Planned Development. 

Community Development Department means the staff of the City’s Community Development 
Department. 

Comprehensive Plan means the City's duly adopted Comprehensive Plan. 

Condominium means an individual air space unit, together with the interest in the common 
elements appurtenant to such unit. 

Council means the City Council. 

County means Douglas County, Colorado. 

Dedicated land means land transferred to the City by platting, title, deed or other legal method 
approved by the City Attorney.  This land shall be used for public purposes, such as school sites, 
fire stations, parks, open space or such other uses or facilities as approved by the Council or 
indicated within approved development guides or plans. 

Department means the City Department of Community Development. 

Development means the construction on land of improvements for residential, institutional, 
commercial, industrial, transportation, public flood control and recreational and similar uses, in 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 108 of 241



contrast to use of the land for growing crops, grazing of farm animals and other agricultural 
pursuits.  The term also applies to vacant land which has been or is being prepared for 
development by such steps such as installation of water and sewer lines, construction of access 
streets and construction of a railroad spur or branch trackslight rail tracks. 

Director means the City's designated Director of the Community Development Department or 
designee,  or the Community Development Department, as set forth by resolution, contract or 
other Council action, who is responsible for the administration of this Chapter. 

Disposition means a contract of sale resulting in the transfer of equitable title to an interest in 
subdivided land; an option to purchase an interest in subdivided land; a lease or an assignment of 
an interest in subdivided land; or any other conveyance of an interest in subdivided land. 

Engineer means a professional engineer, currently registered by the State of Colorado. 

Evidence means any map, table, chart, contract or any other document or testimony prepared or 
certified by a qualified person to attest to a specific claim or condition.  Evidence shall be relevant 
and competent and shall support the position maintained by the claimer. 

Exemption means exclusion from the subdivision process by action taken by the Council who, 
in making the exemption, decide that the purpose of the subdivision process will not be met if the 
subdivision process is required. 

Final platFinal Plat means a map and supporting materials of certain described land prepared 
in accordance with this Chapter as an instrument for recording of real estate interests with the 
County Clerk and Recorder. 

Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control manual, means the City’s duly adopted Grading, 
Erosion and Sediment Control manual, or other duly adopted standards as approved by the City. 

 

Landowner means all persons having legal title to or sufficient proprietary interest in the land 
sought to be subdivided. 

Legal description means a written metes-and-bounds description of the boundary of a parcel of 
real property by a professional licensed surveyor, for the purpose of perpetuating location and title.  
The description must recite all ties and monuments, recorded or physical, which will determine the 
correct position of the boundary, all references to adjoining lands by name and record and a full 
dimensional recital of the boundary courses in succession which shall be mathematically correct.  
The description must be accompanied by an exhibit or map showing all pertinent information as 
described in the narrative. 

Lot means the unit into which land is divided on a subdivision plat or deed with the intention of 
separate ownership or use.  Lot shall include parcel, plot, site or any similar term. 

Minor development means a streamlined review process for the creation of four (4) or fewer 
single-family lots or nonresidential and multifamily subdivisions. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 109 of 241



Official publication means the newspaper identified by the City for the publication of public 
notices as required in this Chapter. 

Open space means an unoccupied, unobstructed space open to the sky except for trees, 
shrubbery, vegetation or improvements relating to recreation exclusive of buildings or structures. 

Park means an area set aside excluding residential or commercial development and intended 
for use as open areas, fields, play fields, trails, national areas, historic areas, wildlife areas or other 
areas. 

Plan means the maps for development which includes, but is not limited to, lots, blocks, 
easements, rights-of-way, pedestrian ways, park and school sites, open space areas and 
conservation areas, in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter. 

Planned Development means an area of land, controlled by one (1) or more landowners, to be 
developed under unified control or unified plan of development for a number of dwelling units, 
commercial, educational, recreational or industrial uses or any combination of the foregoing. 

Planned development plan means the provisions for development of a Planned Development, 
which may include, and need not be limited to, easements, covenants and restrictions relating to 
use; location and bulk of buildings and other structures; intensity of use or density of 
development; utilities, private and public streets, ways, roads, pedestrian areas and parking 
facilities; common open space and other public facilities.  Guide means the written and graphic 
materials referred to in this definition. 

Planning Commission means the City Planning Commission. 

Plat means the final maps and supporting materials of a proposed subdivision, prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of this Chapter and utilized as an instrument for recording real 
estate interests with the County Clerk and Recorder. 

Preliminary planPreliminary Plan means the map of a proposed subdivision and specified 
supporting materials, drawn and submitted in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter, to 
permit the evaluation of the proposal prior to final engineering and design. 

Public way means any rights-of-way, public street, alley, lane, parkway, avenue, road, trail or 
other public way designated or dedicated on a plat, conveyed by deed or recorded access easement 
(whether or not it has ever been used as such), or acquired by prescriptive use.   

Public Works means the City’s Public Works Department.   

Replat means any change in a recorded plat; an amended plat. 

Right-of-way means a strip of land occupied or intended to be occupied by a street, crosswalk, 
railroad, road, electric transmission line, oil or gas pipeline, water main, sanitary or storm sewer 
main or for another special use.  The usage of the term right-of-way for land platting purposes 
shall mean that every right-of-way established and shown on a final platFinal Plat is to be separate 
and distinct from the lots or parcels adjoining such right-of-way and not included within the 
dimensions of such lots or parcels.  Rights-of-way intended for streets, crosswalks, water mains, 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 110 of 241



sanitary sewers, storm drains or any other use involving maintenance by a public agency shall be 
dedicated to public use on the plat on which such right-of-way is established. 

Roadway Design and Construction Standards means the City's duly adopted Roadway Design 
and Construction Standards, or other duly adopted standards as approved by the City. 

Site S-specific development Development plan Plan means the final platFinal Plat which, when 
designated by the Council pursuant to Article XI of this Chapter, establishes a vested property 
right. 

Sketch plan means a map of a proposed subdivision and specified supporting materials drawn 
and submitted in accordance with the requirements of this Chapter to evaluate feasibility and 
design characteristics at a conceptual state in the planning. 

Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual means the City's duly adopted Storm 
Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, or other duly adopted standards as approved by 
the City. 

Street means a way for vehicular traffic, including but not limited to streets, highways, 
thoroughfares, parkways, roads, avenues, boulevards and lanes designed and planned in 
accordance with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

Subdivider (or developer) means any person, firm, partnership, joint venture, association or 
corporation participating as owner, promoter, developer or sales agent in the planning, platting, 
development, promotion, sale or lease of a subdivision. 

Subdivision (or subdivided land) means any parcel of land which is to be used for single-family 
dwellings, condominiums, apartments or any other multifamily dwelling units or other land uses, 
unless such land when previously subdivided was accompanied by a filing which complied with 
the provisions of this definition with substantially the same density, or which is divided into two 
(2) or more parcels, separate interests or interests in common, unless exempted under Paragraphs 
(1), (2) or (3)a., b. or c. of this definition.  Interests include any and all interests in the surface of 
land, but excludes any and all subsurface interests. 

a. The terms subdivision and subdivided land shall not apply to any division of land which 
creates parcels of land each of which comprises thirty-five (35) or more acres of land and none 
of which is intended for use by multiple owners. 

b. Unless the method of disposition is adopted for the purpose of evading, the terms 
subdivision and subdivided land, as defined, shall not apply to any division of land which: 

1. Creates parcels of land such that the land area of each of the parcels, when divided by 
the number of interests in any such parcel, results in thirty-five (35) or more acres per 
interest; 

2. Could be created by any court in this State pursuant to the law of eminent domain, by 
operation of law or by order of any court in this State if the Council is given timely notice 
of any such pending action by the court and given opportunity to join as a party in interest 
in such proceeding for the purpose of raising the issue of evasion of this definition prior to 
entry of the court order and, if the Council does not file an appropriate pleading within 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 111 of 241



twenty (20) days after receipt of such notice by the court, then such action may proceed 
before the court; 

3. Is created by a lien, mortgage, deed of trust or any other security instrument; 

4. Is created by a security or unit of interest in any investment trust regulated under the 
state law or any other interest in an investment entity; 

5. Creates cemetery lots; 

6. Creates an interest in oil, gas, minerals or water which is severed from the surface 
ownership of real property; 

7. Is created by the acquisition of an interest in land in the name of a husband and wife 
or other persons in joint tenancy or as tenants in common, and any such interest shall be 
deemed for the purpose of this definition as only one (1) interest; 

8. Is created by the combination of contiguous parcels of land into one (1) larger parcel.  
If the resulting parcel is less than thirty-five (35) acres in land area, only one (1) interest in 
said land shall be allowed.  If the resulting parcel is greater than thirty-five (35) acres in 
land area, such land area divided by the number of interests in the resulting parcel must 
result in thirty-five (35) or more acres per interest.  Easements and rights-of-way shall not 
be considered interests for purposes of this Subparagraph; or 

9. Is created by a contract concerning the sale of land which is contingent upon the 
purchaser's obtaining approval to subdivide, pursuant to this Chapter and any applicable 
regulations, the land which is to be acquired pursuant to the contract. 

c. The Council may, by resolution, exempt from the definition of the terms subdivision and 
subdivided land any division of land, if the Council determines that such division is not within 
the purposes of this definition. 

Subdivision improvements agreementSubdivision Improvements Agreement (or subdivision 
agreement) means one (1) or more security arrangements which the City shall accept to secure the 
actual cost of construction of such public improvements as are required by this Chapter or other 
applicable regulations within the subdivision.  The subdivision improvements 
agreementSubdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) may include any one (1) or a combination 
of the types of security or collateral listed in this Subsection, and the subdivider may substitute 
security in order to release portions of the subdivision for sale. 

Super block means the subdivision of land into large blocks that are to be replatted, at a later 
date, into custom lots. 

Surveyor means a professional land surveyor currently registered by the State. 

Vested property right means the right to undertake and complete the development and use of 
property under the terms and conditions of a site-specific development plan, as authorized under 
Part 1, Article 68 of Title 24, C.R.S. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 112 of 241



Zoning Code means the City's duly adopted zoning code, codified as Chapter 16 of this Code.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-100.    SSeverability. 

The provisions of this Chapter shall be severable in accordance with the following provisions: 

(1) If any provision of this Chapter is declared to be invalid by a decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, the effect of such decision shall be limited to that specific provision held to 
be invalid as expressly stated in such judgment.  Such decision shall not affect, impair or nullify 
this Chapter as a whole or any other part thereof, but the rest of this Chapter shall continue in full 
force and effect. 

(2) If the application of any provision of this Chapter to any tract of land is declared to be 
invalid by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is hereby declared to be the 
legislative intent that the effect of such decision shall be limited to that specific tract of land 
immediately involved in the controversy, action or proceeding in which judgment or decree of 
invalidity was rendered.  Such decision shall not affect, impair or nullify this Chapter as a whole, 
or the application of any provision thereof, to any other tract of land.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-110.    Enforcement. 

This Chapter shall be enforced by the Director or another representative duly authorizeddesignated 
by the Director or Council. 

(1) For the purposes of enforcing this Chapter, the Director is authorized to enter and inspect 
any property building, structure or tract of land under development in the incorporated areas of the 
City. 

(2) When the Director has knowledge of any violation of this Chapter on a particular property, 
the Director shall issue a written notice requiring the correction of such violation within thirty (30) 
days, or such shorter or greater period of time as shall be permitted by the Director. 

(3) If the alleged violation has not been corrected within thirty (30) days or the applicable 
time period specified in the notice, a copy of the file shall be forwarded to the City Attorney for 
further legal action.  The Director shall be advised of any actions taken. 

(4) The Director may enforce this Chapter by withholding the issuance of building permits. 

(5) Any owner or agent of the owner of any land located within a subdivision, who transfers 
or sells, agrees to sell or negotiates to sell any land by reference to, exhibition of or use of a plat of 
a subdivision before such plat has been approved by the Council and recorded or filed in the 
County Clerk and Recorder's office shall pay a penalty of five hundred dollars ($500.00) to the 
City for each lot or parcel so transferred or sold. , or agreed or negotiated to be sold, unless 
provided otherwise by Section 31-23-216, C.R.S.  In the latter case, the provisions of Section 32-
23-216, C.R.S., shall control. 

a. The description of such lot or parcel by metes and bounds in the transfer document used 
in the sale or transfer shall not exempt the transactions from such penalties or from the 
remedies provided in this Chapter. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 113 of 241



b. The City may enjoin such transfer or sale or agreement by action for injunction brought 
in any court of competent jurisdiction and may recover the penalty by civil action in any court 
of competent jurisdiction. 

(6) Any official or employee, charged with the enforcement of this Chapter, acting in good 
faith and without malice on behalf of the City in the discharge of this person's official duties, shall 
not thereby be rendered personally liable for any damages which may accrue to persons or 
property resulting from any such act or omission committed in the discharge of such duties. 

(7) This Chapter shall not be construed to hold the City in any manner responsible for any 
injury to persons or property resulting from any inspection as herein authorized or resulting from 
any failure to so inspect, or resulting from the issuance or denial of a building permit as herein 
provided, or resulting from the institution of court action as herein set forth or the forbearance by 
the City to proceed.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-120.    Amendments. 

These regulations may be amended in the following manner: 

(1) Amendment proposals may be initiated by the Council, the Planning Commission or the 
Director.  Any resident or property owner may submit a written request to the Planning 
CommissionCity Council to amend this Chapter. 

(2) The Director Community Development Department shall review all amendment proposals, 
make recommendations and schedule public hearings before the Planning Commission and 
Council.  Public notice is required as follows:  At least fourteen (14) days prior to the public 
hearing before the Planning Commission and fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing before 
the Council, a notice shall be published in the official publication.  The notice shall read as 
follows: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

A public hearing will be held before the Planning Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time), and before the 
Council on (day of week), (date), at (time

(3) At a public hearing, the Planning Commission shall consider the proposed amendment and 
make a recommendation to the Council. 

) in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone 
Tree, CO 80124, for a proposed amendment to the City's Subdivision code.  For more information contact the 
Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(4) Upon consideration of all written and oral testimony, the Council may revise or alter the 
proposal before adopting any amendment to this Chapter.  Amendments shall be approved by 
ordinance and shall take effect on the date as provided therein.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-130.    CControl over platting. 

(a) No sketch plan, preliminary planPreliminary Plan, final platFinal Plat, Condominium Plat, or 
minor developmentplat amendments shall be recommended for approval by the Planning Commission 
or approved by the Council, City Manager, or Director as applicable, unless it conforms to the 
provisions of this Chapter. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 114 of 241



(b) The Public Works Director shall withhold all public street improvements and public 
maintenance from all rights-of-way which have not been accepted for maintenance purposes by the 
Council. 

(c) Prior to the issuance of a building permit or construction of any building or structure within a 
subdivision, the plat thereof shall be approved by the Council and recorded with the County Clerk and 
Recorder, and access shall be provided in accordance with the subdivision improvements 
agreementSubdivision Improvements Agreement and the Fire Code adopted by the City. 

(d) The Council may suspend or withdraw any approval of a plan or plat or may require certain 
corrective measures be taken following a determination that the information provided by the 
subdivider upon which such approval was based is substantially false or inaccurate or that new 
significant information has been brought to its attention.  Suspension of approval may occur at any 
stage in the platting process and shall be implemented by resolution of the Council adopted at a public 
meeting. 

(1) A written notice from the Director shall be served upon the subdivider, setting out a clear 
and concise statement of alleged facts and directing the subdivider to appear before the Council 
not less than ten (10) days or more than thirty (30) days after the date of notification. 

(2) The Council shall determine at the public meeting the nature and extent of alleged false or 
inaccurate information, shall consider any new significant information that has been brought to its 
attention and shall have the power, upon good cause being shown, to suspend or withdraw any 
approval of the plat.  If the plat was previously recorded, due notice that the plat has been 
withdrawn and the plat voided shall be recorded in the County Clerk and Recorder's office. 

(e) No changes, erasures, modifications or revisions shall be made on the final platFinal Plat 
after the approval by the Council, except as required by the approval of the Council.  The Director 
may approve the correction of minor or typographical errors. 

(f) No plat for subdivided land shall be approved by the Council unless all ad valorem taxes 
applicable to such subdivided land, for years prior to that year in which approval is granted, have 
been paid. 

(g) It is unlawful to file for recording any such plan or plat as identified above in any public 
office unless it has been reviewed by the Planning Commission as applicable and bears, by 
endorsement or otherwise, the approval of the Council or City Manager.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-140.    Review fees. 

(a) The Council shall establish and adopt by resolution a schedule of fees, to be paid by all 
applicants (with the exception of City departments or agencies) to cover anticipated expenses incurred 
by the City in the review and hearing of the proposed application or request for approval of a 
subdivision, amendment, replat, exemption or other process provided for herein. 

 (b) All fees are nonrefundable, except that if the applicant withdraws the application prior to the 
mailing of copies of the application to referral agencies by the Department, the Director shall be 
authorized to refund up to one-third (⅓) of the application fees.  Any request for withdrawal must be 
made in writing by the applicant. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 115 of 241



(b) The Council may consider a waiver of the fees on a case-by-case basis, upon written request 
of the applicant, submitted to the Department the Community Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-150.    Impact fees. 

The Council may adopt impact fees as authorized by law.  An applicant for a building permit for 
the construction of any residential unit or nonresidential building within an area subject to impact fees 
shall pay the applicable impact fee to the City prior to the issuance of a building permit for said 
residential unit or nonresidential building.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-160.    Waivers. 

(a) Waivers from the requirements of this Chapter may be approved, provided that the Council 
finds that the waiver does not have the effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of this Chapter. 

(b) Such waiver shall be approved only with findings, based upon the evidence presented in each 
specific case, that: 

(1) The granting of the waiver will not be detrimental to the public safety, health or welfare or 
injurious to other property; 

(2) The conditions upon which the request for a waiver is based are unique to the property for 
which the waiver is sought and are not applicable to other property; 

(3) A particular non-economic hardship to the owner would result from a strict application of 
this Chapter; 

(4) The waiver will not in any manner vary the provisions of Chapter 16 of this Code or the 
Building Code; 

(5) The proposed development will be in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan; and 

(6) The provisions of this Chapter will be served. 

(c) The Council may impose conditions of approval that in its judgment substantially secure the 
objectives of this Chapter.  The conditions shall be stated in the Council minutes with the justification 
set forth. 

(d) A written waiver request shall be submitted no later than at the time of the preliminary 
planPreliminary Plan application or Final Plat if single-family attached, multi-family or 
nonresidential development.   

If the waiver request substantially alters the design, location, anticipated construction, phasing, 
impacts on adjacent properties or roads, impacts on designated protected areas, or other special 
circumstances that were reviewed during the sketch plan review, the sketch plan must be amended to 
include the waiver request conditions and shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission. 

(e) The written request for a waiver shall state in detail the extent of the waiver, the grounds for 
the requested waiver and all of the facts relied upon by the applicant. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 116 of 241



(f) The Planning Commission, as part of the hearing on a specific application before them, will 
hear the request for a waiver from the standards and make recommendations to the Council. 

(g) The Council, as part of the hearing meeting on a specific application, will hear the request for 
a waiver from the standards and decide to accept or reject the request, or make modifications in the 
request.  Approval may be granted only if the Council finds that the request is in conformance with 
Subsection (b) above.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-170.    Powers of Planning Commission. 

The Planning Commission shall have the powers specifically granted in this Chapter, including 
but not limited to the following: 

(1) Review applications and proposals for compliance with this Chapter, Chapter 16 and the 
Comprehensive Plan, and make recommendations to the Council. 

(2) Review requests for waivers from this Chapter when part of an application before them. 

(3) Initiate, review or recommend amendments to this Chapter to the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-180.    Powers of City Council. 

The Council shall have the powers provided in this Chapter and any other specific or implied 
powers granted by state law or other applicable law, including but not limited to the following: 

(1) Review applications and proposals for compliance with this Chapter and conformance 
with the Comprehensive Plan, and approve, conditionally approve or deny them. 

(2) Rescind, nullify or terminate, as applicable, plats, subdivision agreements or other official 
documents or agreements if it is found that there has been a misrepresentation of fact which 
impacts the design or legal or physical status of the subdivision. 

(3) Grant requests for waivers from this Chapter. 

(4) Modify and amend this Chapter in accordance with Section 17-1-120 of this Article.  (Ord. 
08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-185.   Powers of the City Manager 

     The City Manager shall have the powers provided in this Chapter, including but not limited to the 
following: 

(1) Review and act on Final Plat applications for single-family detached development and 
Replats where three (3) or fewer lots are created. 

Sec. 17-1-190. Standards for approval. 

The following criteria shall be considered by the Planning Commission and Council in the review 
of all sketch plan, preliminary plan, final plat and minor development applications: 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 117 of 241



(1) Whether the application is in compliance with the requirements of this Chapter, Chapter 
16 and the Comprehensive Plan. 

(2) Whether the application is in compliance with all applicable statutory provisions and 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1-200190.    Major activity notice. 

When a subdivision or commercial or industrial activity is proposed that is adjacent to a county 
boundary, the City shall send a referral notice of the proposal to the county prior to approval of any 
zoning change or subdivision application.  The City shall not be required to provide any additional 
major activity notice pursuant to Title 31, Article 23, Part 2, C.R.S., other than that provided for in 
this Section.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE II 

General Standards, Procedures and Requirements 

Sec. 17-2-10.    Intent. 

The following provisions apply to all subdivisions of land in the City, to assure the creation of lots 
which can be developed in conformance with this Chapter, Chapter 16, the Building Code, Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards, Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, Design 
Guidelines and other applicable City regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-20.    Description of the subdivision process. 

  (a)  Single-family detached development.  The steps required to obtain approval of a 
subdivision for single-family detached development areinclude Preliminary Plan and Final Plat. 
Each is a distinct process involving the submittal of an application, an application fee, required 
plans and reports, and referrals of the proposal to other agencies and public 
hearings/meetingsentities.  At each step of the process, the level of design and engineering 
increases in order to relieve the applicant from major and potentially unnecessary expenses in 
situations that may require a redesign and, therefore, a revision of expensive engineering or 
planning reports.  Approval at any step in the processof the Preliminary Plan does not ensure 
approval at the next stepof the Final Plat.  The processes include: 

 (1) Sketch plan:  the review of the feasibility of the project, including conceptual design, legal 
ability to obtain water and sanitation, location of geologic hazards, identification of 
environmentally sensitive areas and wildlife habitat areas, source of required services, vehicular 
and pedestrian circulation, relationship to surrounding land use, and conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan; 

(1) Preliminary planPreliminary Plan:  the review of the feasibility of the project, including 
technical engineering, preliminary design and relationship to surrounding land uses; location and 
mitigation of geologic and other natural hazards; identification of visual and environmentally 
sensitive areas and critical wildlife habitat areas; identification of historic and archeologically 
sensitive sites; ability to obtain water and sanitation and other required services; adequacy of 
vehicular and pedestrian circulation; and conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code 
and applicable Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. The sketch planPreliminary Plan shall be 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 118 of 241



reviewed by the Planning Commission and reviewed and approved by the Council at a public 
hearing meeting prior to submittal of the preliminary planFinal Plat for single-family detached 
development.    a review of an increase in the level of technical engineering; and 

(2) Final platFinal Plat: a the review of all final engineering plans, subdivision improvement 
agreements and other legal requirements with final approval by the City Manager. 

(b)    The preliminary plan and final plat processes may be combined upon the approval of the 
Director based upon, but not limited to, the following factors:  design, size, public concern, public 
facilities, services, access and transportation network. 

(b)   Single-family attached, multi-family.  The steps required to obtain approval of a subdivision 
for single-family attached, multi-family development includes Final Plat. Minor development plat.  A 
minor development plat process may be used for single-family residential when four (4) or fewer lots 
are being created, or for nonresidential and multifamily subdivisions.  A minor development plat In 
this case the Final Plat shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission and reviewed and approved by 
the City Council.  It is an abbreviated process as it does not require sketch or preliminary 
planPreliminary Plan review and approval.  However, more information on the project is generally 
forthcoming, as these applications often accompany the Site Improvement Plan for the site. 

 (c) Condominium plat.  The condominium plat process can be used to subdivide individual units 
within a building or buildings and related common elements.  The condominium plat and minor 
development plat process for multifamily subdivisions may be combined upon approval of the 
Director based upon, but not limited to, the following factors:  design, size, public concern, public 
facilities, services, access and transportation network. 

  (c)  Nonresidential.  The steps required to obtain approval of a subdivision for nonresidential 
development includes Final Plat. Minor development plat.  A minor development plat process may be 
used for single-family residential when four (4) or fewer lots are being created, or for nonresidential 
and multifamily subdivisions.  A minor development plat In this case the Final Plat shall be reviewed 
by the Planning Commission and reviewed and approved by the City Council.  It is an abbreviated 
process as it does not require sketch or preliminary planPreliminary Plan review and approval. 
However, more information on the project is generally forthcoming, as these applications often 
accompany the Site Improvement Plan for the site. 

 

Review Process Preliminary Plan Final Plat 

Single-family Detached 
Development 

Reviewed by Planning 
Commission and approved by 
City Council 

Approved by City Manager 

Single-family Attached and 
Multi-family Development 

 
N/A 

Reviewed by Planning 
Commission and approved by 
City Council 

Nonresidential Development N/A Reviewed by Planning 
Commission and approved by 
City Council 

 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 119 of 241



(d) If any proposed plan or plat is denied by the Council or City Manager, a new subdivision 
application for the same or substantially the same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be 
accepted within one (1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of the Director, in 
writing, to the Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-30.     Applicant's responsibility. 

The applicant or representative shall be responsible for understanding the requirements and 
procedures contained in this Chapter and all applicable regulations and shall be responsible for 
attending all Planning Commission and Council hearings/meetings at which the application is 
considered.  Failure to attend the hearings/meetings may result in the request being tabled and a new 
hearing/meeting date scheduled.  The applicant is responsible for submitting the information 
requested by the Department the Community Development Department for the review of the 
proposal., and for mailing, posting and publishing all public notices as required.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-40.    Subdivision improvements. 

In each subdivision, the Council City shall determine the type, location and extent of necessary 
public improvements, depending upon the characteristics of the proposed development and its 
relationship to surrounding areas.  The developer shall provide for the construction, at no cost to the 
City, all utilities and other public infrastructure, as required by the City and provide the necessary 
security needed to ensure such improvements are made as determined by the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 
3) Improvements shall be made by the applicant at the applicant's expense according to plans and 
specifications prepared by a qualified professional engineer in accordance with the Roadway Design 
and Construction Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, 
Erosion and Sediment Control manual, the Building Code and other applicable regulations.  
Underground placement of utility lines shall be required in all subdivisions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-50. Site characteristics. 

(a) As deemed appropriate by Council, subdivisions shall provide for the preservation of 
significant stands of vegetation; unique or distinctive topographic features, including buttes and 
rock outcroppings; drainage; riparian and wetland areas; significant wildlife habitats, 
including breeding grounds, nesting areas, migration routes and wintering areas; scenic views; 
identified aquifer recharge areas; and important historical or archaeological sites. 

(b) Land shall be subdivided in such a manner that it can be used safely for the intended 
purpose without danger to the public health, safety or welfare or peril from fire, flood, geologic 
hazards or other natural hazards. 

(c) Subdivisions shall be designed to provide for lots that are of an appropriate size and 
configuration for the site characteristics and intended uses; connections between 
neighborhoods, shopping and recreation areas that are safe and convenient; adequate buffering 
from the adverse impacts of adjoining uses through lot orientation, setbacks, landscaping or 
other appropriate methods; conservation of water, land and energy resources; minimization of 
grading, road cuts and fills and a road system designed to preserve the integrity and function of 
the arterial and local roadway network.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-6050.     Streets. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 120 of 241



All streets and road rights-of-way shall be constructed in conformance with the roadway standards 
specified in the Roadway Design and Construction Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and 
Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control manual and other applicable 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-7060.     Erosion and sediment control plan. 

An erosion and sediment control plan shall be submitted which addresses the existing and 
potential erosion and sediment problems created by the proposed development.  Conservation 
measures used to mitigate these concerns shall be in accordance with Chapter 16 of this Code, the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria 
manual and the Grading, Erosion and Sediment Control manual.  If applicable, the Soil Conservation 
District shall be consulted regarding erosion and sediment control.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-8070.   Drainage study. 

Drainage studies shall be submitted as part of the subdivision submittal requirements in 
conformance with the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual.  The Urban Drainage 
and Flood Control District shall be consulted regarding drainage and flood hazard concerns when the 
proposed development lies within its jurisdiction.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-9080.     Other public improvements. 

Other reasonable improvements, not specifically mentioned herein and found appropriate and 
necessary by the City, shall be constructed at the applicant's expense within such time and in 
conformance with such specifications as deemed necessary and appropriate.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-10090.     Guarantee of public improvements. 

(a) No final platFinal Plat shall be approved recorded,  until the applicant has submitted, and the 
Public Works Department has reviewed and accepted, one (1) or a combination of the following: 

(1) A subdivision improvements agreementSubdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) to 
construct any required public improvements shown in the final platFinal Plat documents.  , 
together with security in the form of a cashier's check or letter of credit in favor of the City (the 
"security") in an amount that is sufficient, in the judgment of the Public Works Department to 
make reasonable provision for the completion of said improvements in accordance with design 
and time specifications. 

 

(2) (2) Other agreements or contracts setting forth the plan, method and parties responsible 
for the construction of any required public improvements shown in the final platFinal Plat 
documents which, in the judgment of the Public Works Department, will make reasonable 
provision for completion of said improvements in accordance with design and time 
specifications. 

(3) Documentation that there are no required public improvements associated with the Final 
Plat. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 121 of 241



(b) When required, the applicant shall provide security, in a form acceptable to the City, for the 
public improvements as follows: 

      (1) The applicant shall provide the City with an itemized estimate of the cost of required 
improvements on a standardized form available from the Engineering Public Works Division 
Department in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and Construction Standards 
and the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria Standards.  Upon review, the Public Works 
shall require one of the following: 

 a..  Security of one hundred fifteen percent (115%) of the total cost of the required public 
improvements shall be provided paid by the applicant if any lots or parcels of the subdivision are to 
be sold or transferred, or issuance of building permits, prior to completion and probationary 
acceptance of all required public improvements.  . 

 b.  Security of fifteen percent (15%) of the total cost of required public improvements shall be 
paid by the applicant prior to the sale or transfer of lots, or issuance of building permits, when the 
required public improvements have been completed and been granted probationary acceptance by 
Public Works.   

        c.  No security (0%) is required toward the total cost of required public improvements that 
have been completed and have been granted final acceptance by Public Works (at the end of the two 
(2) year probationary acceptance period). 

(cc) The City Engineer shall review the SIA and the cost estimates and recommend changes as 
necessary to complete the required improvements. 

(d) The City Attorney shall review any modifications made by the applicant to the SIA and notify 
the applicant of any deficiencies or required changes.  The SIA shall be in the form provided by the 
City Attorney and approved by the Council the City Manager. 

 (e) The City Engineer shall monitor the SIA and any performance agreements.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 
3)  

(f) At the discretion of the City Manager, the City may waive the requirement for security by 
federal, state or local governments, including metropolitan districts, special districts and the like.   

Sec. 17-2-110100.     Release of security. 

As improvements are completed, the subdivider may apply to the Public Works Department for a 
release of part or all of the security.  Upon inspection by the City Engineer, and upon their approval, 
the City shall release the security or portion thereof.  If the City determines that any improvements 
are not constructed in substantial compliance with the specifications, it shall furnish the applicant a 
list of specific deficiencies and shall withhold retain security sufficient to ensure such compliance.  If 
the City determines that the applicant has not constructed any or all of the improvements in 
accordance with all of the specifications, the City may withdraw and employ from the deposit of 
security such funds as may be necessary to construct the improvement in accordance with the 
specifications. If the submitted security is not sufficient to cover the improvements, the applicant is 
responsible for the additional costs.  Security to cover the cost of repair of such improvements is 
required during the warranty period in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and 
Construction StandardsSubdivision Improvements Agreement.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 122 of 241



Sec. 17-2-120110.    AAdditional review fees. 

The applicant shall be responsible for payment of reasonable review fees established by a referral 
agency (i.e., the U.S. Geological Survey) or other consultants.  When an outside consultant is needed, 
or in order to expedite the process, the City shall notify the applicant.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-130120.    Withdrawal of application. 

The applicant may withdraw an application at any stage of the process upon submittal of a 
notarized, written request to the Director.  Application fees may be refunded only as provided in 
Section 17-1-140 of this Article.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-2-140130.    Inactive applications. 

An application shall be deemed withdrawn and terminated if the applicant fails to submit 
requested information or to request a public meeting or hearing date, as applicable, for a period of 
more than six (6) months, and the resubmittal of a new application and fees shall be required to 
pursue the subdivision application.  The Director may grant not more than two (2) extensions of time 
to complete needed actions, of not more than six (6) monthsone hundred eighty (180) days each, upon 
a written request by the applicant.  After five (5) monthsone hundred fifty (150) days, the Director 
may notify the applicant in writing that the application will be deemed withdrawn and terminated 
within thirty (30) days.  After thirty (30) days, provided that the applicant has not submitted the 
required additional information or requested a hearing date, the Director shall notify the applicant in 
writing that the application has been terminated.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE III 

Sketch PlanPreliminary Plan SFD (for Single-Family Detached) Development 

Sec. 17-3-10.    Intent. 

The purpose of a  planPreliminary Plan is to examine the feasibility of a single-family detached 
project, in keeping with the Preliminary Plan Approval Standards in Sec. 17-3-20 including review of 
conceptual design, legal ability to obtain water and sanitation, location of geologic hazards, 
identification of environmentally sensitive areas and wildlife habitat areas, and conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  A sketch plan shall not create parcels that do not meet City standards.  (Ord. 
08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-20. Prerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of the sketch plan application, the applicant shall meet with City staff to discuss the 
procedures and submittal requirements, and is encouraged to meet with the City Engineer and other 
referral agencies and homeowners' associations to identify potential issues and ways to address these 
issues.  The presubmittal conference may be waived by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3)Sec. 17-3-
20.   Approval standards. 

A preliminary planPreliminary Plan may be approved upon the finding by Council that: 

(1) The application is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and where 
applicable, Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 123 of 241



 (2)  The application is in compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Code and achieves its 
purpose as set forth in Sec. 17-1-20. 

 (3)  The application is in conformance with the City’s Roadway Design and Construction Standards, 
the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion and Sediment 
Control manual, and other applicable regulations as determined by the City.   

Sec. 17-3-30.    Prerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of the Preliminary Plan application, the applicant shall meet with City staff to 
discuss the procedures and submittal requirements, and is encouraged to meet with other referral 
agencies and homeowners' associations to identify potential issues and ways to address these issues.  
The presubmittal conference may be waived by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

  

Sec. 17-3-40.    Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) copy of the complete submittal to the Departmentthe 
Community Development Department. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within fifteen (15) ten (10) working 
business days.  The applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal 
shallincomplete submittal will not be processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Directorthe Community Development 
Department will notify the applicant of the number of copies of the sketch planPreliminary Plan 
required to be submitted for distribution to referral agencies. .  Referral packets shall be provided by 
the applicant in unsealed envelopes, addressed to the appropriate referral agency, with appropriate 
postage affixed, and with aAll submittal information shall be properly folded and compiled.  The 
applicant shall also submit an electronic file of the Preliminary Plan and supplemental materials as 
required for distributing the application electronically.  The  DirectorCommunity Development 
Department shall mail distribute the referral packets.  The applicant shall distribute any revised plans, 
as required by the DirectorCommunity Development Department. 

(d) The applicant shall provide a vicinity map of the property and a list of the adjacent property 
owners and a list of mineral rights owners and other landowners as required by Community 
Development, and provide unsealed, stamped envelopes addressed to the adjacent landowners and 
other landowners as required by the Directorsuch parties.   , for notification of the sketch plan 
applicationThe applicant shall include copies of the Preliminary Plan and narrative in the envelopes..  
The Community Development Department shall include a copy of the application, notification of the 
anticipated meeting dates, and mail the envelopes. 

 (e) The referral agencies shall comment within twenty-one (21) days The referral period shall be 
twenty-one (21) to thirty-five (35) days, as determined by the Community Development Department, 
based upon conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code, the size and magnitude of 
the project or other concerns.   of receiving a complete submittal.  The applicant is encouraged to 
meet with the DirectorCommunity Development Department, referral agencies and other interested 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 124 of 241



parties to address the referral concerns, prior to the end of the referral period.  The applicant is 
required to pay those fees assessed by referral agencies.  

(f) The DirectorThe Community Development Department will review the referral comments, 
discuss the concerns with the applicant, prepare a staff report for the Planning Commission and notify 
the applicant of the hearing meeting date and time. 

 (g) The applicant is responsible for posting a notice on the property and publishing a notice in the 
newspaper, prior to the Planning Commission hearing, in compliance with the public notice 
requirements in Section 17-3-70 below, and for notifying mineral estate owners (see Subsection 17-3-
70(c) for notice instructions). 

(g) The Planning Commission shall evaluate the application, referral comments, staff report and 
public testimony, and make a recommendation to the Council to approve, approve with conditions, 
table for further study or deny the sketch planPreliminary Plan.  The Planning Commission's decision 
shall be based on the evidence presented and compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, 
policies and other guidelines. 

(h) Following the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the  DirectorCommunity 
Development Department will schedule the sketch planPreliminary Plan for a public hearing meeting 
with the Council and notify the applicant of the hearing meeting date and time. 

 (j) The applicant shall be responsible for posting a notice on the property and publishing a notice 
in the newspaper, prior to the Council hearing, in compliance with the public notice requirements in 
Section 17-3-70 below. 

(i) The Council shall evaluate the sketch planPreliminary Plan, referral agency comments, staff 
report, the Planning Commission recommendation and public testimony, and shall approve, 
conditionally approve, table for further study, remand to the Planning Commission or deny the sketch 
planPreliminary Plan.  The Council's decision shall be based on the evidence presented and a finding 
of compliance or non-compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, policies and other 
guidelines. 

(j) If denied by the Council, the submittal of a new application and processing fee shall be 
required in order to pursue the proposed subdivision.  A resubmittal of the sketch planPreliminary 
Plan for the same or substantially same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be accepted 
within one (1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of by the Director, in 
writing, to the Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-50.    General submittal requirements. 

General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) Completed development application (form available from the Community Development 
Department); 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of application; 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 125 of 241



(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 
process the application, when applicable (form available from the Community Development 
Department); 

(5) One (1) paper copy of the PlanPreliminary Plan exhibit (per Section 17-3-60 below); and 

(6)   A narrative describing the subdivision proposal including: 

   a.  The number of lots proposed, development type, and development timing. 

   b.   A description of site features and visually important areas as depicted on the planon or 
adjacent to the site that may affect the evaluation of the proposed development. 

   c.  A description on the effect of the proposal on significant cultural, archaeological and 
historical resources and plans for protection of such resources.  

   d.   A description of the impact on important wildlife habitat areas, including breeding 
grounds, nesting areas, crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc.  

(7) Development reports (per Section 17-3-70 below).; 

a. Phase I drainage plans shall be submitted to the Department.  The Director will forward 
the plans to the City Engineer.  (Plan revisions shall be submitted directly to the City 
Engineer.) 

b. Phase II and Phase III drainage plans and final roadway design and construction plans 
shall not be submitted prior to sketch plan approval.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-60.    Sketch planPreliminary Plan exhibit. 

(a) The plan exhibit shall be prepared on 24" x 36" paper at a scale of 1” = 50’, 1" = 100', 1" = 
200' or another scale approved by the Directorthe Community Development Department.  If a 
proposal requires multiple sheets to show all of the lots or the information that follows, a composite, 
on 24" x 36" paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  
The scale may be different than on the individual sheets as approved by the Directorthe Community 
Development Department. 

(b) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision or planned development (and plan number when 
applicable) and Department filingfile number (if applicable).  If part of a Planned Development, the 
planning area shall be included under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion 
of the section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., and the “City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, 
State of Colorado” shall be included under the name and planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), 
under the general legal description, the total acreage and the estimated total number of lots shall be 
included, and below that t. he Department project number.  The name of the builder, product line or 
marketing name may only be used as a descriptor along the bottom or right side of the sheet.  
Subdivision names may not duplicate existing subdivision or Planned Development names. 

Example: 
UHLMAN SKETCH PLAN 10RIDGEGATE  SECTION 15,  FILING 10 SB___-___ 

A portion of Planning Area H of the RidgeGate Planned Development 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 126 of 241



A part of the W/2 of Section 915, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M.,  City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of ColoradoCO 

78.05 06 Acres, 235 Residential Lots 
SB __-__ 

(c) A block in the lower right-hand corner of all sheets shall include the following:  the 
preparation date and the dates of all revisions; a north arrow designating true north; a written and 
graphic scale; the names and addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who 
prepared the exhibit; the number of the sheet; and the total number of sheets.  The names and 
addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit shall be included 
on the first sheet. 

 (d) The boundary of the proposed subdivision shall be depicted in a heavy solid line.  Note those 
areas not included in the subdivision as "Not included in this plat." 

(e) The plan shall include a vicinity map that depicts the area to be subdivided and the area 
which surrounds the proposed subdivision within a twoone-mile radius superimposed on the City 
Subdivision Mapa current street map.  maintaining the same scale. 

 (f) When the land is zoned Planned Development, the plan shall include a vicinity map that 
depicts the area to be subdivided superimposed on the development plan at a scale of 1" = 2,000' that 
shows adjacent filings of the same or adjacent subdivisions. 

(f) The plan shall depict all lots, tracts and, when appropriate, building envelopes.  Lots shall be 
numbered consecutively; tracts shall be lettered alphabetically in consecutive order.  On residential 
subdivisions, tracts shall be used exclusively for nonresidential uses, such as areas to be dedicated to 
the City for park or school sites. 

(g) A separate land summary chart on the cover sheet of the sketch planPreliminary Plan shall be 
provided that includes the total land area to be subdivided; purpose, ownership, and maintenance 
responsibilities for all tracts; land area of roads (acres and percentage of total land); the total number 
of lots (acres and percentage of total land); density; and the minimum, average and maximum lot size. 

(h) The plan shall depict all easements, including existing and proposed, public or private, on and 
adjacent to the proposed subdivision.  For each, specify their use, principal dimensions and the owner 
or right holder of the easement; the recorded book and page number(s) and the name(s) of any entity 
responsible for construction or maintenance. 

(i) The plan shall include existing contours in dashed lines and proposed contours in solid lines 
depicted at one or tentwo-foot intervals except where topographic slopes would create contour lines 
too close for clear presentation, in which case five-foot or ten-foot contours may be used.  Clearly 
label the contour values.  The contours shall extend to a minimum of fifty-feet beyond the property 
lines, or such other greater amount as necessary to show how topography and drainage on the 
proposed site interacts and blends with adjacent parcels.   

(j) The plan shall show the conceptual location of storm sewer, water service and sanitary sewer 
service.  The Director may request that other significant topographic conditions be depicted at greater 
or lesser intervals where appropriate. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 127 of 241



(jk) The plan shall delineate all one-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed 
watercourses, retention and detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams and lakes on the 
affected property and within one hundred (100) feet of such property. 

(kl) The plan shall depict all lands to be dedicated or reserved in deeds or easements for the use of 
landowners, residents or the general public. 

(lm) The plan shall note the land use, zoning and ownership of the adjacent land, including the 
intended future use of the adjacent land, if owned by the applicant.. 

(mn) The plan shall note existing structures on the site, their uses and whether they are to remain 
on the site. 

(no) The plan shall identify any cultural, historical or archaeological sites. 

(op) The plan shall note significant natural or man-made features within and adjacent to the 
proposed subdivision. 

(pq) The plan shall depict all potential hazard areas, including:  geologic hazard areas and 
expansive soils (A-6 and A-7-6 soils as defined in the AASHTO Classification Group Index 
referenced in the Roadway Design and Construction Standards). 

(qr) The plan shall identify areas of fifteen-to-twenty -five-percent slope in one (1) shading 
pattern and areas of greater than twenty -five-percent slope in another shading pattern. 

(rs) The plan shall note important short- and long-range views onto or from the site, including 
scenic mountain views, buttesbluffs, rock outcroppings, drainages, etc. 

(st) The plan shall depict any significant existing stands of vegetation, including but not limited to 
large stands of scrub oak and pine, and shall identify the type of vegetation. 

(tu) The plan shall identify significant wildlife habitat areas, including breeding grounds, nesting 
areas, crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc. 

(uv) The plan shall show the conceptual design of the following items: 

(1) The plan shall depict lLocal, collector and arterial streets, including principal dimensions.  
Roads shall be identified by the classification system defined by the Roadway Design and 
Construction Standards.  The maintenance responsibility, road percent grades, centerline radii and 
other pertinent roadway information, such as distance between intersections, shall be indicated.; 

(w)   The plan shall identify the legal and physical public access to the proposed subdivision, even 
if not part of the subdivision. Legal and physical access shall be provided to all parcels by public 
right-of-way or recorded easement, acceptable to the City Engineer in compliance with the Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards. 

(x)   The plan shall depict () Ppedestrian and open space systems, including connections to 
adjacent development and open space areas; 

. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 128 of 241



(y) The plan shall identify fFocal points, community facilities and other special features; and. 

     (z)   The plan shall note t() The treatment method for minimizingof potentially  conflictsing 
between land uses.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-70.    Development reports.   

The applicant shall submit a report with supporting materials and completely address the items 
listed below as a minimum.  The degree of detail for analysis of some of the following factors will 
depend upon the impact of the particular item on the surrounding area and the subject property. 

 (1) A discussion of site features as depicted on the plan that may affect the evaluation of the 
proposed development. 

(1) Evidence establishing soil suitability in the form of a report based on information from the 
Soil Conservation Service of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) or another 
form acceptable to staff.  The report shall minimally include:  a description of site soil types, 
locations and characteristics with supporting soil maps, soil logs and other information needed to 
determine soil suitability for proposed development; constraints on development based on the 
findings; and analysis and evaluation of such information with recommendations regarding 
structural constraints, erosion control and a determination of the adequacy of the structural 
characteristics of the soil as they relate to the proposed uses and development. 

(2) A report on the geologic characteristics of the site, including any potential natural or man-
made hazards which would may have a significant influence on the proposed uses of the land, a 
determination of what effect such factors would have and proposed corrective or protective 
measures.   

(3)  A Phase II drainage analysis and plan, or an approved Comprehensive Plan of 
Drainage, prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Storm Drainage and Design and 
Technical Criteria manual, including estimates of quantitative flows and rough plans for facilities 
to prevent stormwaters in excess of historic runoff caused by the proposed subdivision from being 
discharged from the site and/or from the stormwater management facilities for the site. entering, 
damaging or being carried by conduits, water supply ditches and appurtenant structures and other 
drainage facilities  Phase III drainage plans and Civil construction plans may be submitted at the 
applicant’s risk prior to Preliminary Plan approval.  The plans shall be submitted to the 
Community Development Department, who will forward the plans to the City Engineer (plan 
revisions shall be submitted directly to the City Engineer).  

. 

(4) Evidence that an adequate water supply , sufficient in terms of quality and quantity, is 
available. as follows:  For a subdivision of land located within a water district, a letter of 
commitment to serve the proposed subdivision, stating the amount of water available for use 
within the subdivision and the feasibility of extending service to that area. 

(5) Evidence of the physical and legal capability to provide sanitationthat adequate sanitary 
sewer service is available. as follows:  For a subdivision of land located within a sanitation 
district, a letter of commitment to serve the proposed subdivision, stating the capacity to serve and 
feasibility of extending service to that area. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 129 of 241



(7) A narrative describing the availability and adequacy of existing infrastructure and other 
necessary services, including but not limited to fire and police protection, schools, recreation, 
utilities and open space. 

(6) A narrative or traffic study describing the proposed transportation network establishing the 
availability and adequacy of the system consistent with the Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards and the Transportation Plan, if applicable.A traffic impact analysis performed by a 
traffic engineer discussing the impact of the proposed development on the local and regional 
traffic and other concerns, as requested by the City, prepared in accordance with the requirements 
of the Roadway Design and Construction Standards.   

(9) A discussion on the effect of the proposal on significant cultural, archaeological and 
historical resources and plans for protection of such resources.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 Sec. 17-3-70. Public notice requirements. 

(a) Published notice. 

(1) At least five (5) days prior to the Planning Commission hearing and five (5) days prior to 
the Council hearing, the applicant shall publish a public notice in the City's official notice 
publication. 

(2) At least three (3) days prior to the hearing, the applicant shall provide a publisher's 
affidavit of said published notice to the Department. 

(3) The notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE (PLANNING COMMISSION  

OR COUNCIL) 

A public hearing will be held on (day of week), (date), at (time

File name and number:  __________________ 

), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree 
Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124, for approval of a sketch plan for property to be subdivided at or near [list 
nearest intersection or township, range and section information].  For more information contact the Community 
Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(4) When concurrent notice has been approved by the Director, the notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE PLANNING COMMISSION  

AND COUNCIL 

A public hearing will be held before the Planning Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time), and before the 
City Council on (day of week), (date), at (time

File name and number:  __________________ 

), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of 
Lone Tree, CO 80124, for approval of a sketch plan for property to be subdivided at or near [list nearest intersection 
or township, range and section information].  For more information contact the Community Development 
Department [303-708-1818]. 

(b) Posted notice. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 130 of 241



(1) At least twelve (12) days prior to the Planning Commission hearing and twelve (12) days 
prior to the Council hearing, the applicant shall post a notice on the land under consideration. 

(2) The notice shall consist of at least one (1) sign facing each adjacent right-of-way, within 
ten (10) feet of the property line adjacent to the right-of-way, visible from the right-of-way, placed 
on posts at least four (4) feet above ground level.  Additional signs may be required by the 
Director.  Each sign shall measure not less than three (3) feet by four (4) feet.  Letter size shall be 
a minimum of three (3) inches high. 

(3) Said notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE (PLANNING COMMISSION  

OR COUNCIL) 

This land shall be considered for approval of a sketch plan, pursuant to the City Subdivision code, on (day of week), 
(date), at (time

File name and number:  __________________ 

) in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124.  For more 
information contact the Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(4) When concurrent notice has been approved by the Director, the notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE PLANNING COMMISSION  

AND COUNCIL 

This land shall be considered for approval of a sketch plan, pursuant to the City Subdivision code, before the 
Planning Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time), and before the Council on (day of week), (date), at (time

File name and number:  __________________ 

), 
in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124.  For more information 
contact the Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(5) An affidavit of sign posting shall be submitted for the file in the Department at least three 
(3) days prior to the hearings.  The sign shall be photographed by the applicant and the photo shall 
be attached to the affidavit as follows: 

(attach photo here) 

I,    (applicant/representative)   , attest that the above sign was posted on (date), at (location

File name and number:  __________________ 

) pursuant to the City of 
Lone Tree Subdivision code. 

          (signature)             

Signed and sworn before me this date:  ___________ 

 
(applicant/representative) 

NOTARIZED BY:  ______________________ 

(6) The sign shall be removed by the applicant within two (2) weeks following the final 
decision by the Council. 

(c) The applicant shall also provide written notification, with respect to the property being 
platted, to all surface owners, mineral owners and lessees of mineral owners, as their names may 
appear upon the plats or records in the County Clerk and Recorder's office and as their most recent 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 131 of 241



addresses may appear in a telephone or other directory of general use in the area of the property or on 
the tax records of the City or County.  Notice to such persons shall include the time and place of the 
public hearing, the nature of the hearing, the location of the property that is the subject of the hearing 
and the name of the applicant, and shall be sent by certified mail not less than thirty (30) days before 
the date scheduled for the hearing.  Not less than three (3) days prior to the hearing, the applicant 
shall certify to the Department that it has complied with the notice requirements of this Subsection. 

(d) When calculating the required time period for posting or publishing a notice of a public 
hearing, the day of publishing or posting will be counted in the total number of days required.  The 
day of the hearing shall not be counted toward the total number of days required for the notification 
period.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-3-80.    Expiration of approval. 

(a) The sketch planPreliminary Plan shall be effective for a period of one (1) year from the date 
of approval, unless stated otherwise in such approval.  The Director may grant a one-year extension 
of time upon a written request by the applicant.  The Director may grant additional one-year 
extensions upon a finding that the plan is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of 
this Code and this Chapter. 

(b) When a part portion of the sketch planPreliminary Plan is preliminary platFinal Platted, 
approval of the remaining area of the sketch planPreliminary Plan shall be effective for an additional 
one-year period or as otherwise extended by the Director or the Council. 

(c) An extension request shall include a fee and a narrative stating the reasons for the applicant's 
inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of the 
neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 or this Chapter that have occurred 
since approval of the plan as these changes affect the plan, and the anticipated time schedule for 
completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the Department.  Additional review 
of the plan may occurbe required, resulting in additional conditions as applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE IV 

ARTICLE IV 

Preliminary Plan 

Sec. 17-4-10. Intent. 

The purpose of the preliminary plan is to allow evaluation of the proposal prior to final 
engineering and design.  The preliminary plan and final plat processes may be combined upon the 
approval of the Director based upon, but not limited to, the following factors:  design, size, public 
concern, public facilities, services, access and transportation network.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 132 of 241



Sec. 17-4-20. Prerequisite. 

(a) The preliminary plan shall be in substantial compliance with the approved sketch plan, as 
determined by the Director.  If it is not, the applicant shall resubmit the sketch plan for review and 
approval by the Planning Commission and the Council. 

(b) The preliminary plan shall be submitted within one (1) year of the approval of the sketch plan 
by the Council or as extended by the Director or the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-30. Approval standards. 

A preliminary plan may be approved upon the finding by the Council that: 

(1) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for a water supply that 
is sufficient in terms of quantity, quality and dependability for the type of subdivision proposed; 

(2) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for a public sewage 
disposal system and, if other methods of sewage disposal are proposed, adequate evidence that 
such system shall comply with state and local laws and regulations; and 

(3) The subdivider has provided evidence to show that all areas of the proposed subdivision, 
which may involve soil or topographical conditions presenting hazards or requiring special 
precautions have been identified by the subdivider and the proposed uses of these areas are 
compatible with such conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-40. Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) copy of the complete submittal to the Department. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within fifteen (15) business days.  The 
applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal or preliminary plan that is 
inconsistent with the approved sketch plan shall not be processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Director will notify the applicant of the 
number of copies of the preliminary plan required for distribution to referral agencies mandated by 
statute and additional referral agencies as deemed necessary by the Director.  Referral packets shall 
be provided by the applicant in unsealed envelopes, addressed to the appropriate referral agency, with 
appropriate postage affixed, and containing all submittal information properly folded and compiled.  
The Director shall mail the referral packets.  The applicant shall distribute any revised plans, as 
required by the Director. 

(d) The applicant shall provide stamped envelopes addressed to the adjacent landowners and 
other landowners, as required by the Director, for notification of the preliminary plan application. 

(e) The referral agencies shall comment within twenty-one (21) to thirty-five (35) days as 
determined by the Director, based upon conformance with the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code, 
the size and magnitude of the project or other concerns.  An extension of no more than thirty (30) 
days may be permitted for public comment if consented to by the applicant.  The applicant is 
encouraged to meet with the referral agencies, the Director and public interest groups to address any 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 133 of 241



concerns prior to the end of the referral period.  The applicant is required to pay those fees assessed 
by referral agencies. 

(f) The Director will review the referral comments, discuss the concerns with the applicant, 
prepare a staff report for the Planning Commission and notify the applicant of the meeting date and 
time. 

(g) The Planning Commission shall evaluate the application, staff report, referral comments, 
public comments and make a recommendation to the Council to approve, approve with conditions, 
table for further study or deny the preliminary plan.  The Planning Commission's decision shall be 
based on the applicable documentation and public comments and compliance with the adopted 
standards, regulations, policies and other guidelines. 

(h) Following the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the Director shall schedule the 
preliminary plan with the Council and notify the applicant of the meeting date and time. 

(i) The Council shall evaluate the preliminary plan, staff report, referral agency comments, 
Planning Commission recommendations and public comments, and shall either approve, conditionally 
approve, table for further study or deny the preliminary plan.  The Council's action shall be based on 
the applicable documents and public comments and compliance with the adopted standards, 
regulations, policies and other guidelines. 

(j) If denied by the Council, the submittal of a new application and processing fee shall be 
required in order to pursue the proposed subdivision.  The resubmittal of a preliminary plan 
application for the same or substantially the same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be 
accepted within one (1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of the Director, in 
writing, to the Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-50. General submittal requirements. 

General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) Completed development application (available from the Department). 

(2) Application fee. 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of application. 

(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application. 

(5) Plan exhibit (per Section 17-4-60 below); and 

(6) Development reports (per Section 17-4-70 below): 

a. Engineering plans shall initially be submitted to the Director.  The Director will forward 
the plans to the City Engineer.  (Plan revisions shall be submitted directly to the City 
Engineer.) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 134 of 241



b. Phase III drainage plans and final roadway design and construction plans shall not be 
submitted prior to preliminary plan approval.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-60. Plan exhibit. 

The preliminary plan shall substantially conform to the approved sketch plan and the Council's 
conditions of approval. 

(1) The plan exhibit shall be prepared on 24" x 36" paper at a scale of 1" = 100', 1" = 200' or 
another scale approved by the Director.  If a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite, on 24" 
x 36" paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number. 

(2) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision or Planned Development, plan number (when 
applicable) and Department file number.  If part of a Planned Development, the planning area 
shall be included under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion of the 
section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., and "City of Lone Tree, CO" shall be included under 
the name and planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), under the general legal description, the 
total acreage and the total number of residential lots shall be included.  The name of the builder, 
product line or marketing name may only be used as a descriptor along the bottom of the sheet.  
Subdivision names may not duplicate existing subdivision or Planned Development names.  For 
example: 

O'Boyle Estates  
PRELIMINARY PLAN NO. 10 SB ___-___ 

A portion of Planning Area H 
A part of the W/2 of Section 9, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M., City of Lone Tree, CO 

78.05 Acres, 235 Residential lots 

(3) A block in the lower right-hand corner shall include the following:  the preparation date; a 
north arrow designated as true north; a written and graphic scale; the names and addresses of the 
applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit; the number of the sheet; and 
the total number of sheets. 

(4) The boundary of the proposed subdivision shall be depicted in a heavy line.  Those areas 
not included in the subdivision shall be denoted as "Not included in this plat." 

(5) A vicinity map shall depict the area to be subdivided and the area which surrounds the 
proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current County or City 
subdivision map, maintaining the same scale. 

(6) When the land is zoned Planned Development, a vicinity map shall depict the area to be 
subdivided, superimposed on the development plan or filing map at a scale of 1" = 2,000'. 

(7) All easements shall be depicted, including existing and proposed, public and private, on 
and adjacent to the proposed subdivision, and the applicant shall identify their use(s), principal 
dimensions, the owners and interest-holders under the easements, the recorded book and page 
number(s) and the name(s) of any entity responsible for construction or maintenance. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 135 of 241



(8) Contour lines shall be depicted at ten-foot intervals.  The Director may request that other 
significant topographic conditions be depicted at greater or lesser intervals where appropriate. 

(9) All one-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, retention and 
detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes, inlets, storm sewers and culverts 
on the affected property and within one hundred (100) feet of such property shall be delineated. 

(10) All lots, blocks, tracts and, when appropriate, building envelopes, shall be depicted, 
providing accurate dimensions for each.  Lots shall be numbered consecutively and tracts shall be 
lettered alphabetically.  The total acreage and range of lot sizes shall be included.  On residential 
subdivisions, tracts shall be used exclusively for nonresidential uses, such as the area to be 
dedicated to the City for park or school sites. 

(11) The applicant shall provide a separate land summary chart on the cover sheet of the 
preliminary plan that includes:  the total land area to be subdivided; purpose and maintenance 
responsibilities for all tracts; land area of roads (acres and percentage of total land); the total 
number of lots (acres and percentage of total land); density; and the minimum, average and 
maximum lot size. 

(12) All lands to be dedicated or reserved in deeds or easements for the use of landowners, 
residents or the general public shall be depicted.  Notes to indicate the disposition and 
maintenance responsibility for all such tracts shall be included. 

(13) The name and principal dimension of all street rights-of-way shall be located and 
provided.  Roads shall be identified by the classification system defined by the Road Design and 
Construction Standards.  The maintenance responsibility, road percent grades, centerline radii and 
other pertinent roadway information, such as distance between intersections, shall be indicated. 

(14) Legal and physical public access to the proposed subdivision shall be depicted, even if 
not part of the subdivision. 

(15) The land use, zoning and ownership of the adjacent land shall be noted, including the 
intended future use of the adjacent land, if owned by the applicant. 

(16) Existing structures on the site, their uses and whether they are to remain on the site shall 
be noted. 

(17) Any historical or archaeological sites shall be identified. 

(18) Significant natural or man-made features within and adjacent to the proposed subdivision 
shall be noted. 

(19) Important views onto or from the site, including scenic mountain views, buttes, rock 
outcroppings, drainages, etc., shall be noted. 

(20) Significant vegetative stands, inclu-ding but not limited to large stands of scrub oak and 
pine, shall be indicated by name and symbol. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 136 of 241



(21) All potential hazard areas shall be depicted, including geologic hazard areas and 
expansive soils (A-6 and A-7-6 soils as defined in the AASHTO Classification Group Index 
referenced in the Roadway Design and Construction Standards). 

(22) Areas of fifteen-to-twenty-five-percent slope shall be identified in one (1) shading 
pattern and areas of greater than twenty-five-percent slope shall be identified in another shading 
pattern. 

(23) Significant wildlife habitat areas, including breeding grounds, nesting areas, crossings, 
wintering areas, migratory routes, etc., shall be identified.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-70. Development reports. 

The applicant shall submit a report with supporting materials which shall include and completely 
address, at a minimum, the items listed below.  The degree of detail for analysis of some of the 
following factors will depend upon the impact of the particular item on the surrounding area and the 
subject property: 

(1) A discussion of site features as depicted on the plan that may affect the evaluation of the 
proposed development. 

(2) Evidence establishing soil suitability in the form of a report prepared by a registered 
professional engineer or professional engineering geologist.  The report shall include:  a 
description of site soil types, locations and characteristics with supporting soil maps, soil logs and 
other information needed to determine soil suitability for proposed development; depth to water 
table and an engineer's recommendation of how to handle the subsurface drainage (i.e., sump 
pumps, trench drains, etc.); constraints on development based on the findings; and analysis and 
evaluation of such information, with recommendations regarding structural constraints, erosion 
control and a determination of the adequacy of the structural characteristics of the soil as they 
relate to the proposed development. 

(3) A report on the geological char-acteristics of the site, by a qualified professional, including 
any potential natural or man-made hazards which would have a significant influence on the 
proposed uses of the land, a determination of what effect such factors would have and proposed 
corrective or protective measures. 

(4) A Phase II drainage report or an approved master plan of drainage prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual. 

(5) Evidence that an adequate water supply, sufficient in terms of quality, quantity and 
dependability, is available as follows:  For a subdivision of land located within a water district, a 
letter of commitment to serve the proposed subdivision, stating the amount of water available for 
use within the subdivision and the feasibility of extending service to that area. 

(6) Evidence of the physical and legal capability to provide sanitation as follows:  For a 
subdivision of land located within a sanitation district, a letter of commitment to serve the 
proposed subdivision, stating the capacity to serve and feasibility of extending service to that area. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 137 of 241



(7) A narrative describing the availability and adequacy of existing infrastructure and other 
necessary services, including fire and police protection, schools, recreation, utilities and open 
space. 

(8) A narrative or traffic study describing the transportation network, establishing the 
availability and adequacy of the system consistent with the Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards and the Transportation Plan of the Comprehensive Plan. 

(9) A discussion on the effect of the proposal on significant cultural, archaeological and 
historical resources and plans for the protection of such resources.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-4-80. Expiration of approval. 

(a) The preliminary plan shall be effective for a period of one (1) year from the date of approval, 
unless stated otherwise in such approval.  The Director may grant a one-year extension of time, upon 
a written request by the applicant.  The Director may grant additional extensions upon a finding that 
the plan is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code and this Chapter. 

(b) When a part of the preliminary plan has been approved for a final plat, approval of the 
remaining area of the preliminary plan shall be effective for an additional one-year period or as 
otherwise extended by the Director or the Council. 

(c) An extension request shall include a fee and a narrative stating the reasons for the applicant's 
inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of the 
neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 or this Chapter that have occurred 
since approval of the plan as these changes affect the plan, and the anticipated time schedule for 
completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the Department.  Additional review 
of the plan may occur, resulting in additional conditions as applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE V 

Final PlatFinal Plat SFDfor (Single-Family Detached) Development 

Sec. 17-54-10.     Intent. 

The purpose of these regulations is to provide for the review of the final engineering plans, the 
subdivision improvement agreement, public dedication and other legal agreements.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 
3)   

Sec. 17-5-20.  Prerequisite. 

(a) The final plat shall be in substantial compliance with the Council-approved preliminary plan, 
as determined by the Director.  If it is not, the applicant shall submit an amended preliminary plan for 
review and approval by the Planning Commission and the Council. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 138 of 241



(b) The final plat shall be submitted within one (1) year of approval of the preliminary plan, or as 
extended by the Director or Council, unless the preliminary plan and final plat are processed 
concurrently as approved by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-54-30.    Approval standards.  

A final platFinal Plat may be approved upon the finding by the City Manager Council that it is 
consistent with the approved preliminary planPreliminary Plan and meets the following standards: 

(1) The application is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and where 
applicable, Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. 

(2)  The application is in compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Code and achieves 
its purpose as set forth in Sec. 17-1-20. 

(3) The application is in conformance with the City’s Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion 
and Sediment Control manual, and other applicable regulations as determined by the City.   

 Sec. 17-4-20.   Prerequisite. 

 (a)  The Final Plat shall be in substantial compliance with the Council-approved Preliminary 
Plan, as determined by the Community Development Department.  If it is not, the applicant shall 
submit an amended Preliminary Plan for review and approval by the Planning Commission and the 
Council. 

     (b)  The Final Plat shall be submitted within one (1) year of approval of the Preliminary 
Plan, or as extended by the Director or Council. (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

 

(1) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for an adequate a 
water supply; that is sufficient in terms of quantity, quality and dependability for the type of 
subdivision proposed; 

(2) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for a adequate public 
sewage disposal system and, if other methods of sewage disposal are proposed, adequate evidence 
that such system shall comply with state and local laws and regulations; and 

(3) The subdivider has provided evidence to show that all areas of the proposed subdivision 
which may involve soil or topographical conditions presenting hazards or requiring special 
precautions have been identified by the subdivider and that the proposed uses of these areas are 
compatible with such conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-54-40.     Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) paper copy of the final platFinal Plat and all supporting 
information to the Director the Community Development Department. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 139 of 241



(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within fifteen (15) ten (10) working 
business days.  The applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal or final 
platFinal Plat that is inconsistent with the approved preliminary planPreliminary Plan shall not be 
processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Director the Community Development 
Department will notify the applicant of the number of copies of the final platFinal Plat required for 
distribution to referral agencies   agencies. Referral packets shall be provided by the applicant in 
unsealed envelopes, addressed to the appropriate referral agency, with appropriate postage affixed 
and with all All submittal information shall be properly folded and compiled.  The applicant shall also 
submit an electronic file of the Final Plat and supplemental materials as required for distributing the 
application electronically.  The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall mail 
distribute the referral packets.  The applicant shall distribute any revised plans, as required by the 
Community Development Department. 

(d) The referral period shall be twenty-one (21) days, unless additional time is requested by 
referral agencies and approved by the Community Development Department. The applicant is 
encouraged to meet with the Community Development Department, referral agencies, and other 
interested parties to address the referral concerns prior to the end of the referral period.  

The referral agencies shall comment within twenty-one (21) days to thirty-five (35) days of 
receiving a complete submittal, as determined by the Director based upon conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code, the size and magnitude of the project or other concerns. 

(e) When the City Engineer has accepted all final engineering plans and the final plat in writing, 
the final plat will be scheduled for a regular meeting before the Council.  The Director will notify the 
applicant of the date and time of the meeting.When the Community Development Department has 
determined the Final Plat is ready for action, the Community Development Department will schedule 
it for consideration by the City Manager if considered consistent with the approved Preliminary Plan; 
otherwise the application shall be scheduled for consideration by the City Council.   

 (f) The Director will review the referral comments and prepare a staff report for the Council.  
The subdivision improvements agreement (SIA) shall be approved by the Council prior to final plat 
approval.  Final plats with no outstanding issues will be scheduled as consent agenda items. 

(ff) The Council City Manager (or Council as appropriate), in consultation with the Community 
Development Department and Public Works Department, shall evaluate the final platFinal Plat, staff 
report, referral agency comments and public comments and shall either approve, approve with 
conditions, table for further study, or deny the final platFinal Plat.  Their Council's  action shall be 
based on the evidence presented and compliance or non-compliance with the adopted standards, 
regulations, policies and other guidelines.  The grounds for disapproval of any plat shall be stated 
upon the records of the Council.  Any plat submitted to the Council shall include the names and 
addresses of all surface owners, mineral owners and lessees of mineral owners.A decision for denial 
by the City Manager may be appealed by the applicant to the City Council within ten (10) days from 
the date of the decision. 

(h) If denied by the Council, the submittal of a new application and processing fee shall be 
required in order to pursue the proposed subdivision.  A resubmittal of the final plat application for 
the same or substantially the same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be accepted within 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 140 of 241



one (1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of the Director, in writing, to the 
Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-54-50.    General submittal requirements. 

(a) General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) A completed development application (application form available from the Department the 
Community Development Department). 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Departmentthe Community Development 
Department). 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of application. 

(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 
process the application, when applicable (form available from the Community Development 
Department). 

(5) One (1) paper copy of the final platFinal Plat exhibit (per Section 17-54-60 below). 

(6) Development reports as required by the City (per Section 17-54-70 below). 

(b) Final drainage plans and roadway design and construction plans, including detailed site 
grading, topographic  and storm drainage system plans, shall be initially submitted to the Directorthe 
Community Development Department.  The  DirectorCommunity Development Department will 
forward the plans to the City Engineer.  (Plan revisions shall be submitted directly to the City 
Engineer.)  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-54-60.    Final platFinal Plat exhibit. 

The final platFinal Plat shall substantially conform to the approved preliminary planPreliminary 
Plan and the Council's conditions of approval. 

(1) The final platFinal Plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of a registered 
professional land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the office of the County Clerk 
and Recorder's office.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible document.  
Inaccurate, incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

 (2) The final platFinal Plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the detailed survey, 
engineering and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less than one percent 
(1%).  Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and for subdivisions exceeding one hundred 
(100) acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the Directorthe 
Community Development Department.  When a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite, on 
24" x 36" paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  
The scale may be different than on the individual sheets as approved by the Directorthe 
Community Development Department. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 141 of 241



(3) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision or planned development,and filing number 
(when applicable).   and Department file number.  If part of a Planned Development, the planning 
area shall be included under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion of the 
section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., and "City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of 
ColoradoCO," shall be included under the name and planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), 
under the general legal description, the total acreage and the total number of lots shall be included, 
and below that the Department project file number.  The name of the builder, product line or 
marketing name may only be used as a descriptor along the bottom or right side of the sheet.  
Subdivision names may not duplicate existing subdivision or planned Planned development 
Development names. 

 

Example: 

STAEBELL'S VIEWRIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 10 (A,B, etc.) 
A portion of Planning Area H of the RidgeGate Planned Development 

A part of the W/2 of Section 915, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M., City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, COState of Colorado 

78.06 Acres   235 Residential lots 
SB ___-___ 

(4) A block in the lower right-hand corner of all sheets shall include the following:  the 
preparation date and the dates of all revisions; a north arrow designated designating as true north; 
a written and graphic scale; the names and addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or 
surveyor who prepared the exhibit; the number of the sheet; and the total number of sheets. The 
names and addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit 
shall be included on the first sheet.   

(5) A vicinity vicinity map shall depict the area to be subdivided and the area which surrounds 
the proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current County or City 
Subdivision Mapstreet map. , maintaining the same scale. 

 (8) When the land is zoned Planned Development, a vicinity map that depicts the area to be 
subdivided superimposed on the development plan or filing map at a scale of 1" = 2,000'. 

(6) A written metes and bounds legal description of the subdivision boundary with a map 
showing all information as required in the state statutes shall be clearly and prominently indicated 
on the final platFinal Plat.  The names and locations of all abutting subdivisions, the locations of 
all abutting unplatted parcels and public lands shall be depicted.  All lines, names and descriptions 
on the final platFinal Plat which do not constitute a part of the subdivision shall be depicted in 
dashed or screened lines.  Any area enclosed by the subdivision, but not a part thereof, shall be 
labeled, "Not a Part of This Subdivision." 

(7) When requested by the Directorthe Community Development Department, deleted lot 
lines, easements or rights-of-way shall be shown on the plat in dashed lines, or screened, with a 
note and arrow pointing to the item to be vacated, stating that the lot line, easement or right-of-
way is hereby vacated.  (Dashed lines shall be graphically different for existing vs. proposed vs. 
deleted.) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 142 of 241



(8) The map shall display ties to aliquot section corners and to the state grid, if available, 
which shows dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points with complete monument 
and location descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, bearings and curve 
data, including chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true meridian and 
similar data.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be used unless 
approved by the City Engineer.  All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-hundredth 
(0.01) foot or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 (second 
order) minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  All 
internal lots, tracts or parcels shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(9) All lots, tracts and, when requested by the Directorthe Community Development 
Department, appropriate building envelopes shall be located, identified and labeled with the 
appropriate dimension with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  No ditto marks shall be used 
for dimensions.  All lots and, whenever practical, blocks shall be shown in their entirety on one (1) 
sheet.  Lots shall be consecutively numbered; tracts shall be lettered alphabetically and in 
consecutive order.  The acreage within each lot or tract shall include square feet and be included to 
the nearest one-hundredth (0.01) of an acre.  On residential subdivisions, tracts shall be used 
exclusively for nonresidential property, such as areas to be dedicated for park and school sites.  All 
parcels or areas of land inadvertently created and not identified shall be presumed to be outlots and 
shall not be considered to be building lots. 

(10) All road names, right-of-way widths at each leg of an intersection, at point of curve and 
point of tangent, at dead ends and at angle points, and right-of-way lines with accurate bearings 
and dimensions, including chord lengths and bearings, central angles and radii of all curves, shall 
be indicated.  If any road in the subdivision is a continuation or approximately a continuation of an 
existing public road, the conformity or the amount of conformity of the new road to the existing 
road shall be accurately shown.  Whenever the centerline of a road has been established or 
recorded, the date shall be shown on the final platFinal Plat.  Legal and physical access shall be 
provided to all parcels by public right-of-way or recorded easement, acceptable to the City 
Engineer in compliance with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(11) The purpose, widths and location (with fine dashed lines) of all easements and all 
abutting easements shall be shown.  If any easement already of record cannot be definitely located, 
a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and its recorded reference must appear on the title 
sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of lots which are cut by an easement must be 
shown with an arrow or so shown that the plat will indicate clearly the actual length of the lot 
lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to definitely locate the same with respect to 
the subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  
If an easement shown on the plat is already of record, its recorded reference must be given.  If an 
easement is being dedicated by the plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  
A plat note may be necessary to provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(12) One-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, retention and 
detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets shall be accurately 
located on the affected property. 

 (13) The following certifications on a single sheet shall be provided in accordance with 
Article IX of this Chapter:  Surveyor, Dedication Statement, Storm Drainage Facilities Statement, 
General Overlot Drainage Note, City CouncilManager, County Clerk and Recorder's office, and 
Title Verification and Planning Commission.. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 143 of 241



(14) Plat notes shall adequately explain information pertinent to the execution and 
maintenance of the subdivision, including the ownership of tracts, reference to the subdivision 
improvements agreementSubdivision Improvements Agreement, conservation easements, 
maintenance responsibility for private roads and easements and tracts.   

(15)  Plat notes specific to signage shall be included on the Final Plat: 
 

a. For Public Streets:  “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 
signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public 
Works Department and Fire District.” 

 
b. For Private Streets: “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 

signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public 
Works Department and Fire District. The Owner/HOA shall maintain said 
signage.” 

 
(16) The developer shall provide for the construction, at no cost to the City, of traffic 

signalization,  all utilities and other public infrastructure, as required by the Council, and provide 
security needed to ensure such improvements, as required by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-54-70.     Final development reports and plans. 

The applicant shall submit the supporting materials necessary for the review of the final platFinal 
Plat which address the following items: 

(1) A Phase III drainage report and drainage construction drawings prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual. 

(2) Final road construction plans prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(3)  Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans and Report prepared in accordance with 
the Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control manual. 

(34) A printed copy of the closure calculations on the boundary lines of the final platFinal Plat.  
Any mathematical closure errors in excess of 1:50,000 (second order) must be corrected by the 
applicant's surveyor prior to plat approval by the CouncilCity Manager. 

(45) A signed warranty deed must be provided, if such has been required, conveying certain 
tracts, or the development rights to such tracts, to the appropriate entity for public use. 

(56) Warranty deeds to the City shall be provided for rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the 
subdivision reflecting widths as designated inby the City Transportation Plan, if any, the Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards and the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria 
manual.  The final platFinal Plat shall not be recorded until all warranty deeds are executed and 
accepted by the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 144 of 241



Sec. 17-54-80.     Vested property rights. 

The final platFinal Plat is designated as the site-specific development plan for the purpose of 
vesting property rights for single-family detached residential land.  A landowner seeking vested 
property rights for single-family detached residential land must obtain approval of a site-specific 
development plan pursuant to the provisions of Article XII of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-54-90.     Post-approval procedure. 

(a) Prior to the recordation of the final platFinal Plat in the office of the County Clerk and 
Recorder, the following requirements shall be completed: 

(1) The applicant shall amend the final platFinal Plat document in accordance with the 
conditions of the Council City Manager approval, as necessary. 

(2) Within sixty one hundred and eighty (18060) days of approval of the final platFinal Plat, 
unless stated otherwise in such approval, the applicant shall submit to the Community 
Development Department:  two (2) fix-line photographic or computer-generated mylar 
reproductions (emulsion up) of the approved final platFinal Plat, prepared on 24” x 36” flat, 
spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of 
not less than three thousandths (.003) of an inch, with notarized signatures by the owners on both 
sets.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around each sheet, leaving a margin of at least one 
(1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  No ballpoint, transfer type or sticky backs are permitted.  The 
Final Plat shall include all required signatures (except for the signature of the Mayor or City 
Manager, Director and other City Departments). 

(3)  The project data formThe submission of any required documentation, and all recordation 
fees to the Departmentthe Community Development Department.    ready for recordation (except 
for the signatures of the MayorCity Manager, Director and other City Departments); all required 
documentation; the project data form; and all mapping and recordation fees to the Department.   

 (3) The final for recordation shall be prepared on 24" x 36" flat, spliceless, tapeless and 
creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of not less than three-
thousandths (.003) of an inch.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around each sheet, 
leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  No ballpoint, transfer type or 
sticky backs are permitted. 

(4) The applicant shall provide proof that adequate security has been provided to cover the 
subdivision improvement costs in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and 
Construction Standards. 

      (54)   The applicant shall provide a current title insurance policy or commitment, dated not 
more than two (2) weeks from Council City Manager approval.  If there is a difference in 
ownership between this title policy or commitment and the policy or commitment submitted with 
the final platFinal Plat application, recordation shall not be allowed until a determination can be 
made that the newly identified owners have had an opportunity to comment.  Objection by these 
newly identified owners may result in the Council rehearingCity Manager reconsidering the final 
platFinal Plat. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 145 of 241



(65) The applicant shall provide a warranty deed or cash-in-lieu for City land dedication for 
parks or schools as identified on the plat and rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the subdivision. 

(76) The applicant shall provide a valid certificate of taxes paid from the Douglas County 
Treasurer’s Office for the land area of the final platFinal Plat that shows that there are no taxes 
unpaid in arrears. 

(87) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the final platFinal Plat in AutoCAD format or 
as otherwise specified by Public Works for use in updating the City's GIS system, either on CD or 
by e-mail to the City Engineering Public Works Department. 

(8)   When required, the Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) shall be approved by the 
City Manager prior to recordation of the Final Plat, and the applicant shall provide proof that 
adequate security has been provided to cover the subdivision improvement costs in accordance 
with the requirements of the Subdivision Improvements Agreement. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final platFinal Plat and all required documentation as 
set forth in this Section, the Directorthe Community Development Department shall obtain the 
signatures of the MayorCity Manager, Director and other City Departments, as required, and Public 
Works shall record the final platFinal Plat.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-54-100.    EExpiration of approval. 

 (a) Within sixty (60) days of approval of the final plat, the applicant shall submit the approved 
final plat and all required documentation to the Department for recordation, unless stated otherwise in 
such approval.  Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final plat, the Director shall obtain the 
signatures of the Mayor, Director and other City Departments, as required, and record the final plat. 

(a) Failure by the applicant to submit all required documentation within sixty (60)one hundred 
eight (180) days of City Manager approval, shall render approval of the final platFinal Plat null and 
void and result in the necessity of the resubmittal of a preliminary planPreliminary Plan, if the 
preliminary planPreliminary Plan has expired, and final platFinal Plat, along with all required fees 
and documentation. 

(b) The Director may grant extensions up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the applicant 
or staff demonstrating good cause.  Further extensions may be granted by the Council at a public 
meeting, upon a written request by the applicant or staff. 

(c) An extension request shall include a the applicable fee and a narrative stating the reasons for 
the applicant's inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of 
the neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code or this Chapter 
that have occurred since approval of the plat as these changes affect the plat, and the anticipated time 
schedule for completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the Departmentthe 
Community Development Department.  Additional review of the plat may occur, resulting in 
additional conditions as applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 146 of 241



ARTICLE VI 

Minor Development 

Division 1 
Single-Family Residential 

Sec. 17-6-10. Intent. 

The purpose of these regulations is to provide a streamlined review process for the creation of four 
(4) or fewer single-family residential lots.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-20. Prerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of a minor development application, the applicant shall meet with the Director 
to discuss the procedure and submittal requirements.  If it is determined that the applicant is using the 
minor development process to circumvent the subdivision process such as the submittal of adjoining 
multiple minor developments, the applicant shall be required to comply with the sketch plan, 
preliminary plan and final plat processes.  A minor development shall not be permitted if the 
subdivision creates a nonconforming lot, or, in the case of an existing nonconforming lot or parcel, a 
minor development shall not increase the nonconformity.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-30. Approval standards. 

A minor development final plat may be approved upon the finding by the Council that: 

(1) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for a water supply that 
is sufficient in terms of quantity, quality and dependability for the type of subdivision proposed. 

(2) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for a public sewage 
disposal system and, if other methods of sewage disposal are proposed, adequate evidence that 
such system shall comply with state and local laws and regulations. 

(3) The subdivider has provided evidence to show that all areas of the proposed subdivision 
which may involve soil or topographical conditions presenting hazards or requiring special 
precautions have been identified by the subdivider and that the proposed uses of these areas are 
compatible with such conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-40. Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) paper copy of the minor development final plat and all 
supporting information to the Director. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within fifteen (15) business days.  The 
applicant shall be notified of any items in the submittal that are insufficient.  An incomplete submittal 
shall not be processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Director will notify the applicant of the 
number of copies of the final plat required for distribution to referral agencies.  Referral packets shall 
be provided by the applicant in unsealed envelopes, addressed to the appropriate referral agency, with 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 147 of 241



appropriate postage affixed, and with all submittal information properly folded and compiled.  The 
Director shall mail the packets. 

(d) The applicant shall provide stamped envelopes addressed to the abutting landowners and 
other landowners, as required by the Director, for notification of the minor development application. 

(e) The referral agencies shall comment within twenty-one (21) days to thirty-five (35) days of 
receiving a complete submittal, as determined by the Director based upon conformance with the 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code, the size and magnitude of the project or other concerns.  The 
applicant is encouraged to meet with the Director and referral agencies to address any issues prior to 
the end of the referral period. 

(f) When the City Engineer has accepted all final engineering plans and the final plat in writing, 
the minor development final plat will be scheduled for a public hearing by the Planning Commission.  
The Director will notify the applicant of the date and time of the hearing. 

(g) The applicant is responsible for posting a notice on the property and publishing a notice in the 
newspaper in compliance with the public notice requirements in Section 17-6-80 below. 

(h) The Director will review the referral comments and prepare a staff report for the Planning 
Commission.  The Planning Commission shall evaluate the application, staff report, referral 
comments and public testimony and make a recommendation to the Council to approve, approve with 
conditions, table for further study or deny the minor development final plat.  The Planning 
Commission's decision shall be based on the evidence presented, and compliance with the adopted 
standards, regulations, policies and other guidelines. 

(i) Following the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the Director will schedule the 
minor development final plat with the Council and notify the applicant of the public hearing date and 
time.  When required, the Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) shall be approved by the 
Council prior to minor development final plat approval. 

(j) The applicant shall post a notice on the property and publish a notice in the newspaper in 
compliance with the public notice requirements in Section 17-6-80 below.  Pursuant to Section 31-23-
215, C.R.S., the applicant shall notify, with respect to the property being platted, all surface owners, 
mineral owners and lessees of mineral owners, as their names may appear upon the plats or records in 
the County Clerk and Recorder's office and as their most recent addresses may appear in a telephone 
or other directory of general use in the area of the property or on the tax records of the City or 
County.  Notice to such persons shall include the time and place of the public hearing, the nature of 
the hearing, the location of the property that is the subject of the hearing and the name of the 
applicant, and shall be sent by certified mail not less than thirty (30) days before the date scheduled 
for the hearing.  Not less than three (3) days prior to the hearing, the applicant shall certify to the 
Department that it has complied with the notice requirements of this Subsection. 

(k) The Council shall evaluate the minor development plat, staff report, referral agency 
comments, Planning Commission recommendations and public testimony and shall either approve, 
approve with conditions or deny the minor development final plat within thirty (30) days of the 
hearing; otherwise, such plat shall be deemed approved and a certificate to that effect shall be issued 
by the Planning Commission on demand unless the applicant for the Council's approval waives this 
requirement and consents to an extension of such period, in accordance with Section 31-23-215, 
C.R.S.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented, compliance with the adopted 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 148 of 241



standards, regulations, policies and other guidelines.  The grounds of disapproval of any plat shall be 
stated upon the records of the Council.  Any plat submitted to the Council shall have submitted with it 
the names and addresses of all surface owners, mineral owners and lessees of mineral owners. 

(l) If denied by the Council, the submittal of a new application and processing fee shall be 
required in order to pursue the proposed subdivision.  A resubmittal of the minor development final 
plat for the same or substantially same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be accepted 
within one (1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of the Director, in writing, 
to the Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-50. General submittal requirements. 

(a) General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) A completed development application. 

(2) Application fee. 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee letter dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the 
submittal. 

(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 
process the application, when applicable. 

(5) One (1) paper copy of the minor development final plat exhibit (per Section 17-6-60 
below). 

(6) Development reports (per Section 17-6-70 below). 

(7) A written narrative that includes the purpose of the application, the overall context of the 
development on the site, future phases, if any, connections, uses, ownership and maintenance 
responsibilities. 

(b) Final drainage plans and roadway design and construction plans shall be initially submitted to 
the Director.  The Director shall forward the plans to the City Engineer.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-60. Minor development final plat exhibit. 

(a) The minor development final plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of a 
registered professional land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the County Clerk and 
Recorder's office.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible document.  Inaccurate, 
incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

(b) The minor development final plat for recordation shall be either an original drawing using 
only permanent black ink that will adhere to drafting films (no ballpoint, transfer type or sticky backs 
are permitted) or an acceptable photographic reproduction (fix-line, emulsion down) of an original 
drawing. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 149 of 241



(c) The minor development final plat for recordation shall be prepared on 24" high by 36" wide, 
flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of 
not less than three-thousandths (.003) of an inch.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around 
each sheet, leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank. 

(d) The minor development final plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the detailed 
survey, engineering and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less than one 
percent (1%).  Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and, for subdivisions exceeding one 
hundred (100) acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the Director 
of Planning and Community Development.  If a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite, on 
24" x 36" paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  
The scale may be different than the individual sheets as approved by the Director. 

(e) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision or planned development, filing number (when 
applicable) and Department file number.  If part of a Planned Development, the planning area shall be 
included under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion of the section, section, 
township, range, 6th P.M., and "the City of Lone Tree, CO," shall be included under the name and 
planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), under the general legal description, the total acreage and 
the total number of lots shall be included.  The name of the builder, product line or marketing name 
may only be used as a descriptor along the bottom of the sheet.  The minor development subdivision 
name may not duplicate existing subdivision names. 

Example: 
FRIGON'S BUNGALOWS 

A part of the W/2 of Section 9, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M., Lone Tree, CO 

1 Acre, 4 Residential lots 
SB ___-___ 

(f) In a block in the lower right-hand corner, the minor development plat shall include the 
following:  the preparation date; a north arrow designated as true north; a written and graphic scale; 
the names and addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit; 
the number of the sheet; and the total number of sheets. 

(g) The minor development plat shall include a vicinity map that depicts the area to be 
subdivided and the area which surrounds the proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius 
superimposed on a current City Subdivision Map, maintaining the same scale. 

(h) When the land is zoned Planned Development, the minor development plat shall include a 
vicinity map that depicts the area to be subdivided superimposed on the development plan at a scale 
of 1" = 2,000'. 

(i) The minor development plat shall clearly and prominently provide a written metes-and-
bounds legal description of the subdivision boundary and shall include a map showing all information 
as required in applicable Colorado Revised Statutes.  The names and locations of all abutting 
subdivisions, the locations of all abutting unplatted parcels and public lands shall be depicted.  All 
lines, names and descriptions on the plat which do not constitute a part of the subdivision shall be 
depicted in dashed or screened lines.  Any area enclosed by the subdivision, but not a part thereof 
shall be labeled, "Not a Part of This Subdivision." 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 150 of 241



(j) The minor development plat shall display ties to aliquot section corners and to the state grid 
(if available) which show dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points with complete 
monument and location descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, bearings and 
curve data, including chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true meridian and 
similar data.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be used unless 
approved by the City Engineer.  All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-hundredth (0.01) 
foot, or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 (second order) 
minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  All internal 
lots, tracts or parcels shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(k) The minor development plat shall include all lots, tracts and, when requested by the Director, 
appropriate building envelopes shall be located, identified and labeled with the appropriate dimension 
with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  No ditto marks shall be used for dimensions.  All lots 
and, whenever practical, blocks shall be shown in their entirety on one (1) sheet.  Lots shall be 
numbered consecutively; tracts shall be lettered alphabetically and in consecutive order.  Include the 
areas in lots in square feet and the acreage within each lot to the nearest one-hundredth (0.01) of an 
acre.  In residential subdivisions, tracts shall be used exclusively for nonresidential property, such as 
areas to be dedicated for park and school sites.  All parcels or areas of land inadvertently created and 
not identified shall be presumed to be outlots and shall not be considered to be building lots. 

(l) The minor development plat shall include a separate land summary chart on the cover sheet 
that includes:  the total land area to be subdivided; purpose and maintenance responsibilities for all 
tracts; land area of roads (acres and percentage of total land); the total number of lots (acres and 
percentage of total land); density; and the minimum, average and maximum lot size. 

(m) The minor development plat shall indicate all road names, right-of-way widths at each leg of 
an intersection, at point of curve and point of tangent, at dead ends and at angle points, and right-of-
way lines with accurate bearings and dimensions, including chord lengths and bearings, central angles 
and radii of all curves.  If any road in the subdivision is a continuation or approximately a 
continuation of an existing public road, the conformity or the amount of conformity of the new road 
to the existing road shall be accurately shown.  Whenever the centerline of a road has been 
established or recorded, the date shall be shown on the final plat. 

(n) The minor development plat shall describe the purpose, widths and location (with fine dashed 
lines) of all easements and all abutting easements.  If any easement already of record cannot be 
definitely located, a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and its recorded reference must 
appear on the title sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of lots which are cut by an 
easement must be arrowed or so shown that the plat will indicate clearly the actual length of the lot 
lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to definitely locate the same with respect to the 
subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  If an 
easement shown on the plat is already of record, its recorded reference must be given.  If an easement 
is being dedicated by the plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  A plat note 
may be necessary to provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(o) The minor development plat shall include the following certifications on the title sheet in 
accordance with Article IX of this Chapter:  Surveyor, Dedication Statement, Storm Drainage 
Facilities Statement, Council Approval, County Clerk and Recorder, Title Verification and Planning 
Commission. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 151 of 241



(p) The minor development plat shall include plat notes which adequately explain information 
pertinent to the execution and maintenance of the subdivision, including the ownership of tracts, 
reference to the subdivision improvements agreement, conservation easements and maintenance 
responsibility for private roads, easements and tracts.  The developer shall provide for the 
construction, at no cost to the City, of traffic signalization, all utilities and other public infrastructure 
as required by the Council, and provide security needed to ensure such improvements, as required by 
the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-70. Development reports. 

The applicant shall submit the supporting materials necessary for the review of the minor 
development final plat which address the items listed below: 

(1) A Phase III drainage report and drainage construction drawings prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual. 

(2) Final road construction plans prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards, when applicable. 

(3) A printed copy of the closure calculations on the boundary lines of the minor development 
final plat.  Any mathematical closure errors in excess of 1:50,000 (second order) must be corrected 
by the applicant's surveyor prior to plat approval by the Council. 

(4) A signed warranty deed, if required, conveying certain tracts, or the development rights to 
such tracts, to the appropriate entity for public use. 

(5) Warranty deeds to the City for rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the subdivision 
reflecting widths as designated in the City Transportation Plan.  The final plat shall not be 
recorded until all warranty deeds are executed and accepted by the City. 

(6) A traffic impact analysis performed by a traffic engineer discussing the impact of the 
minor development on the immediate and regional traffic, and other concerns as requested by the 
City prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards and the Transportation Plan of the Comprehensive Plan. 

(7) Evidence that an adequate water supply, sufficient in terms of quality and quantity is 
available as follows:  For a subdivision of land located within a water district, a letter of 
commitment to serve the proposed subdivision, stating the amount of water available for use 
within the subdivision and the feasibility of extending service to that area. 

(8) Evidence of the physical and legal capability to provide sanitation as follows:  For a 
subdivision of land located within a sanitation district, a letter of commitment to serve the 
proposed subdivision, stating the capacity to serve and feasibility of extending service to that area. 

(9) The following shall be provided on a 24" x 36" sheet of paper, drawn at the same scale of 
the minor development final plat exhibit, or another paper size or scale approved by the Director. 

a. Accurately locate one-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, 
retention and detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets on the 
affected property; 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 152 of 241



b. Depict all potential hazard areas, including geologic hazard areas and expansive soils 
(A-6 and A-7-6 soils as defined in the AASHTO Classification Group Index referenced in the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards); 

c. Identify areas of fifteen-to-twenty-five-percent slope in one (1) shading pattern and areas 
of greater than twenty-five-percent slope in another shading pattern, including a narrative that 
describes the mitigation methods used to address existing slope conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-80. Public notice requirements. 

(a) Published notice shall be determined by the Director on a case-by-case basis and, where 
required, shall be as follows: 

(1) At least five (5) days prior to the Planning Commission hearing and five (5) days prior to 
the Council hearing, the applicant shall publish a notice in the City's official notice publication. 

(2) At least three (3) days prior to the hearing, the applicant shall provide a publisher's 
affidavit of said published notice to the Director. 

(3) The notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE (PLANNING COMMISSION  

OR CITY COUNCIL) 

A public hearing will be held on (day of week), (date), at (time), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree 
Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124 for approval of a minor development final plat located in (section, township, 
range

File name and number:  __________________ 

).  For more information contact the Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(4) When concurrent notice has been approved by the Director, the notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND  

CITY COUNCIL 

A public hearing will be held before the Planning Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time), and before the 
Council on (day of week), (date), at (time), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone 
Tree, CO 80124, for approval of a minor development final plat located in (section, township, range

File name and number:  __________________ 

).  For more 
information contact the Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(b) Posted notice shall be determined by the Director on a case-by-case basis and, where 
required, shall be as follows: 

(1) At least twelve (12) days prior to the Planning Commission hearing and twelve (12) days 
prior to the Council hearing, the applicant shall post a notice on the land under consideration. 

(2) The notice shall consist of at least one (1) sign facing each adjacent right-of-way, placed 
within ten (10) feet of the property line adjacent to the right-of-way, be visible from the right-of-
way and placed on posts at least four (4) feet above ground level.  Additional signs may be 
required by the Director.  Each sign shall measure not less than three (3) feet by four (4) feet.  
Letter size shall be a minimum of three (3) inches high. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 153 of 241



(3) Said notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE (PLANNING COMMISSION  

OR CITY COUNCIL) 

This land shall be considered for approval of a minor development final plat pursuant to the City Subdivision code 
on (day of week), (date), at (time

File name and number:  __________________ 

), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, 
CO 80124.  For more information contact the Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

(4) When concurrent notice has been approved by the Director, the notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE  
THE PLANNING COMMISSION  

AND CITY COUNCIL 

This land shall be considered for approval of a minor development final plat pursuant to the City Subdivision code 
before the Planning Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time), and before the Council on (day of week), (date), 
at (time

File name and number:  __________________ 

), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124.  For more 
information contact the Community Development Department, [303-708-1818]. 

a. Posting affidavit.  An affidavit of sign posting shall be submitted for the file in the 
Department at least three (3) days prior to the hearings.  The sign shall be photographed by the 
applicant and the photo shall be attached to the affidavit as follows: 

(attach photo here) 

I,      (applicant/representative)     , attest that the above sign was posted on (date), at (location) pursuant to the 
City Subdivision code. 

          (signature)             

File name and number:  _______________ 

 
(applicant/representative) 

Signed and sworn before me this date:  __________ 

NOTARIZED BY:  __________________ 

b. The sign shall be removed by the applicant within two (2) weeks following the final 
decision by the Council. 

(c) The applicant shall also provide written notification, with respect to the property being 
platted, to all surface owners, mineral owners and lessees of mineral owners, as their names may 
appear upon the plats or records in the County Clerk and Recorder's office and as their most recent 
addresses may appear in a telephone or other directory of general use in the area of the property or on 
the tax records of the City or County.  Notice to such persons shall include the time and place of the 
public hearing, the nature of the hearing, the location of the property that is the subject of the hearing 
and the name of the applicant, and shall be sent by certified mail not less than thirty (30) days before 
the date scheduled for the hearing.  Not less than three (3) days prior to the hearing, the applicant 
shall certify to the Department that he or she has complied with the notice requirements of this 
Subsection. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 154 of 241



(d) When calculating the required time period for posting or publishing a notice of a public 
hearing, the day of publishing or posting shall be counted in the total number of days required.  The 
day of the hearing shall not be counted toward the total number of days required for the notification 
period.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-90. Vested property rights. 

The final plat is designated as the site-specific development plan for the purpose of vesting 
property rights for single-family residential land.  A landowner seeking vested property rights for 
single-family residential land must obtain approval of a site-specific development plan pursuant to the 
provisions of Article XI of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-100. Recordation procedure. 

(a) Prior to the recordation of the minor development final plat in the County Clerk and 
Recorder's office, the following requirements shall be completed: 

(1) The applicant shall amend the final plat document in accordance with the Council 
approval, as necessary. 

(2) Within sixty (60) days of approval of the final plat, unless stated otherwise in such 
approval, the applicant shall submit:  two (2) photographic Mylar copies (fix-line, emulsion down) 
of the approved final plat ready for recordation (except for the signatures of the Mayor, Director 
and other City Departments); all required documentation; the Project Data Form; and all mapping 
and recordation fees to the Department. 

(3) The applicant shall provide proof that adequate security has been provided to cover the 
subdivision improvement costs in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and 
Construction Standards. 

(4) The applicant shall provide a current title insurance policy or commitment, dated not more 
than two (2) weeks from the Council approval date.  If there is a difference in ownership between 
this title policy or commitment and the title policy or commitment submitted with the final plat 
application, recordation shall not be allowed until a determination can be made that the newly 
identified owners have had an opportunity to comment.  Objection by these newly identified 
owners may result in the Council rehearing the final plat. 

(5) The applicant shall provide a warranty deed or cash-in-lieu for City land dedication for 
parks or schools as identified on the plat and rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the subdivision. 

(6) The applicant shall provide a valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the final 
plat that shows no unpaid taxes. 

(7) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the final plat in AutoCAD format for use in 
updating the City's GIS system, either on CD or by e-mail to the City Engineering Department. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final plat and all required documentation as set forth 
in this Section, the Director shall obtain the signatures of the Mayor, Director and other City 
Departments, as required, and record the final plat.  Final recordation is required to complete the 
platting process.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 155 of 241



Sec. 17-6-110. Expiration of approval. 

(a) Within sixty (60) days of approval of the minor development final plat, the applicant shall 
submit the approved final plat and all required documentation to the Department for recordation, 
unless stated otherwise in such approval.  Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the minor development 
final plat, the Director shall obtain the signatures of the Mayor, Director and other City Departments, 
as required, and record the plat. 

(b) Failure by the applicant to submit all required documentation within sixty (60) days shall 
render approval of the minor development final plat null and void and result in the necessity for the 
resubmittal of the minor development final plat, along with all required fees and documentation. 

(c) The Director may grant extensions of time up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the 
applicant or staff demonstrating good cause.  Further extensions may be granted by the Council at a 
public meeting, upon a written request by the applicant or staff. 

(d) An extension request shall include a fee and a narrative stating the reasons for the applicant's 
inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of the 
neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 or this Chapter that have occurred 
since approval of the plat as these changes affect the plat, and the anticipated time schedule for 
completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the Department.  Additional review 
of the plat may occur, resulting in additional conditions as applicable. 

(e) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Division 2 

ARTICLE V 

Final Plat for Single-family Attached, Multi-family, and Nonresidential Development 
  NONRESIDENTIAL AND MULTI-FAMILY 

 
Sec. 17-65-10.     Intent. 

The intent of these regulations is to provide a streamlined review process for nonresidential and 
multifamily single-family attached, multi-family and nonresidential subdivisions that are typically 
also processed with a Site Improvement Plan, in keeping with the approval standards of Sec. 17-5-20., 
that are typically large-lot platted.  The Director may permit the use of this review process upon a 
determination that adequate public notice and input on the request can be attained through the minor 
development process and that this process can be utilized without substantial impairment of the intent 
and purpose of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-20.  Prerequisite. 

(a) Prior to submittal of a minor development final plat application for other than singlefamily 
detached development , the applicant shall meet with staff to discuss the procedure and submittal 
requirements.  If it is determined that the applicant is using the minor development process to 
circumvent the intent of the subdivision process, the applicant shall be required to comply with the 
sketch plan, preliminary plan and final plat processes.  A minor developmentfinal plat shall not be 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 156 of 241



permitted if the subdivision creates a nonconforming parcel, or, in the case of an existing 
nonconforming lot or parcel, a minor development shall not increase the nonconformity. 

(b) In addition to the minor development application, the applicant may be required to submit a 
Site Improvement Plan (SIP) in accordance with Chapter 16, Article XXI of this Code, based on 
design, size, impact to public facilities, services, roads and overall impacts, as determined by the 
Director.  If the applicant is unable to submit a SIP, the application shall be processed in accordance 
with the sketch plan, preliminary plan and final plat requirements of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-65-3020.     Approval standards. 

A minor development final platFinal Plat may be approved upon the finding by the Council that: 

(1)  The application is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code and where 
applicable, Planned Development Sub-Area Plans. 

(2) The application is in compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Code and achieves 
its purpose as set forth in Sec. 17-1-20. 

(3) The application is in conformance with the City’s Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards, the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual, the Grading, Erosion 
and Sediment Control manual, and other applicable regulations as determined by the City.  

 Sec. 17-5-30.   Prerequisite. 

(a) Prior to submittal of a Final Plat application for single-family attached, multi-family or 
nonresidential development, the applicant shall meet with staff to discuss the procedure and submittal 
requirements.    A Final Plat shall not be permitted if the subdivision creates a nonconforming parcel, 
or, in the case of an existing nonconforming lot or parcel, shall not increase the nonconformity. 

(b) In addition to the development application, the applicant may be required to submit a Site 
Improvement Plan (SIP) in accordance with Chapter 16, Article XXI of this Code, based on design; 
size; impact to public facilities, services, roads and overall impacts, as determined by the Community 
Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 (1) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for a water supply that 
is sufficient in terms of quantity, quality and dependability for the type of subdivision proposed. 

(2) The subdivider has provided evidence that provision has been made for a public sewage 
disposal. system and, if other methods of sewage disposal are proposed, adequate evidence that 
such system shall comply with state and local laws and regulations. 

(3) The subdivider has provided evidence to show that all areas of the proposed subdivision 
which may involve soil or topographical conditions presenting hazards or requiring special 
precautions have been identified by the subdivider and that the proposed uses of these areas are 
compatible with such conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 157 of 241



Sec. 17-65-40.     Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) paper copy of the minor development final platFinal Plat 
and all supporting information  and all supporting information complete submittal to the 
Departmentthe Community Development Department. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within fifteen (15)ten (10)  bbusiness days.  
The applicant shall be notified of any items in the submittal that are insufficientinadequacies.  An 
incomplete submittal shallincomplete submittal will not be processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, staff the Directorthe Community Development 
Department will notify the applicant of the number of copies of the final platFinal Plat required for 
distribution to referral agencies.   Referral packages shall be provided by the applicant in unsealed 
manila envelopes, addressed to the appropriate referral agency, with appropriate postage affixed and 
with all All submittal information shall be properly folded and compiled.  The applicant shall also 
submit an electronic file of the Final Plat and supplemental materials as required for distributing the 
application electronically.  The staff DirectorCommunity Development Department shall mail 
distribute the referral packets.  The applicant shall distribute any revised plans, as required by the 
Directorthe Community Development Department.   

(d) The applicant shall provide a vicinity map of the property and a list of the adjacent property 
owners and a list of mineral rights owners and other landowners as required by the Community 
Development Department, and provide unsealed, stamped envelopes addressed to the abutting 
landowners and other landowners, as required by staffthe Director ,such parties.  The applicant shall 
include copies of the Final Plat and narrative in the envelopes.  The Community Development 
Department shall include a copy of the application, notification of the anticipated meeting dates, and 
mail the envelopes.   

 for notification of the minor development application. 

(e) The referral period shall be twenty-one (21) to thirty-five (35) days The referral agencies 
shall comment within twenty-one (21) days to thirty-five (35) days of receiving a complete submittal 
as determined by the Directorthe Community Development Department, based upon conformance 
with the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code, the size and magnitude of the project or other 
concerns.  The applicant is encouraged to meet with the staff the DirectorCommunity Development 
Department, and referral agencies, and other interested parties to address the referral concerns any 
issues prior to the end of the referral period. 

(f) When the City Engineer has accepted all final engineering plans and the final plat in writing, 
the minor development final plat will be scheduled for a public hearing meeting by the Planning 
Commission.Following the referral period and upon resolution of referral agency comments, staff will 
schedule the Final Plat for a public meeting by the Planning Commission.  The staff planner will 
notify the applicant of the date and time of the hearingmeeting date and time. 

 (g) The applicant is responsible for providing notice in accordance with Section 17-6-80 of this 
Article. 

(g) The DirectorThe Community Development Department will review the referral comments 
and prepare a staff report for the Planning Commission members.  The Planning Commission shall 
evaluate the application, staff report, referral comments and public testimony and make a 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 158 of 241



recommendation to the Council to approve, approve with conditions, table for further study or deny 
the minor development final platFinal Plat.  The Planning Commission's decision shall be based on 
the evidence presented and a finding of compliance or non-compliance with the adopted standards, 
regulations, policies and other guidelines. 

(h) Following the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the staff plannerthe Community 
Development Department will schedule the minor developmentfinal platFinal Plat with the Council 
and notify the applicant of the public hearingmeeting date and time.   

(j) The applicant is responsible for providing notice in accordance with Section 17-6-80. 

(i) The Council shall evaluate the minor developmentfinal platFinal Plat, staff report, referral 
agency comments, Planning Commission recommendations and public testimony and shall either 
approve, approve with conditions or deny the minor development final platFinal Plat.   within thirty 
(30) days of the hearing; otherwise, such plat shall be deemed approved, and a certificate to that effect 
shall be issued by the Planning Commission on demand unless the applicant for the Council's 
approval waives this requirement and consents to an extension of such period, in accordance with 
Section 31-23-215, C.R.S.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a 
finding of compliance or non-compliance with the adopted standards, regulations, policies and other 
guidelines.  The grounds of disapproval of any plat shall be stated upon the records of the Council.  
Any plat submitted to the Council shall have submitted with it the names and addresses of all surface 
owners, mineral owners and lessees of mineral owners. 

(j) If denied by the Council, the submittal of a new application and processing fee shall be 
required in order to pursue the proposed subdivision.  A resubmittal of the minor developmentfinal 
platFinal Plat for the same or substantially same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be 
accepted within one (1) year of such denial.  The applicant may appeal the decision of the Director, in 
writing, to the Council within ten (10) days from the date of the decision.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-65-50.     General submittal requirements. 

General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) A completed development application (application form available from the Departmentthe 
Community Development Department). 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Departmentthe Community Development 
Department). 

(3) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or, title 
commitment or a subdivision guarantee letter dated not more than thirty (30) days from the date of 
submittal.prior to the date of the application. 

(4) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner permitting a representative to 
process the application, when applicable (form available from the Community Development 
Department). 

(5) A narrative describing the subdivision proposal including: 

 a. The number of lots proposed, development type and development timing. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 159 of 241



 b. A description of site features and visually important areas on or adjacent to the site 
that may affect the evaluation of the proposed development. 

 c. A description on the effect of the proposal on significant cultural, archaeological and 
historical resources and plans for protection of such resources. 

 d. A description of the impact on important wildlife habitat areas, including breeding 
grounds, nesting areas, crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc.   

 (6) One (1) paper copy of the minor developmentfinal platFinal Plat exhibit (per Section 17-
65-260 below). 

(7) Development reports as required by the City (per Section 17-56-270 below).   

(8)  Final drainage plans and roadway design and construction plans, including detailed site 
grading and topographic plans,  shall be initially submitted to the Community Development 
Department.  The referral packet for the City Engineer shall include all applicable development 
reports.The Director Community Development Department will forward the plans to the City 
Engineer.  (Plan revisions shall be submitted directly to the City Engineer.) 

(9) A Site Improvement Plan in accordance with Chapter 16, Article XXI of this Code, as 
required by the Directorthe Community Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-65-60.     Minor development finalFinal platFinal Plat exhibit. 

The final platFinal Plat exhibit shall be submitted according to the following: 

(1) The final platFinal Plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of a registered 
professional land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the office of the County Clerk 
and Recorder's office.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible document.  
Inaccurate, incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

 (2) The final platFinal Plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the detailed survey, 
engineering and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less than one percent 
(1%).  Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and for subdivisions exceeding one hundred 
(100) acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the Director 
Community Development Department.  When a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite, on 
24" x 36" paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  
The scale may be different thanon the individual sheets as approved by the Directorthe 
Community Development Department. 

 

(3) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision or planned development,and filing number 
(when applicable) and Department file number..  If part of a Planned Development, the planning 
area shall be included under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion of the 
section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., and "City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, COState 
of Colorado," shall be included under the name and planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), 
under the general legal description, the total acreage and the total number of lots shall be included, 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 160 of 241



and below that the Department project number.  The name of the builder, product line or 
marketing name may only be used as a descriptor along the bottom or right side of the sheet.  
Subdivision names may not duplicate existing subdivision or pPlanned dDevelopment names. 

 

Example: 

RIDGEGATE SECTION 15, FILING 10  
A portion of Planning Area H of the RidgeGate Planned Development 

A part of the W/2 of Section 15, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M., City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, COState of Colorado 

78.0630.00 Acres 2354 Residential lots 
SB ___-___ 

(4) A block in the lower right-hand corner of all sheets shall include the following:  the 
preparation date and the dates of all revisions; a north arrow designatinged as true north; a written 
and graphic scale; the names and addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who 
prepared the exhibit; the number of the sheet; and the total number of sheets. The names and 
addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit shall be 
included on the first sheet. 

(5) A vicinity map shall depict the area to be subdivided and the area which surrounds the 
proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current street map.  

 (76) A written metes and bounds legal description of the subdivision boundary with a map 
showing all information as required in the state statutes shall be clearly and prominently indicated 
on the final platFinal Plat.  The names and locations of all abutting subdivisions, the locations of 
all abutting unplatted parcels and public lands shall be depicted.  All lines, names and descriptions 
on the final platFinal Plat which do not constitute a part of the subdivision shall be depicted in 
dashed or screened lines.  Any area enclosed by the subdivision, but not a part thereof, shall be 
labeled, "Not a Part of This Subdivision." 

(87) When requested by the Directorthe Community Development Department, deleted lot 
lines, easements or rights-of-way shall be shown on the plat in dashed lines, or screened, with a 
note and arrow pointing to the item to be vacated, stating that the lot line, easement or right-of-
way is hereby vacated.  (Dashed lines shall be graphically different for existing vs. proposed vs. 
deleted.) 

(98) The map shall display ties to aliquot section corners and to the state grid, if available, 
which shows dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points with complete monument 
and location descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, bearings and curve 
data, including chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true meridian and 
similar data.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be used unless 
approved by the City Engineer.  All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-hundredth 
(0.01) foot or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 (second 
order) minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  All 
internal lots, tracts or parcels shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(109) All lots, tracts and, when requested by the Directorthe Community Development 
Department, appropriate building envelopes shall be located, identified and labeled with the 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 161 of 241



appropriate dimension with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  No ditto marks shall be used 
for dimensions.  All lots and, whenever practical, blocks shall be shown in their entirety on one (1) 
sheet.  Lots shall be consecutively numbered; tracts shall be lettered alphabetically and in 
consecutive order.  The acreage within each lot or tract shall include square feet and be included to 
the nearest one-hundredth (0.01) of an acre.  On residential subdivisions, tracts shall be used 
exclusively for nonresidential property, such as areas to be dedicated for park and school sites.  All 
parcels or areas of land inadvertently created and not identified shall be presumed to be outlots and 
shall not be considered to be building lots. 

(110) All road names, right-of-way widths at each leg of an intersection, at point of curve and 
point of tangent, at dead ends and at angle points, and right-of-way lines with accurate bearings 
and dimensions, including chord lengths and bearings, central angles and radii of all curves, shall 
be indicated.  If any road in the subdivision is a continuation or approximately a continuation of an 
existing public road, the conformity or the amount of conformity of the new road to the existing 
road shall be accurately shown.  Whenever the centerline of a road has been established or 
recorded, the date shall be shown on the final platFinal Plat.  Legal and physical access shall be 
provided to all parcels by public right-of-way or recorded easement, acceptable to the City 
Engineer in compliance with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(121) The purpose, widths and location (with fine dashed lines) of all easements and all 
abutting easements shall be shown.  If any easement already of record cannot be definitely located, 
a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and its recorded reference must appear on the title 
sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of lots which are cut by an easement must be 
shown with an arrow or so shown that the plat will indicate clearly the actual length of the lot 
lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to definitely locate the same with respect to 
the subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  
If an easement shown on the plat is already of record, its recorded reference must be given.  If an 
easement is being dedicated by the plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  
A plat note may be necessary to provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(132) One-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, retention and 
detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets shall be accurately 
located on the affected property. 

(143) The following certifications on a single sheet shall be provided in accordance with 
Article IX of this Chapter:  Surveyor, Dedication Statement, Storm Drainage Facilities Statement, 
General Overlot Drainage Note, City Manager, County Clerk and Recorder's office, and Title 
Verification. 

(154) Plat notes shall adequately explain information pertinent to the execution and 
maintenance of the subdivision, including the ownership of tracts, reference to the subdivision 
improvements agreementSubdivision Improvements Agreement, conservation easements, 
maintenance responsibility for private roads and easements and tracts.  The developer shall 
provide for the construction, at no cost to the City,  all utilities and other public infrastructure, as 
required by the Council, and provide security needed to ensure such improvements, as required by 
the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

(15) Plat notes specific to signage shall be included on the Final Plat: 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 162 of 241



      a.   For Public Streets:  “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 
signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public Works 
Department and Fire District.” 

       b.  For Private Streets:  “The owner/developer is responsible for installation of all roadway 
signage, including “No parking/Fire Lane” signage, as required by the City Public Works 
Department and Fire District.  The Owner/HOA shall maintain said signage.” 

Sec. 17-65-70.     Final development reports and plans. 

The applicant shall submit the supporting materials necessary for the review of the final platFinal 
Plat which address the following items: 

(1) A Phase III drainage report and drainage construction drawings prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual.  If 
development plans are not sufficiently determined, a Phase II drainage report and drainage 
construction drawings can be submitted at this stage of the review process, with Phase III reports 
submitted prior to approval of the site construction plans or approval of the building permit.  

(2) Final road construction plans prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards. 

(3)  Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control Plans and Report prepared in accordance with 
the Grading, Erosion and Sedimentation Control manual (this may be deferred to the Site 
Improvement Plan submittal as determined by the Director and City Engineer.   

(34) A printed copy of the closure calculations on the boundary lines of the final platFinal Plat.  
Any mathematical closure errors in excess of 1:50,000 (second order) must be corrected by the 
applicant's surveyor prior to plat approval by the City Manager City Council. 

(45) A signed warranty deed must be provided, if such has been required, conveying certain 
tracts, or the development rights to such tracts, to the appropriate entity for public use. 

(56) Warranty deeds to the City shall be provided for rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the 
subdivision reflecting widths as designated by the City Transportation Plan, if any, the Roadway 
Design and Construction Standards and the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria 
manual.  The final platFinal Plat shall not be recorded until all warranty deeds are executed and 
accepted by the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

(7) Evidence that adequate water supply is available. 

(8) Evidence that adequate sanitary sewer service is available. 

(9) The following shall be provided on a separate 24" x 36" sheet(s) of paper, drawn at the 
same scale of the final platFinal Plat exhibit, or another paper size or scale approved by staff: 

a. Accurately locate one-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, 
retention and detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets on the 
affected property. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 163 of 241



b. Depict all potential hazard areas, including geologic hazard areas and expansive soils 
(A-6 and A-7-6 soils as defined in the AASHTO Classification Group Index referenced in the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards). 

c. Identify areas of fifteen-to-twenty-percent slope in one (1) shading pattern and areas of 
greater than a twenty-percent slope in another shading pattern, including a narrative that 
describes the mitigation methods used to address existing slope conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

d.  Show existing contours in dashed lines and proposed contours in solid lines depicted at 
two-foot intervals, except where topographic slopes would create contour lines too close for 
clear presentation, in which case five-foot or ten-foot contours may be used.  Clearly label the 
contour values.  The contours shall extend to a minimum of fifty-feet beyond the property 
lines, or such other greater amount as necessary to show how topography and drainage on the 
proposed site interacts and blends with adjacent parcels. 

e. Show the conceptual location of storm sewer, water service, and sanitary sewer service. 

f.  Label the land use, zoning and ownership of the adjacent land. 

g. Note existing structures on the site, their uses and whether they are to remain on the site. 

h. Identify any cultural, historical or archaeological sites. 

i. Note significant natural or man-made features within and adjacent to the proposed 
subdivision. 

j.  Note important short-and long-range views to or from the site, including scenic 
mountain views, bluffs, rock outcroppings, drainages, etc. 

k. Depict any significant existing stands of vegetation, including but not limited to large 
stands of scrub oak, and shall identify the type of vegetation. 

l. Identify significant wildlife habitat areas, including breeding grounds, nesting areas, 
crossings, wintering areas, migratory routes, etc. 

    m.  Depict the legal and physical public access to the proposed subdivision, even if not part 
of the subdivision. 

n. Depict the pedestrian and open space systems, including connections to adjacent 
development and open space areas. 

o.  Label focal points, community facilities and other special features. 

 p.   Note the treatment of potentially conflicting land uses.   

(10) A traffic impact analysis performed by a traffic engineer discussing the impact of the 
proposed development on the immediate and regional traffic and other concerns, as requested by 
the City, prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards.   and the Transportation Plan of the Comprehensive Plan, if applicable.  (May be 
deferred to Site Improvement Plan submittal as determined by Director and City Eengineer.) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 164 of 241



(11)  Evidence establishing soil suitability in the form of a report based on information from 
the Soil Conservation Service of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) or another 
form acceptable to staff.  The report shall minimally include:  a description of site soil types, 
locations and characteristics with supporting soil maps, soil logs and other information needed to 
determine soil suitability for proposed development; constraints on development based on the 
findings; and analysis and evaluation of such information with recommendations regarding 
structural constraints, erosion control and a determination of the adequacy of the structural 
characteristics of the soil as they relate to the proposed uses and development. 

(12) A report on the geologic characteristics of the site, including any potential natural or man-
made hazards which would have a significant influence on the proposed uses of the land, a 
determination of what effect such factors would have and proposed corrective or protective 
measures.   

 

(a) The minor development plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of a registered 
professional land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the office of the County Clerk and 
Recorder.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible document.  Inaccurate, 
incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

(b) The minor development plat for recordation shall be either an original drawing using only 
permanent black ink that will adhere to drafting films (no ballpoint, transfer type or sticky backs are 
permitted) or an acceptable photographic reproduction (fix-line, emulsion down) of an original 
drawing. 

(c) The minor development plat for recordation shall be either prepared on 24" high by 36" wide, 
flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of 
not less than three-thousandths (.003) of an inch.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around 
each sheet leaving a margin at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank. 

(d) The minor development plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the detailed survey, 
engineering and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less than one percent 
(1%).  Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and, for subdivisions exceeding one hundred (100) 
acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the Director of Planning and 
Community Development.  If a proposal requires multiple sheets, a composite on 24" x 36" paper 
shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each sheet number.  The scale may be 
different than the individual sheets as approved by the staff planner. 

(e) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed subdivision or planned development, filing number (when 
applicable) and Department file number.  If part of a Planned Development, the planning area shall be 
included under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion of the section, section, 
township, range, 6th P.M. and "City of Lone Tree, CO," shall be included under the name and 
planning area.  On the title sheet (Sheet #1), under the general legal description, the total acreage and 
the total number of lots shall be included.  The name of the builder, product line or marketing name 
may only be used as a descriptor along the bottom of the sheet.  The minor development subdivision 
name may not duplicate existing subdivision names. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 165 of 241



Example: 
LONE TREE CENTER 

A part of the W/2 of Section 9, Township 6 South, 
Range 67 West, 6th P.M., City of Lone Tree, CO 

SB ___ - ___ 2 Acres, 6 Lots 

(f) In a block in the lower right-hand corner, the plat shall include the following:  the preparation 
date; a north arrow designated as true north; a written and graphic scale; the names and addresses of 
the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit; the number of the sheet; and 
the total number of sheets. 

(g) The minor development plat shall include a vicinity map that depicts the area to be 
subdivided and the area which surrounds the proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius 
superimposed on a current City Subdivision Map, maintaining the same scale. 

(h) When the land is zoned Planned Development, the minor development plat shall include a 
vicinity map that depicts the area to be subdivided superimposed on the development plan at a scale 
of 1" = 2,000'. 

(i) The minor development plat shall include a written metes-and-bounds legal description of the 
subdivision boundary.  A map showing all information as required in the state statutes shall be clearly 
and prominently indicated on the minor development final plat.  The names and locations of all 
abutting subdivisions and the locations of all abutting unplatted parcels and public lands shall be 
depicted.  All lines, names and descriptions on the plat which do not constitute a part of the 
subdivision shall be depicted as dashed or screened.  Any area enclosed by the subdivision, but not a 
part thereof, shall be labeled "Not a Part of This Subdivision." 

(j) The minor development plat shall include display ties to aliquot section corners and to the 
state grid (if available) which show dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points which 
complete monument and location descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, 
bearings and curve data, including chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true 
meridian and similar data.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be 
used unless approved by the City Engineer.  All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-
hundredth (0.01) foot or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 
(second order) minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  
All internal lots, tracts or parcels shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(k) All lots, tracts and, when requested by staff, appropriate building envelopes shall be located, 
identified and labeled with the appropriate dimension with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  
No ditto marks shall be used for dimensions.  All lots and, whenever practical, blocks shall be shown 
in their entirety on one (1) sheet.  Lots shall be numbered consecutively; tracts shall be lettered 
alphabetically and in consecutive order.  Include the acreage within each lot in square feet and to the 
nearest one-hundredth (0.01) of an acre.  Tracts shall be used exclusively for land to be dedicated for 
park and open space.  Parcels of land inadvertently created and not identified shall be presumed to be 
outlots and shall not be considered to be building lots. 

(l) The minor development plat shall indicate all road names, right-of-way widths at each leg of 
an intersection, at point of curve and point of tangent, at dead ends and at angle points; and right-of-
way lines with accurate bearings and dimensions, including chord lengths and bearings, central angles 
and radii of all curves.  If any road in the subdivision is a continuation or approximately a 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 166 of 241



continuation of an existing public road, the conformity or the amount of conformity of the new road 
to the existing road shall be accurately shown.  Whenever the centerline of a road has been 
established or recorded, the date shall be shown on the final plat. 

(m) The minor development plat shall describe the purpose, width and location (with fine dashed 
lines) of all easements and all abutting easements.  If any easement already of record cannot be 
definitely located, a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and its recorded reference must 
appear on the title sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of lots which are cut by an 
easement must be arrowed or so shown that the plat will indicate clearly the actual length of the lot 
lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to definitely locate the same with respect to the 
subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  If an 
easement shown on the plat is already of record, its recorded reference number must be given.  If an 
easement is being dedicated by the plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  A 
plat note may be necessary to provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(n) The final plat shall include the following certifications on the title sheet in accordance with 
Article IX of this Chapter:  Surveyor, Dedication Statement, Storm Drainage Facilities Statement, 
City Council, County Clerk and Recorder, Title Verification and Planning Commission. 

(o) The minor development plat shall include plat notes which adequately explain information 
pertinent to the execution and maintenance of the subdivision, including the ownership of tracts, 
reference to the subdivision improvements agreement, conservation easements and maintenance 
responsibility for private roads, easements and tracts.  The developer shall provide for the 
construction, at no cost to the City, of traffic signalization, all utilities and other public infrastructure, 
as required by the Council, and provide security needed to ensure such improvements, as required by 
the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-270. Development reports. 

The applicant shall submit the supporting materials necessary for the review of the minor 
development final plat which address the items listed below. 

(1) A Phase III drainage report and drainage construction drawings prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of the Storm Drainage Design and Technical Criteria manual.  (May be 
deferred to Site Improvement Plan submittal as determined by staff planner and engineer.) 

(2) Final road construction plans prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards, when applicable.  (May be deferred to Site 
Improvement Plan submittal as determined by staff planner and engineer.) 

(3) A printed copy of the closure calculations on the boundary lines of the minor development 
final plat.  Any mathematical closure errors in excess of 1:50,000 (second order) must be corrected 
by the applicant's surveyor prior to plat approval by the Council. 

(4) A signed warranty deed, if required, conveying certain tracts, or the development rights to 
such tracts, to the appropriate entity for public use. 

(5) Warranty deeds to the City for rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the subdivision 
reflecting widths as designated in the City Transportation Plan and standards.  The final plat shall 
not be recorded until all warranty deeds are executed and accepted by the City. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 167 of 241



 (6) A traffic impact analysis performed by a traffic engineer discussing the impact of the 
minor development on the immediate and regional traffic and other concerns, as requested by the 
City, prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and Construction 
Standards and the Transportation Plan of the Comprehensive Plan, if applicable.  (May be deferred 
to Site Improvement Plan submittal as determined by Director and engineer.) 

(7) Evidence that an adequate water supply, sufficient in terms of quality and quantity, is 
available as follows: 

a. For a subdivision of land located within a water district, a letter of commitment to serve 
the proposed subdivision, stating the amount of water available for use within the subdivision 
and the feasibility of extending service to that area. 

b. For a subdivision of land where a water district is proposed to be formed to serve the 
subdivision, evidence of water availability shall include but not be limited to:  evidence of 
ownership or right of acquisition or use of proposed water rights; amenability of existing rights 
to a change in use; evidence that an adequate water supply will be available to serve the 
proposed subdivision and the feasibility of extending service to that area; and evidence of the 
feasibility of water augmentation where required. 

c. For a subdivision of land where individual wells are proposed, evidence that an adequate 
water supply will be available to serve the proposed subdivision, stating the amount of water 
available for use within the subdivision and evidence of the feasibility of water augmentation, 
where required. 

(8) Evidence of the physical and legal capability to provide sanitation as follows: 

a. For a subdivision of land located within a sanitation district, a letter of commitment to 
serve the proposed subdivision, stating the capacity to serve and feasibility of extending service 
to that area. 

b. For a subdivision of land where a sanitation district is proposed to be formed to serve the 
subdivision, evidence of the ability of the sanitation agency or owner to serve the demands of 
the proposed subdivision. 

c. For a subdivision of land where individual sewage disposal systems are proposed, 
percolation test data must be provided to prove general suitability of soils for such system. 

(9) The following shall be provided on a 24" x 36" sheet of paper, drawn at the same scale of 
the minor development final exhibit, or another paper size or scale approved by staff: 

a. Accurately locate one-hundred-year floodplains, all existing and proposed watercourses, 
retention and detention areas, wetlands, aquifer recharge areas, streams, lakes or inlets on the 
affected property. 

b. Depict all potential hazard areas, including geologic hazard areas and expansive soils 
(A-6 and A-7-6 soils as defined in the AASHTO Classification Group Index referenced in the 
Roadway Design and Construction Standards). 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 168 of 241



c. Identify areas of fifteen-to-twenty-five-percent slope in one (1) shading pattern and areas 
of greater than a twenty-five-percent slope in another shading pattern, including a narrative that 
describes the mitigation methods used to address existing slope conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-65-80.     Vested property rights. 

The Site Improvement Plan is designated as the site-specific development plan for the purpose of 
vesting property rights for single-family attached, multifamily and nonresidential development.  A 
landowner seeking vested property rights must obtain approval of a site-specific development plan 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 16, Article XXXIVs XXI and XXVI of this Code.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-65-90.     Recordation Post-approval procedure. 

(a) Prior to the recordation of the final platFinal Plat in the office of the County Clerk and 
Recorder, the following requirements shall be completed: 

(1) Within one hundred and eighty (180) days of approval by City Council, tThe applicant 
shall amend the final platFinal Plat document in accordance with the conditions of the Council 
approval, as necessary, and submit to the Community Development Department two check sets, 
(24” x 36” paper copies of the approved Final Plat) for review by the Community Development 
and Public Works Departments prior to submission of the mylars.   

(2)   Within sixty (60) days of approval of the check sets by the Community Development and 
Public Works Departments, the applicant Within sixty (60) days of approval of the final plat, 
unless stated otherwise in such approval, the applicant shall submit to the Community 
Development Department:  two (2) fix-line photographic or computer-generated mylar 
reproductions (emulsion up) of the approved final platFinal Plat, prepared on 24” x 36” flat, 
spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of 
not less than three thousandths (.003) of an inch, with notarized signatures by the owners on both 
sets.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around each sheet, leaving a margin of at least one 
(1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  No ballpoint, transfer type or sticky backs are permitted.  The 
Final Plat shall include all required signatures (except for the signature of the Mayor, Director and 
other City Departments). 

(3)  The project data formThe submission of any required documentation, and all recordation 
fees to the Departmentthe Community Development Department.    ready for recordation (except 
for the signatures of the MayorCity Manager, Director and other City Departments); all required 
documentation; the project data form; and all mapping and recordation fees to the Department.   

 (3) The final for recordation shall be prepared on 24" x 36" flat, spliceless, tapeless and 
creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of not less than three-
thousandths (.003) of an inch.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around each sheet, 
leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  No ballpoint, transfer type or 
sticky backs are permitted. 

(4) The applicant shall provide proof that adequate security has been provided to cover the 
subdivision improvement costs in accordance with the requirements of the Roadway Design and 
Construction Standards. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 169 of 241



(54) The applicant shall provide a current title insurance policy or commitment, dated not more 
than two (2) weeks from Council approval.  If there is a difference in ownership between this title 
policy or commitment and the policy or commitment submitted with the final platFinal Plat 
application, recordation shall not be allowed until a determination can be made that the newly 
identified owners have had an opportunity to comment.  Objection by these newly identified 
owners may result in the Council reconsidering the final platFinal Plat. 

(65) The applicant shall provide a warranty deed or cash-in-lieu for City land dedication for 
parks or schools as identified on the plat and rights-of-way outside and adjacent to the subdivision. 

(76) The applicant shall provide a valid certificate of taxes paid from the Douglas County 
Treasurer’s Office for the land area of the final platFinal Plat that shows that there are no taxes 
unpaidin arrears. 

(87) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the final platFinal Plat in AutoCAD format or 
as otherwise specified by Public Works for use in updating the City's GIS system, either on CD or 
by e-mail to the City Engineering Public Works Department. 

(8)  When required, the Subdivision Improvements Agreement (SIA) shall be approved by the 
City Manager the Council prior to minor development recordation of the final platFinal Plat, and 
the applicant shall provide proof that adequate security has been provided to cover the subdivision 
improvement costs in accordance with the requirements of the Subdivision Improvements 
Agreement approval. 

(b) Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the final platFinal Plat mylars and all required 
documentation as set forth in this Section, the Directorthe Community Development Department shall 
obtain the signatures of the Mayor, Director and other City Departments, as required, and the Public 
Works Department shall record the final platFinal Plat.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-5-100.   Expiration of approval. 

 (a) Failure by the applicant to submit all required documentation within one hundred eighty 
(180) days of City Council approval, shall render approval of the Final Plat null and void and result in 
the necessity of the resubmittal of the Final Plat, along with all required fees and documentation. 

(b) The Director may grant extensions up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the applicant 
or staff demonstrating good cause.  Further extensions may be granted by the Council at a public 
meeting, upon a written request by the applicant or staff. 

(c) An extension request shall include the applicable fee and a narrative stating the reasons for 
the applicant's inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of 
the neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code or this Chapter 
that have occurred since approval of the plat as these changes affect the plat, and the anticipated time 
schedule for completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the Community 
Development Department.  Additional review of the plat may occur, resulting in additional conditions 
as applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.   

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 170 of 241



Sec. 17-6-300. Post-recordation requirement. 

The post recordation requirement shall be the same as provided in Section 17-6-110 of this 
Article.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

The provisions governing the expiration of approval shall be the same as those provided in Section 
17-5-100 of this Article.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE VII 

Condominium Plat 

Sec. 17-76-10.     Intent. 

It is the intent of this Section to provide for a one-step review process by the City for 
condominium platsCondominium Plats.  When developing condominium units, where ownership of 
land is not being transferred, a condominium platCondominium Plat  shall be submitted to the 
Directorthe Community Development Department for review and approval prior to recordation in the 
County Clerk and Recorder's office.  A condominium is defined as an individual air space unit, 
together with the interest in the common elements appurtenant to such unit, unless such definition is 
inconsistent with Section 38-2233-103(1), C.R.S., which shall control.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-7-20.  Prerequisite. 

The condominium plat shall be consistent with the approved plat (legal lot of record) and site plan, 
if applicable.  The condominium plat process may be combined with the minor development plat 
process for multifamily subdivisions, as approved by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-76-3020.     Approval standards. 

The Director may administratively approve the condominium platCondominium Plat upon the 
finding that: 

(1) The title is consistent with the title of the approved final platFinal Plat or Site 
Improvement Plan. 

(2) The property line boundaries are consistent with the approved final platFinal Plat or the 
certified boundary survey which identifies the parcel as shown on the Site Improvement Plan. 

(3) Access has been provided for subsequent phases.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-30.   Prerequisite. 

The Condominium Plat shall be consistent with the approved plat (legal lot of record) and Site 
Improvement Plan, if applicable.  The Condominium Plat process may be combined with the  Final 
Plat process for multifamily subdivisions, as approved by the Community Development Department.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-6-40.    Submittal Process.  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 171 of 241



(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) paper copy of the complete submittal to the 
Community Development Department. 

(b) The submittal shall be reviewed for completeness within ten (10) business days.  The 
applicant shall be notified of any inadequacies.  An incomplete submittal will not be 
processed.   

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Community Development Department 
will notify the applicant of the number of copies of the Condominium Plat required for 
distribution to referral agencies.  All submittal information shall be properly folded and 
compiled.  The applicant shall also submit an electronic file of the Condominium Plat and 
supplemental materials as required for distributing the application electronically.  The 
Community Development Department shall distribute the referral packets.   

(d) The referral period shall be fourteen (14) days, unless additional time is requested by 
referral agencies and approved by the Community Development Department.   

(e) The Director shall review the application, evaluate referral comments, and approve, 
conditionally approve, or deny the Condominium Plat.  The denial of Condominium Plat 
by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within ten (10) days of the 
decision by the Director.  

 

Sec. 17-76-4050.     Submittal requirements. 

(a) A completed development application (application form available from the Community 
Development Department). 

(b) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department). 

(c) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application, when applicable (form available from the 
Community Development Department). 

(d) A copy of the recorded final platFinal Plat and Site Improvement Plan. 

(e) Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment dated not more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of application. 

(ef) Two (2) paper copies of the condominium platCondominium Plat exhibit prepared as follows: 

(1) The condominium platCondominium Plat shall be prepared by or under the supervision of 
a registered professional land surveyor licensed with the State for recording in the office of the 
County Clerk and Recorder.  It shall be a neat, clear, permanent, legible and reproducible 
document.  Inaccurate, incomplete or poorly drawn plats shall be rejected. 

 (2) The condominium plat for recordation shall be either an original drawing using only 
permanent black ink that will adhere to drafting films (no ballpoint, transfer type or sticky backs 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 172 of 241



are permitted) or an acceptable photographic reproduction (fix-line, emulsion down) of an original 
drawing. 

 (3) The condominium plat for recordation shall be prepared on 24" x 36" flat, spliceless, 
tapeless and creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of not less than 
three-thousandths (.003) of an inch.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around each sheet, 
leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank. 

(42) The condominium platCondominium Plat shall be drafted at a scale that best conveys the 
detailed survey, engineering and design of the subdivision and confines the drafting error to less 
than one percent (1%).  Acceptable scales are 1" = 50' or 1" = 100' and for subdivisions exceeding 
one hundred (100) acres, 1" = 200'.  In special instances, another scale may be approved by the 
Directorthe Community Development Department.  When a proposal requires multiple sheets, a 
composite, on 24" x 36" paper, shall be provided that delineates the boundaries and identifies each 
sheet number.  The scale may be different than the individual sheets as approved by the 
Directorthe Community Development Department. 

(53) The title shall be placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
shall include the name of the proposed condominium(s) and specific building number, if 
applicable.  The subdivision and Planned Development name, lot, block and filing number shall be 
located under the title.  A general legal description stating the aliquot portion of the section, 
section, township, range, 6th P.M., and City of Lone Tree, County of Douglas, State of Colorado, 
shall be included under the condominium name and subdivision information.  Under the general 
legal description, the total number of units shall be included.  Condominium names shall not 
duplicate an existing condominium name. 

(64) A block in the lower right-hand corner shall include the following:  the preparation date; a 
north arrow designated designating as true north; a written and graphic scale; the names and 
addresses of the applicant, developer, engineer or surveyor who prepared the exhibit; the number 
of the sheet; and the total number of sheets. 

(75) A vicinity map shall depict the area to be platted as a condominium and the area which 
surrounds the proposed subdivision within a one-mile radius superimposed on a current street 
County or City Subdivision Mapmap, maintaining the same scale. 

 (8) When the land is zoned Planned Development, a vicinity map that depicts the area to be 
platted as a condominium shall be superimposed on the development plan or filing map at a scale 
of 1" = 2,000'. 

(96) All lines, names and descriptions on the condominium platCondominium Plat which do 
not constitute a part of the subdivision shall be depicted in dashed or screened lines.  Any area 
enclosed by the subdivision, but not a part thereof, shall be labeled "Not a Part of This 
Subdivision." 

(107) When requested by the Directorthe Community Development Department, deleted lot 
lines, easements or rights-of-way shall be shown on the plat in dashed lines, or screened, with a 
note and arrow pointing to the item to be vacated, stating that the lot line, easement or right-of-
way is hereby vacated.  (Dashed lines shall be graphically different for existing vs. proposed vs. 
deleted.) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 173 of 241



(118) Display ties to aliquot section corners and to the state grid, if available, which shows 
dimensions of all primary boundary survey control points with complete monument and location 
descriptions, all parcel lines showing dimensions with lengths, bearings and curve data, including 
chord lengths and bearings, basis of bearings and relation to true meridian and similar data shall be 
represented.  Only circular curves shall be used.  No spirals, parabolas, etc., shall be used unless 
approved by the City Engineer.  All dimensions are to be shown to the nearest one-hundredth 
(0.01) foot or, in the case of degrees, to the nearest second.  An accuracy of 1:50,000 (second 
order) minimum for linear and angular (bearing) closure shall be required for the boundary.  All 
internal units and elements shall have a closure accuracy of one-hundredth (0.01) foot. 

(129) All plans, elevations, units and elements shall be located, identified and labeled with 
appropriate dimension with sufficient linear, bearing and curve data.  No ditto marks shall be used 
for dimensions. 

(1310) The purpose, widths and location (with fine dashed lines) of all easements and all 
abutting easements and all general and limited common elements shall be shown.  If any easement 
already of record cannot be definitely located, a statement of its existence, the nature thereof and 
its recorded reference must appear on the title sheet.  Distances and bearings on the side lines of 
lots which are cut by an easement must be shown with an arrow or so shown that the plat will 
indicate clearly the actual length of the lot lines.  The widths of all easements and sufficient data to 
definitely locate the same with respect to the subdivision and each lot must be shown.  All 
easements must be clearly labeled and identified.  If an easement shown on the plat is already of 
record, its recorded reference number must be given.  If an easement is being dedicated by the 
plat, it shall be set out in the owner's certificate of dedication.  A plat note may be necessary to 
provide complete information of the purpose of the easement. 

(1411) The following certifications on a single sheet shall be provided in accordance with 
Article VIIIIX of this Chapter:  Surveyor, County Clerk and Recorder's office, Title Verification 
and City Approval as follows: 

This condominium platCondominium Plat is approved for filing in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder this _____ day of 
__________, 20___. 

By: (Community Development Director’s signature)                   (signature)                       

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
(Printed name of Director of Community Development Director) 

 

(a)  

Sec. 17-76-5060.     Recordation Post-approval procedure. 

 Within sixty (60) days of approval of the Condominium Plat by the Director, unless stated 
otherwise in such approval, and prior to recordation of the Condominium Plat in the office of 
the County Clerk and Recorder, the following requirements shall be completed: 

(1) The applicant shall amend the Condominium Plat document in accordance with the 
Community Development Director approval, as necessary, and submit to the Community 
Development Department two (2) fixed-line photographic or computer-generated mylar 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 174 of 241



reproductions (emulsion up) of the approved Condominium Plat, prepared on 24” x 36” 
flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of double matte Mylar film with a uniform 
thickness of not less than three thousandths (.003) of an inch, with notarized signatures by 
the owners on both sets.  A margin line shall be drawn completely around each sheet, 
leaving a margin of at least one (1) inch on all sides entirely blank.  No ballpoint, transfer 
type or sticky backs are permitted.  The Condominium Plat shall include all required 
signatures (except for the signature of the Director and other City Departments). 

(2) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the Condominium Plat in AutoCAD format, 
or as otherwise specified by Public Works, for use in updating the City's GIS system, 
either on CD or by e-mail to the City Public Works Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3). 

(3) The submission of any additional required documentation, and all recordation fees to the 
Community Development Department by the applicant.   

(4) The applicant shall provide a valid certificate of taxes paid from the Douglas County 
Treasurer’s Office for the area covered by the Condominium Plat that shows that there are 
no taxes in arrears. 

(5) Upon a determination that all above requirements are met, the Condominium Plat shall be 
recorded by the Public Works Department with the Clerk and Recorder’s Office.   

(a) Upon a determination by City staff that the condominium plat complies with the 
approval standards, two (2) photo Mylars shall be submitted to the Department for the 
Director's signature and recordation.(b) The applicant shall provide a digital copy of the 
final plat in AutoCAD format for use in updating the City's GIS system, either on CD or by e-
mail to the City Engineering Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-76-6070.     Expiration of approval. 

The provisions governing the expiration of approval shall be the same as those provided in Section 
17-6-120(a) Failure by the applicant to submit all required documentation within sixty (60) days 
of Director approval shall render approval of the Condominium Plat null and void and result in the 
necessity of the resubmittal of a Condominium Plat, if the Condominium Plat has expired, along with 
all required fees and documentation. 

(b) The Director may grant extensions up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the applicant 
or staff demonstrating good cause. Further extensions may be granted by the Council at a public 
meeting, upon a written request by the applicant or staff. 

(c) An extension request shall include a fee and a narrative stating the reasons for the applicant's 
inability to comply with the specified deadlines, listing any changes in the character of the 
neighborhood, any changes in the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 16 of this Code or this Chapter that 
have occurred since approval of the plat as these changes affect the Condominium Plat, and the 
anticipated time schedule for completing the platting process.  A fee schedule is available from the 
Community Development Department. Additional review of the Condominium Plat may occur, 
resulting in additional conditions as applicable. 

(d) The denial of an extension by the Director may be appealed to the Council in writing within 
ten (10) days of the decision by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 175 of 241



 of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE VIII 

Replat or VacationPlat Amendments and Vacations 

Sec. 17-87-10.     Intent. 

(a)  The purpose of these regulations is to provide a review process for the following: 

(1) A plat correction. 

(2) A lot line and/or utility easement vacation. 

(3) A lot line/ or building envelope adjustment. 

(4)   A replat of subdivision where additional lots are created 

(45) A vacation of a recorded platplat vacation without platted dedication and/or constructed 
public infrastructure, right-of-way or easement. 

(6) A plat vacation without platted dedication and/or constructed public infrastructure. 

(7) A vacation of public ways. 

 

(5) A replat of a subdivision or super block (i.e., replat of one [1] lot into two [2] lots or 
more). 

(b) The submittal process shall may vary according to the nature of the proposed amendment, 
based on but not limited to the following:  magnitude of change in design or size; impact to public 
facilities, services and roads; and overall impacts. The Director may modify the application 
procedures herein upon the determination that adequate public notice and input on the replat/vacation 
application can be attained through the modified process and that the modified process will not 
substantially impair the intent and purpose of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3)  

Sec. 17-7-20.   Approval standards. 

A plat amendment may be approved upon the finding that: 

(1) The plat amendment is in accordance with the adopted standards and criteria and the 
original conditions of approval as applicable.   

(2) New nonconforming lots are not created, and in the case of existing nonconforming lots, 
the nonconformity is not increased. 

(3) The replat/vacation or correction is consistent with the purpose of this Chapter. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 176 of 241



Sec. 17-87-2030.     PrerequisitePrerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of a replat/vacationplat amendment  application, the applicant shall meet with 
the Directorthe Community Development Department and Public Works Department to discuss the 
proposal, the procedures and submittal requirements and is encouraged to meet with the Engineering 
Department and other referral agencies to identify potential issues and ways to address these issues.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-8-30.  Approval standards. 

A replat/vacation or correction may be approved upon the finding that: 

(1) The replat/vacation or correction is in accordance with the adopted standards and criteria 
and the original conditions of approval. 

(2) Nonconforming lots are not created, and in the case of nonconforming lots, the 
nonconformity is not increased. 

(3) The replat/vacation or correction is consistent with the spirit and intent of this Chapter. 

(4) The approval will not adversely affect the public health, safety and welfare. 

____________________________________________________________ 

  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 177 of 241



SUMMARY OF REPLAT/VACATIONPLAT AMENDMENT AND VACATION PROCESS 
 

Type of ReplatAmendment Section 
No. 

HearingProcess Public NoticeReferral Required Document, incl. 
but are not limited to:s 

Plat correction 17-87-40 NO 
Admin.  

ProcedureDirector 
Approval 

Abutting landowners 
for road name changes, 

otherwise as 
determined by the 

Community 
Development Dept. 

• Plat Correction 
CertificatePlat Correction 
Certificate 

• Plat Correction Map if 
applicable 

Lot line vacation, e.g.,   
(replat 2+ lots into 1 lot) 
and/or utility easement 
vacation 
(including easements) 

17-87-50 NO 
Admin.  

ProcedureDirector 
Approval 

Special districts 
easement holders, as 
applicableApplicant 
provides letters from 
affected entities or 

parties 

• Vacation MapVacation 
Map 

• Vacation Approval 
Certificate 

• Corrected deed with new 
legal description 

Lot line or building 
envelope adjustment (replat 
3 lots into 2, 2 lots into 1, or 
no change to number of 
lots) (including 
easementsreconfiguration 
of lots or building 
envelopes, where no new 
lots are created) 

17-87-600 NO 
Admin.  

ProcedureDirector 
approval 

Special districts 
easement holders, as 
applicable; abutting 

landowners for change 
to building envelopeAs 

determined by the 
Community 

Development Dept. 

• Lot Line Adjustment Map 
• Lot Line Adjustment 

CertificateLot Line 
Adjustment Certificate 

• Corrected deed with new 
legal description 

Replat subdivision or super 
block (replat [1] lot into [2] 
or morewhere additional 
lots are created) 

17-87-70  Director 
Determined<

>3 SF detached 
lots created – City 
Council approval 

3 SF 
detached lots 
created – City 

Manager approval 

Any addl. lots 
created for SF 
attached, MF, or 
Nonresidential 
development – 
City Council 
approval 

Sketch plan, 
preliminary plan and/or 

final plat  As 
determined by the 

Community 
Development Dept. 

• Determined by 
DirectorFinal Plat, plus 
any additional submittal 
materials as required by 
the Director 

Plat vacation (without 
platted dedication and/or 
constructed  public 
infrastructure)  

17-7-80 Director approval NO Admin. 
ProcedureAs 

determined by the 
Community 

Development Dept. 

• Vacation Certificate 
• Vacation Map 

Plat Vacation (with platted 
dedication and/or 
constructed public 
infrastructure)Plat vacation 
(with public infrastructure 
or dedication) 

17-7-9017-
8-80 

City Council  Includes written notice 
to abutting 

landownersNO 

• Vacation Certificate 
• Vacation MapVacation 

Certificate 
• Vacation Map 

Vacation of ROW/access 
easementVacation of public 
ways Plat Vacation (with 
public infrastructure or 

17-7-
10017-8-90 

Planning 
Commission and 

City Council 

Posted notice  
and written notice to 

abutting landowners is 
required.   Published 

• Vacation Ordinance/Map 
or  

• Amended PlatVacation 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 178 of 241



dedication) notice Resolution 
• Vacation Map 

 
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

______________________________________________________________ 

Sec. 17-87-40.     Plat correction process and submittal requirements. 

The following administrative process is established for changes to recorded plats that are due to 
errors or omissions; i.e., dimensions, road name changess, plat notes: 

(1) Submittal documents.  The applicant shall submit: 

a. The applicant shall submit aA completed development application form (form available 
from the Community Development Department); and a written request detailing the 
specific correction. 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the 
date of application; 

d. A notarized letter or authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the 
Community Development Department);  

e. A written request detailing the specific correction, the plat to be corrected and its 
reception number.   

f. A Plat Correction Map if required by the Community Development Department. 

g.  A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area subject to the plat correction that shows 
that there are no taxes in arrears. 

(2) A plat correction certificatePlat Correction Certificate shall be prepared by the Directorthe 
Community Development  Department that identifies the error or omission, the plat to be 
corrected, its reception number and the necessary corrective action.  (Refer to Appendix 17-A.) 

(3) The plat correction certificatePlat Correction Certificate and/or map shall be signed by the 
Director if it is determined by the Director to meet the approval standards.  and The approved 
certificate and/or map shall be recorded in the County Clerk and Recorder's office by the Director 
the Public Works Department. 

(4) When the request is for a road name change, the following shall apply: 

a. When addresses have been assigned, the applicant shall notify all affected abutting 
landowners of the proposed change by certified mail, return receipt requested, at least ten (10) 
days prior to consideration by the Director.  The return receipts shall be submitted to the 
Departmentthe Community Development Department prior to the Director's decision. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 179 of 241



b. A road name shall not duplicate any existing road name in the City or County. 

(5) A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular business meeting, when a written 
request is submitted to the Departmentthe Community Development Department within thirty (30) 
days of denial by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-87-50.     Lot line and/or utility easement vacation with or without easements. 

The following administrative process is established for a lot line and/or utility easement vacation 
when there is no increase in the number of lots in the original plat; i.ee.g., the combination of two (2) 
or more lots into one (1) lot. 

(1) Submittal documents.  The applicant shall submit: 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Departmentthe 
Community Development Department); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. Vacation mapVacation Map:  a reproduction of the platted lots on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of 
paper, or another size approved by the Directorthe Community Development Department, 
including the abutting streets.  The map shall indicate the lot lines vacated and the new lot 
number.  A vicinity map - a reduction of the filing showing the relationship of the lot to the 
filing - shall be included. 

f. Corrected deed with new legal description. 

fg. A letter from each special district or entity that provides utility service to the lots, stating 
its recommendation(s) regarding the vacation. 

gh. When an utility easement is vacated, a letter from any known beneficiary, stating the 
beneficiary's recommendation regarding the vacation and any existing facilities the beneficiary 
may have over or across the land. 

i.  A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area subject to the vacation that shows that 
there are no taxes in arrears. 

(2) Process. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 180 of 241



a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department, who .  The Director shall review the information and prepare a 
vacation approval certificate for the Director's signature. 

b. The vacation certificate shall specify the plat affected, its reception number, the lot 
lines/easements vacated and reference to the vacation mapVacation Map and corrected deed, 
the recommendation of the special districts and easement holders, as applicable.  (Refer to 
Appendix 17-B.) 

c. The Director shall either approve or deny the request based on the submittal documents 
and approval standards. 

d. Within thirty (30) days of approval by the Director, staff the Public Works Department 
shall record the vacation approval certificate and vacation mapVacation Map in the County 
Clerk and Recorder's office and mail a copy of the recorded documents to the applicant. 

e. A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular business City Council meeting, 
when a written request is submitted to the Departmentthe Community Development 
Department within thirty (30) days of denial by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-87-60.     Lot line/building envelope adjustment. 

The following administrative process is established for a realignment of a lot line or building 
envelope, or replatting of several lots (e.g., three [3] lots into two [2]), in which the original 
subdivision is not substantially modified and additional lots are not created. 

(1) Submittal documents. 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Departmentthe 
Community Development Department); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. Lot line/building envelope adjustment map:  a certified boundary survey of the lots 
prepared by a professional land surveyor on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of paper, or another size 
approved by the Directorthe Community Development Department, that shows the existing and 
proposed lot/easement, or building envelope configuration with distances and bearings.  a A 
vicinity map (a reduction of the filing showing the relationship of the lots to the filing) - shall 
be included. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 181 of 241



f. A letter from each special district that provides utility service to the lots, stating its 
recommendation(s) regarding a lot line adjustment. 

gf. When an easement is realigned or vacated, a letter from any known beneficiary, stating 
the beneficiary's recommendation regarding the request and any existing facilities the 
beneficiary may have over or across the land. 

hg. When reconfiguring a building envelope that decreases the setback from a lot line, the 
applicant shall notify abutting landowners affected by the request.  Such notification shall be 
either an explanation of the request sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, at least ten 
(10) days prior to the Director's consideration of such request, or a signed statement from the 
abutting landowners, stating that they were notified of the request to relocate the building 
envelope. 

ih. A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the final platFinal Plat that shows 
that there are no taxes unpaidin arrears. 

(2) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department.  Staff shall refer a copy of the submittal to the appropriate agencies 
or parties unless a letter of comment was a part of the submittal or waived by the Director.. 

b. The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall review the information and 
prepare a lot line or building envelope adjustment certificate for the Director's signature. 

c. The lot line or building envelope adjustment certificate shall specify the affected plat, its 
reception number, the specific lots, easements or building envelope affected and reference the 
lot line/building envelope adjustment map and the recommendations of the special 
districts/easement holders, as applicable.  (Refer to Appendix 17-C.) 

d. The Director shall approve or deny the request based on the submittal documents, 
referral responses, and approval standards. 

e. When multiple owners are involved, the applicant shall provide deeds for the newly 
created configured lots and the recordation fee to the Directorthe Community Development 
Department, within thirty (30) days of approval by the Director.  The Director may grant an 
extension of time upon a written request from the applicant for good cause shown. 

f. Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the deeds, the DirectorPublic Works Department 
shall record the lot line adjustment certificateLot Line Adjustment Certificate, lot line 
adjustment map and deeds in the County Clerk and Recorder's office and provide a recorded 
copy to the applicant. 

g. A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular business City Council meeting, 
when a written request is submitted to the Departmentthe Community Development 
Department within thirty (30) days of denial by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 182 of 241



Sec. 17-87-70.     Replat of subdivision or super block process.where additional lots are created. 

(a) Replats of subdivided land, where additional lots are created requires tThe Director shall 
determine whether the replat of all or a portion of a subdivision is substantial or insubstantial based 
upon but not limited to the following review process: factors:  design, size, public concern, public 
facilities, services, access and transportation network. 

(1) When three or fewer lots are created for single-family detached land use, the Replat may 
determined by the Director to be insubstantial, the replat shall be acted on by the City Manager, 
according to the submittal and review requirements of Article IV processed in accordance with 
Article V  of this Chapter. .  

(2) When more than three lots are created for single-family detached land use, determined by 
the Director to be substantial, the replat Replat shall be processed processed in accordance with 
the submittal and review requirements of Article  IV V of this Chapter, except that it shall be acted 
on only by the City Council..    

(3)  When any lots are created for single-family attached, multi-family, or nonresidential land 
use, the Replat shall be acted on only by the City Council, according to the submittal and review 
requirements of Article IV of this Chapter.   

  

(b) These processes may be combined upon the approval of the Director based upon but 
not limited to the following factors:  design, size, public concern, public facilities, services, access 
and transportation network.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-87-80.     Vacation of plat without platted dedication and/or constructed public       
infrastructure.  /dedication. 

The following administrative process is established for the vacation of a subdivision plat without 
platted dedication or constructed public infrastructure or dedication: 

(1) Submittal documents.  The applicant shall submit: 

a. Completed development application (form available from the DepartmentCommunity 
Development); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the DepartmentCommunity Development); 

c. Proof of ownership which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. Vacation mapVacation Map - a reproduction of the subdivision on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of 
paper or another size approved by the Directorthe Community Development Department, 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 183 of 241



including the abutting streets.  Indicate the lots/streets/easements vacated.  A vicinity map shall 
be included that depicts the area surrounding the subdivision within a one-mile radius 
superimposed on a current County or City Subdivisionstreet map Map;. 

f. A letter from each special district that provides service to the lots, stating its 
recommendation(s) regarding the vacation. 

gf. When an easement is vacated, a letter from any known beneficiary, stating the 
beneficiary's recommendation regarding the vacation and any existing facilities the beneficiary 
may have over or across the land. 

g. A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the Final Plat to be vacated that 
shows that there are no taxes in arrears. 

(2) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department.  Staff shall refer a copy of the submittal to the appropriate agencies 
entities.unless a comment letter was a part of the submittal or waived by the Directorthe 
Community Development Department. 

b. The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall review the application and 
referral comments and prepare a vacation approval certificate for the Director's signature.  (See 
Appendix 17-B.)  The vacation approval certificate shall specify the plat to be vacated, its 
reception number, the lot lines vacated and reference to the vacation mapVacation Map and the 
recommendations of the special districts and easement holders, as applicable. 

c. The Director shall either approve or deny the request based on the submittal documents, 
referral comments, and approval standards. 

d. Within thirty (30) days of approval by the Director, staff the Public Works Department 
shall record the vacation approval certificate and vacation mapVacation Map in the County 
Clerk and Recorder's office. 

e. A denial may be appealed to the Council at a regular business City Council meeting, 
when a written request is submitted to the Departmentthe Community Development 
Department within thirty (30) days of denial by the Director.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-87-90.     Vacation of plat with platted dedication and/or constructed public 
infrastructure/dedication. 

The following process is established for the vacation of a subdivision plat with public 
infrastructure or dedication. 

(1) Submittal documents. 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Departmentthe 
Community Development Department); 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 184 of 241



b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department); 

c. Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy, title 
commitment or subdivision guarantee issued no more than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
application; 

d. A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application (form available from the Community 
Development Department); 

e. A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the Final Plat to be vacated that 
shows that there are no taxes in arrears. 

e.f. Vacation mapVacation Map - a reproduction of the subdivision on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of 
paper or another size approved by the Directorthe Community Development Department, 
including the abutting streets.  Indicate the lots/streets/easements to be vacated.  A vicinity map 
shall be included that depicts the area surrounding the subdivision within a one-mile radius 
superimposed on a current  County or City Subdivision Mapstreet map. 

f.g. Letters from the following stating their recommendation regarding the vacation and 
any existing facilities they have over or across the land: 

1. City Public Works and/or aAll special districts providing maintenance of 
infrastructure within the right-of-way; 

2. All landowners abutting or using an access proposed for vacation; and 

3. All known easement beneficiaries. 

gh. Stamped envelopes addressed to the abutting landowners for notification of the vacation 
application.  A map identifying the platted area to be vacated and its relationship to the 
abutting landowners shall be included. 

(2) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department.  Once the submittal is determined complete, the Directorthe 
Community Development Department will mail referral packets to the appropriate agencies 
and letters to the abutting landowners. 

b. The referral agencies shall comment withinperiod shall be twenty-one (21) days. of 
receiving the packet.  The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall review the 
referral comments and submittal information,  and prepare a staff report for the Council, and 
notify the applicant of the hearing date and time. 

c. The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall mail a notice by first-class 
mail to the last known address of each abutting landowner in the stamped envelopes provided 
by the applicant, at least twelve (12) days prior to the Council hearing.  The notice shall 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 185 of 241



indicate the time and place of the Council hearing and that a resolution to vacate the plat will 
be presented at the hearing. 

d. The Council shall evaluate the vacation request, referral agency comments, staff report 
and public testimony and shall approve, conditionally approve, table for further study or deny 
the vacation request.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a 
finding of compliance with applicable standards, regulations, policies and guidelinesthe Plat 
Amendment Approval Standards. 

e. The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall prepare a vacation 
resolution that specifies the plat vacated, its reception number, the lot lines vacated, reference 
to the vacation mapVacation Map and the recommendations of the special districts and 
easement holders, as applicable. 

f. Within thirty (30) days of approval by the Council, the DirectorPublic Works 
Department shall record the vacation resolution and vacation mapVacation Map in the County 
Clerk and Recorder's office.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-87-100.    Roadway Vvacation of public ways.  – submittal documents and process. 

(a) The Council has authority to vacate public ways,roadways, including any rights-of-way, 
public street, alley, lane, parkway, avenue, road, trail or other public way designated or dedicated on a 
plat, conveyed by deed or recorded access easement (whether or not it has ever been used as such), or 
acquired by prescriptive use, whether or not it has ever been used as such.  A street that has been 
established but has not been used as such, may be vacated and replatted through the process 
determined appropriate by the Director, i.e., the full process (sketch/preliminary/final plat), or just the 
final plat process. 

(b) The following procedure is established for the vacation of a roadway:public ways: 

(1) Approval standards. 

a. A platted or deeded roadway, or portion thereof, or unplatted or undefined roadways that 
have arisen by public usage shall not be vacated so as to leave any land adjoining said roadway 
without an established public road or private access easement connecting said land with 
another established public road. (Section 43-2-303(2)(a), C.R.S.) 

b. A vacation of a state highway must be approved by the Transportation 
CommissionColorado Department of Transportation. 

(2) Vesting of title.  Vesting of title upon vacation shall be in accordance with Section 43-2-
302, C.R.S. 

(3) Submittal documents. 

a. A completed development application (form available from the Departmentthe 
Community Development Department); 

b. Application fee (fee schedule available from the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department); 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 186 of 241



c. Exhibit (one of the following): 

 1. Vacation mapVacation Map for unplatted roads or easements (whose vacation does 
not affect platted lands or create a separate parcel) - a reproduction of the street road or access 
easement on an 8.5" x 11" sheet of paper or another size approved by the Directorthe 
Community Development Department. Include a written legal description and a vicinity map - 
a reduction of the subdivision showing the location of the street in relation to the lots, or the 
area surrounding the street within a one-mile radius, superimposed on a current street map. 

2. A.   Plat Amendment on 24” x 36” sheet for the vacation of platted rights-of-way, access 
easements, or when a separate parcel is created.  Include aInclude the written legal description.  
A written legal description and a vicinity map shall be included - a reduction of the subdivision 
showing the location of the street in relation to the lots, or the area surrounding the street 
within a one-mile radius, superimposed on a current County or City Subdivision Mapstreet 
map. 

d. Letters from the following, stating their recommendation regarding the vacation and any 
existing facility they have over or across the land: 

1. All special districts providing maintenance of infrastructure within the right-of-way; 
and 

2. All known easement beneficiaries and utilities in the right-of-way. 

e. Stamped (unsealed) envelopes addressed to abutting landowners and other landowners 
using the access public way proposed for vacation, as specified by the Directorthe Community 
Development Department, for notification of the vacation application.  The notice shall 
indicate the time and place of the Council hearing and shall indicate that an ordinance or plat 
amendment to vacate the road will be presented at the Council hearing.  A map shall be 
included identifying the area to be vacated and relationship to the abutting landowners. 

(4) Process. 

a. The applicant shall submit the required information to the Departmentthe Community 
Development Department.  Once the submittal is determined complete, the Directorthe 
Community Development Department will mail referral packets to the appropriate agencies 
and letters to the abutting landowners. 

b. The referral agencies shall comment withinperiod shall be twenty-one (21) days.  of 
receiving the packet.  The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall review the 
information and prepare a staff report for the Planning Commission City Council and notify the 
applicant of the hearing date and time. 

c. The applicant shall be responsible for public notice, prior to the Planning Commission 
hearingCouncil hearing, in compliance with the public notice requirements in Section 17-78-
110 below. 

d. The Planning Commission shall evaluate the application, referral comments, staff report 
and public testimony, and make a recommendation to the Council to approve, approve with 
conditions, table for further study or deny the vacation request.  The Planning Commission's 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 187 of 241



decision shall be based on the evidence presented and applicable standards, regulations, 
policies and guidelines. 

e. Following the recommendation by the Planning Commission, the Director will schedule 
the vacation request for a public hearing with the Council and notify the applicant of the 
hearing date and time. 

f. The applicant shall be responsible for public notice, prior to the Council hearing, in 
compliance with the public notice requirements in Section 17-8-110 below. 

gd. The Council shall evaluate the vacation request, referral agency comments, staff report, 
the Planning Commission recommendation and public testimony and shall approve, 
conditionally approve, table for further study, remand to the Planning Commission or deny the 
vacation request.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a finding 
of compliance with applicable standards, regulations, policies and guidelines. 

He. The DirectorIn the case of unplatted road, access easement or public way acquired by 
prescriptive use, the Community Development Department shall prepare a vacation 
ordinanceVacation Ordinance that specifies the legal description of the roadway or access 
easement to be vacated and the reception number of the plat and that makes reference to the 
recommendation of the special districts and easement holders, as applicable. 

if. Upon approval by the Council, the Directorthe Community Development Department 
shall, in consultation with the County or City Attorney, as applicable, prepare, where 
applicable,  any deeds required by the vacation.   

g.  Within thirty (30) days, the DirectorThe Public Works Department shall submit the 
vacation ordinanceVacation Ordinance, vacation mapVacation Map and deeds, or the Plat 
Amendmentas required, for recordation in the County Clerk and Recorder's office.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3).   

Sec. 17-87-110. Public notice. 

 (a) Published notice. 

(1) At least five (5) days prior to the Planning Commission hearing and five (5) days prior to 
the Council hearing, the applicant shall publish a notice in the official publication. 

(2) At least three (3) days prior to the hearing, the applicant shall provide a publisher's 
affidavit of said published notice to the Department. 

(3) The notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
BEFORE THE (PLANNING COMMISSION  

OR CITY COUNCIL) 

A public hearing will be held on (day of week), (date), at (time), in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree 
Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124, for a proposed vacation of (name of street and legal description).  For more 
information contact the Community Development Department [303-708-1818]. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 188 of 241



File name and number:  __________________ 

(4) When concurrent notice has been approved by the Director, the notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION  

AND CITY COUNCIL 

A public hearing will be held before the Planning Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time), and before the 
Council on (day of week), (date), at (time) in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone 
Tree, CO 80124, for a proposed vacation of (name of street and legal description

File name and number:  __________________ 

).  For more information contact the 
Community Development Department [303-708-1818]. 

(ba) Posted notice. 

(1) At least twelve (12) days prior to the Planning Commission hearing and twelve (12) days 
prior to the Council hearing, the applicant shall post a notice on the roadway property under 
consideration. 

(2) The notice shall consist of at least one (1) sign at each end of the roadway to be vacated, 
visible to the public, placed on posts at least four (4) feet above ground level.  Additional signs 
may be required by the Directorthe Community Development Department.  Each sign shall 
measure not less than three (3) feet by four (4) feet.  Letter size shall be a minimum of three (3) 
inches high.  Said notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING  
BEFORE THE (PLANNING COMMISSION  

OR CITY COUNCIL) 

This roadway shall be considered for vacation pursuant to the City Subdivision code on (day of week), (date), at 
(time

File name and number:  __________________ 

) in the City Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124.  For more 
information contact the Community Development Department [303-708-1818]. 

(3) When concurrent notice has been approved by the Director, the notice shall read: 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS  
BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION  

AND CITY COUNCIL 

This roadway shall be considered for vacation pursuant to the City Subdivision code before the Planning 
Commission on (day of week), (date), at (time) and before the Council on (day of week), (date), at (time

File name and number:  __________________ 

) in the City 
Council Hearing Room, 8527 Lone Tree Pkwy., City of Lone Tree, CO 80124.  For more information contact the 
Community Development Department [303-708-1818]. 

a. Sign-posting affidavit.  An affidavit of sign posting shall be submitted for the file in the 
Community Development Department at least three (3) days prior to the hearings.  The signs 
shall be photographed by the applicant, and the photo shall be attached to the affidavit as 
follows: 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 189 of 241



(attach photo here) 

I,      (applicant/representative)     , attest that the above sign was posted on (date), at (location) pursuant to the 
City Subdivision code. 

         (signature)             

File name and number:  _______________ 

 
(printed name of applicant/representative) 

Signed and sworn before me this date: ______ 

NOTARIZED BY:  _______________ 

b. The sign shall be removed by the applicant within two (2) weeks following the final 
decision by the Council. 

 (c) Written notice. 

(1) At least twelve (12) days prior to the Council hearing, a notice shall be mailed by first-
class mail to the last known address of each abutting landowner.  The notice shall indicate the time 
and place of the Council meeting and shall indicate that an ordinance to vacate the roadway will 
be presented at the meeting.  (Section 43-2-303(2)(c), C.R.S.) 

(2) Evidence of such mailing shall be provided to the Department at least three (3) days prior 
to the hearing. 

(db) When calculating the required time period for posting or publishing a notice of a public 
hearing, the day of publishing or posting shall be counted in the total number of days required.  The 
day of the hearing shall not be counted toward the total number of days required for the notification 
period.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-87-120120.    Application resubmittal. 

An application submitted pursuant to Sections 17-8-70, 17-8-80, 17-8-90, 17-8-100this Article 
below shall not be resubmitted within one (1) year of the date of denial.  However, if the Director  
determines that the resubmitted application has been modified to correct the stated objections, then, at 
the Director's discretion, the resubmittal may be considered before one (1) year from the denial.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-87-130130.    Lot numbering. 

When vacating or replatting lots/tracts, the following shall apply: 

(1) When vacating a common lot line between two (2) lots, the original lot number followed 
by the letter "A" shall be used.  For example, if vacating the common lot line between Lots 1 and 
2, the newly created lot shall be renumbered Lot 1A. 

(2) When replatting three (3) lots into two (2) lots, the original lot numbers followed by the 
letter "A" shall be used.  For example, if replatting Lots 3, 4 and 5 into two (2) lots, the new lots 
shall be numbered Lot 3A and Lot 4A. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 190 of 241



(3) When adjusting the common lot line between two (2) lots, the original lot numbers 
followed by the letter "A" shall be used.  For example, if realigning the common lot line between 
Lots 7 and 8, the new lots shall be numbered Lot 7A and Lot 8A. 

(4) When replatting an entire subdivision filing, the lots shall be numbered consecutively 
starting with the number 1.  Tracts shall be lettered alphabetically in consecutive order.  The 
acreage within each lot and tract shall be specified.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

ARTICLE IXVIII 

Certifications 

Sec. 17-98-10.     Intent. 

The final platFinal Plat shall contain executed certificates, notices and statements in the following 
form.  Such certificates, notices or statements may be modified by the City Attorney as required or 
with the permission of the City Attorney when warranted by special conditions.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-98-20.     Signatures. 

All signatures must be signed in indelible black ink only as approved by the County Clerk and 
Recorder.  No red ink and no ballpoints are permitted.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-98-30.     Title verification. 

Either one (1) of the following title verification statements is acceptable: 

I/we (name of title insurance co. or attorney)

[list any encumbrances] 

, do hereby certify that I/we have examined the title of all land platted 
hereon and that title to such land is in the dedicator(s) free and clear of all liens, taxes and encumbrances, except as 
follows: 

Company Name 

               (signature)                

OR 

         (date)      

Name of Attorney      ________(date)_ 
By: (notarized signature

Registration #_____ 

)  

OR 

    Name of Authorized Official   

I, ____________, an attorney at law, do hereby certify that I have examined Title Insurance Commitment No. 
__________, dated ___________, issued by (name of title company), and copies of the recorded instruments referenced 
in that commitment.  In my opinion title to the land platted herein is in the dedicator(s), subject to easements of record, 
taxes for the current year and 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 191 of 241



[list any encumbrances] 

     (signature)              (date)     

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
   Attorney at Law   Registration # ______ 

Sec. 17-98-40.    Dedication statement. 

The dedication statement shall be as follows: 

The undersigned, being all the owners, mortgagees, beneficiaries of deeds of trust and holders of other interests in the 
land described herein, have laid out, subdivided and platted said lands into lots, tracts, blocks, streets rights-of-way and 
easements as shown hereon under the name and subdivision of ____________.  The utility easements shown hereon are 
hereby dedicated for public utilities and cable communication systems, and other easements are hereby dedicated for the 
purposes as shown hereon.  The entities responsible for providing the services for which the easements are established 
are hereby granted the perpetual right of ingress and egress from and to adjacent properties for installation, maintenance 
and replacement of utility lines and related facilities.  The (streets rights-of-way and tracts – indicate those that are 
applicable) shown hereon are dedicated and conveyed to the City of Lone Tree, CO, in fee simple absolute, with 
marketable title, for public uses and purposes.  The signature of any representative of any partnership or corporate entity 
indicates that all required partnership or corporate approvals have been obtained. 

(Signature of Owner/Mortgagee, etc.)   

Attest: 

 
By: _printed name_____________ 

Title: ___________________ 

_______________________ 
       Secretary 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ day of __________, 20 __, by *  (Name, Title

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

). 

_______________________ 
Notary Public 

My Commission expires:  ___________________ 

*Signatures of officers of partnership or corporate entities shall correctly indicate the name and type of entity, the name 
of the person signing and their title or authority for signing the dedication document. 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-98-45.     Storm drainage facilities statement. 

The storm drainage facilities statement shall be as follows: 

The City of Lone Tree requires that maintenance access be provided to all storm drainage facilities to assure continuous 
operational capability of the system.  The property Owner shall be responsible for the maintenance of all drainage 
facilities including inlets, pipes, culverts, channels, ditches, hydraulic structures and detention basins located on their 
land unless modified by the subdivider's agreement.  Should the Owner fail to adequately maintain said facilities, the 
City of Lone Tree shall have the right to enter said land for the purposes of operations and maintenance.  All such 
maintenance costs will be assessed to the property Owner. 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-8-47.     General overlot drainage note. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 192 of 241



    The general overlot drainage note shall be as follows: 

Lots and Tracts as platted herein may be required to convey surface drainage from other lots and 
tracts in this filing, in accordance with City of Lone Tree requirements and the approved drainage 
plan for this filing. No alterations to the grading of the lots and tracts may be made that would 
disrupt the approved drainage plan, without prior approval from the City of Lone Tree.  All natural 
and improved drainage ways or drainage systems in said lots and tracts shall be maintained by the 
lot or tract owner in accordance with City of Lone Tree criteria.  Should the owner fail to 
adequately maintain said facilities, the City of Lone Tree shall have the right to enter said land for 
the purposes of operations and maintenance of the drainage ways or drainage systems.  All such 
maintenance costs will be assessed to the property owner.   

 

Sec. 17-98-50.     Surveyor certificate. 

(a) The surveyor's certificate shall be as follows: 

I, (Surveyor's Name), a duly registered Professional Land Surveyor in the State of Colorado, do hereby certify that this 
plat truly and correctly represents the results of a survey made on (date of survey

I attest the above on this ___ day of _____, 20 ___. 

), by me or under my direct supervision 
and that all monuments exist as shown hereon; that mathematical closure errors are less than 1:50,000 (second order); 
and that said plat has been prepared in full compliance with all applicable laws of the State of Colorado dealing with 
monuments, subdivisions or surveying of land and all applicable provisions of the City Subdivision Regulations. 

        (signature)       

Colorado Registered Professional Land Surveyor # ___ 

 
(Surveyor's Name printed) 

(b) The surveyor's seal shall appear with this certificate.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-98-60.     Planning Commission signature as applicable for final platFinal Plats. 

The Planning Commission certification for final platFinal Plats that have been through the sketch 
and preliminary Preliminary or combined preliminary/final platFinal Plat processprocess, as 
applicable,  shall be as follows: 

The sketch plan (file number) and preliminary planPreliminary Plan (file number) for this final platFinal Plat were was 
reviewed by the Planning Commission. 

By:                      (signature)                       

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
(Printed name), Community Development Director,    

on behalf of the Planning Commission 

Sec. 17-9-65. Planning Commission signature for minor development plat. 

The Planning Commission certification for minor development plats shall be as follows: 

The minor development plat (file number) and preliminary plan (file number) for this final plat were reviewed by the 
Planning Commission. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 193 of 241



                     (signature)                       

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
Community Development Director,    

on behalf of the Planning Commission 

 

Sec. 17-8-65.   Community Development Director or City Manager signatures 

     Where the Community Development Director or City Manager are authorized to approve an 
application as provided in this Chapter, use the applicable Council signature block statement from 
Sec. 17-8-70 and substitute with their title and name. 
 
Sec. 17-98-70.     Council approval. 

The following signature blocks for the Council approval shall be used, as applicable: 

(1) All plats, except replats or vacations: 

This plat was approved for filing by the Council of the City of Lone Tree, CO, on the _____ day of 
______________, 20___, subject to any conditions specified hereon.  The dedications of (streetsrights-of-way, 
tracts, easements – indicate those that are applicable

All expenses incurred with respect to improvements for all utility services, paving, grading, landscaping, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, road lighting, road signs, flood protection devices, drainage structures and all other 
improvements that may be required shall be the responsibility of the subdivider and not the City. 

) are accepted. 

This acceptance does not guarantee that the soil conditions, subsurface geology, groundwater conditions or 
flooding conditions of any lot shown hereon are such that a building permit will be issued. 

            (signature)             

(2) For vacations approved by City Council: 

 
(printed name of ), Mayor, City of Lone Tree 

This plat was approved for filing by the City Council of Lone Tree, CO, on the _____ day of _________, 20___, 
subject to any conditions specified hereon. 

The (streetsrights-of-way, lots, tracts, parcels and easements - indicate those that are applicable) shown on the 
plat of (the original subdivision name), recorded in the Office of the Clerk and Recorder, Reception # 
____________ are hereby vacated this _____ day of ______________, 20___. 

            (signature)             

(3) For replats approved by City Council: 

 
Printed name, Mayor, City of Lone Tree 

This plat was approved for filing by the City Council of Lone Tree, CO, on the _____ day of ___________, 
20___, subject to any conditions specified hereon.  The dedications of (streetsrights-of-way, tracts, easements - 
indicate those that are applicable

Lot ___, Block _____, 

) are accepted. 

   (subdivision)   

All expenses incurred with respect to improvements for all utility services, paving, grading, landscaping, curbs, 
gutters, sidewalks, road lighting, road signs, flood protection devices, drainage structures, and all other 
improvements that may be required shall be the responsibility of the subdivider and not the City . 

, Filing #______ is amended by this plat subject to all covenants, 
conditions and restrictions recorded against and appurtenant to the original plat recorded in the Office of the 
Clerk and Recorder, Reception #___________. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 194 of 241



This acceptance does not guarantee that the soil conditions, subsurface geology, groundwater conditions or 
flooding conditions of any lot shown hereon are such that a building permit, well permit or sewage disposal 
permit can or will be issued. 

            (signature)             

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
Printed name, Mayor, City of Lone Tree 

Sec. 17-98-80.     County Clerk and Recorder. 

The County Clerk and Recorder certification shall be as follows: 

State of Colorado ) 
 )  ss. 
County of Douglas ) 

I hereby certify that this plat was filed in my office on this _____ day of ___________, 20___ A.D., at _____ a.m./p.m., 
and was recorded at Reception Number ____________. 

           (signature)       

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 
Clerk and Recorder 

ARTICLE IX 

Exemptions 

Sec. 17-109-10.     Intent. 

The purpose of these regulations is to establish criteria and a review process to permit the Council 
to grant exemptions from the requirements of this Chapter that would otherwise apply to the property 
if the property were defined as a subdivision or subdivided land under this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 
3) 

Sec. 17-109-20.     Prerequisite. 

Prior to submittal of the exemption request, the applicant shall meet with the Directorthe 
Community Development Department to determine whether the exemption request meets the 
exemption criteria and to discuss the procedure and submittal requirements.  If the subject parcel is 
within a recorded subdivision, the plat shall be amended in accordance with Article VII of this 
Chapter.  If it is determined that the applicant is using the exemption process to circumvent the 
subdivision process, the applicant shall be required to comply with the sketch plan, preliminary 
planPreliminary Plan and final platFinal Plat process or minor development process of this Chapter as 
applicable.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-109-30.     Criteria. 

An exemption proposal shall be consistent with each of the following criteria as applicable in 
order to receive an exemption from the definition of the term subdivision: 

(1) Any boundary line adjustments may that does not create additional parcels (unplatted land 
only). 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 195 of 241



(2) Exemptions that create additional parcels shall be permitted for parcels with more than one 
(1) principal residence, provided that all of the following criteria are met: 

a. Each residence was constructed in conformance with the applicable City regulations in 
effect at the time the residence was constructed; 

b. Each residence shall have a documented history of continuous use as a single-family 
dwelling; 

c. Legal and physical access shall be provided to all parcels by public right-of-way or 
recorded easement, acceptable to the City Engineer in compliance with the Roadway Design 
and Construction Standards. 

Note:  The following shall not be considered to be a principal residence:  structures previously 
considered uninhabitable or accessory to a principal residence. , a guest house, resort or seasonal 
cabins used in conjunction with a lodge operation or housing for tenant labor. 

(3) Exemptions shall be considered for divisions of land that create parcels for public or quasi-
public use, such as community facilities where no dwelling units are allowed, including but not 
limited to a utility facility, park, open space, fire station, sheriff substation, library, metro district 
office and water/sewage facility. 

(4) Other divisions of land accomplished by deed recorded in the County Clerk and Recorder's 
office that the Council determines are not within the provisions of this Chapter.  If it is determined 
that the applicant is using the exemption process to circumvent the provisions of this Chapter, the 
applicant shall be required to comply with the applicable sections of this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 
Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-109-40.     Submittal process. 

(a) The applicant shall submit one (1) copy of the complete exemption request to the Directorthe 
Community Development Department. 

(b) The DirectorCommunity Development Department shall review the submittal for 
completeness and notify the applicant of any deficiencies.  An incomplete submittal will not be 
processed. 

(c) Once the submittal is determined complete, the Directorthe Community Development 
Department shall review the exemption request, review all documentation submitted and prepare a 
staff report for the Council.  When all outstanding issues have been satisfactorily addressed, the 
Directorthe Community Development Department will notify the applicant of the public meeting with 
the Council. 

(d) At a public meeting, the Council shall evaluate the exemption request, staff comments and 
public testimony and shall either approve, approve with conditions, table for further study or deny the 
request.  The Council's action shall be based on the evidence presented and a finding of compliance 
with applicable standards, regulations, policies and guidelines. 

(e) If denied by the Council, the applicant may pursue subdivision in accordance with the 
appropriate process contained in this Chapter.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 196 of 241



Sec. 17-109-50.     General submittal requirements. 

General submittal requirements are as follows: 

(1) A completed development application (form available from the Community Development 
Department). 

(2) Application fee (fee schedule available from the Community Development Department). 

(3) Proof of ownership, which includes an updated or current title insurance policy or title 
commitment no more than thirty (30) days old. 

(4) A copy of the original deed that created the parcel. 

(5) A notarized letter of authorization from the landowner identifying and permitting a 
representative, if applicable, to process the application. 

(6) Evidence that legal and physical access, acceptable to the City Engineer in compliance 
with the Roadway Design and Construction Standards, shall be provided for all parcels by public 
right-of-way or recorded easement. 

(7)  A valid certificate of taxes paid for the land area of the Exemption that shows that there are 
no taxes in arrears. 

(78) Any other data essential to the evaluation as reasonably may be required by the 
Directorthe Community Development Department to enable an adequate review of the exemption.  
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-109-60.     Plan exhibit. 

The applicant shall submit a graphic representation prepared on a sheet size approved by the 
Directoron 24” x 36” sheet, drawn at a scale of 1" = 50' or 1" = 100', or another scale approved by the 
Director, to scale with a one-inch margin on all sides, which best conveys the conceptual aspects of 
the plan and shall include the following information: 

(1) A written legal description and a map showing all boundary lines and dimensions of the 
land to be exempted, drawn at a scale of 1" = 50' or 1" = 100', or another scale approved by the 
Director. 

(2) The title, placed at the top of the sheet along the long dimension of each sheet and 
including the name of the proposal; project file number; a general legal description stating the 
aliquot portion of the section, section, township, range, 6th P.M., "City of Lone Tree," total 
acreage and total number of lots.  

Example: 

 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 197 of 241



WILSON'S EXEMPTION File # _____ 
A part of the SW/4 NE/4 of Section 10,  

Township 6 South, Range 66 West of the 6th P.M.,  
Lone Tree, CO 

.5 Acres  2 Residential Lots 
File # _______ 

 
(3) A north arrow designated as true north; a written and graphic scale; the names and 

addresses of the owners; and date of preparation. 

(4) A vicinity map that depicts the area surrounding the proposed exemption within a one-
mile radius on a current street map. 

(5) Topography of the site at two-foot intervals, unless otherwise approved by the Directorthe 
Community Development Department. 

(6) Ownership, zoning and use of all adjacent subdivided, unsubdivided and public lands. 

(7) Significant features, including but not limited to existing structures, utility lines, natural 
and artificial drainageways, ditches, lakes, vegetative groundcover, rock outcroppings, geologic 
features and hazards, dams, reservoirs, excavations, mines, fence lines, driveways, easements, well 
sites and water lines and waste lines. 

(8) Any other data reasonably essential to the exemption request may be requested by the 
Directorthe Community Development Department to enable an adequate evaluation of the 
proposed exemption.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-109-70.     Post-approval actions. 

(a) After the Council has approved the exemption, the applicant shall prepare deeds that 
accurately describe the land approved by the exemption and all the necessary easements.  The deeds 
shall also include the following: 

(1) A statement on the deed, immediately following the legal description, that states:  "This 
deed is given to implement the approval of File #_____ on (date

(2) Two (2) fix-line photographic or computer-generated mylar reproductions (emulsion up) 
of the approved Exemption, prepared on 24” x 36” flat, spliceless, tapeless and creaseless sheets of 
double matte Mylar film with a uniform thickness of not less than three thousandths (.003).A 
scaled drawing of the site attached as an exhibit. 

) by the City Council." 

(b) Maintenance agreements as may be deemed necessary by the Council for the proposed use of 
common facilities and continued maintenance of roads, driveways, water sources, waste disposal 
facilities and their associated easements shall be recorded with the deed referencing the project 
number and the date of approval. 

(c) Within sixty (60) days of approval of an exemption, unless stated otherwise in such approval, 
the applicant shall submit, ready for recordation, the deeds, plan exhibit, required easements or 
maintenance agreements and a copy of the Council resolution to the Directorthe Community 
Development Department. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 198 of 241



(d) Within thirty (30) days after submittal of the required documentation, the Directorthe Public 
Works Department shall record such documents in the County Clerk and Recorder's office. 

(e) The Director may grant extensions of time up to one (1) year, upon a written request by the 
applicant.  A denial by the Director may be appealed, in writing, to the Council within ten (10) days 
from the date of the denial by the Director. 

(f) If the exemption request is denied by the Council, the applicant may proceed with the 
subdivision request in compliance with this Chapter.  An exemption request for the same or 
substantially the same request, as determined by the Director, shall not be accepted within one (1) 
year of such denial.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE XI 

Dedication Standards 

Division 1 
General Provisions 

Sec. 17-1110-10.    Intent. 

(a) The purpose of these regulations is to provide adequate sites to be dedicated for the public 
facilities generated by new residential development.  The intent is to require appropriate mitigation in 
reasonable proportion to the impacts being created by the new development.  Such sites may be 
dedicated to the City, applicable special district or homeowners' association for eventual construction 
and maintenance, as approved by the City. 

(b) Although encouraged, nonresidential development is not subject to public dedication 
requirements, unless otherwise provided for in Planned Development or Annexation Agreement 
obligations.  Non-residential development does not create significant demand for public facilities, yet 
provides ongoing revenue to the City and special districts for such facilities. 

(c) For a Planned Development (PD), this Article shall apply only when the required land 
dedication has not been satisfied.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-20.      General requirements. 

(a) The developer shall provide for the construction, at no cost to the City, applicable special 
district or public, all roads adjacent to publicly dedicated sites, traffic signalization to serve the site, 
extension of all utilities to the site and other public infrastructure, as required by the Council.  A 
cashier's check, letter of credit or other security to guarantee construction of the improvements shall 
be provided by the developer at such time stated by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

(b) Open space.  Land within the proposed development may be required for open space 
purposes in addition to park land dedication requirements as determined by the City in consideration 
of factors including, but not limited to: 

(1)  Identification or separation of communities or subdivisions or provision of expansive 
visual relief from development. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 199 of 241



(2)  Provision of a buffer or transition between different land uses. 

(3)  Preservation or protection of: 

a. Scenic areas, including vistas along highway corridors; 

b. Fish and wildlife habitats; 

c. Prominent land forms and landmarks; 

d. Outdoor recreation areas; 

e. Cultural, historic and archaeological areas; 

f. Unique vegetative areas; 

g. Critical ecosystems; 

h. Floodplains and riparian areas; 

i. Surface water; or 

j. Watershed areas. 

(4)  Provision of City-wide or regional trails and linkages, public access to lakes, streams 
and other public lands, passive recreation opportunities or outdoor and nature study areas. 

(c) Property may not be considered for open space dedication acceptance if it is an exclusive 
utility or other easement, or a public street, right-of-way or pedestrian walkway required under other 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

Division 2 
Parks 

Sec. 17-1110-11030.     General requirements. 

(a) Whenever land is proposed for residential use, the developer of the land shall provide land or 
cash in lieucash-in-lieu of land for park demand generated by the proposed use.  Such dedication is 
intended to generally off-set the anticipated demands generated by residential development for such 
amenities.  In general, these lands shall be suitable for the development of active play areas, passive 
recreation areas, trails or, in some instances, to preserve unique land forms or natural areas.  Where 
no suitable land is available in a residential or nonresidential development, cash in lieucash-in-lieu of 
land or of equivalent value in the donation of recreational facilities may be substituted at the City's 
discretion.  Additional dedication for open space may be required by the Council if deemed necessary 
to preserve or conserve natural areas of special significance.  (See Paragraph 17-1-20(3)Sec. 17-10-20 
(b) of this ChapterArticle). 

(b) Amount of park land dedication. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 200 of 241



(1) The following formula shall be used to calculate the minimum amount of land dedication 
required of residential developments by the City which is deemed necessary to provide adequate 
land for parks.  This formula is based on 15 acres/1,000 population (based on an occupancy factor 
of 3.0 people per household).  For example, where three hundred (300) dwelling units are 
proposed (3 x 300 = 900 population), the following calculation is made: 

(15 acre/1,000 population) = .015 

.015 X 900 population = 13.5 acres 

(2) For the purposes of calculating the required dedication, existing dwelling units within a 
subdivision shall be excluded from the calculation of the park requirement if they have previously 
been included in the calculation of City park dedication or cash in lieucash-in-lieu thereof through 
the subdivision process.  If the existing dwelling units have not previously been included in the 
calculation for park land dedication or cash in lieucash-in-lieu of land, they will be included in the 
calculation. 

(3) Land proposed for park dedication shall be clearly identified on any submitted plat or site 
plan, including the number of acres for each site and the total acreage proposed for City park 
dedication within the project. 

(4) Land proposed for park dedication shall be located within the proposed new development 
or, if not feasible, may be located off-site within a service area not more than two (2) miles from 
the site, as agreed to by the applicant and the City. 

(c) Land dedication for nonresidential development.  Within nonresidential development and 
nonresidential components of a Planned Development, provision of park facilities, trails and open 
space within nonresidential development is encouraged.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-12040.     Conveyance of land. 

The conveyance of dedicated park land to the City shall be by warranty deed, and the title shall be 
free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, including real property taxes prorated to the time of 
conveyance.  The subdivider shall provide the City with a title insurance policy, insuring title in an 
amount equal to the market value of the property and in the City's name, and a certified survey at the 
time of conveyance.  Dedicated park land shall include the necessary water rights or other available 
water service to provide for irrigation and drinking water.  Parks and all dedicated open space shall be 
conveyed to the City prior to recordation of the first final platFinal Plat for the subdivision, or as 
otherwise agreed upon or stipulated by zoning or annexation commitment.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-13050.     Cash in lieuCash-in-lieu of land dedication. 

Cash in lieuCash-in-lieu of land dedication shall be permitted in cases in which the cash value of 
park land dedication is deemed, by the Council, to be more appropriate in satisfying the needs of the 
proposed development than land within or in the vicinity of the proposed development.  Such cases 
include, but are not limited to, those involving small developments below the minimum size 
requirement and developments that already have adjacent facilities that could be expanded to satisfy 
the need created by the proposed development.  In those land developments where proposed regional 
trails are located, no cash in lieucash-in-lieu of land will be accepted unless there is an acceptable 
alternate route shown on the Comprehensive Plan or other public parks, trails or open space plan 
adopted by the City.  The minimum cash-in-lieu fee shall be five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 201 of 241



(1) The DirectorThe Community Development Department shall review all cash-in-lieu 
requests and make a recommendation to the Council. 

(2) The Council shall make a final determination of the method in which the dedication 
requirements shall be satisfied. 

(3) When cash in lieucash-in-lieu of land dedication is required by the City Council, the 
following formula shall be used: 

[(A) X (B) = Cash-in-lieu amount required] 

Where: 

(A) = Total acreage for dedication 

(B) = Total $ value/acre as determined by market value or mitigation value as established by the Council based 
on the full market value of the acreage required for park land dedication, or as may otherwise be agreed to 
between the applicant and the City Council.  Value shall be based on anticipated market value after completion 
of platting and construction of public improvements as provided in Section 17-1110-20 (a) of this Article. 

(4) When the combination of land and cash in lieucash-in-lieu of land is requested by the 
Directorthe Community Development Department, the following formula shall be used: 

(A) – (B) = (C) 

Where: 

(A) = Total park dedication in acres required 

(B) = Land acreage accepted by the City 

(C) = Total acreage for dedication as cash-in-lieu 

And: 

(C) X (D) = Amount Required for Cash-In-Lieu 

Where: 

(C) = Total acreage for dedication as cash-in-lieu 

(D) = $ Value per acre as determined by market value or mitigation value as established by the Council + 
Construction of public improvements as provided in Section 17-11-20 of this Article. 

(5) The cash-in-lieu fee shall be equivalent to the full market value of the acreage required for 
park land dedication, or as may otherwise be agreed to between the applicant and the City Council.  
Value shall be based on anticipated market value after completion of platting and construction of 
public improvements as provided in Section 17-1110-20 (a) of this Article.  The applicant shall 
submit a proposal for the cash-in-lieu fee and supply the information necessary for the Council to 
evaluate the adequacy of the proposal.  This information shall be based upon a value established 
by or acceptable to the Council and may include consideration of at least one (1) appraisal of the 
property by a qualified appraiser. 

(6) The cash-in-lieu fee will be prorated on a per-unit basis at the time of final platFinal 
Platting. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 202 of 241



(7) The cash-in-lieu fee shall, where feasible, be used to benefit the residents within a 
reasonable service area of the type of park for which the fees were collected.  If possible, the 
service area shall be within one (1) mile of the project site and shall be not more than two (2) 
miles from the project site unless otherwise agreed to by the City.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-14060.     Disposition at public meeting. 

Disposition of park lands obtained through the City dedication requirements shall be determined 
by the Council at a public meeting.  The sale of any such park property for private uses shall be in 
accord with any applicable State or Charter requirements.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-15070.     Development and maintenance of parks, trails and open space. 

The City may assume or negotiate the responsibility of development and maintenance of all parks, 
trails and open space.  Title to land dedicated for parks may be held by the City, with long-term lease 
arrangements negotiated with a local government entity or homeowners' association.  The costs 
associated with development and maintenance of parks, trails and open space shall be the 
responsibility of the developer, a local government entity or a homeowners' association, except as 
provided in Section 17-1110-20 (a) of this Article.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-16080.     Cash in lieuCash-in-lieu of land held by the City. 

The City shall hold cash-in-lieu fees until such time as an eligible public park, trail or open space 
plan and development schedule, including costs for development and provision for ongoing 
maintenance, is established and distribution of funds is approved by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-17090.     Credit toward dedication requirements. 

The applicant may receive credit toward park land dedication requirements by performing one or 
more of the following: 

(1) Providing swimming pools, noncommercial indoor recreation centers and other specialized 
recreational facilities, provided that: 

a. Such facilities are available to the general public; 

ba. Such facilities will meet a demonstrated public need; 

cb. Such facilities replace or supplement facilities that would generally be provided by the 
City or other public entity; and 

dc. A cashier's check, letter of credit or other security, as requested by the Council, is 
provided to ensure completion of such facilities. 

(2) Dedicating or purchasing and subsequently dedicating off-site land (land not contiguous to 
the development), provided that such land: 

a. Will meet a demonstrated public need; and 

b. Meets the City's acceptance criteria for parks. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 203 of 241



(3) Providing private open space if such land is restricted to park, recreation or open space 
purposes by conservation easement or deed, and provided that such land: 

a. Will meet a demonstrated public need; and 

b. Meets the City's acceptance criteria for a park, recreation or open space. 

(4) Providing park and recreation facilities by developers, special districts and homeowner's 
associations.  A cashier's check, letter of credit or other security to ensure completion of such 
facilities may be required as requested by the Council.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-180100.    Selection criteria. 

(a) Selection criteria for public parks: 

(1) The City may consider acceptance of property to meet park land dedication requirements, 
provided that: 

a. Property to be dedicated is accessible to residents living within a reasonable service area 
of the development (i.e., preferably within a one-half-mile radius and no more than a two-mile 
radius from the project site); 

b. Land to be dedicated contains sufficient flat surface to provide for development of active 
recreation areas as deemed necessary to meet the needs of the applicable service area; 

c. The property to be dedicated is not an exclusive utility or other easement, a public street, 
right-of-way or pedestrian walkway required under other regulations or does not contain 
topographical, hazardous or material obstructions that would preclude development as a local 
park; 

d. The property to be dedicated may be co-located with an elementary or middle school site 
or other public recreation facility in order to benefit from shared facilities, such as parking lots, 
access roads, play fields, etc., thereby reducing the overall acreage requirement by a factor 
equal to those shared facilities; and 

e. The property to be dedicated can support both active and/or passive recreational 
activities for City residents. 

(2) Trails.  No credit shall be given for trails toward the park land dedication requirements.  
Provision of trails is considered a normal element of an appropriately planned development. 

(3) Open space.  Land within the proposed development may be required for open space 
purposes in addition to park land dedication requirements as approved by the City or if the area 
serves one (1) or more of the following functions: 

a. Identification or separation of communities or subdivisions or provision of expansive 
visual relief from development. 

b. Provision of a buffer or transition between different land uses. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 204 of 241



c. Preservation or protection of: 

1. Scenic areas, including vistas along highway corridors; 

2. Fish and wildlife habitats; 

3. Prominent land forms and landmarks; 

4. Outdoor recreation areas; 

5. Cultural, historic and archaeological areas; 

6. Unique vegetative areas; 

7. Critical ecosystems; 

8. Floodplains and riparian areas; 

9. Aquifer recharge areas; 

10.  Surface water; or 

11.  Watershed areas. 

d. Provision of City-wide or regional trails and linkages, public access to lakes, streams 
and other public lands, passive recreation opportunities or outdoor and nature study areas. 

(b) Property will not be considered for open space dedication acceptance if it is an exclusive 
utility or other easement, or a public street, right-of-way or pedestrian walkway required under other 
regulations.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Division 3 
Schools 

Sec. 17-1110-210110.     General requirements. 

Property dedicated to the City must be suitable for development and the intended use to meet the 
need generated by the proposed development.  All of the dedicated school property must be suitable 
for construction of school facilities.  Dedicated sites shall be a single parcel and shall meet minimum 
size requirements sufficiently square or round to be usable for the intended use.  The dedicated school 
property shall be centrally located and within the service radius with public access to adjacent street 
frontage and free from hazards that would threaten the safety of those using the property. 

(1) The following formula shall be used to calculate the minimum amount of required school 
property dedication to meet the needs of the proposed subdivision: 

 

Facility  Acres Per Student 

Elementary School (K-6) = 0.018 acre/student generated 

Middle School (7-8) = 0.030 acre/student generated 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 205 of 241



Senior High School (9-12) = 0.030 acre/student generated 

 
(2) The following is the minimum acreage required per school, unless otherwise agreed to by 

the School District and the City: 

 

Elementary School = 12 acres 

Junior High School = 30 acres 

Senior High School = 60 acres 

Combined Secondary Campus (MS & HS) = 90 acres 

 
(3) Existing dwelling units shall be excluded from the calculation of the school property 

dedication requirement if they have previously been included in the calculation for school property 
dedication.  If the existing units have not previously been included in the calculation for school 
property dedication, they will be included in the calculation. 

(4) Dedicated school property shall be clearly identified on the submitted plat/plan by a legal 
description.  The plat/plan shall also indicate the number of acres for each site and the total 
acreage proposed for school property dedication within the project.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1110-220120.     Cash in lieuCash-in-lieu of property dedication. 

(a) Cash in lieuCash-in-lieu of property dedication shall be required when determined by the 
Council to be more appropriate in satisfying the needs of the proposed development and school 
district.  Such cases include, but are not limited to, small developments not able to meet the minimum 
property requirements and developments that are served by adjacent facilities that could be expanded 
to satisfy the need created by the proposed development. 

(1) The School District shall review the developer's request to dedicate property or pay cash in 
lieucash-in-lieu of property dedication and make a recommendation to the City. 

(2) The Council shall make the final determination of the method in which the dedication 
requirement shall be satisfied. 

(3) The cash-in-lieu fee shall be equivalent to the full market value of the acreage required for 
school property dedication.  Value shall be based on anticipated market value after completion of 
platting and improvements as provided in Section 17-1110-20 (a)  of this Article, or other amount 
as agreed to by the City.  The applicant shall submit a proposal for the cash-in-lieu fee and supply 
the information necessary for the Council to evaluate the adequacy of the proposal or accept an 
amount provided by the School District. 

(b) The applicant shall convey the dedication property or pay the in-lieu-of fees prior to the 
recordation of the first final platFinal Plat for the subdivision, or as may otherwise be agreed to by 
Council.  The conveyance of dedicated school property to the City shall be by warranty deed, and the 
title shall be free and clear of all liens and encumbrances, including real property taxes prorated to the 
time of conveyance.  The subdivider shall provide a title insurance policy in the City's name insuring 
the property in the amount of the property's fair market value, and a certified survey at the time of 
conveyance. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 206 of 241



(c) The conveyance of property to satisfy the City's dedication requirement will be made to the 
service district, school district, homeowners' association or other entity when it can be demonstrated 
that the property will be developed or used within a reasonable time frame as determined by the City, 
including engineering, planning and design work.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

ARTICLE XII 

Vested Property Rights 

Sec. 17-1211-10.    Intent. 

Property rights for single-family detached residential property may be vested through the approval 
of a sSite- specific Specific development Development planPlan.  The final platFinal Plat shall be 
deemed the siteSite- Sspecific Ddevelopment Pplan for the purpose of vesting property rights in 
single-family detached residential property.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1211-20.    Procedure. 

(a) The landowner or authorized representative may apply for a determination that a siteSite- 
Sspecific development Development plan Plan entitles the owner or representative to vested property 
rights. 

(b) The application for vested property rights shall be made within sixty (60) days of final 
platFinal Plat approval and prior to plat recordation. 

(c) The Council may vest property rights for single-family detached residential property in the 
same manner as set forth in Chapter 16, Article XXVI XXXIV of this Code.  However the siteSite- 
Sspecific development Development plan Plan shall be the final platFinal Plat instead of the Site 
Improvement Plan. 

(d) Concurrent processing of the final platFinal Plat and designation of the siteSite S-specific 
development Development plan Plan shall be permitted with the approval of the Directorthe 
Community Development Department.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1211-30.    Amendments to final platFinal Plats. 

Changes to final platFinal Plats that have been determined to be siteSite- Sspecific development 
Development plans Plans shall not affect the terms and conditions of vesting if such changes are 
insubstantial pursuant to Paragraph 17-8-70(a)(1) of this Chapter.  Such changes shall not extend the 
vesting period unless expressly authorized by the Council.  Changes to final platFinal Plats that have 
been determined to be siteSite- Sspecific development Development plans Plans shall terminate the 
terms and conditions of vesting if such changes are substantial changes pursuant to Paragraph Sec. 
17-87-70(2)(a)(2).  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

Sec. 17-1211-40.    Vacations of final platFinal Plats. 

When any portion of a final platFinal Plat that has been determined to be a siteSite- Sspecific 
Ddevelopment plan Plan is vacated, the terms and conditions of the vesting shall be automatically 
null and void and the vested rights forfeited.  Upon the vacation of a recorded plat, a new plat may be 
proposed for determination as a site-specific development plan.  (Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 207 of 241



APPENDIX 17-A 

PLAT CORRECTION CERTIFICATEPLAT CORRECTION CERTIFICATE 

(Subdivision Name and Filing No.)  Reception No. _______ 

WHEREAS, (Describe the change; e.g., the street rights-of-way shown on Pine BoughCarriage 
Club, Filing No. 1 were dedicated to public use); and 

WHEREAS, the City of Lone Tree desires to (Change the names of O'Boyle Lane and Council 
TrailOak Tree Court and Oneida Drive within Pine BoughCarriage Club, Filing No. 1). 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that: 

The following street names within Pine BoughCarriage Club Filing No. 1 shall be changed as 
follows: 

1. O'Boyle LaneOak Tree Court changed to Pine Cone Barkway Court. 

2. Council TrailOneida Drive changed to White Pine WayLongview Drive. 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________, 20___. 

CITY COUNCIL of the City of Lone Tree, CO 

By:__(Community Development Director’s signature)

(

  
          

Printed name), Community Development Department Director)
                                                

  

           
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )  ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

I hereby certify that this certificate was filed in my office on this _____ day of _________, 20___ 
A.D., and was recorded at Reception Number ______________. 

By:  Typed Named(Signature of County Clerk and Recorder)

        

 
Signature:   

(Printed name), Douglas County Clerk and Recorder
(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 208 of 241



APPENDIX 17-B 

VACATION APPROVAL CERTIFICATE 

(Subdivision Name and Filing No.)  Reception No. _________ 

WHEREAS, (Describe the change; e.g., lots 1 and 2 were platted as separate lots as shown on 
Creekside, Filing No. 7); and 

WHEREAS, the lot owner desires to (vacate the common lot line between lots 1 and 2 and the 5' 
utility easement on either side of this common lot line thereby combining lots 1 and 2 and resulting in 
one lot renamed lot 1A, Creekside, Filing No. 7), as shown on the Vacation MapVacation Map 
recorded herewith; and 

WHEREAS, the known beneficiaries of the utility easement were notified, and responded as 
follows: 

1. Xcel Energy – no objection; 

2. Southgate Water and Sanitation District  –  no objection 

3. Comcast – no objection; and 

WHEREAS, the Park Meadows Metropolitan District was notified and recommended approval of 
the lot line/easement vacation. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that: 

(The common lot line between lots 1 and 2 along with the 5' utility easement on either side of this 
common lot line be vacated resulting in the creation of lot 1A, Creekside , Filing No. 7). 

This legal description is to be used for all conveyances/transfers of this property. 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________, 20___. 

City Council of the City of Lone Tree, CO 

By:__
 

(Printed name), Director of Community Development Director)   

(Community Development Department Director’s signature) 

    
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )  ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

I hereby certify that this certificate was filed in my office on this _____ day of _________, 20___ 
A.D., and was recorded at Reception Number ______________. 

By:  Typed Named(Signature of County Clerk and Recorder) 
Signature:  

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 209 of 241



       
The undersigned, being all the owners of the land described herein, and the beneficiaries of any 

deeds of trust encumbering that land, hereby consent to this vacation. 

(Printed name), Douglas County Clerk and Recorder 

OWNER(S) 

_______________________ If Corp.: 

By: _______________________________ 

       (corp. name)        

 Title:  
ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of ____________________, 20___, by 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

       *(print name)     . 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public      

My commission expires: ___________________ 

*Signatures of officers signing for a corporation shall be acknowledged as follows: 

    (print name of officer)     as     (title of officer)     of   (name of corp.)  , a    (state)   

BENEFICIARY OF DEED OF TRUST: 

 corporation. 

                                                      By: __()________________________ 
                                                    Title  

     (name)                                                 

____________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____________, 20___, by     (name of 
officer)  , as    (title of officer)  , of    (name of beneficiary)  , a    (state of organization)    ,    (type of 
entity)   

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

. 

_________________________________ 
Notary Public              

My commission expires: ___________________ 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 210 of 241



APPENDIX 17-C 

LOT LINE ADJUSTMENT CERTIFICATELOT LINE ADJUSTMENT CERTIFICATE 

(Subdivision Name and Filing No.)  Reception No. 

WHEREAS, (Describe the change; e.g., lots 10, 11 and 12 were platted as separate lots as shown 
on Hill Top, Filing No. 2); and 

WHEREAS, the lot owner(s) desires to (vacate the common lot line between lots 10 and 11, and 
between lots 11 and 12 and the 5' utility easement on either side of these lot lines and replat lots 10, 
11 and 12 and associated easements into 2 lots renamed lots 10A and 11A Hill Top, Filing No. 2), as 
shown on the Lot Line Adjustment Map recorded herewith; and 

WHEREAS, the known beneficiaries of the utility easement were notified and responded as 
follows: 

1. Xcel Energy – no objection; 

2. Southgate Water and Sanitation District – no objection; 

3. Comcast – no objection; and 

WHEREAS, the Park Meadows Metropolitan District was notified and recommended approval of 
the lot line/easement vacation and replat. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that: 

(The common lot line between lots 10 and 11, and lots 11 and 12 along with the 5' utility easement 
on either side of these lot lines be vacated and replatted resulting in the creation of Lots 10A and 11A 
Hill Top, Filing No. 2). 

This legal description is to be used for all conveyances/transfers of this property. 

APPROVED this _____ day of ___________, 20___. 

CITY COUNCIL of the City of Lone Tree, CO 

By:__
 

(Printed name), Director of Community Development Department Director)  

(Community Development Department Director’s signature) 

  
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )  ss. 
COUNTY OF __________ ) 

I hereby certify that this certificate was filed in my office on this _____ day of _________, 20___ 
A.D., and was recorded at Reception Number ______________. 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 211 of 241



By:  Typed Named(Signature of County Clerk and Recorder)

       

 
Signature:   

(Printed name of County Clerk and Recorder
The undersigned, being all the owners of the land described herein, and the beneficiaries of any 

deeds of trust encumbering that land, hereby consent to this lot line adjustment. 

) 

OWNER(S) 

_______________________ If Corp.: 

By: __________________________________ 
Title: ________________ 

       (corp. name)        

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of ____________________, 20___, by 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

       *(print name)     . 

___________________________________ 
Notary Public              

My commission expires: ___________________ 

*Signatures of officers signing for a corporation shall be acknowledged as follows: 

    (print name of officer)    as    (title of officer)    of    (name of corp.), a    (state)   

BENEFICIARY OF DEED OF TRUST: 

 corporation. 

By: ________________________________ 
Title: ________________ 

     (name)                                                   

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _____ day of _____________, 20___, by     (name of 
officer)  , as    (title of officer)  , of    (name of beneficiary)  , a    (state of organization)    ,    (type of 
entity)   

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

. 

__________________________________ 
Notary Public 

My commission expires: ___________________ 

(Ord. 08-07 Art. 3) 

 

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 212 of 241



CITY OF LONE TREE PRELIMINARY FINDINGS 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for J & L Concepts, LLC 

d/b/a Cranelli’s 
 
MEETING DATE: January 7, 2014 
 
STAFF PERSON 
RESPONSIBLE: Jennifer Pettinger, CMC, City Clerk 
 
DESCRIPTION: Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License for J & L Concepts, LLC 

d/b/a Cranelli’s, 10047 Park Meadows Drive, Unit F, Lone Tree, 
Colorado. 

 
SUMMARY: The application for a new Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License at 

the above location was submitted and completed in all material 
respects.  The necessary fees accompanied the application. 

 
 This establishment is located at 10047 Park Meadows Drive, Unit 

F.  A Second Consent to Assignment and Amendment was entered 
into on November 22, 2013 among CH Realty IV/Crest Lone Tree, 
L.L.C., Landlord, Asian Smiles, LLC, Assignor, and J & L 
Concepts, LLC, Assignee.  The lease expiration date is September 
30, 2017. 

  
 Documents reviewed include the License Application, Individual 

History Records, Lone Tree Business License, Certificate of Good 
Standing issued by the Colorado Secretary of State, Red-lined 
Drawing of the Premises, Affidavit of Posting, Affidavit of 
Publication and Petitions. 
 
Background checks were submitted through CBI and FBI through 
fingerprint cards.  All posting and publication requirements were 
met and the petition results reviewed.  Staff recommends approval 
of the application conditional upon the applicant obtaining all 
necessary approvals. 
 
A Hotel and Restaurant licensee must have full meals available 
until 8:00 p.m. everyday, and snacks and sandwiches after 8:00 
p.m. Food sales must provide at least 25% of the gross income 
from the sale of food and drink of the license premises over any 
period of time of at least one year. 

 
RECOMMENDED 
COUNCIL ACTION: Convene the Public Hearing for a new Hotel and Restaurant Liquor 

License and consider a motion to approve the application for a 
Hotel and Restaurant Liquor License.    

01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 213 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 214 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 215 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 216 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 217 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 218 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 219 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 220 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 221 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 222 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 223 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 224 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 225 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 226 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 227 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 228 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 229 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 230 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 231 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 232 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 233 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 234 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 235 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 236 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 237 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 238 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 239 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 240 of 241



01/07/14 City Council Packet Page 241 of 241


	2014-01-07
	2013-12-17 CC Minutes
	SubdivisionRegs
	1 - CC Staff Report Sub Regs Update
	FROM: Steve Hebert, Community Development Director
	Jennifer Drybread, Senior Planner
	DATE: January 1, 2014
	FOR:  January 7, 2014, City Council Public Hearing (Second Reading)
	From time to time the City performs an evaluation of the Subdivision regulations to ensure they:
	 Are in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan
	 Are clear and consistent
	 Are in line with current policies and procedures
	 Eliminate redundant, outdated or unnecessary regulations
	 Address existing problems or concerns
	 Keep current with changing circumstances or technology, and
	 Meet the needs of the City.
	Staff has undertaken a comprehensive review of the Subdivision Code in keeping with the above intent and in concert with Public Works.
	D. DESCRIPTION:
	The following is a more detailed list of the proposed amendments (you may want to refer to the track changes” version of the document if you are interested to see how the change was made in context).  Where the amendments are minor or self explanatory...
	The following has been taken directly from the minutes of the Planning Commission hearing held on December 3, 2013.
	G. STAFF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION:
	Staff recommends the City Council approve on Second Reading, Ordinance No. 13-12 concerning amendments to the Lone Tree Subdivision Code.
	END

	1a -Ordinance 13-12 Subdivision Code
	Series of 2013                      Ordinance No. 13-12
	ARTICLE 1 – AUTHORITY
	James D. Gunning, Mayor


	1b Ordinance13-12 Exhibit A
	2 - Referral resp Sub Regs
	4 - WORKING DRAFT II - 2013 Subdivision Update
	5 - WORKING DRAFT - Redlined version Sub Regs

	Cranelli's



